
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
To all Members of Uttlesford District Council, you are hereby summoned to attend the 
meeting of the District Council to be held as shown below to deal with the business set 

out in the agenda. 
 
Chief Executive: Peter Holt 
 

Council 
 
 
Date: Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 
CB11 4ER 

 
Chair: Councillor A Coote 
Members: Councillors A Armstrong, H Asker (Vice-Chair), G Bagnall, S Barker, 

M Caton, C Criscione, C Day, A Dean, G Driscoll, D Eke, J Emanuel, 
J Evans, P Fairhurst, M Foley, R Freeman, N Gregory, 
N Hargreaves, V Isham, R Jones, A Khan, P Lavelle, G LeCount, 
P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, J Lodge, J Loughlin, S Luck, S Merifield, 
E Oliver, R Pavitt, L Pepper, N Reeve, G Sell, G Smith, M Sutton, 
M Tayler and J De Vries 

 
  
 
Public Speaking 

 

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your 
intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk 
 
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their 
questions or statement at the meeting, and encouraged to attend the meeting via 
Zoom to readout their questions or statement themselves. In person attendance is 
also available but subject to capacity limits. For further information, please see 
overleaf. Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so virtually here. 
The broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins. 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk


AGENDA 
PART 1 

 
Open to Public and Press 

 
 
1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 To receive any apologies and declarations of interest. 
 

 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 

5 - 13 

 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting.  
 

 

3 Chair's Announcements 
 

 

 To receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

 

4 Reports from the Leader and Members of the Executive 
 

14 - 15 

 To receive matters of report from the Leader and members of the 
Executive: 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Planning and the Local Plan 

 Portfolio Holder for the Environment and Green Issues; 
Equalities 

 

 

5 Matters referred from the Executive and the Council's 
committees 
 

 

 To consider any reports referred from the Executive and the 
Council’s committees and receive questions and answers on any of 
those reports. 
 

 

6 Matters received about joint arrangements and external 
organisations 
 

 

 To consider matters concerning joint arrangements and external 
organisations. 
 

 

7 Corporate Plan 2022-26 
 

16 - 25 

 To consider the Corporate Plan 2022-26. 
 

 

8 Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget Proposals 
2022/23 
 

26 - 235 



 To consider the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget 
Proposals 2022/23.  
 

 

9 Pay Policy Statement 
 

236 - 251 

 To consider the Pay Policy Statement report.  
 

 

10 Business Rates Reliefs and Grants 
 

252 - 276 

 To consider the Business Rates Reliefs and Grants report. 
 

 

11 Calendar of meetings - 2022-23 
 

277 - 278 

 To note the Calendar of Meetings 2022-23.  
 

 

12 Appointments Committee - Chief Officer Appointments 
 

279 - 282 

 To conisder the report regarding the Appointments Committee – 
Chief Officer Appointments.  
 

 

13 Appointments to Licensing and Environmental Health 
Committee 
 

 

 To consider the appointments of Councillors Driscoll and Lodge to 
the Licensing and Environmental Health Committee in place of 
Councillors Day and Lees.  
 

 

14 Member Motion: Development of an Evaluation Framework for 
the Uttlesford Sustainable Local Plan & Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 

283 - 291 

 To consider the member motion: Development of an Evaluation 
Framework for the Uttlesford Sustainable Local Plan & 
Supplementary Planning Document. 
 

 

15 Member Motion: Robin Hood Tax 
 

292 - 293 

 To consider the member motion: Robin Hood Tax.  
 

 

16 Member Motion: Youth Council support 
 

294 

 To consider the member motion: Youth Council. 
 

 

17 Member Motion: Committee System Working Group 
 

295 

 To consider the member motion: Committee System Working 
Group.  
 

 

 



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
In light of the High Court judgement regarding the non-extension of remote meeting 
regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings have returned to in-person 
and have been held on-site since Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to social 
distancing measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk 
assessment, public access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually 
until further notice. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s 
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be 
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage. 
 
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged 
to do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement 
via Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday 
two working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and 
3 minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those 
wishing to make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a 
device with a microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a 
statement to the meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone. 
In person attendance is also available but subject to the Council’s capacity limit; if 
you would like to speak in person or reserve a seat at a meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on the details below.  
 
Technical guidance on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the  
point of confirming your registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the  
best way to participate in this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510  
369/410/467/548 who will advise on the options available.  
 
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more  
information please call 01799 510510. 
 
Facilities for people with disabilities  
 
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510 
369/410/467/548 as soon as possible prior to the meeting. 
 

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services 

Telephone: 01799 510433, 510369 or 510548  

Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

General Enquiries 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER 

Telephone: 01799 510510 
Fax: 01799 510550 

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk 
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk 

mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


 

 
 

COUNCIL held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON 
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on TUESDAY, 7 DECEMBER 2021 
at 7.00 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor A Coote (Chair) 
 Councillors A Armstrong, H Asker, G Bagnall, S Barker, 

C Criscione, G Driscoll, J Emanuel, J Evans, M Foley, 
R Freeman, N Gregory, N Hargreaves, R Jones, P Lavelle, 
G LeCount, P Lees, M Lemon, J Lodge, S Luck, S Merifield, 
E Oliver, R Pavitt, L Pepper, G Sell, G Smith, M Sutton, 
M Tayler and J De Vries 

 
Officers in 
attendance: 

P Holt (Chief Executive), B Ferguson (Democratic Services 
Manager), C Gibson (Democratic Services Officer), 
R Harborough (Director - Public Services), J Reynolds (Assistant 
Director - Legal and Governance) and A Webb (Director - 
Finance and Corporate Services) 

 
 

C60    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Eke, Reeve, Day, Dean, 
Loughlin, Khan, Caton, Isham, Light and Fairhurst. 
 
Councillors Barker and Foley declared non-pecuniary interests in relation to Item 
12 - Local Council Tax Support Scheme as members of Essex County Council.  
 
 

C61    RETIREMENT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICES  
 
The Chair asked the Leader to address Council in light of the retirement of Roger 
Harborough – Director of Public Services who had retired after nearly 44 years of 
public service to the Council. 
 
The Leader thanked Mr. Harborough for his exceptional service to the Council 
and said he was grateful that he had not departed earlier as his leadership and 
expertise had been invaluable in many areas during the past few years, and 
commended him for his work throughout the Covid-19 pandemic. He said Mr. 
Harborough had been a “tower of strength” to the Council for so long and he 
wished him all the very best for the future. 
 
Councillors Sell, Criscione and Barker all commended Mr. Harborough as an 
exemplary officer who had been a great credit to the Council for many years. He 
was wished a happy retirement by all. 
 
Mr. Harborough thanked members for their comments and said he would have 
departed the Council earlier if it had not been for Covid-19 but he had wanted to 
see the contingency plans through the critical stage of the pandemic. He said his 
belief in public service had sustained him through the years, and he was pleased 
to have followed such a path. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

 
 

C62    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2021 were approved as a correct 
record.  
 
 

C63    CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chair provided a brief update on events he had attended since the previous 
meeting. He thanked those who had bought tickets to the charity dance for East 
Anglia Children’s Hospice, and highlighted his trip to Thaxted Primary School. 
 
 

C64    REPORTS FROM THE LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE  
 
The Leader highlighted a number of workstreams in relation to Planning and 
Development Control and said progress was being made in regards to the 
implementation of the recommendations arising from the East of England Local 
Government Association of Planning review. He said the post of Director of 
Planning had been raised a level and an extremely competent interim Director 
had been appointed. He said it had been gratifying to see that the Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI) had presented the Council with an award regarding the 
Council’s approach to consultation on the Local Plan, demonstrating that the 
administration had listened to residents. 
 
 

C65    COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES: TIME PERMITTED FOR QUESTIONS TO 
THE EXECUTIVE AND COMMITTEE CHAIRS  
 
The Chair invited Councillor Oliver to summarise the report regarding the pilot 
scheme pertaining to Rule 2.4: Time permitted for questions to the Executive 
and Committee Chairs. He highlighted the amendment to the pilot scheme 
regarding the mechanism by which written responses to questions that could not 
be answered at the meeting should be provided within 5 working days where 
possible. He proposed adoption of the new wording and the protocol attached 
with the report.  
 
Councillor Driscoll seconded the recommendation. 
 
Councillor Sell said he welcomed some aspects of the report, such as receiving 
responses to questions at the meeting itself, but was more concerned with the 
issue of clarification questions. He said he felt that too much discretion was 
given to the Chair in regards to defining, and therefore permitting, clarification 
questions. He agreed that such supplementary questions should be tied to the 
answer given but was disappointed that some of the spontaneity and theatre was 
being taken out of these question and answer sessions.    
 
Councillor Driscoll, who had led the Task and Finish Group, said he had found 
the previous approach tedious as he felt that the same questions and arguments 

Page 6



 

 
 

were being raised repeatedly. He said if Members required advice regarding 
whether a question would be permitted as a clarification question, they should 
contact Democratic Services for assistance. He said the past two question and 
answer sessions had been conducted better than previously and that he would 
like the new approach to lead to less terse meetings. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Jones, the Chair confirmed that the 
amended rule would allow supplementary questions if permitted by the meeting’s 
Chair.  
   
Councillor Foley said the previous protocol had led to questions, which had been 
responded to previously, being asked again in a slightly different way. He said 
this did not help anyone and asked that the new system be given a chance and 
for Members to reflect on the process after a period of time.  
 

RESOLVED that the Constitution be amended in regards to Rule 2.4 of 
the Council Procedure Rules and the associated protocol as set out in 
Appendix A to the report.  

 
 

C66    QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER, MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE AND 
COMMITTEE CHAIRS (UP TO 30 MINUTES)  
 
In response to an urgent question from Councillor Barker regarding a dedicated 
budget line for the Council’s contribution to the Local Highways Panel, Councillor 
Hargreaves said this would be done in future budget reports.  
 
In response to a clarification question from Councillor Smith regarding objectives 
for the next eighteen months, Councillor Armstrong said there would be 
additional projects regarding his portfolio but much would depend on the budget. 
 
In response to a clarification question from Councillor Barker regarding private 
landlords choosing not to upgrade to EPC Level C and the potential impact this 
could have on the rental housing market, Councillor Lees said Housing Officers 
were looking at these scenarios but it was difficult to assess the numbers at this 
point in time. 
 
 

C67    APPOINTMENT OF RETURNING OFFICER AND ELECTORAL 
REGISTRATION OFFICER  
 
Council noted the decision regarding the appointments of the Returning Officer 
and Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) and deputy EROs.  
 
Councillor Freeman highlighted a mistake relating to the title of ‘Returning 
Officer’ which would require correction. 
 
 

C68    PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT APPOINTMENTS 2022/23  
 

Page 7



 

 
 

The Chair moved to Item 11 on the agenda due to technical issues experienced 
by the Chair of the Independent Remuneration Panel. 
 
Councillor Oliver presented the report regarding Public Sector audit 
appointments for 2022/23, which stated that the current appointment would end 
in March 2023. He proposed ‘opting-in’ to the appointing person arrangements 
made by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of 
external auditors.  
 

RESOLVED that the Council approve the option to ‘opt in’ to the 
appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors. 

 
 

C69    LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23  
 
Councillor Hargreaves presented the report regarding the Local Council Tax 
Support (LCTS) Scheme 2022/23, which stated that there was a requirement to 
annually review the LCTS Scheme and propose changes to the scheme for the 
following financial year. He said that the Scheme was the most generous in 
Essex but referenced Councillor Gregory’s comments at Cabinet regarding a 
more radical scheme and highlighted the Exceptional Hardship Fund as another 
measure to support residents. A consultation has been carried out during the 
summer on the scheme proposals to retain the contribution rate at 12.5%, which 
had been in place since 2014/15, and to continue to protect Vulnerable and 
Disabled residents and Carer’s on a low income. He highlighted the fact that the 
number of claimants had gone down in recent years although this trend had 
been reversed due to the impact of Covid-19. He proposed the recommendation 
set out in the report. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Barker regarding the number of LCTS 
claimants going up, Councillor Hargreaves agreed and said it had gone up due 
to the impact of Covid-19.   
 
Councillor Criscione said he supported the Scheme but asked whether clarity 
could be provided on the 12.5% contribution rate for those who could apply. He 
said there was some confusion whether the Scheme was a 12.5% discount 
rather than a 12.5% overall contribution rate. 
 
Councillor Smith asked whether the consultation rate could be improved further, 
particularly following the ceased circulation of the Uttlesford Life magazine.    
 
Councillor Sell said better use could be made of local town and parish 
publications to further increase the response rate to the consultation.  
 
 

RESOLVED to approve the Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 
2022/23 on the same basis as 2021/22: 

 
I. The contribution rate is frozen for the eight consecutive year at 12.5%. 
 

Page 8



 

 
 

II.  The Council continues to protect Vulnerable and Disabled Residents and 
Carer’s on a low income. 

 
 

C70    MEMBERS' SCHEME OF ALLOWANCES 2022-23  
 
Diane Drury, the Chair of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP), presented 
the report regarding the Members’ Scheme of allowances for 2022/23. She 
thanked Members who had contributed to the review process this year. A range 
of factors had been included in the Panel’s deliberations, such as the economic 
climate, the public sector pay freeze and that elections would be held in 2023. 
The Panel had proposed a 1.75% increase this year as they felt a freeze for a 
second subsequent year would result in a higher increase in future years to keep 
pace with the rate of inflation. The Panel had also considered the Special 
Responsibility Allowances (SRA) for Portfolio Holders and Opposition Group 
Leaders; no changes would come into effect this year, although the Portfolio 
Holder SRA was earmarked for amendment during the next review. She also 
thanked Melissa Challinor, who would be departing the IRP after four years of 
service, for her fantastic contributions to the Panel’s work. Further thanks were 
given to Democratic Services for their assistance during the review.   
 
The Chair thanked Mrs. Drury and the entire Panel for their work. 
 
Councillor Lodge proposed the recommendation setout in the report; Councillor 
Evans duly seconded. 
 
 RESOLVED to:  
  

I. Adopt the recommended scheme of allowances for the year 2022/23 as 
set out in Appendix A to the report, effectively increasing the current 
level of basic allowance and all existing special responsibility 
allowances (SRAs) by 1.75%.  

II. Note the Panel’s recommendation to introduce a collective Special 
Responsibility Allowance for Portfolio Holders in 2023/24. Details of the 
amended SRA will be presented to Council in December 2022. 

 
 

C71    ETHICAL INVESTMENT POLICY  
 
Councillor de Vries presented the report regarding the Ethical Investment Policy. 
He said the topic of ethical investment had been a point of conversation at every 
Investment Board meeting, and he was pleased that a strong investment 
portfolio was being paired with an equally strong ethical investment policy. He 
proposed adoption of the Ethical Investment Policy.  
 
Councillor LeCount seconded the proposal. 
 

RESOLVED that the Council formally adopts the revised Ethical 
Investment Policy (Appendix 1). 

 
 

Page 9



 

 
 

C72    ESTABLISHMENT OF PLANNING COMMITTEE WORKING GROUP  
 
Councillor Merifield presented the report regarding the establishment of the 
Planning Committee Working Group. The report referenced the EELGA Peer 
Review and the two specific pathways that related to members; Member 
Development and Planning Committee. Therefore, Planning Committee resolved 
at the meeting on 24 November 2021 to recommend to Full Council the formal 
establishment of a Planning Committee Working Group. The Working Group 
would provide the necessary focus to take responsibility for progressing the 
timetable and actions required by the EELGA Peer Review as they related to the 
member Development Implementation Pathway and Planning Committee. She 
proposed the recommendation set out in the report. 
 
Councillor Lemon said the working group was required and seconded the 
proposal. 
  
 

RESOLVED to: 
 

I. Formally establish a Planning Committee Working Group based on 
the proposed Terms of Reference (attached as Appendix A).  

 
II. Appoint Councillors Merifield, Lemon, Fairhurst, Freeman, Pavitt 

and Loughlin to the Planning Committee Working Group. 
 
 

C73    APPOINTMENT TO THE ESSEX POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL  
 
Councillor Evans proposed Councillor Sutton’s appointment to the Essex Police, 
Fire and Crime Panel. This was duly seconded by Councillor Jones. 
 

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Sutton to the Essex Police, Fire and 
Crime Panel.  

 
 

C74    ELECTION OF A LEADER OF COUNCIL  
 
The Chair said Councillor Lodge had indicated that he would be stepping down 
as Leader at this meeting and a new Leader would need to be elected. He called 
for nominations. 
 
Councillor Lodge proposed Councillor Lees as Leader. He said he had spoken 
with his family and knew he would not be standing at the next election. 
Therefore, it was right to plan for his succession and he would be handing over 
the reigns as Leader, although staying on as a councillor. He said he did not 
have time to mention all of the Administration’s achievements but Planning had 
been a major issue for years and he was delighted with the improvements being 
made in the department. Furthermore, he was particularly proud of the recent 
award granted by the RTPI as an indication that Planning was moving very much 
in the right direction. He said by handing over to Councillor Lees, the important 
work of the Administration would continue. 

Page 10



 

 
 

 
Councillor Lavelle seconded the proposal and said Councillor Lees was an 
extremely strong candidate to lead the Council.  
 
There were no further nominations for Leader. 
 

RESOLVED to elect Councillor Lees as the Leader of Uttlesford District 
Council. 

 
The Chair thanked Councillor Lodge for his time, expertise and leadership over 
the years. 
 
 

C75    ANNOUNCEMENT BY NEW LEADER OF THEIR DEPUTY AND CABINET  
 
The new Leader, Councillor Lees, addressed Council. She thanked Councillor 
Lodge for leading the Residents for Uttlesford to a successful election victory in 
2019 and for having the expertise and vision, particularly in regards to 
investment and finance, to lead the Council through the past two and a half 
years.  
 
The Leader announced that Councillor Hargreaves would be appointed as the 
Deputy Leader and Councillor Sutton would take on Councillor Day’s portfolio as 
he was stepping down from Cabinet. Councillor Coote would take the Housing 
Portfolio once he had finished his term as Chair of Council in May 2022. She 
said she was looking forward to working with all councillors and wanted to 
engender a more collegiate approach to politics in the Chamber.  
 
Councillor Foley said this was a special moment for Uttlesford District Council as 
Councillor Lees was the first female to be appointed Leader of Uttlesford District 
Council.  
 
Councillors Barker, Sell, Smith and Criscione congratulated the new Leader.  
 
Councillor Barker requested that details of the new Portfolio Holders be shared 
in due course. 
 
 

C76    MEMBER MOTION: INDEPENDENT TEST PROCESS FOR THE LOCAL PLAN 
- WITHDRAWN  
 
    
The Member motion regarding an Independent test Process for the Local Plan 
had been withdrawn. 
 
 

C77    MEMBER MOTION: ABUSE OF ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES AND PUBLIC 
SERVANTS, AND THE COARSENING OF PUBLIC DISCOURSE  
 
The Leader presented her motion regarding abuse of elected representatives 
and public servants in public life. She said the current political discourse at all 

Page 11



 

 
 

levels of public life had become more toxic, accelerated and exacerbated by 
social media, as tragically demonstrated by the murder of Sir David Amess MP. 
She said the Council needed an annual security review in place in order to 
protect elected members and proposed the motion set out on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Criscione reiterated these comments and said whatever the strength 
of political feeling members had, there was a line which could not be crossed. He 
said this would not detract from holding those in power to account, but it was 
important that members reflected on their own comments or actions, and that 
they did not feed into a “cycle of intimidation”. He seconded the proposal. 
 
Councillor Freeman said he supported the proposal. He had experience of a 
public attack and felt that there was no protection for those in public life. The 
Council needed to do better. 
 
Councillor Pavitt said the behaviour of those in Westminster was a catalyst for 
leading a small number of people to abuse elected members. Furthermore, 
social media had exacerbated this trend and he felt “proxies” were being used to 
spread mistruths on local social media sites. These people needed to be held to 
account. He was unsure how the Standards Committee could fulfil this role as it 
was not a court. 
 
Councillor Lees said information relating to abusive comments would be collated 
by the Police and repeat offenders would be dealt with. 
 
Councillor Sell said Westminster parties were also affected by abuse and 
pointed to the imminent report regarding the Online Safety Bill to demonstrate 
that Westminster was taking this seriously. He would be supporting the motion.  
 
Councillor Barker said she had received calls from members of the public 
outside of her Ward who had been unable to contact their own ward councillors; 
her contact details would remain in public. She said dealing with disgruntled 
people would always be part of the role due to the decision making nature of 
being a councillor. She felt the motion did not go far enough and asked that legal 
officers look at the Standards process to ensure it was taken seriously.  
 
Councillor Luck said security should not be left to an annual review but be kept 
“live” and under constant review. Also, Councillor Sutton should be invited to pick 
this issue up with the Community Safety Partnership. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
  

I. To instruct the chief executive to work with elected members, staff 
and external partners, particularly Essex Police, to carry out an 
annual assessment of safety and security of both elected 
representatives, council staff and the public we serve in the course 
of our work, and to present that report, with actions taken and 
recommendations as appropriate, each year to full Council for 
debate.  

 

Page 12



 

 
 

II. To task our Standards Committee, in addition (and separate to) 
their work considering individual complaints, to consider the 
standards of discourse in public debate locally focused on the 
Council, both by members of the public and amongst councillors 
ourselves, and to report annually with conclusions and 
recommendations as appropriate for part of the same annual 
debate. 

 
 

C78    MEMBER MOTION: HIGHWAYS FUNDING  
 
Councillor Barker said she was happy to withdraw the motion in light of the 
assurances she had received earlier in the meeting.  
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.45 pm.   
 
 

Page 13



Councillor John Evans, Portfolio Holder for Planning and the Local Plan 

Full Council: 22 February 2022 

 

Local Plan  

In November to February, the Local Plan Leadership Group continued to receive the 

evidence being prepared to inform the emerging Local Plan.  This included the Retail 

Capacity Study; Infrastructure Baseline Report, further Landscape Sensitivity work; 

flooding and employment evidence.   

The group has also endorsed a design document on Shopfronts to inform planning 

decisions in the district.  It is intended that this document will be consulted upon and 

ultimately adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document.  It is an assessment tool 

that will be used to help raise design quality of new development in the district.   

The Council is reviewing the representations received from Town and Parish 

Councils and the promotors of the sites during the technical consultation on the sites 

submitted to the call for sites.  Representations on the site boundaries and fact 

checking the analysis will be used to update the assessment of sites. 

The Local Plan is now reaching a critical stage, as the Council seeks to draw 

together the evidence, vision, objectives, and preliminary outline strategy, to develop 

a draft Local Plan.  It is intended to consult on this draft Local Plan in May.  

Representations received during this consultation will be used to inform and amend 

the plan before it is prepared to be submitted to the Secretary of State for 

examination. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



1  

  

Councillor Louise Pepper, 
Portfolio Holder for the Environment and Green Issues; Equalities 
Full Council, 22 February 2022 
 

 Community Listening Events 
o Disability event held on 27th Jan 22 - 30 attendees, Contributions from local organisations 

supporting those with disability and an opportunity for members of the public to ask 
questions  

o Women’s event to be held over two lunchtime workshops on 15th March & 22nd March, 
Commission Over The Bloody Moon to deliver on the Menopause, Next Chapter to present 
on Domestic Abuse support, Physical Activity/This Girl Can will be covered by Active Essex 
and Celebrating Women will be captured by an update on the Snapping the Stiletto project 
with SW Museum 

 2022 Equality Duty now available on the UDC Website  https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/equalities-
and-diversity#public-sector-equality-duty 

 LGBTQ+ History Month https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/LGBT-history-month The Rainbow Flag will 
fly for the entire month of February at the London Road offices 

 Holocaust Memorial Day https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/7030/Holocaust-Memorial-Day-27-
January  
 

Armed Forces Covenant 

 The expression of interest for the ERS (Employer recognition Scheme) Silver Award has been 
submitted, work with UDC HR and Regional ERS lead to ensure all relevant supporting evidence 
is in place for April deadline 

 Met with Cllr Rod Jones Elected Member lead for Armed Forces to update him on the work of the 
Armed Forces Covenant 

 Attended Civilian Military Partnership Board 

 Attended Army Community Group hosted by Carver Barracks 

 Attended MOD Veterans UK – Welfare & Transitions Support Masterclass 
 

Local Strategic Partnership 

 LSP Theme group lead officers, along with Communities, Health & Wellbeing Manager, Asst 
Director for Housing & Health met with Peter Holt to discuss the relaunch of the LSP Board – it 
was agreed a further meeting inviting the theme group chairs would be arranged for April 2022, in 
the meantime the following theme groups meetings have either taken place or due to take place 

o H&WB Board met 11th January 2022 
o EEST scheduled to meet on 17th January 2022 
o C&F scheduled to meet on 3rd March 2022 
o CSP scheduled to meet on 10th March 2022 

 

 

 
 

Cllr Louise Pepper 
District Councillor, representing the Ward of Great Dunmow North  
 

Page 15

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/equalities-and-diversity#public-sector-equality-duty
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/equalities-and-diversity#public-sector-equality-duty
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/LGBT-history-month
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/7030/Holocaust-Memorial-Day-27-January
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/7030/Holocaust-Memorial-Day-27-January


Committee: Council Date: Tuesday, 22 
February 2022 

Title: Draft Corporate Plan 2022-2026 

Portfolio 

Holder: 

Cllr N Reeve, Portfolio Holder for the 

Economy, Investment and Corporate Strategy 

 

Report 
Author: 

Peter Holt, Chief Executive 
pholt@uttlesford.gov.uk Tel: 01799 510400 

 

 
Summary 
 

1. Council adopted a new corporate plan in February 2020, following a change of 
Administration in 2019. This has been reviewed annually, and this latest 
revised iteration is presented alongside the budget, medium term financial 
strategy and other strategic reports.  
 

2. The draft Corporate Plan 2022-2026 has been considered by the Scrutiny 
Committee on Thursday, 3 February 2022 and Cabinet on Thursday, 10 
February 2022.  

Recommendations 
 

3. That the Corporate Plan for 2022-2026 is adopted. 

Financial Implications 
 

4. There are none directly arising from the corporate plan but the draft budget 
reflects allocations for the members’ priorities, which will be detailed against 
the corporate plan delivery plan. 

 
 
Background Papers 

 
5. None. 
 

Impact  
 

6.        

Communication/Consultation There has been no specific consultation on 
the review but the changes proposed are 
minor.  

 

Community Safety Community safety continues to be featured 
in the Corporate Plan 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



Equalities Equality continues to be featured in the 
Corporate Plan 

Health and Safety No issues arise from the Corporate plan 

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications 

None arising from the Corporate Plan 

Sustainability The corporate plan makes clear reference 
to sustainability 

Ward-specific impacts None 

Workforce/Workplace A strong vision that creates a sense of 
purpose is key to engaging staff effectively 
in their work situation 

 
Situation 
 

7. Council adopted a new Corporate Plan 2020-2024 at its meeting in February 
2020; this had been proposed by the new administration elected in May 2019. 
The Corporate Plan sets out the vision for the next four years and the priority 
areas of work to deliver that vision.  
 

8. The Corporate Plan is reviewed annually but the expectation is that having 
adopted a new one in 2020, the annual review will be light touch and result in 
no/little change.  

 

9. The period since the Corporate Plan has seen three major events impact on 
the work of the council. This review, therefore, included specific consideration 
of the potential for change in light of these events:  

 
 

a. Covid19 pandemic: It is considered that the plan holds up well, even in 
light of the significant impact the pandemic has had on our residents, 
businesses and communities. Therefore no change is recommended.  

 
b. The Council is currently considering adoption of a substantially-revised 

Medium Term Financial Strategy following national changes in the 
approach required of local authorities, and which will substantially 
reduce the net spending power available to the authority over the latter 
four of the next five years. 

 

10. This Corporate Plan is not being altered substantially as a result of this 
financial situation deliberately and by design.  This is to ensure that the scale 
of ambition for improving outcomes for local residents remains central to the 
work now commencing to change the way the council works over those five 

Page 17



years to live within its means (which will be set out in a separate document, to 
be called Uttlesford 2027). 

 

11.  Members will be aware that a Corporate Plan Delivery Plan is prepared by the 
Executive, which defines the actions to be taken. The financial implications 
arising from the draft delivery plan are reflected in the budget papers being 
considered at this same meeting.  

 

12. The delivery plan for 2022-23 has been drafted and will be brought to Scrutiny 
Committee at its meeting in March, ahead of being taken to Cabinet later in 
the month. This will reflect any changes made to the Corporate Plan and/or 
the budget and will build on the progress made in 2020-21 and 2021-22, which 
will also be reported at the March meeting of Cabinet.  
 

Risk Analysis 
 

13.  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

The Council fails 
to deliver on its 
priorities 

1 3 The Delivery Plan will 
set out an achievable 
programme of work 
for 2021/22 31 – If 
staff are not 
sufficiently focused on 
the priorities, some 
projects bringing 
benefit to the 
community may not 
be delivered Greater 
clarity and explanatory 
narrative enables staff 
to understand the 
priorities more clearly; 
the Delivery Plan 
alongside the budget 
will ensure that 
adequate resources 
are allocated; 
activities will feature in 
service and individual 
performance plans 

1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 

Page 18



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 1 
 

 

P
age 19



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 2 
 

 

Uttlesford District Council’s four year Corporate Plan was first published in this form in 2020, reflecting the priorities of the council administration elected in 

May 2019, and setting out the ambitious programme of improved outcomes for local communities on which the Council was to focus over coming years.  

This Corporate Plan was subsequently reviewed in 2021, rolling forward those priorities, and those priorities are reaffirmed again in this latest review in 

2022. 

These priorities and the scale of ambition remain consistent – detailed actions behind this high-level plan are set out in a separate Corporate Plan Delivery 

Plan document published alongside it.  This Delivery Plan is updated substantially year by year, both to reflect progress made, and to accommodate 

changing circumstances in the world, not least the Coronavirus pandemic.  Progress is reported on quarterly, and sits alongside the council’s wider 

performance management systems. 

Both Corporate Plan documents, in turn, are supported by a series of Service Plans, prepared at an operational level by each council service area. 

This suite of documents sits alongside a range of others, which help keep the whole council focused on achieving these ambitions.  These include the 

authority’s rolling five year Medium Term Financial Strategy, and its annual Budget.  Major initiatives and projects also have their own strategy and delivery 

documents, such as the Climate Crisis Strategy and Climate Crisis Action Plan. 

There is a ‘golden thread’ through all these strategy documents, aligning all of the Council’s work towards achieving the positive outcomes for local people 

set out in this Corporate Plan. 

Uttlesford District Council will be facing a substantial financial challenge over the coming five years, including through the period of this revised Corporate 

Plan, and the details of this are laid out in the parallel Medium Term Financial Strategy.  That the Corporate Plan has not been more fundamentally revised 

in this annual review is the result of a conscious choice: Uttlesford’s ambitions for improving outcomes are not being set aside. 

To square this circle, one further new additional strategy is being added to the suite – Blueprint Uttlesford – setting out the authority’s approach over the 

next five years. 

A district council has the ability to both lead and serve its community in work to improve lives – this Corporate Plan sets out a substantial breadth and great 

height of ambition, both for the services directly within its control, and for those of other partner agencies with whom it partners and over whom it has 

influence. 

 

P
age 20



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 3 
 

Our Vision: Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play 

Theme: Putting Residents First 

Why this is important: 
 
We are elected by residents. Their needs 
and welfare are our first and highest 
priority.  
 
They expect us to be open, honest and 
responsible. They deserve high standards 
of governance and trustworthiness.  
 
They want good levels of service and 
expect their council taxes to be used 
efficiently and wisely. 
 
The result will be: 
Residents will know their views have been 
listened to; they will feel they have the 
opportunity to influence the decision 
making; they will understand why 
decisions have been made even if they 
disagree with them. They will report 
increased levels of trust and confidence in 
the way the Council conducts its business 
and manages its resources. 
 

We will: 
1) Be a council that listens to and acts for residents 

a. Increase the voice and influence of residents in planning and other Council matters 
b. Administer public consultations that are effective, accessible, timely and high quality 
c. Provide opportunities for young people  
d. Improve the council’s use of the web and social media to increase communication with 

residents 
e. Actively and positively engage with and listen to our town and parish councils  
f. Support town and parish councils to better represent their communities 

2) Deliver local government with outstanding levels of transparency and accountability  
a. Implement a corporate change programme to increase accountability, transparency and 

democracy at the Council  
b. Seek external review of and recognition for positive change achieved by the Council 
c. Deliver a comprehensive continuing member development programme 

3)   Be responsible with your money and mitigate the impact of government cuts. 
a. Be a self-sufficient Council that generates its own resources from local taxation (Business 

Rates and Council Tax) and commercial investments thereby removing the reliance on 
Central Government grants 

b. Deliver cost-effective and efficient services that live within the Council’s means 
c. Constantly seek to improve the quality of contracted out services  
d. Apply for all relevant grants 
e. Set a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to fund council services by a prudent mix of 

investment, services and tax income, while maintaining adequate reserves  
f. Follow best-practices for investment risk management and board composition 

  

P
age 21



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 4 
 

Theme:  Active Place-Maker For Our Towns And Villages 
Why this is important: 
 
A focus on strategic master-planning in 
partnership with towns and villages will 
create better resident-centred places to 
live. 
 
Our unique connectivity, location, and 
character can be used to drive a local 
economy that creates local jobs and 
prosperity. 
 
Taking an active role in providing homes 
and services for in need will safeguard the 
health and welfare of all our residents. 
 
 
The result will be: 
 
District, town and parish councillors will 
feel they have participated in decision 
making that positively shapes the 
communities they represent. 
 
New policies and plans will be 
implemented that give our towns and 
villages a strong sense of purpose and 
place. 
 
Residents will see that their council is 
working hard for them and their families 
to create great places for them to live, 
work and play. 

We will: 
1) Masterplan our new communities for and with residents 

a. Use locally led Development Corporations to deliver sustainable new settlements 
b. Provide the greatest level of influence and protection for communities adjacent to new 

settlements 
2) Support our towns and villages to plan their neighbourhoods 

a. Deliver an outstanding planning and place-making capability with the right capacity to 
create quality outcomes with and for all our communities 

b. Facilitate Neighbourhood Planning across the district through strong engagement with and 
support of all town and parish councils 

c. Implement policies which create better homes and neighbourhoods that meet or exceed 
national standards 

d. Work with partners and stakeholders to deliver new sports, play and community facilities  
3) Secure greater benefits for our community from new development 

a. Implement the Community Infrastructure Levy along with s106 to deliver strategic 
community projects and greater local benefit from development 

b. Increase the transparency of the Section-106 Agreement process and councillor 
engagement in it  

c. Ensure that strong Planning Enforcement holds developers to account 
d. Require developers to be considerate of the communities in which they build 

4) Work with the airport on issues of concern to communities 
a. Seek a reduction in night flights 
b. Implement programmes to reduce airport related village fly-parking 
c. Work to secure investment in sustainable transport to and from airport, including for local 

workers 
5) Nurture employment and retail areas to create jobs and retain businesses 

a. Protect and grow our town centres as economic hubs 
b. Increase tourist spend 
c. Support the creation of amenities that stimulate and facilitates local businesses, such as 

enterprise zones, business parks, office blocks, industrial areas, and start-up hubs 
d. Support the expansion and promotion of key relevant employment sectors for the district 
e. Work with partners to promote the economic opportunities of the London - Cambridge 

Innovation Corridor, Stansted Airport and our main transport corridors 
f. Work with the airport to increase local airport-based employment opportunities 

P
age 22



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 5 
 

6) Enforce good business standards in our district 
a. Make sure that businesses and trades in our district meet the national standards and 

licensing required of them 
7) Deliver more affordable homes and protect those in need in our district 

a. Increase the number of affordable homes delivered and different tenure options including 
social renting  

b. Refurbish our existing council homes to sustainable standards when required 
c. Reduce the number of empty homes  
d. Ensure that landlords maintain high quality private sector housing conditions 
e. Ensure that services to protect vulnerable women and men who live in our district are 

accessible and appropriate  
8) Promote healthy lifestyles in diverse and inclusive communities  

a. Work with partners, including the voluntary sector, to improve the general quality of life for 
residents, including for residents that experience social isolation, poor mental health, 
obesity, addiction and dementia 

b. Continue to be an active partner of the Health and Wellbeing Partnership, to promote 
healthy lifestyles 

  

P
age 23



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 6 
 

Theme:  Progressive Custodian Of Our Rural Environment 
Why this is important: 
 
Residents live here because of our 
beautiful and historical rural character. 
We need to protect it for those that live 
here now. 
 
We must act quickly and responsibly to 
reduce the chances of a climate 
catastrophe. We have a clear obligation to 
ensure a clean, healthy and safe future. 
 
 
The result will be: 
 
Residents will see that their council is a 
strong protector of our environment; they 
will feel that the council is taking 
affirmative action on combating the 
effects of climate change locally. 

We will: 
1) Take action on Climate Change  

a. Adopt policies to meet new environmental national guidelines/standards as they emerge 
b. Drive policies to deliver low carbon homes 
c. Improve average energy efficiency of council housing stock  
d. Increase the number of trees in the district 
e. Oppose a second runway at Stansted Airport 
f. Set a Net Zero Carbon goal for the Council and implement supporting policies 
g. Increase walking, cycling and sustainable transport 
h. Recognise the district’s ‘greenest’ business and developers 

2) Conserve our natural resources 
a. Implement and enforce policies that protect water and reduce energy consumption  
b. Drive programmes that increase biodiversity  
c. Support local energy production initiatives 
d. Implement programmes to reduce single-use plastics  
e. Work to reduce per-capita landfill in the district 

3) Protect and enhance our rural character and heritage 
a. Meet or exceed national standards for open and green spaces 
b. Encourage positive planning that values and protects our heritage  
c. Work with others to increase access to the heritage and history of our district 
d. Work with our rural partners and developers to maintain habitat and wildlife corridors 
e. Target littering and fly-tipping 

4) Take strong action on dealing with pollution 
a. Increase air quality monitoring across the district 
b. Deliver reductions in pollution at identified problem areas 
 

  

P
age 24



UDC Corporate Plan 2022-26 (reviewed February  2022)  
 

  P a g e  | 7 
 

Theme:  Champion For Our District 
Why this is important: 
 
Residents deserve clear accountability, 
but they would like us to step in to help 
solve problems even when others are 
responsible.  
 
In our role as a place-maker we must 
work with other authorities and 
organisations to influence, prioritise and 
coordinate actions to collectively deliver 
the best for our district and its residents. 
This will include, when necessary, holding 
others to account. 
 
The result will be: 
 
Residents will feel that the council is 
proactively working on their behalf for the 
good of the district with other authorities 
and organisations. 
 

We will: 
1)  Improve Uttlesford’s connectivity 

a. Work to set the agenda for ECC highway maintenance and pothole fixing 
b. Work with ECC and communities to develop the highway improvement schemes we need  
c. Hold Essex Highways to account to deliver what they promise 
d. Promote and support sustainable transport initiatives, such as bus, rapid transport and rail 

upgrades  
e. Lobby Highways England to improve the capacity and safety of the M11 
f. Work with ECC and hold them to account to deliver rural superfast broadband in our district 

2) Support our students, schools and libraries 
a. Conduct a wholesale review of school transport to understand the gap in provision of what 

ECC provides 
b. Ensure that developer contributions are collected for ECC to provide our local school and 

Early Years places 
c. Create and support new services inside our libraries to increase their viability 

3) Work with partners to keep the district safe  
a. Work with the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable to reduce crime 

on our area 
b. Continue to be an active partner of the Community Safety Partnership 

4) Work to create a better local Health Service for residents 
a. Work with NHS on in-district local healthcare provision 
b. Work to secure Addenbrookes, The Princess Alexandra Harlow, and Mid-Essex hospitals as 

our recognised local hospital providers 
c. Deliver programmes to support our aging population 
 

 

P
age 25



Committee: Council Date:  

Tuesday, 22 
February 2022 

 

Title: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022 - 2027 and 
Budget Proposals - 2022/23 

Portfolio 
Holder: 

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget 

Cllr. Neil Hargreaves 

Report 
Author: 

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources 

aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk 

  

 

 
Summary 
 

1. The Council is required to prepare detailed budget reports to enable the annual 
budgets for the General Fund and Council Tax, Housing Revenue Account and the 
Capital Programme to be set. 
 

2. The Section 151 Officer is also required to provide members with a Section 25 report 
giving advice and assurance on the reserves position, including the minimum safe 
level of contingency funds that need to be held and the robustness of any estimates 
used in the calculation of the proposed budgets. The report also provides 
commentary on the assumptions in the Medium Term Financial Strategy and any 
associated plans and strategies. 
 

3. In addition, the council is required to prepare a number of supporting strategies: 
 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Treasury Management Strategy 

 Commercial Strategy 

 Capital Strategy 
 

4. The Council is required to consider and approve the Council Tax Resolution for 
2022/23 which sets the combined Band D equivalent for all preceptors. 
 

 Essex County Council 

 Police, Fire & Crime Commissioner for Essex – Policing and Community 
Safety  

 Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Essex - Fire and Rescue Authority 

 Uttlesford District Council 

 Town and Parish Councils 
 

5. The Commercial Strategy is scheduled to be presented to the Investment Board 
ahead of the budget setting meetings. The Housing Rent and Service Charges for the 
Housing Revenue Account have been to the Tenants Forum and the Housing Board 
and were supported by both. 
 

6. The Scrutiny Committee reviewed all the reports attached to this agenda at their 
meeting on the 3 February.  

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



7. The Cabinet reviewed the reports at the meeting on the 14 February and the motion 
to recommend to Council for approval was carried unanimously. 

 
Recommendations 
 

8. The Council is requested to approve the budget strategies and reports for 2022/23 as 
set out in Appendices A to I of this report and the associated Annexes. 

9. The individual recommendations for consideration by Council are set out in the table 
at the end of this report numbered I - XXI. 

10. The Council is requested to note the Equalities Health Impact Assessments. 

Financial Implications 
 

11. All financial implications are included in the individual reports and strategies 
 
Background Papers 

 
12. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this report 

and are available for inspection from the author of the report. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-
settlement-england-2022-to-2023 

 
Impact  
 

13.   

Communication/Consultation Members, CMT and Budget Holders 

Community Safety N/A 

Equalities N/A 

Health and Safety N/A 

Human Rights/Legal Implications N/A 

Sustainability N/A 

Ward-specific impacts N/A 

Workforce/Workplace N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2022-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2022-to-2023


 
Report Title 
 

Purpose of report Recommendations 

Appendix A  
Section 25 Report - 
Robustness of 
Estimates and 
Adequacy of Reserves 
 
 

This is a statutory report 
provided by the S151 Officer, 
this report provides members 
with advice and assurances on 
reserves, safe levels of 
contingency, assumptions 
used for estimates and any 
associated risks. 

Council is requested to 
 

I. take account of the 
advice in the report 
when determining the 
2022/23 General Fund 
budget and Council 
Tax 

 
II. review the risk 

assessment relating to 
the robustness of 
estimates as detailed 
in the report 

 
III. set the minimum safe 

contingency level for 
2022/23 at £1.597 
million for the General 
Fund and £0.546 
million for the Housing 
Revenue Account 

 
IV. agree that no transfers 

to or from the Working 
Balance should be 
built into the 2022/23 
budget 

 

Appendix B 
Commercial Strategy 

Sets out good practice as per 
guidance relating to Local 
Authorities commercialisation 
and investment activity. 

V. Council approves The 
Commercial Strategy 
2022 - 2027 

Appendix C  
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

Details all known factors 
affecting the financial position 
of the council over a 5 year 
period, providing a clear and 
concise view of future 
sustainability and resilience, 
allowing for effective longer 
term planning 
 

VI. Council approves The 
Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and 
note the Budget 
Consultation report. 

Appendix D   
Treasury Management 
Strategy 

Sets out the strategy and 
governance relating to the 
council’s cash-flow 
management, use of banks, 
investments and borrowing, 
taking into account guidance 
from our independent advisors 
and risk appetite 
 

VII. Council approves The 
Treasury Management 
Strategy  

 
 

Page 28



 
Report Title 
 

Purpose of report Recommendations 

 

Appendix E  
Capital Strategy 

An overview of how capital 
expenditure, capital financing 
and treasury management 
activity contribute to the 
provision of services along 
with an overview of how 
associated risk is managed 
and the implications for future 
financial sustainability 
 

Council approves the 
 
VIII. the Capital Strategy 

 
IX. the Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP) Policy 
 

Appendix F  
Capital Programme 

Sets out capital expenditure 
and the associated financing 
over a 5 year period for the 
council’s assets, including 
buildings, vehicles and ICT 
infrastructure. 
 

X. Council approves the  
5 year Capital 
Programme 

Appendix G 
Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

Details the spending plans for 
council housing for 2022/23  
 

Council approves 
 

XI. the Housing Revenue 
Account budget for 
2022/23 
 

XII. increases of 4.9% for 

 Housing and 
Supported 
Accommodation rents 

 Garage Rents 

 Lifeline Service 
 

XIII. Increases in line with 
actual costs for 

 Housing Related 
Support charges 

 Intensive Housing 
Management charges 

 Heating, Service and 
Sewerage charges 
 

XIV. the updated use of 
reserves 

 

Appendix H 
General Fund Revenue 
and Council Tax 

Details all the income, 
expenditure and use of 
reserves during the financial 
year 2022/23, sets out the 
proposals for the council’s 
council tax precept 

Council Approves 
 
XV. the General Fund 

Budget for 2022/23 
 

XVI. the General Fund 
Council Tax 

Page 29



 
Report Title 
 

Purpose of report Recommendations 

requirement of 
£6,403,772 
 

XVII. the transfer of reserves 
including the deficit for 
2022/23 to be drawn 
from the MTFS reserve 
in the Core Reserves  

XVIII. the schedule of fees 
and charges as set out 
in Annexe H6  

XIX. that delegated 
authority is given to the 
Director of Finance 
and Corporate 
Services to amend the 
trade waste fees. 

 

Appendix I 
Council Tax Resolution 
(Council Only) 

Sets out the combined and 
individual Council Tax Band D 
equivalent for all preceptors, 
for the financial year 2022/23 
 

XX. Council Approves the 
Council Tax Resolution 
for 2022/23 

 

Equalities Health 
Impact Assessment 
(EqHIA) 

An EqHIA has been completed 
the HRA rent setting and the 
General Fund and Council Tax 

XXI. Council notes the 
information provided in 
the EqHIA’s 
 

Risk Analysis 
 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

All risks are Included in the individual appendices  

 
1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 
 

Page 30



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

         Appendix A 

Section 25 Report – Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves 

 

 
Summary 

1. As part of the annual budget setting process, the Section 151 Officer is required to give the 
Council a formal opinion on the robustness of the budget estimates and the adequacy of 
reserves.  

2. The opinion is being considered by Cabinet on the 10 February and then by Full Council 
on 22 February as part of the budget approval process. 

 
Section 25 report 

3. Section 25 of the Local Government Finance Act 2003 requires that when a local authority 
is agreeing its annual budget and council tax precept, the Chief Finance Officer must report 
on the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the (council tax requirement) 
calculations and that the budget includes an assessment of the potential financial risks 
facing the Council and that the Council has adequate reserves should those risks 
materialise. 

4. The Act requires the council to give consideration to this report when making decisions on 
the budget.  

5. In expressing the opinion, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151 Officer) 
has considered the financial management and control frameworks that are in place, the 
budget assumptions, the financial risks facing the council and the level of total reserves. 

6. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 concentrates primarily on the uncertainties 
within the budget year (2022/23), however future uncertainties and increasing pressures 
on the Council’s finances also inform the reserves balances for the medium term.  

7. The Council holds a minimum level of reserves, called the Working Balance, to allow for 
sufficient reserve levels to manage unexpected impacts in line with the risk assessments, 
this is set at 2% of gross variable income and costs charged in both the General Fund and 
the HRA, and is recalculated for each year of the 5-year budget plan. This and further 
information on the reserves held can be seen in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
report. The working balances fort eh budget year 2022/23 are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Fund Housing Revenue Account

£'000 £'000

Gross Costs 44,935 10,463

Gross Income 34,904 16,841

2% Working balance 1,597 546

Working Balance

Page 31



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

Financial management and control frameworks  
 
8. The Director of Finance has responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal 

control is maintained to provide an assessment of the current position across the whole 
council and identifying areas for improvement where appropriate. Areas for improvement 
are reported to the Governance Audit and Performance committee. 
 

9. The Code of Practice for Financial Management (the FM Code) was introduced by CIPFA 
in November 2019. The Code clarifies how Chief Finance Officers should satisfy their 
statutory responsibility for good financial administration as required in section 151 of the 
Local Government Act 1972. Full compliance with the FM Code was expected for 2021/22. 
An assessment of the Standards and the Councils compliance and each Standard was 
assessed against a Red, Amber or Green rating. The main areas of development across 
the Council is budgetary control. 
 

Robustness of Estimates 
 
10. A comprehensive process of scrutiny, review and challenge of budgets by managers, 

finance officers and the Corporate Management Team has taken place to provide a budget 
that is based upon realistic estimates, for example, ensuring that contractual commitments 
are provided for, salary budgets reflect the approved establishment and current staff in 
post, and income budgets are based on an assessment of price and demand. 
 

11. No budget can ever be completely free from risk. Assumptions are made which means that 
the budget will always have an amount of uncertainty. The analysis below sets out the 
major risks applicable to 2021/22 and an indication of the possible impact. 

12. Demand growth increases have been built into the proposed budget and MTFP at the mid-
point of growth projections. Any increase in excess of this would need to be met from 
reserve if funding does not increase at the same level, the reserves hold adequate levels 
to cover any divergences from the expectation. 

13. The 2022/23 budget has been prepared against the backdrop of unprecedented levels of 
uncertainty. The 2021/22 budget was approved on the basis of a one-year local 
government finance settlement which meant for much of the year, plans had to be 
developed without government spending plans for future years or an indicative settlement 
for local government. The government announced another one-year settlement for the 
budget year 2022/23 and for the future years various modelling has been undertaken by 
the finance team to develop a range of scenarios. 

14. The Fair Funding Review which was to be based on an assessment of needs and 
resources has been paused along with postponed reform of Business Rates Retention. It 
is expected that all our external funding will be delivered through an adjustment to our 
Baseline funding level, tariffs/top ups and levies. The New Homes Bonus grant is also 
planned to end in line with the reforms and there is no defined scheme to replace it. 

15. The CIPFA Prudential Code was published in December 2020 which aimed to clarify the 
position of CIPFA, the Government and the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) on 
investments and treasury activities. Although the code allows for deferral for the full 
monitoring requirement until the 2023/24 budget year the guidance within The Code takes 
immediate effect. The Council has undertaken material investment activity within its capital 
program and the assumption is that under the new Code these can continue given prudent 
levels of reserves are held and provisions are set aside to mitigate risks. More details on 
the risks identified can be found in the Commercial Strategy. 

16. The Treasury Management strategy is a key component of the Council’s financial planning. 
This strategy sets out the proposed approach to borrowing and financial investments of 
cash reserves, referred to as Treasury activities, other non-treasury investments such as 
property investment are covered in the Commercial Strategy. The Council’s strategy seeks 

Page 32



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

to strike an appropriate balance between security, accessibility and returns from managing 
the Council’s cashflow and balances. 

 
Continuation of Impacts from Covid-19 
 
17. Since March 2020 the pandemic and the emergency heath response has required local 

authorities to make rapid changes to meet demands to both front line and support 
services, this resulted in additional expenditure along with income losses because of the 
lockdown periods and changes to consumer behaviour.  
The impacts are continuing to be seen albeit on a smaller scale and the council continues 
to be compensated for the income losses in 2021/22. Budgets have been adjusted in line 
with changes to working approaches and have identified, as a separate exercise, on-
going Covid-19 related risks and an assumption the compensation from government will 
not continue into 2022/23. 
 

18. The following assumptions have been built into the budget that directly relate to the on-
going impact of the pandemic: 
 

 
 
19. The risks identified that directly relate to the on-going impact of the pandemic where 

consideration of the robustness of the estimates has been assessed are: 

 

Service Assumptions built into budget

Revenues It is assumed that the Business Team will be able to 

manage any further business support initiative put in 

place by Central Government without any further 

resources. 

Revenues It is assumed that current Officers are able to 

implment and account for any Business Rate 

intitatives introduced to support business

Waste Services It is assumed that agency costs are at normal budget 

year levels without any impact from the pandemic 

Benefits It is assumed that if the government continue the 

Test and Trace Payment Scheme into 2022/23, the 

standard scheme will continue to be fully funded.  

Car Parks Income has been assumed to return to normal levels

Service Risks identified Probability Favourable Adverse

of variance Impact Impact

arising

Revenues Further resources maybe necessary 

dependant on the ongoing management of 

the pandemic however this will be covered 

by new burdens funding

M L

Revenues Additional consultancy maybe required to 

provided advice and guidance on new 

initiatives

M M

Waste Services Agency costs could increase if there is 

another lockdown and staff had to shield. M H

Benefits There is a risk that if the discretionary 

scheme continues, the finite fund allocated 

to UDC will not be sufficient to meet 

demand. Demand levels are difficult to 

predict as numbers are impacted by covid 

infection rates and contact tracing in area.

M L

Car Parks There is a risk that the impact of COVID could 

changed the usage of some car park and if 

the  recovery of the high street does not 

return as predicted and/or any further Covid 

variants  generate restrictions or reduce the 

users confidence this will reduce income 

M M M

Page 33



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

Budget Assumptions 
 
20. To form the budget for the 2022/23 financial year and then following 4 years to 2026/27 

has allowed for best estimates of the total financial picture, making allowances for 
anticipated unavoidable pressures and future business plans. 
 

21. This report does not generally list out in detail specific risks unless it is felt that it has the 
potential to have a significant impact on the Council. Due to the nature of the risk and the 
level of estimation applied to the fee income for Major planning applications, following the 
Designation Notice, it is appropriate that this is set out in detail as below. Further details 
on how this will be managed has been included in The Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(Appendix C). 

 
The Government wrote to the Council on the 7 February 2022 advising that they are 
exercising powers under the Town and Country Planning Act [1990 – Section 62A] 
to ‘designate’ the Council in regard to the consideration of major planning 
applications. The consequence of designation is that applications for major 
development can be made directly to the Planning Inspectorate, although applicants 
will have the option of continuing to apply to the Council in the usual way.  
 
The Council has taken the view that 50% of Major applicants are likely to opt for the 
alternative decision route and this equates to £560,000 of lost income based on the 
2021/22 income figures. Whilst it is hoped, through working closely with DLUHC, 
that the Designation Notice will only be in place for 12 months a prudent approach 
has been applied to the MTFS and a similar sum (£560,000) has been removed 
from the Planning fee income expectations for 2023/24. 

 
22. As there has been no other councils subject to a Designation Notice since 2014, there is 

very little information on which to base the estimated income loss. It should be noted 
therefore that this figure is subject to change giving a variance either higher or lower than 
the estimated £560,000. A separate paragraph will be provided in each quarterly budget 
monitoring report setting out the position at that point in time and the estimated annual 
loss. 

 
23. It is not possible to give a precise estimate of the impact of each identified risk. As a general 

guide for risk assessments the following has been used: 
 
Probability assessment 
Low    Possible, but unlikely 
Medium  Probable 
High   Almost certain 
 
Impact assessment 
Low  Possible variance of £5k-£19k 
Medium Possible variance of £20k-£49k 
High  Possible variance > £50k 
 

Page 34



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

  

Risks identified Probability Impact Overall Risk

of variance

arising

Sales, Fees and Charges

There is an overall risk that income levels could drop due to 

economic conditions, changes in social behaviour and 

Government legislation. 

Specific services with higher risk of variable income levels 

have been identified as food imports, licensing, car parking 

and monitoring fees.

Medium
Medium

Adverse/Favourable
Medium

Contracts

Large contracts that are influenced by inflation give rise to a 

risk of material changes to the costs which are largely out of 

the control of those managing those contracts, any contracts 

due for re-tender give rise to risks of increase and decreases 

in base price

Medium
High

Adverse/Favourable
Medium

Joint ventures and partnerships 

There is a risk with renewals of partnerships and joint 

ventures due within the budget year that the same level of 

service can not be agreed at a level similar to estimates built 

into the budget, or the service provided is no longer available 

which can require organisation changes and impacts to costs 

of interim measures if needed.

Low
High

Adverse/Favourable
Medium

Transformation

When planning changes to working approaches there is risk of 

variances of estimates built into the budget due to the size 

and amount of variables included in such projects.

Medium
High

Adverse/Favourable
High

Capital Financing

Estimates are built using expected project schedules of work, 

any delay in the scheme or unforeseen costs can create 

material impacts on the capital financing charges. Funding 

sources such as capital receipts may not be realised in the 

planned timescale therefore could create additional capital 

charges in the budget year.

Low
High

Adverse/Favourable
High

Waste and Recycling

This is a complex area financially and at greatest risk of 

volatility. Fuel costs and disposal costs, particularly around 

cost of dry recycling disposal are variable. Other budget risks 

have been identified regarding trade waste and green waste, 

all of which have income budgets that depend upon accuracy 

of forecasting activity levels. 

Medium
High

Adverse
High

Garden Waste

There is currently a consultation around Garden waste 

charging which exposes the council to the risk of both 

additional costs and loss of income.

Medium
High

Adverse
High

Planning Income

Due to the planning designation being applied to the Council,  

major development applications can be made directly to the 

Planning Inspectorate, bypassing the Council and this could 

lead to significant losses in income. A budget estimate of a 

50% loss has been applied to the 2022/23 budget, due to lack 

of information on how many will choose to go directly to the 

Planning Inspectorate, there is a risk that this estimate is 

either to low or to high.  

High
High

Adverse/Favourable
High

Local Plan 

Local Plan. A work programme is in place to prepare a new 

local plan. A new project management approach has been 

implemented which is being monitored regularly at 

dedicated meetings of the Scrutiny Committee

High
High

Adverse
High

Planning appeals

The current position of the Local Plan process raises the risk 

levels in the cost of defending appeals and any awards that 

may be made against the planning authority.  

Low
High

Adverse
Medium

Rental income

Empty office space has been assessed for its use as an income 

stream and the assumption that the space will be rented in 

the budget year 2022/23 may not be realised due to finding 

tenants and lease agreements.

Medium
High

Adverse
High

Housing Revenue Account Specific

Rental income

The ring-fenced account is set based on the assumption that 

the government agreement of allowing rental increases of at 

CPI+1% will continue over the medium term.

Medium
High

Adverse/Favourable
Medium

Right to Buy Scheme

The assumption that the authority will have suitable land and 

schemes to satisfy the right to buy agreement could, if 

undelivered, give rise to the risk of repayment of Capital 

receipts at an interest cost of 4% above base rate this would 

affect the cashflow of the authority and subsequent rental 

income from replacement properties would be lost. Currently 

there is work being undertaken by the government assessing 

the repayment criteria.

Medium
High

Adverse
High

Page 35



Section 25 Report 2022/23 – updated 10 February 2022 

 

Conclusion  
 
24. It is the opinion of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151) that in their view 

the budget estimates are robust and the level of reserves adequate and satisfactory, as 
required by the Local Government Act 2003, on the assumption that the proposed council 
tax increases by £5 for the budget year 2022/23. 
 

25. Whilst the 2022/23 budget is balanced, there remains a gap between estimated spend and 
funding streams for 2023/24 onwards. This is solely due to the uncertainty of funding 
pending the next spending review alongside the implementation of the new needs led 
funding formula and business rates reset. Therefore, the council needs to maintain focus 
on financial sustainability to produce a balanced budget over the medium term. 
 

26. The risks identified will be proactively monitored and mitigating action taken as soon as 
reliable trends emerge. Budget monitoring reports are presented to Members on a quarterly 
basis during the financial year and will set out the latest position and action being taken, 
where applicable. The control environment and associated processes in place are robust. 
Financial management has been reviewed and actions are in place to strengthen them. 

 
27. It is the opinion of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151) that the reserves 

are adequate and appropriate, full details of all the reserves held and their purpose are set 
out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (Appendix C). 

 
Impact  
 

Communication/Consultation Corporate Management Team and Joint Executive 
Team 

Community Safety None 

Equalities None 

Health and Safety None 

Human Rights None 

Legal implications The report is prepared in order to comply with Section 
25 Local Government Act 2003 

Sustainability None 

Ward-specific impacts None 

Workforce/Workplace None 

 
 
Risk Analysis 
 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

Actual events may differ 
from the assumptions and 
estimates used to produce 
the draft budget, which will 
lead to variances from the 
budget.  

4 (variances 
will occur 
requiring action 
to be taken) 

3 (potential impact 
which could 
adversely affect the 
council’s financial 
position if not 
managed)  

Budget monitoring 
and corrective 
action taken as 
necessary.  

Maintain sufficient 
reserves and 
Working Balance. 

 

Page 36



Budget amendment for the Council meeting on 22nd February 2022 

 

Motion to amend the budget to include a one-off rebate to those residents in 

Uttlesford who are in receipt of Local Council Tax Support but still have to 

pay some Council Tax. 

Proposed by Cllr Ayub Khan Liberal Democrats. Member for Stansted South & Birchanger. 

Seconded by Cllr Vere Isham Green Party.  Member for Takeley 

The amendment: 

The cost-of-living crisis has been growing in scale and impact over the last six months, with inflation 

reaching historic levels and yet to peak. Those on the lowest incomes are most exposed. 

Whilst the crisis is already affecting households across Uttlesford, it is set to deepen further with 
rising inflation as well as a planned National Insurance hike in April.  The increase in energy prices 
will push more of our households into fuel poverty.  The Citizens Advice service in Uttlesford has 
seen a 35% rise in people accessing fuel debt advice in 2021 

The Government has announced some assistance with a £150 payment to households in properties 
rated A to D.  In addition, they have made provision for a £200 bill credit loan for households which 
will be automatically added to bills in October and then repaid by those households in equal 
instalments over four years from April 2023.  

Data provided by the Section 151 Officer indicates that as of 31st January 2022, there are currently 
3,334 claimants in Uttlesford who qualify for the Local Council Tax Support Scheme.  All claimants 
are subjected to means testing to determine the percentage they must pay.  However, low-income 
pensioners and vulnerable people are protected, and receive 100% discount. Working age people, 
which equated to 948 of the claimants only receive partial support as per the Council’s Local Council 
Tax Support Policy and are required to pay a minimum of 12.5% of the Council Tax bill.  

We propose to help these people by providing a one-off cash rebate of £100 per household. The 
qualifying date to be eligible for the rebate was 31 January 2022. The rebate would be allocated to 
the household’s Council Tax account. The total cost would be £94,800 to be funded from the MTFS 
Reserve.  

Even after providing a £100 rebate, each of the 948 households will still have a Council Tax liability. 
Nobody will end up in the situation whereby the Local Council Tax Support they receive plus the 
£100 will be more than their Council Tax bill.  

Supporting this amendment, Members will send a very strong message to low-income families in our 
district that we are helping them through targeted action at this time of high inflation, low benefit 
levels and soaring energy costs. 

Supported by: 

Cllr Melvin Caton, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Alan Dean, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Janice Loughlin, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Geoffrey Sell, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Barbara Light, Green Party 

Cllr Paul Fairhurst, Green Party 

Page 37



 

 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

 

Commercial Strategy 2022 to 2027 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  

Commercial Team 

Uttlesford District Council  

January 2022 

 

 

Page 38



1 
 

     CONTENTS          PAGE 

Introduction 

 

2 

Vision 2 

 

CIPFA Prudential Code 2021 (the Code) and Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) 

 

Aims of the Strategy 

 

Purpose of the Investments 

2 

 

 

3 

 

4 

 

Current Portfolio 

 

 

4 

Loans to wholly owned subsidiaries 10 

 

The Investment Fund 

 

11 

The Portfolio Moving Forward 

 

Funding and Reserves 

 

12 

 

13 

Performance Reporting 

 

13 

 

Security, Liquidity and Yield 

 

  14 

Risks 

 

Proportionality 

 

Capacity, Skills and Culture 

14 

 

16 

 

16 

Page 39



2 
 

1. The Council recognises that as a consequence of reducing government funding 
there is an increased requirement to generate additional income to underpin the 
core services provided by the Council to its residents. Traditional ways of 
generating additional income such as through Council Tax and fees and charges 
will not be able to absorb the reduction in government funding.  By way of 
illustration, a 1% rise in Council Tax is equivalent to about £55,000 in additional 
income. 

 
2. When the 2020-2024 Commercial Strategy was approved in February 2020, the 

Administration indicated that they proposed to address the significant shortfalls 
identified in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) primarily through 
investments. To achieve that the Council agreed to set an investment fund 
approved limit of £300 million. 
 

3. The 2021-2026 MTFS, which included the investment income from all of the 
agreed commercial acquisitions, predicted small surpluses for each of the years 
from 2022/23 onwards. As future years were added to the plan the additional 
costs will in part be offset by increases in rent from the investments. 

 
4. Changes in both the CIPFA Prudential Code (the Code) and Government 

legislation on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) now mean that 2022-2027 
MTFS has significant and rising shortfalls in funding despite the commercial 
portfolio that has been acquired. It is likely that in 2022/23 an asset will need to be 
sold with the profit being used to offset future capital funding and thereby reducing 
the annual shortfalls to a less significant level. 

 

Vision 
 

5. To generate sufficient income to enable the Council to be self-sufficient, in that it 
generates its own resources from local taxation (Business Rates and Council Tax) 
and commercial investments thereby removing the reliance on Central 
Government grants. 
 

CIPFA Prudential Code 2021 (the Code) and Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) 

 
6. The Code was revised and published in December 2021. There are a number of 

changes but two in particular have a negative impact on future commercial 
investments 
 

 The Code previously said commercial activity should not be undertaken for 
yield. The Code now says ‘an authority must not borrow to invest primarily 
for financial return’. 
 

 It further strengthens the statement by ‘It is not prudent for local authorities 
to make any investment or spending decision that will increase the capital 
financing requirement, and so may lead to new borrowing, unless directly 
and primarily related to the functions of the authority and where any 

Page 40



3 
 

financial returns are either related to the financial viability of the project in 
question or otherwise incidental to the primary purpose.’ 

 
7. There are useful points of clarification which enable the Council to continue to 

invest in Chesterford Research Park and retain the existing commercial assets, 
subject to regular review. 
 

a) ‘Authorities with existing commercial investments (including property) are 
not required by this Code to sell these investments. Such authorities may 
carry out prudent active management and rebalancing of their portfolios. 
However, authorities that have an expected need to borrow should review 
options for exiting their financial investments for commercial purposes and 
summarise the review in their annual treasury management or investment 
strategies. The reviews should evaluate whether to meet expected 
borrowing needs by taking new borrowing or by repaying investments, 
based on a financial appraisal that takes account of financial implications 
and risk reduction benefits. Authorities with commercial land and property 
may also invest in maximising its value, including repair, renewal and 
updating of the properties.’ 
 

b) ‘the risks associated with investments for service and commercial purposes 
are proportionate to their financial capacity – ie that plausible losses could 
be absorbed in budgets or reserves without unmanageable detriment to 
local services.’ 

 
8. The Government has also strengthened the position with regards to MRP. 

Councils are now required to set aside annually monies, so as to ensure that, at 
the end of the borrowing term, there is sufficient funds available to pay off the 
amount borrowed. This Council has always applied MRP at 0% as the approach 
now mandated takes no account of inflation and future values. 
 

Aims of the Strategy 

 
9. Given the changes in the Code and MRP the following seven principles guide the 

new strategy 

 
(a) There will be no new commercial investments.  
(b) Subject to (d) and (e) below, The portfolio, as set out in this document is 

therefore complete. Of the £300 million allocated in 2020 to building the 
fund, £275,565,000 (£275 million) has been used. 

(c) MRP will be applied on an annuity basis over the life of each asset. 
(d) As the Council already owns, through Aspire (CRP) Ltd, the land at 

Chesterford Research Park it will continue to develop the asset to 
maximise its value. 

(e) As the Council already owns 46% of Stane Retail Park, which includes 
all of the public car parking, link roads and other shared elements for 
the entire site, it will evaluate the option of acquiring the rest of the asset 
to maximise the value of the already owned part. This would be done on 

Page 41



4 
 

the basis that the sum of the whole is worth more than the sum of the 
constituent parts. 

(f) The portfolio will be reviewed on a regular basis to determine the 
requirements of the Council and the appropriateness of retaining or 
selling each asset. 

(g) The Council will look to maintain the commercial asset portfolio at an 
investment level of no more than £275 million. However, it should be 
noted that investments may need to take place ahead of sales which 
could temporarily increase that number. 

Purpose of the Investments 

 
10. The investments are to generate income to enable the council to provide its core 

services. This income requirement has arisen because of reductions in the 
Council’s finance from central government.  Government also restricts the ability 
of councils to raise income from council tax increases.  

 
11. The Council seeks to operate in the most cost effective ways and will continuously 

look for improvements in operations that will reduce costs or avoid increased 
costs. However, the scale of reduction in external finance was such that other 
income sources had to be found.   

  
12. For 2021/22 the income target for the Board was guided by the MTFS. The MTFS 

forecasts the income and expenditure over a five year period and includes all 
known factors. It shows the predicted annual net surpluses or deficits.  The 
investment income sought to cover the forecast significant deficits in each of the 
years of the MTFS, so as to ensure that existing services can continue to be 
provided. The investments acquired achieved this, however changes to the Code 
and MRP now mean that the assets are required to support budgets as the 
Council seeks efficiencies whilst minimising inevitable service impacts. 

 

Current Portfolio 

 

Chesterford Research Park 

 
13. In May 2017 the Council, through its wholly owned subsidiary Aspire (CRP) Ltd, 

acquired a 50% share in Chesterford Research Park and formed a joint venture 
with Aviva Investors. As part of the Cambridge Life Science cluster the Park is 
world renowned, having been in existence for 19 years, with available space to 
significantly increase the commercial floor space, plus expand the Park into other 
areas of research to diversify and reduce the risk.  

 
14. The Council gave a loan to Aspire (CRP) Ltd for the purchase of 50% of 

Chesterford Research Park (£47.25m). The loan was funded by 

 

Page 42



5 
 

 Phoenix Life – borrowing of £37m for 40 years on a repayment basis @ 
2.86% fixed. The first £10m drawdown was 5 July 2017 with the 
remainder as follows 

 

  5 July 2020 - £12m 

  5 July 2021 - £15m 

 

 Use of reserves and balances (£10.25m) funds the balance. 

 
15. Since the initial purchase the Council has made additional ongoing loans to Aspire 

(CRP) Ltd for further development totalling £13,346,000 taking the total 
investment to £60,596,000.  
 

16. For 2022/23 the income from Chesterford Research Park is expected to be 
£2,411,000. There is also repayment to the Council of staff time whilst undertaking 
company work on Aspire (CRP) Ltd.  

 
17. Further investment is planned during 2022/23 and future years as a new building 

(Building 800) is delivered. This will be a multi-let, near 60,000 sq ft building, a mix 
of office and laboratory space. 

Skyway House, Takeley 

 
18. On 30 June 2020 the Council completed the purchase of Skyway House at 

Takeley. The tenant is Weston Homes Plc who have signed a long lease. 
 

 
 

   
 

Page 43



6 
 

Stane Retail Park, Colchester 
 

19. On 4 August 2020 the Council completed on the forward funding opportunity at 
Stane Retail Park on the outskirts of Colchester adjacent to the A12. This will see 
the construction of two buildings, one for Aldi and the other for B&Q located on an 
extension to the existing site. Both tenants have agreed long leases. Completion 
took place in December 2021. 
 

  
 

 
 

Page 44



7 
 

 
 
 
1 Deer Park Road, Livingston 
 

20. On 21 August 2020 the Council completed on the acquisition of 1 Deer Park 
Road, Livingston. The tenant, Veterinary Specialist (Scotland) Ltd had recently 
taken occupation and final fit out was taking place. 
 

 
 

   
 

21. At the time of purchase Veterinary Specialist (Scotland) Limited was a partnership 
between Pets At Home (Guarantors) and Dick White Referrals. Pets At Home 
have remained the guarantor but they have sold their interest to Linnaeus Group. 
Dick White Referrals have also joined Linnaeus Group which is part of the Mars 
Veterinary Health Group. 
 

  

Page 45



8 
 

Matrix Park, Chorley 

 
22. On 16 September 2020 the Council completed the purchase of a large logistics 

building on Matrix Park, Chorley adjacent to the M6. The tenant, on a long lease, 
is Waitrose Limited and this regional distribution centre serves the north west and 
Scotland. 
 

 
 

 
 

Amazon, Gloucester 
 

23. The Council completed the forward funding acquisition in March 2021 for a large 
scale distribution centre. The tenant is Amazon and they will use it as a ‘final mile’ 
van based distribution centre. Occupation by the tenant is planned for the final 
quarter of 2021/22. 

 
 

 
 

Page 46



9 
 

  
 
Moog, Tewkesbury 

 
24. In March 2021 the Council acquired a site in Tewkesbury for a new build head 

office and warehouse. The tenant will be Moog Controls Ltd. It is expected that the 
tenant will take occupation in the second quarter of 2022/23. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Little Canfield Business Park 

 
25. In November 2020 the Council acquired the former Winfresh Factory at Little 

Canfield, primarily as a new single waste depot. The site has a significant area of 
both building and land that will be let to tenant(s) once the conversion is complete. 
The site is planned to be ready for occupation in the first quarter of 2022/23. 
 
 

Page 47



10 
 

  
 

  

 

Loans to wholly owned subsidiaries 

 
26. The Council recognises that, to further support the budget ongoing and to ensure 

the continued delivery of services at the level currently provided, further 
investment in the expansion of Chesterford Research Park will be necessary. To 
date, the following loans to Aspire (CRP) Ltd have been made  

 

 

27. Interest only loans relate to refurbishment of a building and thereby extending its 
useful life. Interest and principal loans are where it is for fit out works which have a 
20-year life expectancy. 

Date Amount Term Rate Basis 
Annual 
Repayment Repaid 

03/05/2017 £47,250,000 50 years 4% Interest Only £1,890,000.00 

 27/06/2017 £60,000 10 months 4% Interest and principal £61,827.95 

26/03/2018 £223,000 49 years 1 months 4% Interest only £9,000.00 

 02/01/2019 £2,518,000 48 years 4 months 4% Interest only £101,000.00 

 20/08/2019 £3,000,000 20 years 4.5% Interest and principal £135,000.00  

09/06/2020 £1,250,000 20 years 4.5% Interest and principal £56,000  

01/07/2020 £2,600,000 20 years 4.5% Interest and principal £117,000  

15/03/2021 £2,975,000 20 years 4.5% Interest and principal £121,000  

26/08/2021 £780,000 20 years 4.5% Interest and principal £20,000  

Page 48



11 
 

 
28. In 2020 the Council allocated a further £20 million of funding, from the £300 

million, for further expansion at CRP, of which £12.62 million remains to be 
allocated. 

 

The Investment Fund 
 

29. The original 2020 Commercial Strategy set out an investment fund requirement of 
£300 million with a portfolio yield target (before borrowing costs) of 4%. As set out 
earlier completion of that portfolio sum is not now an option. The following table 
shows the current portfolio position and is split into two parts 

 

 Completed investments – those already in the portfolio 

 Future committed investments – forward funding approved yet to complete 
 

  £'000 Capital 
Investment 
(exc. Fees) 

  Completed Investments   
  Chesterford Research Park 60,596 
  Weston Homes 20,000 
  Veterinary Hospital 5,925 
  Stane Retail Park 30,424 
  Waitrose Retail Distribution Centre 55,000 
  Little Canfield Business Park 7,500 

  
 

179,445 
  Future Committed Investments   
  Chesterford Research Park 12,620 
  Amazon Distribution Centre 43,000 
  Moog Circuits Ltd 40,500 
  

 
96,120 

  Investment Total 275,565 
 

30. With the change in the Code and MRP the Portfolio is now complete, and no 
further assets will be added. 
 

31. In a full year the portfolio yield, once all outstanding acquisitions are completed, 

will have a yield of 4.8%. The rental income for the next five years is shown in the 

following table. 

  

Page 49



12 
 

  £'000 Capital 
Investment 
(exc. Fees) 

 

    Annual 
Rental 

Income  

   

      

 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
  Completed Investments   

 
  

   

  
  Chesterford Research Park 60,596 

 
     2,449       2,449       2,449       2,449       2,449  

  Weston Homes 20,000 
 

     1,171       1,200       1,230       1,261       1,276  
  Veterinary Hospital 5,925 

 
        333          333          333          333          333  

  Stane Retail Park 30,424 
 

     1,784       1,830       1,878       1,927       1,977  

  
Waitrose Retail Distribution 
Centre 55,000 

 
     2,508  

      
2,508       2,508       2,508       2,508  

  Little Canfield Business Park 7,500 
 

        263          350          350          350          350  
  

 
179,445 

 
    8,508       8,670       8,748       8,828       8,893  

  Future Committed Investments   
 

          
  Chesterford Research Park 12,620 

 
             -                -          603       603        603  

  Amazon Distribution Centre 43,000 
 

    2,280       2,280    2,280       2,280       2,585  
  Moog Circuits Ltd 40,500 

 
     1,520       1,667       1,667       1,667       1,835  

  
 

96,120 
 

    3,800      3,947      4,550      4,550      5,023  

  Investment Total 275,565 
 

  12,308    12,617    13,298    13,378    13,916  

      
 

          
 
 
* Little Canfield Business Park – Income is not shown in the investment income line in the MTFS it is shown 
within the General Fund budget as is other rental income of UDC occupied buildings (i.e.London Road) 

 

The Portfolio Moving Forward  

 
32. The original plan had been to acquire assets, hold them for a period of time to 

generate income, but then to sell them at the appropriate time to realise a sum at 
least the level of which was paid for the asset. The monies received would then be 
reinvested in a new asset and the process repeated. By doing this the need to 
refurbish buildings, find new tenants etc. would be avoided and the portfolio kept 
‘current’.  
 

33. The changes introduced by Government and CIPFA have resulted in the need to 
revise the plan for the portfolio moving forward. It will not now be possible to sell 
assets and buy new, the council will need to retain the assets for the longer term. 

 
34. In line with the need to retain the asset for a longer period of time it will now be 

necessary to set aside some of the income raised each year into a reserve to 
cover increased risk of business failure and future costs of refurbishment at the 
end of lease.  

 
35. The Council is committed to investing in Chesterford Research Park and changes 

to the Prudential Code do not stop it from doing so. The Council is keen to see 
existing tenants expand and grow on the Park and for the Park to attract new 
tenants from a diverse range of research activities. The Park is within the district 

Page 50



13 
 

boundary and investing helps to sustain existing employment, introduce new 
employment opportunities, and generate additional Business Rates.  

 
36. Regular reviews of all assets in the portfolio will be undertaken to determine the 

most appropriate point in time for sale, and to highlight timescales for 
refurbishments. The reviews will not only look at the asset itself but also the 
financial position of the Council and the opportunities that could be addressed if 
an asset is sold for a profit. 
 

37. It is likely that in the final quarter of 2022/23 the Council will need to sell an asset 
to enable future balanced budgets to be set. 

 

Funding and Reserves 

 
38. With the uncertainty over changes to the Code and MRP resolved, the Council 

can now arrange long term funding. It is likely that this will be done in three 
tranches during 2022/23 to coincide with the end dates for short term financing.  
 

39. With monies being set aside to repay the principal annually through MRP these 
loans will in future be on a repayment basis over 35 years. The reason for moving 
to repayment loans is that the new Code requires the Council to demonstrate that 
its debt levels are reducing. 
 

40. The new strategy requires a Commercial Asset Reserve to be established to cover 
costs at the end of the tenancy for each asset (except CRP). This reserve will pay 
for any refurbishment, void period and rent free period for new tenants. The lease 
terms and approximate costs of refurbishment over the period 2022 – 2070 have 
been mapped and timings of costs established. The resulting position is that a 
sum of £1 million per annum, from the investment income, will be placed in the 
reserve.  

 
41. This reserve will grow without being drawn upon for a number of years but will 

then be heavily used between years 15 and 25 as most of the assets have lease 
expiry at that point in time. 

 

Performance Reporting 

 
42. A quarterly report is produced for the portfolio. This includes a 

 
a) professional valuation undertaken by a market leading specialist for each 

asset 
b) commercial market trading update to help inform investment decisions 
c) report on each asset by professional asset managers who are responsible 

for tenant liaison, rent collection, rent reviews etc. 
 

43. As at 30 September 2021 the value of the completed acquisitions is set out below 
 

Page 51



14 
 

 

 

Security, Liquidity and Yield 

 
44. As the Council only has a small amount of money of its own to invest, any further 

expansion at CRP will necessarily be funded from a mix of external borrowing, 
from financial institutions, Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and other local 
authorities. The Council will not invest in high yield, high risk opportunities. This 
will be reflected in an average portfolio yield target of 4% (before cost of 
borrowing).  

 
45. Investments at Chesterford Research Park will be made by way of loans to Aspire 

(CRP) Ltd the Council’s wholly owned subsidiary. All commercial investments 
outside of Chesterford Research Park will be undertaken by the Council.  

 
46. The option to liquidate funds is either by selling the investment (or part thereof) or 

by refinancing the debt. 
 

Risks 

 
47. The Council takes advice from its professional advisers at all times. For example, 

with the purchase of the 50% share at Chesterford Research Park the Council 
engaged 

 

Property 
Price paid (including 
future commitments) 

Amount paid as 
at 30 

September 
2021 

September 
2021 

valuation 

  £ £ £ 

Colchester, Stane RP 30,424,000 7,500,000 11,000,000 

Chorley, Waitrose RDC 55,000,000 54,608,773 60,150,000 

Livingston, 1 Deer Park 
Road 

4,758,374 4,758,374 5,125,000 

Takeley, Skyway House 20,000,000 19,500,000 19,600,000 

Gloucester, Amazon  43,000,000 20,589,660 23,600,000 

Tewkesbury, MOOG 
HQ 

40,500,000 11,953,310 16,950,000 

  193,682,374 118,910,117 136,425,000 

Aspire (CRP) Ltd 60,596,000 60,596,000 85,125,000 

Total Portfolio  254,278,374 179,506,117 221,550,000 

Page 52



15 
 

 Arlingclose as its financial advisers who project managed the funding 

tender 

 Cushman and Wakefield who undertook all of the purchase negotiations 

and due diligence 

 Hogan Lovells for Legal due diligence 

 
48. For Aspire (CRP) Ltd the Council has appointed two non-executive directors to 

serve on the Board and bring independent challenge and support.  
 

49. There are five main risks with regard to the wider portfolio and the new strategy of 
asset retention. 

 

Risk Probability 
(L, M, H) 

Favourable 
Impact  

(L, M, H) 

Adverse 
Impact  

(L, M, H) 

Mitigation 

Tenant default rent 
payments 

M L  H 

The Council has established a 
Commercial Asset Reserve, one 
role of which is to mitigate the 
budget impact of this risk 
occurring. 

Cost of borrowing 
increases beyond 
yield 

L L H 
The Council will enter in to long 
term funding during 2022/23 in a 
number of tranches. 

Refurbishment costs 
at end of lease are 
materially different to 
budget M M M 

Estimates for refurbishment have 
been made based on experiences 
at CRP. As this element of the 
Commercial Asset Reserve is 
unlikely to be used for the next 15 
years there will be sufficient funds 
to cover any shortfall. 

Unable to find new 
tenants resulting in 
void periods being 
longer and/or new 
tenants want longer 
rent free periods 
than budgeted 

 

M L H 

Estimates for reasonable periods 
for void and rent free periods 
based on advice from agents. As 
this element of the Commercial 
Asset Reserve is unlikely to be 
used for the next 15 years there 
will be sufficient funds to cover 
any shortfall in income. 

The joint venture 
partner at CRP 
wants to sell their 
50% chare 

L H H 

The Council would have three 
options and would choose the 
most applicable at the time 

1. Buy the JV partner’s share 

2. Sell the Aspire share at 
the same time 

3. Accept whoever the new 
JV partner is 

Page 53



16 
 

Proportionality 

 
50. The income requirement has arisen as a result of reductions in the Council’s 

finance from central government.  Government also restricts the ability of councils 
to raise income from council tax increases.  

 
51. The Council has established a Commercial Asset Reserve (see para 40) which 

will be established with the sum of £3 million to cover the risk of investment failure. 
In addition, the Reserve will increase by £1 million per annum to cover the cost of 
future refurbishment, void and rent free periods for each of the assets, except 
CRP. 

 
52. As part of the regular review of the portfolio the Council will look to, at the right 

points in time, reduce the level of borrowing in place by selling one or more of the 
assets. 

 

Capacity, Skills and Culture 

Investment Board (IB)  

 
53. The IB will operate in accordance with the Commercial Strategy which is adopted 

annually by Full Council. Cabinet will delegate to the Leader; Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Budget, Portfolio Holder for the Economy, Investment and Corporate 
Strategy and the S151 Officer (or Assistant Director of Resources for Aspire 
investments) to conclude investments or disposals where authorisation has been 
given by Full Council. 

 
54. Constitution of the IB 

 
a) The IB is a Working Group of Cabinet and membership will be determined 

by the Leader of the Council 

 
b) In addition there will be two independent members to supplement the skills 

of the elected Members. 

 
55. The investment decision making and monitoring process is as set out overleaf 

 

Page 54



17 
 

 
 

56. Democratic Process (blue line) 

a) As part of the annual budget setting process, Cabinet develops the 
Commercial Strategy in consultation with the IB. Cabinet recommends to 
Council the adoption of the Commercial Strategy.  

b) Council adopts the Commercial Strategy. 

c) The Cabinet will receive from the IB quarterly updates, including KPIs, on 
the performance of the portfolio. 

d) For new investments or disposal of existing, the IB reviews the business 
case and if appropriate supports a recommendation to Cabinet for the 
acquisition or disposal.  

e) Cabinet reviews the business case and recommendation for either an 
acquisition or disposal, and if satisfied recommends to Council that either 
funding is made available, or the disposal is approved.  

 
57. Internal Process (red line) 

 
d) Aspire (CRP) Ltd looks after developments at Chesterford Research Park. 

The Council’s Asset Team will manage all other non-CRP commercial 
investments. 

e) Depending on the category of investment or disposal sought, Aspire (CRP) 
Ltd or the Asset Team, working with professional advisors, will identify 
assets which meet the requirements set out by the IB. They will prepare 
business cases for consideration by the IB.  The IB will review and consider 
the cases in detail and if suitable will make the recommendation to the 
Cabinet to proceed. Approval by the Board of Aspire (CRP) Ltd is also 
required prior to submission to the IB. 

Page 55



18 
 

f) Aspire (CRP) Ltd, along with the Asset Team, prepare the quarterly KPI 
and other information for submission to the IB. 

 
58. New investments or disposal of existing assets (green line) 

a) At an Extraordinary Meeting of Council a decision is taken on whether or 
not to allocate the funding for a new investment or agree to the disposal of 
an existing asset. 

b) If an investment is agreed, funding will be made available to Aspire (CRP) 
Ltd or to the Asset Team to enable the purchase to be made in accordance 
with paragraph 53. 

c) If the authority is for a sale the disposal will be undertaken in accordance 
with paragraph 53. 

 
59. A report on annual performance of Aspire (CRP) Ltd is presented to Cabinet 

 

 

Page 56



  

 
 

            Appendix C 

 
 
 

Uttlesford District Council 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2022 – 2027 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Prepared by:  

Finance 

Uttlesford District Council  

February 2022 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

1. The MTFS sets out how the Council plans to manage its finances over the next five years, 
aligning our resources closely to the priorities set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan and its 
commitment to providing services that meet the needs of people locally. A key part of the 
strategy is to highlight the budget issues that will need to be addressed over the coming 
financial years. 

The Prudential Code – 2021 and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
 

2. The Government and CIPFA have had concerns on the level of commercial investments 
entered into by Local Authorities and these concerns have in part led to a 2021 revision to 
‘The CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Code)’.  

3. The Code is guidance which underpins the process of financing capital expenditure. The Code 
states that whilst it is only guidance Local Authorities are required by regulation to have regard 
to it at all times. 

4. In 2020/21 CIPFA launched a consultation on the proposed changes to the Code, the changes 
focused on the following areas;  

 a local authority’s capital expenditure and investment plans are affordable and 

 proportionate 

 all external borrowing and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and sustainable 
levels 

 the risks associated with investments for commercial purposes are proportionate to 
their financial capacity, and 

 treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional 
practice. 

5. The Code states that an authority must not borrow to invest for the primary purpose of 
financial return and must pay regard to the statutory guidance on minimum revenue provision. 
This provision is a direct revenue charge at a percentage of the amount of capital financing 
outstanding, to minimise financial risk and ensure adequate funds are held to offset debt. 

6. The two factors above have meant that the Council has reviewed its Commercial Strategy, 
and although the Code states that any new requirements do not have to be adopted until 
2023/24, the Council has elected to apply them from 2022/23. The main reason for doing this 
is that by delaying the implementation for a year the asset life has reduced and therefore the 
MRP will be applied over a shorter time period resulting in an increased annual revenue 
charge.  

7. Further details on the changes to the Commercial Strategy can be found in Appendix B. The 
main aims of the Commercial Strategy are; 

a. There will be no new commercial investments  

b. Subject to (d) and (e) below, The portfolio, as set out in this document is therefore 
complete. Of the £300 million allocated in 2020 to building the fund, £275,565,000 
(£275 million) has been used 

c. MRP will be applied on an accruals basis over the life of each asset 

d. As the Council already owns, through Aspire (CRP) Ltd, the land at Chesterford 
Research Park it will continue to develop the asset to maximise its value 

e. As the Council already owns 46% of Stane Retail Park, which includes all of the 
public car parking, link roads and other shared elements for the entire site, it will 
evaluate the option of acquiring the rest of the asset to maximise the value of the 

Page 58



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

already owned part. This would be done on the basis that the sum of the whole is 
worth more than the sum of the constituent parts 

f. The portfolio will be reviewed on a regular basis to determine the requirements of the 
Council and the appropriateness of retaining or selling each asset 

g. The Council will look to maintain the commercial asset portfolio at an investment level 
of no more than £275 million. However, it should be noted that investments may need 
to take place ahead of sales which could temporarily increase that number. 

 
Financial Settlement – 2022/23 

 
8. The Medium Term Financial Strategy was prepared based on the provisional settlement 

announced on the 16 December 2021. The final settlement is due to be confirmed in early 
February, it is not expected that there will be any changes to the levels of funding announced 
in the provisional settlement. Any amendments will be reflected in the MTFS prior to 
presentation for approval at Council. 

9. The Government were due to announce a three year settlement to provide Local Authorities 
with the ability to plan ahead. But due to other pressures on the Government a further one 
year settlement was announced. 

10. The one year settlement meant that any funding reviews and business rates reforms were 
delayed for a further year. Although this did mean that the current funding streams continued; 
New Homes Bonus (NHB), Rural Services Delivery Grant (RSDG) and a second year award of 
the new Lower Tier Services Grant (LTSG). 

11. The impact of the one year settlement and the subsequent deferral of the funding reviews and 
reforms for Business Rates meant that the expected negative financial implications for the 
Council have also been delayed by one year. 

12. The key items of the Financial Settlement announced were: 

 Local Government as a whole, have received a 6.9% increase in Core Spending Power, 
although this is reliant on maximising Council Tax increases 

 Council Tax threshold allowable increases of up to 1.99% or £5, anything over this 
amount would be subject to a local referendum 

 The Lower Tier Services Grant will continue for a second year, this is to provide ‘stability’ 
to Local Authorities and to ensure that no council would receive less funding than in the 
prior year 

 New Homes Bonus has been extended by a further year (in line with the delay in funding 
reviews and business rates reforms), similar to last year this will attract no legacy 
payments. The legacy payments in line with the original scheme will remain, with 
2022/23 being the final payment and the baseline was maintained at 0.4%. 

 Rural Services Delivery Grant has remained at the same level 

 Business Rates multipliers were frozen for a second year, the Council will receive 
compensating funding for the loss of the additional income 

 
Fair Funding (FFR) and Business Rates Reform (BRR) 
 
13. The Fair Funding Review (FFR) will affect how funding is allocated and redistributed between 

local authorities and has been delayed for a number of years. It is now expected to be 
implemented as part of the next Spending Review in autumn 2022. Whether this will be the full 
review as set out in the initial consultations or just certain elements, is an unknown at this time. 

Page 59



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

14. The basis of the FFR is to provide a simpler and more transparent formula with a fairer 
allocation of funds based on spending need. It is viewed that a flatter formula will benefit rural 
district councils, although there is also a lot of focus in the review to address the issues faced 
by the upper tier authorities and unitaries. 

15. In addition, there has been a long running plan to reform business rates, and this is expected 
to include a full baseline reset, again this has been delayed for a number of years. This will 
mean that all the growth prior to the preceding year of the reset that has been generated since 
the introduction of the BRR scheme in 2013 will be incorporated into our baseline funding level 
calculation. The Council currently retains 50% of growth above our baseline funding level, so 
the loss of the growth will have a direct cost impact on the Council. 

16. It is not expected that the NHB scheme will continue once the reforms are introduced but any 
remaining legacy payments due will be received. In the 2021/22 settlement the Secretary of 
State announced the Government’s intention to consult on the future of a housing incentive 
scheme to replace the NHB grant. This will include moving to a new, more targeted approach 
that rewards local authorities where they are ambitious in delivering the homes needed in their 
area. The scheme rewards are also likely to be aligned with other measures around planning 
performance, such as having an adopted Local Plan. It should be noted that there were no 
updates on the future of NHB or the alternative scheme in the 2021 spending review. 

17. Pixel Financial Management are the Council’s external financial consultants, and they have 
close links with CIPFA and central government departments. This enables them to have early 
indications of changes to funding and are participating members on a number of Government 
consultation groups.  They provide the Council with an in depth analyse of the settlement, any 
proposed changes plus updates and guidance relating to consultations that impact on our future 
funding.  

18. Pixel provided a briefing paper on the settlement and their views on future funding and an 
extract of this is copied below. 

‘The Government announcement is for a one-year settlement in 2022-23. There are no projected or 
indicative numbers for the remainder of the spending review period (2023-24 and 2024-25). More 
fundamental changes in local government funding have been clearly signalled for 2023-24.  

The settlement itself is relatively good for local government – certainly compared to the settlements 
the sector received before 2020-21. Core Spending Power is increasing by £3.5bn (6.9%, cash), well 
above inflation, for now at least. An increase of £2.1bn in grant funding within Core Spending Power in 
2022-23 means that there is less reliance on council tax increases (£1.4bn) than in previous 
settlements. 

Local government received £1.5bn in additional funding in Spending Review 2021. Only around 40% of 
this funding increase has been allocated to social care, a smaller share than we had expected.  

The remainder of the £1.5bn has largely been allocated through the new 2022-23 Services Grant 
(£822m). This is an SFA increase by another name, which is received by every authority, including those 
with “negative RSG”. 

The changes in grants introduced in the 2021-22 settlement have largely persisted into this settlement. 
Lower Tier Services Grant continues at £111m (with a slightly smaller cash floor payment to support 
those with reductions in Core Spending Power). Rural Services Delivery Grant remains at £85m. And 
New Homes Bonus lives to fight another day. There will be a further one-off payment, in addition to the 
final legacy payment. Surely 2022-23 will be its final year.  

More fundamental changes in the distribution of funding could be implemented as early as 2023-24. 
Work will start “in the coming months” to work out “with the sector” how to update funding 
distribution and “challenges and opportunities facing the sector”. These changes in funding could be 

Page 60



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

significant and will make forecasting for 2023-24 and beyond very difficult. Some or all of the Fair 
Funding Review could be resurrected, and a business rates baseline reset seems likely. Damping or 
transitional support should help to soften losses in funding.’ 

 
Covid-19 Pandemic 
 
19. The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted on a number of the Council’s functions, including 

service delivery and the way our residents interact with us. 

20. The national lockdowns and tier restrictions during 2020 and 2021 have impacted mainly on 
the high street and the hardest hit have been the retail, leisure and hospitality sectors. The 
effects of these restrictions and the further recent issues of the new variant, Omicron, means 
that many businesses are still struggling financially.  

21. Government put into place a significant level of financial support for businesses, including 
extending the retail relief and providing direct grants. Further Grant funding has been made 
available in January 2022. 

22. The Council expected a high level of lost income due to the pandemic, but the recovery in 
some areas has been positive, planning applications increased and the income streams for 
this meant original budget expectations were exceeded. The two areas that have suffered 
significant unrecoverable losses are Car Parking and Trade Waste. 

23. It is hoped that when the new financial year begins in April 2022 there will be a period of 
relative stability around Covid-19 following the enhanced vaccination programme, enabling 
businesses and the local economy to recover further.  

24. It is expected that businesses will need to look at alternative business plans as they prepare 
for a ‘new normal’ where people’s shopping and working patterns are significantly different 
from the pre-pandemic position. 
 

The Corporate Plan 
 
25. The Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s priorities and is a key document in establishing the 

annual budget and medium-term financial strategy.  
 

26. The Corporate Plan has four key themes which are set out below, the key activities identified 
to deliver the four themes are detailed in the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan (CPDP). The 2022 
– 2027 Corporate Plan is included in tonight’s agenda, once adopted the 2022/23 CPDP will 
be formulated for approval at Cabinet in March 2022. The existing Corporate Plan and CPDP 
can be viewed using the following link. 

 
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/corporate-plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/corporate-plan


Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

The Corporate Plan 2022 - 2027 
 

Putting residents first 
We will: be a council that listens and acts for 
residents; delivers outstanding 
levels of transparency and accountability; be 
responsible with residents’ 
money and mitigate the impact of government cuts 
 

Active place-maker for our towns and villages 
We will: masterplan new communities for and with 
residents; support neighbourhood planning; work 
with the airport on issues of concern to 
communities; support employment and retail 
areas; deliver more affordable homes; promote 
healthy lifestyles 

Progressive custodian of our rural environment 
We will: take action on climate change; conserve 
our natural resources; protect and enhance our 
rural character and heritage; take strong action on 
dealing with pollution 
 

Champion for our district 
We will: improve Uttlesford’s connectivity; support 
our students, schools and libraries; work with 
partners to keep the district safe; work to create a 
better local health service for residents 

 

The Local Plan 
 

27. A Local Plan is a document which sets out planning policies and proposals for new 
development. The Government requires local authorities to review their Local Plans every five 
years and have an up to date Plan. Once the Local Plan is adopted it will be used to determine 
planning applications. The plan will allocate sites in the most sustainable locations within the 
District, which will alleviate speculative development by developers in unsustainable locations 
and help the Council in planning long-term for major infrastructure and cohesion with existing 
settlements.  

28. The Local Plan will also include new policies that will shape development to maximise 
environmental benefits and ensure the provision of necessary transport links, this cannot 
currently be achieved with speculative development. Policies will also determine the size and 
tenure of homes in order to meet local needs, to address the cause and impact of climate 
change, improvement of biodiversity and to protect the majority of our countryside. It will 
create policies that support new and growth of businesses so that people can work locally with 
a reduced emphasis on commuting and the need for car usage. This will also inform utilities 
and infrastructure providers to make sure the timing of delivery is in line with development 
growth in the right locations.  

29. The Government requires all local authorities to produce a long-term plan in order to meet the 
needs for the future. If we do not have a Local Plan development will still take place. However, 
we will not have policies to decide where growth goes or policies to protect our environment 
also, we will not be able to provide other providers such as Essex County Council where 
things such as schools and highway improvements need to go in sufficient time to be included 
in their five year plan. If we do not have a Local Plan in place the Council are at risk of ‘special 
measures’ by the Government which would take the ability away from elected Members of 
making local decisions for local people. 

 
Planning Designation 

30. The Government wrote to the Council on the 7 February 2022 advising that they are 
exercising powers under the Town and Country Planning Act [1990 – Section 62A] to 
‘designate’ the Council in regard to the consideration of major planning applications. The 
consequence of designation is that applications for major development can be made directly to 
the Planning Inspectorate, although applicants will have the option of continuing to apply to the 
Council in the usual way. 

Page 62



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

The Council has taken the view that 50% of Major applicants are likely to opt for the alternative 
decision route and this equates to £560,000 based on 2021/22 income figures. This sum has 
been removed from the Planning service fee income line.  

As part of the Designation Notice the Council must provide an improvement plan, which the 
Council already has from the 2021 review undertaken by EELGA. However, the lost income 
formed a key element in funding the changes that need to be made and Officers have 
commenced discussions with DLUHC around financial support whilst the Designation Notice is 
in place. In addition to the request to DLUHC the Council will put in place enhanced budgetary 
controls, such as vacancy management, to minimise the final level of Reserve drawdown that 
is required.  

With the reduction in the number of Major applications submitted to the Council there will be 
some officer spare capacity which will be used to fast track the improvement plan to ensure 
the Designation Notice is rescinded as soon as possible. Whilst it is hoped, through working 
closely with DLUHC, that the Designation Notice will only be in place for 12 months a prudent 
approach has been applied to the MTFS and a similar sum (£560,000) has been removed 
from the Planning fee income expectations for 2023/24. 

 
The 5 Year Budget Model 

31. The Council is reliant on the following sources of funding for 2022/23: 

 Council Tax 

 Business Rates Retention Income  

 New Homes Bonus – one year only + final year of legacy payment 

 Lower Tier Services Grant 

 Rural Services Delivery Grant  

 Investment income  

 Fees and charges 

32. The funding lines in the MTFS in 2022/23 are actual figures based on the financial settlement, 
from 2023/24 the following assumptions have been applied: 

 Business Rates baseline being reset and the overall Government funding package 
updated using a reformed methodology for distribution.  

 An estimate of what the New Homes Bonus replacement scheme will generate based 
on our current housing growth and level of planning performance 

 An annual increase in Council Tax of 1.99% to the Band D equivalent and a taxbase 
growth of 0.86% annually.  

33. The graph below demonstrates how our funding is changing over the life of the strategy, and a 
more detailed explanation is included under the Budget Model section later in the report. 

 

Page 63



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

 Business Rates Retention – these figures exclude any surplus or deficit from prior years, 
so only shows the actual funding received in year. The increase in funding in 2025/26 
and 2026/27 relates to new growth which comes with additional reward. It is however 
likely that a future reset in 2027/28 would see that additional funding removed. 

 New Homes Bonus Replacement Scheme – 2022/23 represents the one year payment 
plus the final year legacy payment from the original scheme. Future years forecasts are 
an estimate of what a new scheme may look like 

 Support funding – this is the Lower Tier Services Grant which is ‘top up’ funding for Local 
Authorities as part of the one year settlement, so will not continue after 2022/23. 

 Rural Services Delivery Grant – this grant is specifically targeted at Local Authorities 
who deliver services in rural areas where there are additional costs due to the large 
geographical area.  

 Government Damping – this is to provide transitional support whilst the funding reforms 
are implemented, these figures are extremely high risk as there are no indications on 
the methodology or level of transitional support the Council will receive. These have 
been calculated in direct consultation with Pixel. 

 
Budget Consultation 2022/23 

34. A budget consultation was carried out for the period 30 September – 17 October 2021, asking 
Residents and Business for their views on the Council’s priorities for service delivery over the 
next financial year. The consultation was specifically aimed at the financial year 2022/23.  

35. The MTFS will reflect the responses received across the 5 year plan as these are consistent 
with previous consultations that have been carried out, and it would be expected that these will 
remain as high priorities within the district. 

36. The full report is attached to the General Fund Budget 2022/23 report at Annexe H6, a 
summary of the consultation responses has been set out below 

Q1. Are the four priorities for the new Corporate Plan “are the right ones” for 2022-2023. 

 

 Q2. Does the district council provide value for money? 

Strongly 

agree 

Tend to 

agree 

Neither 

agree nor 

disagree 

Tend to 

disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Don't 

know 

28 55 38 26 17 3 

16.80% 32.90% 22.80% 15.60% 10.20% 1.80% 

Page 64



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

 Q3. Level of importance for both Statutory and Discretional Services  

Level of 
Importance 

Statutory Services Discretionary Services 

Highest Waste and Recycling Maintaining local amenities 
(grass cutting/maintenance) 

Second Cleaner 
Neighbourhoods 

Communicating with the 
Public 

Third Local Plan and 
planning applications 

Community Safety 

   

Lowest Licensing Ward Member Grants 

 
Budget Model  

37. To inform the financial outlook for the Council, a detailed budget model has been prepared, full 
details of the General Fund budget for 2022/23 are set out in Appendix H. 

38. Direct Services estimated income and expenditure for the next 5 years is set out in the table 
below. 

 

39. The model includes the funds to deliver the Corporate Plan priorities, there are a number of 
priorities across all the four themes, and these include the Local Plan, Climate Change and the 
recovery of the local economy. 

 Local Plan – A total budget of £6.83m was allocated in September 2020 for the start of 
the new Local Plan in 2020/21 with expected adoption in 2024/25. The spending profile 
is shown for each year in the table. 

 

 Climate Change – A budget of £1m was allocated to the climate change programme, the 
profile of spend is split over a three year period, with the first year allocation in 2020/21 
of £340,000 and further allocations of £330,000 for both 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

 Economic Recovery – To support the recovery of the local economy a budget of £1m 
was allocated to Economic Development to enable initiatives and additional support to 
be offered to local businesses and residents. This was allocated over a three year period, 
with the first year allocation in 2020/21 of £340,000 and further allocations of £330,000 
for both 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Gross Service Expenditure 36,853 37,481 38,031 38,797 39,664 40,497

Gross Service Income (21,117) (20,140) (20,903) (22,045) (22,507) (22,979)

Demand Growth 200 400 600 800

Sub Total Net Service Expenditure 15,736 17,341 17,328 17,152 17,757 18,317

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 Spend

1,368 1,595 1,866 1,217 783 6,829,840 

Page 65



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

The following key inflationary assumptions are used in the model. 

a) Gross service expenditure and income: Takes the 2021/22 base budget as a starting point 
with any one-off in year items being removed. Inflation has been included at 4% for 
2022/23, then reducing to 3% in 2023/24 and 2% ongoing, except where special 
arrangements apply e.g., car park charges and taxi licences. Utilities are in line with the 
current market forecasts. 

b) Service demand growth – Due to growing population and housing numbers, it is prudent to 
assume greater demand for Council services such as refuse and recycling, revenues 
collection, etc. 

40. The Council also incurs corporate expenditure and non-service related income that sits outside 
the direct service budgets, these are set out below. 

 

a) Capital Financing Costs are in line with the projected capital programme’s financing 
requirements, set out in Appendix F.  In previous years the capital programme has been 
financed using internal borrowing, which allows the cost to spread over a longer period. 
Internal borrowing increases our capital financing requirement (CFR), and this would then 
attract an additional MRP charge. In order to reduce any further impacts of MRP all capital 
expenditure will now be charged in the year of acquisition. The increase in costs in 2026/27 
are due to the waste vehicle fleet coming to end of life and scheduled for replacement. 

b) IFRS 16 is a charge against leases held where no rent is paid (i.e., peppercorn rent leases) 
and is a new requirement. 

c) Investment Asset - MRP is the adoption of the requirement to charge an annual provision 
to reduce the outstanding borrowing against capital expenditure for the commercial 
investment assets. This has been applied on an annuity basis over the life of the asset. 

d) Investment Income is made up of the interest return on the loans made to Aspire (CRP) 
Ltd for the purchase and development of Chesterford Research Park and the rental 
income on the Council’s direct commercial property investments. The investment income 
is net of any asset management fees, in line with accounting reporting standards. 

e) Investment costs are the cost of borrowing, primarily for the funding of the commercial 
assets. This is currently a mix of long term and short term borrowing with a large proportion 
of the borrowing being from other local authorities. The MTFS assumes the Council will 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Capital Financing Costs 3,626 1,771 1,645 1,384 1,341 3,926

IFRS 16 charge 80 80 80 80 80

Investment Asset - MRP 3,281 3,346 3,413 3,481 3,551

Investment Assets income (6,928) (11,774) (12,036) (12,710) (12,782) (13,315)

Treasury Investment Income (23) (7) (7) (8) (8) (9)

Treasury Investment Cost 1,814 2,835 4,930 4,823 4,698 4,572

PFI Interest cost 360 348 334 319 303 285

Pension Fund 85 85 335 335 335 335

Recharge to HRA/Corporate Core (1,552) (1,747) (1,782) (1,818) (1,854) (1,891)

Corporate Costs (2,618) (5,130) (3,156) (4,182) (4,407) (2,467)

Page 66



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

move to an increased level of longer term borrowing during 2022/23 which, whilst more 
expensive, reduces interest rate risk over the term.  

f) PFI Interest – this the Council’s element of the cost of financing for the Leisure Centres 

g) Pension Fund deficit payment – In 2020/21 a discounted triennial payment was made 
covering the years up to and including 2022/23. Thereafter the MTFS reverts to annual 
payments. 

41. Recharges to HRA – based on the apportionment of the actual costs of central services and 
corporate support used by the Housing Revenue Account. 

42. The funding the Council expects to receive is detailed below and includes one off grants and 
previous year deficits for Business Rates and Council Tax. Estimates for future years have been 
calculated based on the current information available; the indications Government has provided 
and in consultation with Pixel. 

 
 

a) The Council currently retains 40% of Business Rates income collected and this is subject 
to a tariff which is variable and set annually to align the actual income collected to the 
baseline funding level. The funding level is calculated by the Department of Levelling Up 
Housing and Communities, based on the needs and resources of the Council.  The figures 
in the table above is the net income of the Business Rates income after adjustments, 
tariffs, levies and any prior year surplus or deficit. The Business Rates income assumes a 
full reset in 2023/24, meaning all growth will be included in the baseline funding level. A 
prudent forecast has been included for future years until more information is released on 
exactly how this will be calculated. 

b) New Homes Bonus: The model shows the announced figure for 2022/23 and includes the 
final legacy payment from the original scheme. For future years an estimate has been 
included on what the possible replacement scheme will look like. It is expected the new 
scheme funding for Districts will be based on ensuring the ‘right housing in the right areas’ 
and be linked to the potential planning reform and planning performance. 

c) Support Funding - The Government has provided additional grants shown as part of the 
one year settlement totalling £1.552m, Lower Tier Services Grant which ensures that the 
Council is no worse off than in the previous year settlement and is transitional support 
whilst the reforms of the current funding methodology are implemented. 

d) Government Damping - To support the Council during the funding reforms (FFR and BRR) 
it is expected that Government will provide Local Authorities with a level of transitional 
funding referred to as ‘Damping’. It is extremely difficult to predict how much this damping 
will be, and the figure will be dependent on a number of variables, including if and what a 
new ‘New Homes Bonus’ scheme will look like. The funding included is high risk, again 
this has been estimated in consultation with Pixel. 
 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Business Rates Retention (2,064) (3,775) (1,868) (1,934) (2,032) (2,560)

New Homes Bonus Replacement Scheme (2,823) (1,343) (260) (390) (520) (520)

Rural Services Delivery Grant (293) (293) (293) (293) (293) (293)

Support Funding (890) (1,552)

Government Damping (high risk) (2,775) (1,797) (680) (680)

(6,069) (6,962) (5,196) (4,414) (3,525) (4,053)

Page 67



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

43. The MTFS has been prepared on the assumption that Council Tax will be increased by £5 in 
2022/23, with future years based on increases of 1.99%, which is in line with Government 
guidance.  

 
44. The Tax base assumptions are in line with current housing growth forecasts, an estimate of 

Local Council Tax Support discounts and predicted future collection rates. The following table 
provides an estimate of the Council Tax income over the life of the MTFS. 

 
 

45. After taking into account all the above expenditure, income, funding and net reserves 
drawdowns the Council has achieved a balanced budget for 2022/23; in future years the strategy 
shows a deficit position and by the final year the deficit is £5.686m.  

46. The deficit is the cumulative effect of the change in the commercial investment strategy (as set 
out in Appendix B) and the requirement to apply a charge for MRP (discussed in the above 
section on the Prudential Code). The table below sets out a summary of the 5 year position. 

 

 

Managing the Deficit 

47. The Council has worked hard on generating additional income and has a strong and robust 
portfolio of commercial assets. If it had not invested in these assets the financial situation 
would have been much more difficult to manage and would have generated a significant 
budget deficit position a number of years ago. 

48. The following table sets out the council’s investments and shows the income generated from 
each asset. These are the gross income figures and do not include any fees or borrowing 
costs. 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Tax Base (net of adjustments) 38,108.31 38,435.70 38,766.20 39,099.60 39,435.90 39,775.00 

Band D Equivalent (161.61) (166.61) (169.91) (173.29) (176.74) (180.26)

Council Tax Income (6,158,684) (6,403,772) (6,586,765) (6,775,570) (6,969,901) (7,169,842)

Council Tax increases £5.00 £5.00 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Service Expenditure 15,736 17,341 17,328 17,152 17,757 18,317

Corporate Costs (2,618) (5,130) (3,156) (4,182) (4,407) (2,467)

Net Service Expenditure 13,117 12,211 14,172 12,970 13,350 15,851

Funding (1,230) (7,550) (4,780) (4,381) (3,492) (4,020)

Total Net Reserves (drawn)/addition (5,729) 1,742 (337) 944 (59) 1,025

Council Tax Requirement 6,159 6,404 9,056 9,533 9,800 12,856

Council Tax Income (6,159) (6,404) (6,587) (6,776) (6,970) (7,170)

(Surplus) / Deficit 2,469 2,757 2,830 5,686

Page 68



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

 

49. The overall impact of MRP on the net income generated by the commercial investments is 
shown in the table below. 

 
 

Uttlesford 2027 

50. A project team has been established with the aim of addressing the deficit position whilst 
minimising the impact on service delivery. This project is known as Uttlesford 2027 and 
replaces Uttlesford Moving Forward. A number of future options are currently being 
considered, including selling a commercial asset and using the profit generated to fund Capital 
Financing Costs over the life of the MTFS. A summary of the impact of this action is shown 
below. 

 

£'000 Capital 

Investment 

(exc. Fees)

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Completed Investments

Chesterford Research Park 60,596 2,449          2,449          2,449          2,449          2,449          

Weston Homes 20,000 1,171          1,200          1,230          1,261          1,276          

Veterinary Hospital 5,925 333             333             333             333             333             

Stane Retail Park 30,424 1,784          1,830          1,878          1,927          1,977          

Waitrose Retail Distribution Centre 55,000 2,508          2,508          2,508          2,508          2,508          

Little Canfield Business Park 7,500 263             352             352             352             352             

179,445 8,508          8,672          8,750          8,830          8,895          

Future Committed Investments

Chesterford Research Park 12,620 603             603             603             

Amazon Distribution Centre 43,000 2,280          2,280          2,280          2,280          2,585          

Moog Circuits Ltd 40,500 1,520          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,835          

96,120 3,800          3,947          4,550          4,550          5,023          

Investment Total 275,565 12,308       12,619       13,300       13,380       13,918       

Annual Rental Income

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Investment Assets income (6,928) (11,774) (12,036) (12,710) (12,782) (13,315)

Treasury Investment Cost 1,814 2,835 4,930 4,823 4,698 4,572

Net Income (5,114) (8,939) (7,106) (7,887) (8,084) (8,743)

Investment Asset - MRP 3,281 3,346 3,413 3,481 3,551

Net Income after MRP (5,114) (5,658) (3,760) (4,473) (4,603) (5,192)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Service Expenditure 15,736 17,341 17,328 17,152 17,757 18,317

Corporate Costs (2,618) (5,130) (4,095) (4,838) (4,979) (5,583)

Net Service Expenditure 13,117 12,211 13,233 12,314 12,778 12,735

Funding (1,230) (7,550) (4,780) (4,381) (3,492) (4,020)

Total Net Reserves (drawn)/addition (5,729) 1,742 (337) 944 (59) 1,025

Council Tax Requirement 6,159 6,404 8,117 8,877 9,228 9,740

Council Tax Income (6,159) (6,404) (6,587) (6,776) (6,970) (7,170)

(Surplus) / Deficit 1,530 2,101 2,258 2,570

Page 69



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

51. Therefore, the likely shortfall by 2026/27 ranges from £2.570 million based on the sale of an 
asset to £5.686 million without. There are a number of future costs on the horizon that also 
need to be financed including;  

 Post adoption of the Local Plan there will be cost around implementing and reviewing 
the Plan. The Planning Reserves will have been fully allocated by the end of 2026/27 

 In 2031 the Leisure PFI ends, and the leisure facilities will return to the Council. At that 
point they will be aged and potentially in need of refurbishment as well as the Council 
needing to invest annually to either directly deliver or outsource future service delivery. 
Funding for this will need to be put in place 

52. As a consequence, the Uttlesford 2027 project is targeted with delivering ongoing savings as 
set out below. 

Savings/Efficiencies/Additional 
Income amount £ 

Month and Year 
to be finalised For Budget setting 

1,000,000 September 2022 February 2023 

1,000,000 September 2023 February 2024 

800,000 September 2024 February 2025 

800,000 September 2025 February 2026 

53. Due to the degree of estimation involved and the longer term projections referred to in the 
preceding paragraphs, it will be absolutely essential to maintain strong financial discipline 
around all aspects of the Council’s costs and income. The Council must continue to ensure it 
is in a strong position to anticipate and adapt to funding outcomes that differ from those 
currently assumed.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 70



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

General Fund – 5 Year Summary 
 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Gross Service Expenditure 36,853 37,481 38,031 38,797 39,664 40,497

Gross Service Income (21,117) (20,140) (20,903) (22,045) (22,507) (22,979)

Demand Growth 200 400 600 800

Sub Total Net Service Expenditure 15,736 17,341 17,328 17,152 17,757 18,317

Capital Financing Costs 3,626 1,771 1,645 1,384 1,341 3,926

IFRS 16 charge 80 80 80 80 80

Investment Asset - MRP 3,281 3,346 3,413 3,481 3,551

Investment Assets income (6,928) (11,774) (12,036) (12,710) (12,782) (13,315)

Treasury Investment Income (23) (7) (7) (8) (8) (9)

Treasury Investment Cost 1,814 2,835 4,930 4,823 4,698 4,572

PFI Interest cost 360 348 334 319 303 285

Pension Fund - Deficit 250 250 250 250

Pension Fund - Added Years 85 85 85 85 85 85

Recharge to HRA/Corporate Core (1,552) (1,747) (1,782) (1,818) (1,854) (1,891)

Corporate Costs (2,618) (5,130) (3,156) (4,182) (4,407) (2,467)

Total Net Expenditure 13,117 12,211 14,172 12,970 13,350 15,851

Council Tax - prior year Balance 55 34 34 34 34 34

Council Tax - S31 Funding (28)

Business Rates prior year Balance 4,785 (593) 383

Business Rates Retention (2,064) (3,775) (1,868) (1,934) (2,032) (2,560)

NHB Replacement Scheme (2,823) (1,343) (260) (390) (520) (520)

Rural Services Delivery Grant (293) (293) (293) (293) (293) (293)

Support Funding (890) (1,552)

Government Damping high risk (2,775) (1,797) (680) (680)

Funding (1,230) (7,550) (4,780) (4,381) (3,492) (4,020)

Total Net Operating Costs 11,888 4,662 9,392 8,589 9,858 11,831

Business Rates Reserve (6,123) 771 (383)

Ringfenced Reserves (exc. BRR) (24) 207

Other Reserves 419 763 47 944 (59) 1,025

Total Net Reserves (drawn)/addition (5,729) 1,742 (337) 944 (59) 1,025

Council Tax Requirement 6,159 6,404 9,056 9,533 9,800 12,856

Council Tax Income (6,159) (6,404) (6,587) (6,776) (6,970) (7,170)

(Surplus) / Deficit 2,469 2,757 2,830 5,686

Page 71



 

 
 

 General Fund Reserves – 5 year summary 

54. Total General Fund reserves during this five year model are estimated to increase by £4.315m from the predicted balance of £19.089m 
to £23.404m. The main reason for the increase is due to the additional funds being set aside for the commercial assets. 

 
55. The Council previously held a large number of individual reserves, during the budget process these have been reviewed and a new 

reserves structure has been put in place which is shown in the reserves table below. This has not changed the level of reserves 
previously held it is only a change to how they are categorised and presented. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

£000 Balance at 

1 April 2021

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 2022

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Reserve 

Transfers

Estimated at 

31 March 2023

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 

2024

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 2025

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 

2026

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 

2027

Ringfenced Reserves

Business Rates 7,634 1,844 (4,837) 4,641 771 5,412 (383) 5,029 5,029 5,029 5,029

Capital Slippage 1,483 204 (723) 964 964 964 964 964 964

Licensing 35 13 48 (5) 43 43 43 43 43

Leisure/Private Finance Initiative 307 307 307 (30) 277 (82) 196 (84) 112 112

Working Balance 1,438 (53) 1,385 212 1,597 1,597 1,597 1,597 1,597

Total Ringfenced Reserves 10,897 2,061 (5,614) 7,344 984 (5) 0 8,323 0 (413) 7,910 0 (82) 7,829 0 (84) 7,745 0 0 7,745

Core Reserves 

Commercial Assets 1,060 1,060 2,200 740 4,000 1,000 5,000 1,000 6,000 1,000 7,000 1,000 8,000

Medium Term Financial Strategy 4,421 1,667 (776) 5,312 25 (387) (740) 4,210 (100) 4,110 25 4,135 25 4,160 25 4,185

Strategic Initiatives 1,863 (200) 1,663 1,663 1,663 1,663 1,663 1,663

7,344 1,667 (976) 8,035 2,225 (387) 0 9,873 1,000 (100) 10,773 1,025 0 11,798 1,025 0 12,823 1,025 0 13,848

Member Priorities

Economic Development 463 1,000 (340) 1,123 (330) 793 (330) 463 463 463 463

Planning 891 2 (100) 793 (15) 0 778 (15) 763 763 763 763

Sustainable Communities 1,781 (913) 868 (720) 149 (149) 0 0 0 0

Major Sports Facilities 150 150 (150) 150 150 (150) 150 150 150 150 150

Climate change 380 300 (340) 340 320 (330) 330 (330) 0 0 0 0

3,665 1,452 (1,843) 3,274 470 (1,545) 0 2,199 0 (824) 1,376 0 0 1,376 0 0 1,376 0 0 1,376

Grants

Homelessness 404 (93) 311 311 311 311 311 311

Health & Wellbeing 131 (7) 124 124 124 124 124 124

535 0 (100) 435 0 0 0 435 0 0 435 0 0 435 0 0 435 0 0 435

Total Usable Reserves 11,544 3,119 (2,919) 11,744 2,695 (1,932) 0 12,507 1,000 (924) 12,584 1,025 0 13,609 1,025 0 14,634 1,025 0 15,659

Total Reserves 22,441 13,480 (19,984) 19,089 3,679 (1,937) 0 20,831 1,000 (1,337) 20,494 1,025 (82) 21,438 1,025 (84) 22,379 1,025 0 23,404

2026/272021/22 Q2 position 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

P
age 72



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

 

56. The reserves are now shown under four key groups each of which have a defined purpose, and these are set out below. 

Reserves Purpose 

Ringfenced Reserves 

Business Rates This reserve has a number of functions; 

 To support future year deficits, and protect the Council from any significant reductions due to the 
business rates reforms over and above the budgeted reductions 

 To manage the multi-year receipts of Section 31 grants 

 To support any one off deficit due to reduced collection rates 

Capital Slippage This is a holding reserve directly linked to the capital programme, where there is direct revenue financing of 
an item on the capital programme that has ‘slipped’ into the next financial year, the financing is held in this 
reserve to be released in the year of incurred expenditure. This ensures that the financing and expenditure 
are matched in the correct financial year. 

Licensing This reserve is held to match income and expenditure on Taxi licences. The licences are on a 3 and 5 year 
rolling programme and surpluses are held to match expenditure in future years. 

Leisure/Private 
Finance Initiative 

The reserve currently supports the programme of payments on the PFI contract, to ensure that there are no 
shortfalls at the end of the contract. 

The contract ends in 2031 and the Council will need to look at alternative delivery, this reserve will be 
reviewed to support future delivery plans. 

Working Balance There is a statutory requirement to hold a contingency reserve, this is calculated on a percentage of net 
income and expenditure. Further details of this are set out in The S25 Report – Robustness of Estimates 
and Adequacy of Reserves (Appendix A)  

 

 

P
age 73



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

Reserves Purpose 

Core Reserves 

Commercial Assets This reserve will support the following; 

 any costs relating to the refurbishment and relet of the assets at end of lease. 

 Loss of income due to tenant arrears 

Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

The MTFS reserve will support a number of corporate objectives. 

 To support any changes to the predicted financial position,  

 To enable the delivery of the Uttlesford 2027 transformation project  

 To provide funds to support ‘Spend to Save’ projects 

Strategic Initiatives This Reserve is currently frozen 

Member Priorities 

Economic 
Development 

Following the Pandemic and the effects on the local economy and businesses, £1m has been allocated to 
spend over three years. An Economic Recovery Action Plan has been produced identifying initiatives to 
support businesses and the local High Street recover. 

Planning The reserve is held to support planning appeals and additional resource costs relating to the delivery of the 
Planning Service and the delivery of Neighbourhood plans. 

Sustainable New 
Communities 

This reserve holds funds received from MHCLG (now DLUHC) to support the delivery of the local plan.  

The Local Plan budget is set for a period of 5 years and changes to the profiling of spend (annual under 
and overspends) are managed using this reserve. 

Major Sports 
Facilities 

An annual allocation of £150k over a three year period (first year 2020/21) was put in place to offer financial 
support to the development of major sports facilities in the District. 

P
age 74



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

Reserves Purpose 

Climate Change The Council announced a Climate Change Emergency and have allocated £1m to be spend on specific 
climate change actions over a period of three years. 

Grants 

Grants This reserve is to ensure that grants with specific spending criteria are separately identified and not 
included with the general revenue funds. 

There are currently two grants which are required to spend specifically on Homelessness and Health and 
Wellbeing. 

General Fund Reserves movements 

57. The following table sets out details of the individual transfers to/from reserves for each year of the MTFS. 

 

Reserve Movements

2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27 

Opening Balance 19,089 20,831 20,494 21,438 22,379

Ringfenced Reserves

Net of business rates balances and S31 grants to support reliefs fo businesses 771 (383)

Working Balance (statutory contigency balance) 212

Allocation of ringfenced PFI leisure funds (30) (82) (84)

Core Reserves

Commercial Assets - to support loss of income and future refurbishments for relet 2,200 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Local Highways panel and new burdens funding allocations to service delivery (169)

2022/23 Deficit (214)

Member Priority

Year 2 and 3 of allocated funds to support economic recovery (330) (330)

Year 3 of allocated funds to support Climate Change Programme (330)

Local Plan and Neighbourhood plans (735) (164)

Elections - four year cycle of allocations 25 (100) 25 25 25

Other net minor movements (18)

Net of movements 1,742 (337) 943 941 1,025

Closing Balance 20,831 20,494 21,438 22,379 23,404

 Additions / (Drawndown) £'000 

P
age 75



 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 

58. The HRA is the statutory “landlord” account for the authority. The Council is obliged by law to 
set rents and other charges at a level to avoid a deficit on the HRA balance. 

59. Under the self-financing reform the Council was required to take out a loan to purchase the 
housing stock for £88.4m and the debt has been structured so that it is repaid in years 6 to 30 
i.e. from 2017/18 to 2041/42, 2022/23 is the fifth year of the principal repayment. As expected, 
the repayment of the loan principal has impacted significantly on the business plan, HRA 
reserves and future year’s capital programme.  

60. in October 2018 the Government announced that the HRA borrowing cap had been removed. 
The removal of the cap was welcomed as it took away one of the restrictions faced by local 
authorities looking to invest in their housing stock and build homes.  

61. The Council utilises the entire existing retained one for one RTB receipts to invest in its 
development programme however there is a risk the HRA will not be able to build up enough 
receipts to fully finance 40% of the scheduled developments at the time of construction. If 
there is a short fall in retained receipts the HRA will have to borrow to fund 100% of the 
development until sufficient receipts have been received. 

62. The decision to increase HRA borrowing is not just dependent on whether it is permitted; it 
also needs to be affordable. There is currently a balanced HRA business plan and therefore 
costs arising from additional borrowing would need to be funded either through additional 
income or a reduction in costs.  

63. The Council has Homes England Investment Partner Status and will continue to work with 
Homes England to access grant for affordable housing schemes to deliver its development 
programme. 

64. The Government policy of 1% rent reductions over 4 years, which ended in 2019/20, had a 
significant impact on income levels and limited the affordability of additional borrowing. Rental 
income increases for 2022/23 have been applied based on current government guidelines of 
CPI + 1%, which equates to a total increase of 4.9%. The Council’s Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan fundamentally requires this level of increase to take place for it to remain 
viable. 

65. Officers will continue to review the financing rules and options for additional borrowing to 
support the Council’s development of new homes and investment in its current stock. The 
Council is already committed to building homes for local people and since the introduction in 
2012 of self-financing the Council has been able to build, redevelop and purchase 163 homes 
despite the previous borrowing cap. 

66. A number of financial assumptions, including interest rates, rent setting, void rates, bad debt 
levels and repair costs have been used in the HRA Business Plan and revenue budget 
setting.  These and other assumptions will be kept under review and monitored in 2022/23. 

67. The continuing Covid Crisis may impact on HRA rent collection as tenants are faced with 
financial hardship and lockdown restrictions reduce the ability to collect monies owed. At this 
point it is impossible to quantify what impact the virus will have and a bad debt provision of 
£100,000 has been built into each of the next five years of the budget. 

68. The following tables set out the predicted 5 year financial position for the HRA, the reserve 
balances and proposed use of these reserves.  

  

Page 76



Medium Term Financial Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022 - 2027 (Updated 10 February 2022) 
 

Housing Revenue Account – 5 year Summary 

 

£'000

2021/22 

Original 

Budget

2022/23 

Original 

Budget

2023/24 

Orignal 

Budget

2024/25 

Orignal 

Budget

2025/26 

Orignal 

Budget

2026/27 

Orignal 

Budget

Housing Revenue Income

Dwelling Rents (14,875) (15,553) (15,818) (16,086) (16,360) (16,638)

Garage Rents (233) (225) (230) (236) (242) (248)

Other Rents etc (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)

Charges for Services & Facilities (1,061) (986) (1,011) (1,036) (1,062) (1,089)

Contributions towards Expenditure 0 (66) (68) (69) (71) (73)

TOTAL INCOME (16,170) (16,832) (17,128) (17,430) (17,737) (18,049)

Housing Finance & Business Management

Rents, Rates & Other Property Charges 80 78 80 82 84 86

80 78 80 82 84 86

Housing Maintenance & Repairs Service

Common Service Flats 224 256 262 269 276 283

Estate Maintenance 2 2 2 2 2 2

Housing Repairs 0 0 0 0 0 0

Housing Sewerage 13 16 16 17 17 18

Newport Depot 0 5 5 5 5 5

Property Services 49 49 51 52 53 55

Uttlesford Norse Ltd 3,370 3,743 3,836 3,932 4,031 4,131

3,659 4,070 4,172 4,277 4,383 4,493

Housing Management & Homelessness

Housing Services 536 516 529 542 556 569

Sheltered Housing Services 546 461 473 485 497 509

1,082 977 1,002 1,027 1,053 1,079

Total Service Expenditure 4,821 5,126 5,254 5,385 5,520 5,658

Other Costs

Bad Debt Provision 100 100 100 100 100 100

Depreciation - Dwellings (to MRR) 4,230 3,935 3,935 3,935 3,935 3,935

Depreciation - Non- Dwellings (to MRR) 51 22 22 22 22 22

Interest/Costs re HRA Loan 2,601 2,570 2,570 2,519 2,438 2,353

Investment Income (2) (10) 0 0 0 0

Pension Costs - Added Years 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pension Deficit - Triennual payment 0 0 126 126 126 126

Recharge from General Fund 1,167 1,387 1,387 1,387 1,387 1,387

HRA Share of Corporate Core 386 360 360 360 360 360

Right to Buy Admin Allowance (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10)

Total Non-Service Expenditure 8,524 8,354 8,490 8,439 8,358 8,273

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 13,344 13,480 13,744 13,824 13,878 13,931

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (2,826) (3,352) (3,384) (3,606) (3,859) (4,118)

Funding from Capital Receipt Reserve for HRA Loan 0 0 0 0 0 0

Minimum Revenue Provision - Repayment of HRA Loan 2,000 0 0 0 0 0

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA

Capital Schemes Funded from Revenue 650 3,590 3,890 1,250 1,250 1,250

650 3,590 3,890 1,250 1,250 1,250

Transfers to/(from) Reserves

Capital Projects 216 (270) (520) 2,400 2,600 2,859

Change Management Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Potential Developments 0 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Slippage Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Slippage Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sheltered Housing Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transformation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Working Balance (40) 32 14 (44) 9 9

176 (238) (506) 2,356 2,609 2,868

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 77



 

 
 

Housing Revenue Reserves – 5 year Summary 

 

Reserve 

Actual 

Balance

Transfer 

from HRA 

Transfer to 

HRA 

Estimate

d 

Balance 

Transfer 

from 

HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

Transfer 

from 

HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

Transfer 

from HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

Transfer 

from HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

Transfer 

from 

HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

£'000 1st April 2021 31st 

March 

2022

31st 

March 

2023

31st 

March 

2024

31st 

March 

2025

31st 

March 

2026

31st 

March 

2027

RINGFENCED RESERVES

Working Balance 471 43 514 32 546 14 560 (44) 516 9 525 9 534

TOTAL RINGFENCED RESERVES 471 43 0 514 32 0 546 14 0 560 0 (44) 516 9 0 525 9 0 534

USABLE RESERVES

Revenue Reserves 180 0 180 180 180 180 180 180

Revenue Projects 60 0 60 60 60 60 60 60

Transformation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240

Capital Reserves

Capital Projects 910 216 (249) 877 (270) 607 (0) 607 (0) 607 (0) 2,600 3,207 (0) 2,859 6,065

Potential Projects Reserve 110 110 110 110 110 110 110

Sheltered Housing Projects Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

HRA Slippage Reserve 2,650 370 (2,585) 435 (435) 0 0 0 0 0

3,670 586 (2,834) 1,422 0 (705) 717 (0) 0 717 (0) 0 717 (0) 2,600 3,317 (0) 2,859 6,175

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 3,910 586 (2,834) 1,662 0 (705) 957 (0) 0 957 (0) 0 957 (0) 2,600 3,557 (0) 2,859 6,415

TOTAL RESERVES 4,381 629 (2,834) 2,176 32 (705) 1,503 14 0 1,517 (0) (44) 1,473 9 2,600 4,082 9 2,859 6,949

OTHER RESERVES

Capital Receipt Reserve 2,186 1,600 (1,674) 2,112 1,600 (1,227) 2,485 1,600 (1,227) 2,858 1,600 (1,227) 3,231 1,600 (1,227) 3,604 1,600 (1,227) 3,977

Major Repairs Reserve 215 4,281 (3,929) 567 3,957 (3,545) 979 3,957 3,957 8,893 3,957 3,957 16,807 3,957 3,957 24,721 3,957 3,957 32,635

TOTAL OTHER 2,401 5,881 (5,603) 2,679 5,557 (4,772) 3,464 5,557 2,730 11,751 5,557 2,730 20,038 5,557 2,730 28,325 5,557 2,730 36,612

2021/22 Q2 Forecast 2026/272022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

P
age 78



 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

Treasury Management Strategy 

2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  

Finance 

Uttlesford District Council 

February 2022 

 

 

 

Page 79



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Introduction 

1. Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing and 
investments, and the associated risks. The Authority has borrowed and invested 
substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss 
of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The successful 
identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central to the Authority’s 
prudent financial management.  

2. Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the 
Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the 
Authority to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial 
year. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

3. Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a different 
report, the Investment Strategy.  

 
External Context  
 
Economic background:  

4. The ongoing impact on the UK from coronavirus, together with higher inflation, higher 
interest rates, and the country’s trade position post-Brexit, will be major influences on the 
Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2022/23. 

5. The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate to 0.25% in December 2021 while 
maintaining its Quantitative Easing programme at £895 billion. The Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 in favour of raising rates, and unanimously to maintain the 
asset purchase programme.  

6. Within the announcement the MPC noted that the pace of the global recovery was broadly 
in line with its November Monetary Policy Report. Prior to the emergence of the Omicron 
coronavirus variant, the Bank also considered the UK economy to be evolving in line with 
expectations, however the increased uncertainty and risk to activity the new variant 
presents, the Bank revised down its estimates for Q4 GDP growth to 0.6% from 1.0%. 
Inflation was projected to be higher than previously forecast, with CPI likely to remain 
above 5% throughout the winter and peak at 6% in April 2022. The labour market was 
generally performing better than previously forecast and the BoE now expects the 
unemployment rate to fall to 4% compared to 4.5% forecast previously, but notes that 
Omicron could weaken the demand for labour. 

7. UK CPI for November 2021 registered 5.1% year on year, up from 4.2% in the previous 
month. Core inflation, which excludes the more volatile components, rose to 4.0% y/y from 
3.4%. The most recent labour market data for the three months to October 2021 showed 
the unemployment rate fell to 4.2% while the employment rate rose to 75.5%.  

8. In October 2021, the headline 3-month average annual growth rate for wages were 4.9% 
for total pay and 4.3% for regular pay. In real terms, after adjusting for inflation, total pay 
growth was up 1.7% while regular pay was up 1.0%. The change in pay growth has been 
affected by a change in composition of employee jobs, where there has been a fall in the 
number and proportion of lower paid jobs. 

Page 80



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

9. Gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 1.3% in the third calendar quarter of 2021 
according to the initial estimate, compared to a gain of 5.5% q/q in the previous quarter, 
with the annual rate slowing to 6.6% from 23.6%. The Q3 gain was modestly below the 
consensus forecast of a 1.5% q/q rise. During the quarter activity measures were boosted 
by sectors that reopened following pandemic restrictions, suggesting that wider spending 
was flat. Looking ahead, while monthly GDP readings suggest there had been some 
increase in momentum in the latter part of Q3, Q4 growth is expected to be soft. 

10. GDP growth in the euro zone increased by 2.2% in calendar Q3 2021 following a gain of 
2.1% in the second quarter and a decline of -0.3% in the first. Headline inflation has been 
strong, with CPI registering 4.9% year-on-year in November, the fifth successive month 
of inflation. Core CPI inflation was 2.6% y/y in November, the fourth month of successive 
increases from July’s 0.7% y/y. At these levels, inflation is above the European Central 
Bank’s target of ‘below, but close to 2%’, putting some pressure on its long-term stance 
of holding its main interest rate of 0%. 

11. The US economy expanded at an annualised rate of 2.1% in Q3 2021, slowing sharply 
from gains of 6.7% and 6.3% in the previous two quarters. In its December 2021 interest 
rate announcement, the Federal Reserve continue to maintain the Fed Funds rate at 
between 0% and 0.25% but outlined its plan to reduce its asset purchase programme 
earlier than previously stated and signalled they are in favour of tightening interest rates 
at a faster pace in 2022, with three 0.25% movements now expected. 

 

Credit outlook:  

12. Since the start of 2021, relatively benign credit conditions have led to credit default swap 
(CDS) prices for the larger UK banks to remain low and had steadily edged down 
throughout the year up until mid-November when the emergence of Omicron has caused 
them to rise modestly. However, the generally improved economic outlook during 2021 
helped bank profitability and reduced the level of impairments many had made as 
provisions for bad loans. However, the relatively recent removal of coronavirus-related 
business support measures by the government means the full impact on bank balance 
sheets may not be known for some time. 

13. The improved economic picture during 2021 led the credit rating agencies to reflect this 
in their assessment of the outlook for the UK sovereign as well as several financial 
institutions, revising them from negative to stable and even making a handful of rating 
upgrades. 

14. Looking ahead, while there is still the chance of bank losses from bad loans as 
government and central bank support is removed, the institutions on the Authority’s 
counterparty list are well-capitalised and general credit conditions across the sector are 
expected to remain benign. Duration limits for counterparties on the Authority’s lending 
list are under regular review and will continue to reflect economic conditions and the credit 
outlook. 

Interest rate forecast:  

15. The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is forecasting that Bank Rate 
will continue to rise in calendar Q1 2022 to subdue inflationary pressures and the 
perceived desire by the BoE to move away from emergency levels of interest rates. 

Page 81



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

16. Investors continue to price in multiple rises in Bank Rate over the next forecast horizon, 
and Arlingclose believes that although interest rates will rise again, the increases will not 
be to the extent predicted by financial markets. In the near-term, the risks around 
Arlingclose’s central case are to the upside while over the medium-term the risks become 
more balanced. 

17. Yields are expected to remain broadly at current levels over the medium-term, with the 5, 
10 and 20 year gilt yields expected to average around 0.65%, 0.90%, and 1.15% 
respectively. The risks around for short and medium-term yields are initially to the upside 
but shifts lower later, while for long-term yields the risk is to the upside. However, as ever 
there will almost certainly be short-term volatility due to economic and political uncertainty 
and events. 

18. A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is attached 
at Annexe D1. 

Local Context 

19. On 31st December 2021, the Authority held £265.9m of borrowing and £13.2m of treasury 
investments. This is set out in further detail at Annexe D2.  Forecast changes in these 
sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below. 

Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast 
 

 
 
* PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s total debt 
** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing 

20. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying 
resources available for investment.  The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain 
borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal 
borrowing.  
 

31.03.21 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.24 31.03.25

Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast

£m £m £m £m £m

General Fund CFR 13 16 15 14 14

HRA CFR 83 83 83 83 83

Investments CFR 164 239 263 263 262

Total CFR 260 338 361 360 359

Less: Other debt liabilities * (4) (4) (4) (4) (4)

Loans CFR 256 334 357 356 355

Less: External borrowing ** (230) (264) (118) (109) (105)

Internal/over borrowing 26 70 239 247 250

Less: Usable reserves (31) (26) (28) (31) (36)

Less: Working capital (7) (7) (7) (7) (7)

Investments/(new borrowing) 12 (37) (204) (209) (207)

Page 82



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

21. CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the 
Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three 
years.  Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this recommendation 
during 2022/23.   

Liability benchmark:  

22. To compare the Council’s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability 
benchmark has been calculated showing the minimum debt required at the end of each 
year. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash and investment 
balances are kept to a minimum level of £10m at each year-end to maintain sufficient 
liquidity but minimise credit risk. 

Table 2: Liability benchmark  

 

Borrowing Strategy 
 

23. The Authority currently holds £265.9 million of loans, an increase of £60 million on the 
previous year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The 
liability benchmark in table 2 shows that the Authority expects to borrow £332m in 
2022/23.  The Authority may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years’ 
requirements, providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of £420 
million. 

Objectives:  

24. The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk 
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over 
the period for which funds are required.  The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the 
Authority’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective. 

Strategy:  

25. Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local government 
funding, the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of 
affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. With 
short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it is likely to be more 
cost effective in the short-term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-term 
loans instead. 

26. By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone 
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of internal/short-term 
borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional costs by 
deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise 

31.03.21 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.24 31.03.25

Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast

£m £m £m £m £m

Loans CFR 256 334 357 356 355 

Less: Usable reserves (31) (26) (28) (31) (36)

Less: Working capital (7) (7) (7) (7) (7)

Plus: Minimum investments 10 10 10 10 10 

Liability Benchmark 228 311 332 328 322 

Page 83



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven 
analysis. Its output may determine whether the Authority borrows additional sums at long-
term fixed rates in 2022/23 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this 
causes additional cost in the short-term. 
 

27. The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the PWLB 
but will consider long-term loans from other sources including banks, pensions and local 
authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing bonds and similar instruments, in 
order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source of funding in line with 
the CIPFA Code. PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy 
investment assets primarily for yield; the Authority intends to avoid this activity in the future 
in order to retain its access to PWLB loans.  

28. Alternatively, the Authority may arrange forward starting loans, where the interest rate is 
fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would enable certainty of 
cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period. 
 

29. In addition, the Authority may borrow further short-term loans to cover unplanned cash 
flow shortages. 

30. Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 

• HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board) 
• any institution approved for investments (see below) 
• any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 
• any other UK public sector body 
• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Essex Pension Fund) 
• capital market bond investors 
• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to enable 

local authority bond issues 
 

31. Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following 
methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 

• leasing 
• hire purchase 
• Private Finance Initiative  
• sale and leaseback 

Municipal Bonds Agency:  

32. UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local Government 
Association as an alternative to the PWLB.  It issues bonds on the capital markets and 
lends the proceeds to local authorities.  This is a more complicated source of finance than 
the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors 
with a guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for 
any reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow 
and knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will 
therefore be the subject of a separate report for approval.   

 

 

Page 84



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Short-term and variable rate loans:  

33. These loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and 
are therefore subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management 
indicators below. Financial derivatives may be used to manage this interest rate risk (see 
section below). 

Debt rescheduling:  
 

34. The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or 
receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other 
lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption terms. The Authority 
may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without 
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. 

 
Treasury Investment Strategy 
 

35. The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance 
of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the Authority’s 
treasury investment balance has ranged between £10.4 and £28.85 million, and similar 
levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.  

Objectives:  

36. The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have 
regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of 
return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate 
balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and 
the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to 
be invested for more than one year, the Authority will aim to achieve a total return that is 
equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power 
of the sum invested. 

37. Negative interest rates: The COVID-19 pandemic has increased the risk that the Bank of 
England will set its Bank Rate at or below zero, which is likely to feed through to negative 
interest rates on all low risk, short-term investment options. Since investments cannot pay 
negative income, negative rates will be applied by reducing the value of investments. In 
this event, security will be measured as receiving the contractually agreed amount at 
maturity, even though this may be less than the amount originally invested. 

38. Strategy: Given the increasing risk and very low returns from short-term unsecured bank 
investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and/or higher yielding 
asset classes during 2022/23.  This is especially the case for the estimated £10m that is 
available for longer-term investment.  

39. All of the Authority’s surplus cash remains invested in short-term unsecured bank 
deposits and money market funds.  With the uncertainty over changes to the Code and 
MRP resolved, the Council can now arrange long term funding. It is likely that this will be 
done in three tranches during 2022/23 to coincide with the end dates for short term 
financing.  

40. Business models: Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments 
depends on the Authority’s “business model” for managing them. The Authority aims to 

Page 85



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

achieve value from its treasury investments by a business model of collecting the 
contractual cash flows and therefore, where other criteria are also met, these investments 
will continue to be accounted for at amortised cost.  
 

Approved counterparties:  

41. The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 3 
below, subject to the limits shown. 

Table 3: Treasury investment counterparties and limits  

 

* Minimum credit rating:  

42. Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only be made with entities 
whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than A-. Where available, the 
credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise 
the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made 
solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will 
be taken into account. 

43. For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) where 
external advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a maximum of 
£500,000 per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-peer platform. 

44. Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national 
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These 
investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of insolvency, 
although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Government are deemed to be 

Time Limit
Counterparty 

Limit
Sector Limit

UK Central Government 50 years Unlimited n/a

UK Local Authorities including 

Police and Fire (irrespective of 

credit rating) per authority

25 years £3m Unlimited

Secured investments* 20 years £3m Unlimited

Banks (unsecured)* 12 months £2m Unlimited

UK Building societies 

(unsecured)*
12 months £2m £4m

Registered providers 

(unsecured)*
5 years £2m £5m

Money Market Funds* n/a £2m Unlimited

Strategic Pooled Funds n/a £2m £10m

Real estate investment trusts n/a £2m £5m

Saffron Building Society n/a £0.5m 100 days

Other Investments 5 years £2m £2m

General Counterparty List

Page 86



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

zero credit risk due to its ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made 
in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.  

45. Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits the 
potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be 
a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse repurchase 
agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no 
investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured 
has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit 
rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one 
counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments. 

46. Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and 
senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral 
development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in 
should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for 
arrangements relating to operational bank accounts. 

47. Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by, 
registered providers of social housing or registered social landlords, formerly known as 
housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing (in 
England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department 
for Communities (in Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain the 
likelihood of receiving government support if needed.   

48. Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very 
low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the 
advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment risks, 
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. 
Although no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Authority will take care to 
diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all 
times.  

49. Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns over 
the longer term but are more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Authority to 
diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the 
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are 
available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability 
in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly. 

50. Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate and 
pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar manner to pooled property 
funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are 
more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand for the shares as 
well as changes in the value of the underlying properties. 

51. Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for 
example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Non-bank companies cannot 
be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the Authority’s investment at risk.  

52. Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures, for example 
though current accounts, collection accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK 
bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets greater than £25 billion. These 

Page 87



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

are not classed as investments but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and 
balances will therefore be kept below £2m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that 
in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be 
bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Authority maintaining 
operational continuity.  
 

53. Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the 
Authority’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. The credit 
rating agencies in current use are listed in the Treasury Management Practices document. 
Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved 
investment criteria then: 

• no new investments will be made, 
• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 
• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 

with the affected counterparty. 

54. Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 
downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below the approved rating 
criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made 
with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced.  This policy will not 
apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an 
imminent change of rating. 

55. Other information on the security of investments: The Authority understands that credit 
ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default.  Full regard will 
therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the organisations 
in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information 
on potential government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and 
advice from the Authority’s treasury management adviser.  No investments will be made 
with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it 
may otherwise meet the above criteria. 

56. When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in credit 
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the Authority 
will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the 
maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of security. The extent 
of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these 
restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are 
available to invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with 
the UK Government, or with other local authorities.  This will cause investment returns to 
fall but will protect the principal sum invested. 

57. Investment limits: The Authority’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses 
are forecast to be £19 million on 31st March 2022. In order that no more than 11% of 
available reserves will be put at risk in the case of a single default, the maximum that will 
be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £2 million. A group 
of entities under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit 
purposes.  
 

58. Credit risk exposures arising from non-treasury investments, financial derivatives and 
balances in operational bank accounts count against the relevant investment limits. 

Page 88



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

59. Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts and 
foreign countries as below. Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development 
banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign country, since the risk is 
diversified over many countries. 

Table 4: Additional investment limits 

 
 

60. Liquidity management: The Authority uses cash flow forecasting to determine the 
maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The forecast is compiled 
on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced to borrow on 
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments 
are set by reference to the Authority’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast. 

61. The Authority will spread its liquid cash over at least three providers (e.g. bank accounts 
and money market funds) to ensure that access to cash is maintained in the event of 
operational difficulties at any one provider. 

Treasury Management Indicators 
  

62. The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using 
the following indicators. 
 

63. Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by 
monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio.  This is 
calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the 
arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are 
assigned a score based on their perceived risk. 

 

64. Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk 
by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling 
three month period, without additional borrowing. 

 
 

65. Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest 
rate risk.  The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest 
rates will be: 

 

 

Cash limit

Any group of pooled funds under the same management
£5m per 

manager

Credit Risk Indicator Target

Portfolio average credit rating A

Liquidity Risk Indicator Target

Total cash available within 3 months £2m

Page 89



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Interest rate risk indicator Limit 

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest 
rates 

£2m 

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest 
rates 

£2m 

 
The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans and 
investments will be replaced at new market rates. 

66. Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to 
refinancing risk. The upper limit on the maturity structure of borrowing will be: 

 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the 
earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.  

67. Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year: The purpose of this indicator is to 
control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment 
of its investments.  The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to final maturities 
beyond the period end will be: 

Price risk indicator 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £10m £10m £10m 

Related Matters 

68. The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury 
management strategy. 

69. Financial derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives 
embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate 
collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the expense of 
greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits).  The general power of competence 
in section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local 
authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into 
a loan or investment).  

70. The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, 
futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level 
of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented, such as 
credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining 

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper Limit

Under 12 months 70%

12 months and within 24 months 50%

24 months and within 5 years 50%

5 years and within 10 years 80%

10 years and within 20 years 80%

20 years and above 100%

Page 90



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

the overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds 
and forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they 
present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy. 

71. Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the 
approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative 
exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the methodology in the Treasury 
Management Practices document will count against the counterparty credit limit and the 
relevant foreign country limit. 

72. In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will consider that 
advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the 
implications. 
 

Housing Revenue Account:  

73. On 1st April 2012, the Authority notionally split each of its existing long-term loans into 
General Fund and HRA pools. In the future, new long-term loans borrowed will be 
assigned in their entirety to one pool or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income 
arising from long-term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be 
charged/ credited to the respective revenue account. Differences between the value of 
the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance 
sheet resources available for investment) will result in a notional cash balance which may 
be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each month and interest 
transferred between the General Fund and HRA at the Authority’s average interest rate 
on investments, adjusted for credit risk.   

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive:  
 

74. The Authority has opted up to professional client status with its providers of financial 
services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a 
greater range of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to 
individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury 
management activities, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services believes this to 
be the most appropriate status. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
General Fund  
 

75. The budget for the General Fund short term investment income in 2022/23 is £8,500 
based on its share of the average investment portfolio of £10 million at an average 
interest rate of 0.18%.  

 
76. The budget for general fund loan income is £2.4 million from the loans totalling £60.6 

million to Aspire at interest rates of 4 and 4.5%.  
 

77. The budget for general fund short term local authority debt interest paid in 2022/23 is 
£420,000 at an average rate of 0.20%, based on an average debt portfolio £200 million.  
 

78. The budget for long-term debt interest paid is £2.42million at a rate of 2.27%, based on 
an average total debt portfolio of £107 million.  

Page 91



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

 
79. Although interest rates have increased, the average interest rate remains low due to 

already arranged borrowing reaching maturity during the year. 
 
Housing Revenue Account  
 

80. The budget for HRA investment income in 2022/23 is £9,500, based on its share of an 
average investment portfolio of £10million at an average interest rate of 0.18%. The 
budget for long term debt interest paid in 2022/23 is £2.6 million based on an average 
debt portfolio of £78.4 million at an average rate of 3.2%. 

 
81. If actual levels of investments and borrowing, or actual interest rates, differ from those 

forecasts, performance against budget will be correspondingly different.  

Other Options Considered 

82. The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for 
local authorities to adopt. The Director of Finance and Corporate Services, having 
consulted the Cabinet Member for Finance and Administration, believes that the above 
strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk management and cost 
effectiveness.  Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management 
implications, are listed below. 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk 
management 

Invest in a narrower range of 
counterparties and/or for 
shorter times 

Interest income will be lower Lower chance of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses may be 
greater 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times 

Interest income will be higher Increased risk of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses may be 
smaller 

Borrow additional sums at 
long-term fixed interest rates 

Debt interest costs will rise; 
this is unlikely to be offset by 
higher investment income 

Higher investment balance 
leading to a higher impact in 
the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs may be more certain 

Borrow short-term or variable 
loans instead of long-term 
fixed rates 

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 

Increases in debt interest 
costs will be broadly offset by 
rising investment income in 
the medium term, but long-
term costs may be less 
certain  

Reduce level of borrowing  Saving on debt interest is 
likely to exceed lost 
investment income 

Reduced investment balance 
leading to a lower impact in 
the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs may be less certain 

 
  

Page 92



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Annexe D1 
 

Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast – December 2021 
 
Underlying assumptions:  

 The global recovery from the pandemic has entered a more challenging phase. The 
resurgence in demand has led to the expected rise in inflationary pressure, but disrupted 
factors of supply are amplifying the effects, increasing the likelihood of lower growth 
rates ahead. The advent of the Omicron variant of coronavirus is affecting activity and is 
also a reminder of the potential downside risks. 

 Despite relatively buoyant activity survey data, official GDP data indicates that growth 
was weakening into Q4 2021. Other data, however, suggested continued momentum, 
particularly for November. Retail sales volumes rose 1.4%, PMIs increased, and the 
labour market continued to strengthen. The end of furlough did not appear to have had a 
significant impact on unemployment. Wage growth is elevated. 

 The CPI inflation rate rose to 5.1% for November and will rise higher in the near term. 
While the transitory factors affecting inflation are expected to unwind over time, 
policymakers’ concern is persistent medium term price pressure.  

 These factors prompted the MPC to raise Bank Rate to 0.25% at the December 
meeting. Short term interest rate expectations remain elevated. 

 The outlook, however, appears weaker. Household spending faces pressures from a 
combination of higher prices and tax rises. In the immediate term, the Omicron variant 
has already affected growth – Q4 and Q1 activity could be weak at best. 

 Longer-term government bond yields remain relatively low despite the more hawkish 
signals from the BoE and the Federal Reserve. Investors are concerned that significant 
policy tightening in the near term will slow growth and prompt the need for looser policy 
later. Geo-political and coronavirus risks are also driving safe haven buying. The result 
is a much flatter yield curve, as short-term yields rise even as long-term yields fall.  

 The rise in Bank Rate despite the Omicron variant signals that the MPC will act to bring 
inflation down whatever the environment. It has also made clear its intentions to tighten 
policy further. While the economic outlook will be challenging, the signals from 
policymakers suggest their preference is to tighten policy unless data indicates a more 
severe slowdown. 

 
Forecast:  

 The MPC will want to build on the strong message it delivered this month by tightening 
policy despite Omicron uncertainty. 

 Arlingclose therefore expects Bank Rate to rise to 0.50% in Q1 2022, but then remain 
there. Risks to the forecast are initially weighted to the upside, but becoming more 
balanced over time. The Arlingclose central forecast remains below the market forward 
curve. 

 Gilt yields will remain broadly flat from current levels. Yields have fallen sharply at the 
longer end of the yield curve, but expectations of a rise in Bank Rate have maintained 
short term gilt yields at higher levels. 

 Easing expectations for Bank Rate over time could prompt the yield curve to steepen, as 
investors build in higher inflation expectations. 

 The risks around the gilt yield forecasts vary. The risk for short and medium term yields 
is initially on the upside but shifts lower later. The risk for long-term yields is weighted to 
the upside. 

 

Page 93



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

  

Page 94



 

Treasury Management Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Annexe D2 

Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31/12/2021 31/12/2021

Actual Portfolio Average Rate

£m %

External Borrowing:

Public Works Loans Board 80.4 3.20

Local Authorities 148.5 0.28

Phoenix Life Ltd 37 2.86

Total External Borrowing 265.9 2.11

Other Long term Liabilities:

Private Finance Initiative 4.2 8.29

Total gross external debt 270.1 8.29

Treasury Investments:

Banks and Building Societies (unsecured) 0.7 0

Government (incl.local authorities) 8 0.08

Money Market Funds 4.5 0.05

Total Treasury Investments 13.2 0.04

Net Debt 256.9 0.06

Page 95



 

 

 

Appendix E 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

Capital Strategy 

2022/23 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  

Finance 

Uttlesford District Council  

February 2022 

 

Page 96



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

Introduction 

1. This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, 

capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local 

public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 

implications for future financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style 

to enhance members’ understanding of these sometimes technical areas. 

 

2. Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial 

consequences for the Authority for many years into the future. They are therefore 

subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework, 

summarised in this report. 

 

Capital Expenditure and Financing 

 

3. Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property 

or vehicles, that will be used for more than one year. In local government this includes 

spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies 

enabling them to buy assets. The Authority has some limited discretion on what counts 

as capital expenditure, for example assets costing below £10,000 are not capitalised 

and are charged to revenue in year. For details of the Authority’s policy on 

capitalisation, see the draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21. 

 

4. In 2022/23, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £37m as summarised 

below: 

 

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £ millions 

 

 2020/21 

actual 

2021/22 

forecast 

2022/23 

budget  

2023/24 

budget 

2024/25 

budget 

General Fund 

services 

10 7 1 1 1 

Council housing 

(HRA) 

5 10 10 10 6 

Capital investments 107 76 27 0 0 

TOTAL 122 93 37 11 6 

 

5. The main capital projects include vehicle replacement programme and housing 

developments in the Housing Revenue Account. The Authority also plans to incur 

£27m of capital expenditure on investments.  

 

6. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that 

council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services. HRA 

capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately and includes the building of 

approximately 100 new homes over the forecast period. 

Page 97



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

 

7. Capital investments include loans and shares made for service purposes and property 

held primarily for financial return in line with the definition in the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code.  

Governance  

8. Service managers bid annually in September to include projects in the Authority’s 

capital programme. Bids are collated by Financial Services who calculate the financing 

cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally financed). Capital Officers 

appraises all bids based on a comparison of service priorities against financing costs 

and makes recommendations to Corporate Management Team. The final capital 

programme is then presented annually to Scrutiny and Cabinet for final approval by 

Council in February.  

 

9. For full details of the Authority’s capital programme, including the project appraisals 

undertaken, see: Appendix F. 

 

10. All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government 

grants and other contributions), the Authority’s own resources (revenue, reserves and 

capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative). The 

planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows: 

Table 2: Capital financing in £ millions 

 

 2020/21 

actual 

2021/22 

forecast 

2022/23 

budget * 

2023/24 

budget 

2024/25 

budget 

External sources 1 1 1 2 0 

Capital resources 3 11 6 6 6 

Revenue resources 10 3 4 4 1 

Debt 108 79 24 0 0 

TOTAL 122 94 34 12 7 

 

11. Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, 

and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which 

is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from selling 

capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance. 

Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows 

Table 3: Replacement of prior years’ debt finance in £ millions 

 

 2020/21 

actual 

2021/22 

forecast 

2022/23 

budget 

2023/24 

budget 

2024/25 

budget 

Own resources 1 1 5 5 5 

TOTAL 1 1 5 5 5 

Page 98



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

 

12. The Council’s full Minimum Revenue Provision statement is attached as Annexe E1. 

 

13. The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the 

capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital 

expenditure and reduces with MRP, and capital receipts used to replace debt. The 

CFR is expected to [increase by £21m during 2022/23. Based on the above figures for 

expenditure and financing, the Authority’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions 

 

 31.3.2021 

actual 

31.3.2022 

forecast 

31.3.2023 

budget * 

31.3.2024 

budget 

31.3.2025 

budget 

General Fund 

services 

31 16 15 14 13 

Council housing 

(HRA) 

83 83 83 83 83 

Capital investments 164 239 263 259 255 

TOTAL CFR 260 339 361 356 352 

 

14. Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the 

Authority has an asset management strategy in place. 

 

15. Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the 

proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay debt. The 

Council is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts on service transformation 

projects until 2022/23. Repayments of capital grants, loans and investments also 

generate capital receipts. The Council plans to receive £2m of capital receipts in the 

coming financial year as follows: 

Table 5: Capital receipts receivable in £ millions 

 

 2020/21 

actual 

2021/22 

forecast 

2022/23 

budget 

2023/24 

budget 

2024/25 

budget 

Asset sales 3 3 2 2 2 

Loans etc repaid 2 2 2 2 3 

TOTAL 5 5 4 4 5 

Treasury Management 

16. Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash 

available to meet the Authority’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved. 

Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by 

borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current 

Page 99



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

account. The Authority is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income is 

received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is 

incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital 

cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing. 

 

17. The Authority currently has £265.9m borrowing at an average interest rate of 2.11% 

and £13.2m treasury investments at an average rate of 0.04%. 

 

18. Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing are to achieve a 

low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in future. 

These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority therefore seeks to strike a 

balance between cheap short-term loans (currently available at around 0.10%) and 

long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher (currently 1.5 to 

2.5%).  

 

19. Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt (which comprises borrowing, 

PFI liabilities, leases and transferred debt) are shown below, compared with the capital 

financing requirement (see above). 

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in £ 

millions 

 

 31.3.2021 

actual 

31.3.2022 

forecast 

31.3.2023 

budget 

31.3.2024 

budget 

31.3.2025 

budget 

Debt (incl. PFI & 

leases) 

234 305 326 322 316 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 

360 339 361 356 352 

 

20. Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, 

except in the short-term. As can be seen from table 6, the Authority expects to comply 

with this in the medium term. 

 

21. Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an 

alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk 

level of borrowing. This benchmark is currently £228m and is forecast to rise to £322m 

over the next three years. 

Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark in £ millions 

 

 31.3.2021 

actual 

31.3.2022 

forecast 

31.3.2023 

budget 

31.3.2024 

budget 

31.3.2025 

budget 

Outstanding borrowing 230 264 118 109 105 

Liability benchmark 228 311 332 328 322 

 

Page 100



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

22. The table shows that the Authority expects to remain borrowed above its liability 

benchmark. This is because a deliberate decision has been made to borrow additional 

sums for further investments. 

 

23. Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an affordable 

borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year. In line 

with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level 

should debt approach the limit. 

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt in 

£m 

 

 2021/22 

limit 

2022/23 

limit 

2023/24 

limit 

2024/25 

limit 

Authorised limit – borrowing 

Authorised limit – PFI and leases 

Authorised limit – total external debt 

415 

5 

420 

415 

5 

420 

415 

5 

420 

415 

5 

420 

Operational boundary - borrowing 

Operational boundary – PFI and leases 

Operational boundary – total external 

debt 

395 

5 

400 

395 

5 

400 

395 

5 

400 

395 

5 

400 

 

24. Further details on borrowing are in the Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

Treasury investment strategy 

 

25. Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before it is paid out again. Investments 

made for service reasons or for pure financial gain are not generally considered to be 

part of treasury management.  

 

26. The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over 

yield, that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash that is 

likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the 

government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk 

of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms is invested more widely, including in 

bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of receiving 

returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in 

pooled funds, where an external fund manager makes decisions on which particular 

investments to buy, and the Authority may request its money back at short notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

Table 9: Treasury management investments in £millions 

 

 
31.3.2021 

actual 

31.3.2022 

forecast 

31.3.2023 

budget 

31.3.2024 

budget 

31.3.2025 

budget 

Near-term investments 10 10 10 10 10 

Longer-term 

investments 
0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 10 10 10 10 10 

 

27. Further details can be found the Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

28. Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime objectives 

of the Authority’s treasury management activities. The treasury management strategy 

therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the risk of unexpected 

losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be used to manage 

treasury risks. 

 

29. Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made 

daily and are therefore delegated to the Director of Finance and staff, who must act in 

line with the treasury management strategy approved by council. Quarterly reports on 

treasury management activity are presented to Cabinet. 

 

Investments for Service Purposes 

 

30. The Council makes investments to assist local public services, including making loans 

to the Council’s subsidiaries. In light of the public service objective, the Council is 

willing to take more risk than with treasury investments, however it still plans for such 

investments to generate a profit after all costs. 

 

31. The current investments for service purposes is valued at £179m giving the Council an 

annual net return of £8.5m in the financial year 2021/22. 

 

32. Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service 

manager in consultation with the Director of Finance and Corporate Services and must 

meet the criteria and limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares 

are capital expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the 

capital programme. 

 

33. Further details on service investments are in the Commercial Strategy 

Commercial Activities 

34. With central government financial support for local public services declining, the 

Council invests in commercial property purely or mainly for financial gain and lends to 

its subsidiary trading under the Aspire name for the same reason. The Council plans 

Page 102



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

on making commercial investments totalling £275m over a 5-year strategy of which in 

year one the council forecasts a return of approximately 4.8%. 

 

35. With financial return being the main objective, the Council accepts higher risk on 

commercial investment than with treasury investments. The principal risk exposures 

include tenants defaulting on their tenancy agreements resulting in income to be below 

the interest repayment These risks are managed by continuously attractive different 

types of business and regularly monitoring of forecasted income. 

 

36. Governance: Decisions on commercial investments are made by the Director of 

Finance and Corporate Services in line with the criteria and limits approved by Full 

Council in the investment strategy. Property and most other commercial investments 

are also capital expenditure  

Liabilities 

37. In addition to debt of £326m detailed above, the Council is committed to making future 

payments to cover its pension fund deficit (valued at £36.6m). 

 

38. Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by service 

managers in consultation with the Director of Finance and Corporate Services. The 

risk of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by Financial Services 

and reported quarterly to Cabinet. 

Revenue Budget Implications 

39. Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest 

payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income 

receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the 

net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and 

general government grants. 

 

40. Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, 

the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will 

extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Director of Finance and Corporate 

Services is satisfied that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and 

sustainable.  

Knowledge and Skills 

41. The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions 

with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions. 

For example, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services is a qualified accountant. 

The Council pays for junior staff to study towards relevant professional qualifications 

including CIPFA, AAT and ILM.  

 

42. Where Council staff does not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of 

external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The Council 

currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisers, other 

Page 103



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

specialists will differ depending on the expertise required. This approach is more cost 

effective than employing such staff directly and ensures that the Council has access 

to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite. 

  

Page 104



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

Annexe E1 

Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2022/23 

Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay 

that debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt 

is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory 

minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard 

to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum 

Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018. 

The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement each year 

and recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP.  The following 

are options recommended in the Guidance and locally determined prudent methods of which 

the Council will apply to unsupported capital expenditure, due to the changing environment 

Local authorities are currently working within the policy will be reviewed and updated 

according to any new proposals at the mid-year stage: 

Capital Projects 

Annuity method – For new unsupported capital expenditure for assets with short lives i.e. 

vehicles and IT MRP will be determined using the annuity method. An annuity basis considers 

the time value of money. Like the straight-line method, an annuity method also has the 

advantage of having a fixed end-point at which point debt will have been fully provided for 

Lease life method – For assets acquired using finance lease arrangements MRP will match 
the portion of annual lease payment used to write-down the lease liability 
 
Housing Revenue Account – Self-financing payment 
MRP in respect of the £88.407m payment made in 2012 to exit the Housing Revenue Account 
subsidy system will be determined as being equal to the principal amount repaid on the loans 
borrowed to finance that payment.  
 
If an asset is classified as work in progress at the end of the financial year where MRP will be 
charged the first instalment will take place in year 1 after the asset is operational. 
 
Investment Projects 
 
Acquisition of investment property 
For long-term projects where an investment property is acquired; MRP will be charged over 
the life of the asset using the annuity method as detailed above. 
 
Loans to subsidiaries 
For long-term capital loans to other bodies MRP will be charged based fair value of the 
investment by the subsidiary, for infrastructure investments MRP will be charged over a 
maximum of 50 years if the projected residual value is below the original expenditure. Where 
the residual value is projected to be below the expenditure value MRP will be calculated on 
the balance spread over the remaining of the 50 years since acquisition.  
For long-term loans to other bodies where the loan supports expenditure on fixtures and 
fittings MRP will be charged in equal instalments over the life of the loan. 
 
 

 

Page 105



Capital Strategy – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 
 

The following table illustrates the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) for 2022/23 which 

underpins the Minimum Revenue Provisions.  

 

 

 

 

Estimated CFR

31/03/2022

£'000

Estimated CFR

31/03/2023

£'000

Estimated CFR

31/03/2024

£'000

Estimated MRP

2022/23

£'000

Capital Expenditure before 01/04/2008 0 0 0 0

Unsupported Capital Expenditure after 31/03/2008 12,283 11,180 10,091 1,103

Finance Leases and Private Finance Initiative 4,191 4,024 4,024 167

Total General Fund 16,474 15,204 14,115 1,270

Unsupported Capital Expenditure 239,349 262,563 259,037 3,281

Total Investments 239,349 262,563 259,037 3,281

HRA Subsidy Revenue Account 82,753 83,273 83,293 0

Total Housing Revenue Account 82,753 83,273 83,293 0

Total 338,576 361,041 356,444 4,550

Page 106



 

Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

         Appendix F 

Capital Programme – 2022/23 – 2026/27 

 
Summary 
 

1. The Capital programme is for the 5 year period, 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2027 and the 
predicted spend for the General Fund (GF) is £6.760m, Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) £35.675m and £26.792m for commercial investments. 

2. Capital expenditure relates to spending on schemes and assets that have a long term 
value and exceeds a cost of £10,000. 

3. The programme details planned capital expenditure on the Council’s buildings, 
investments, vehicles and ICT assets. 

4. The programme includes capital grants to other organisations and individuals. 

Financial Implications 
 

5. The revenue costs of financing the Capital Programme have been built into the Housing 
Revenue Account and the General Fund budgets set out in the Medium Term Financial, 
Appendix C on tonight’s agenda. 

 
Capital Programme 2022/23 – 2026/27 
 

6. Annexe F1 shows a summary table of the capital programme and sets out the cost for 
each of the five years. 

7. Annexe F2 details all the capital projects within each portfolio providing more details of 
the scheduled profile of works for each year. 

8. Annexe F3 provides a detailed breakdown of how the capital programme is being 
financed. 

9. The capital programme is an evolving and rolling schedule of expenditure year on year. 

10. The capital programme for the General Fund and Housing Revenue Accounts has no 
requirement for internal or external borrowing. All spend is financed in the year the 
expenditure is incurred and financed by one or a combination of the following three 
financing streams.  

 Grants and Contributions 

 Revenue contributions and use of reserves 

 Capital receipts 
 

11. The Investment Assets are the only capital expenditure items which will be financed by 
external borrowing. 

12. The HRA capital financing includes a contribution from the Major Repairs Reserve 
which is the equivalent to the annual depreciation charge on council dwellings and other 
HRA assets.  This funding is used to support the annual maintenance of the housing 
stock. 

Page 107



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

13. A regular update on the capital programme and associated financing is included in the 
Budget Monitoring reports presented to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. 

14. The robustness of the capital programme and a review of each scheme are undertaken 
by the officers of the Capital Programme Working Group. 

15. The total predicted spend for the 5 year capital programme from 1 April 2022 to 31 
March 2027 is £69.227m and £36.782m and the breakdown of the is set out in the 
following table. 

 

16. Investments totalling £26.792m relate to the asset purchases as detailed in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, Commercial Strategy, and the Capital Strategy, all included 
in tonight’s agenda. 
 

17. The General Fund expenditure is mainly low value service delivery capital items, with 
the exception of the rolling vehicle replacement scheme. The spend in 2022/23 and 
2023/24 is a total of £0.405m and then no spend until 2026/27 when the waste fleet will 
come to end of life and need to be replaced. The estimated cost to replace the whole 
of the waste fleet is £2.570m. 
 

18. The key items of expenditure in the HRA relate to the refurbishment of the sheltered 
accommodation at Alexia House and Parkside. A rolling budget £2.000m has been 
allocated in line with the use of the right to buy receipts, to be allocated to future projects 
as they are identified. 
 

  

2022/23 2022 - 2027

£'m £'m

General Fund 1.015 6.76

Investment Assets 26.792 26.792

Housing Revenue Account 8.975 35.675

36.782 69.227

Page 108



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

Impact  
 

Communication/Consultation Members, CMT and Budget Managers 

Community Safety None 

Equalities None 

Health and Safety None 

Human Rights/Legal Implications None 

Sustainability None 

Ward-specific impacts None 

Workforce/Workplace None 

 
Risk Analysis 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

Failure to identify 
capital budget 
pressures and/or 
funding not realised 

2- funding and 
borrowing for all 
schemes has 
been identified 

 

2 – would 
require a 
drawdown on 
reserves or 
additional 
revenue 
contributions 

Ongoing review of the 
spend via budget 
monitoring and capital 
officers working group 

 
1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project 

 

Page 109



 

Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

                   Annexe F1  

 

5 Year Capital Programme Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

£000 2022/23

General Fund Capital Schemes

Communities and Partnerships 170 170 0 110 110 110 110 110 550

Environmental Services 1,824 2,007 0 365 290 125 125 2,705 3,610

Finance & Administration 2,518 4,574 0 260 235 235 235 235 1,200

Housing and Economic Development 981 443 573 280 280 280 280 280 1,400

Sub Total 5,493 7,194 573 1,015 915 750 750 3,330 6,760

Investments 500 76,677 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

Sub Total 500 76,677 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

Housing Revenue Account Capital Schemes

HRA Capital 9,953 9,835 0 8,975 9,915 5,595 5,595 5,595 35,675

Sub Total 9,953 9,835 0 8,975 9,915 5,595 5,595 5,595 35,675

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 15,946 93,706 573 36,782 10,830 6,345 6,345 8,925 69,227

P
age 110



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

                 Annexe F1 continued… 

5 Year Capital Financing Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022/2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

£000 2020/21

General Fund

Grants and External Contributions 231 266 0 200 200 200 200 200 1,000

Direct Revenue Contributions 2,076 1,513 573 499 375 210 210 2,790 4,084

General Fund Capital Receipts 770 1,770 0 316 340 340 340 340 1,676

Borrowing 2,916 80,322 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

Sub Total - General Fund 5,993 83,871 573 27,807 915 750 750 3,330 33,552

Housing Revenue Account

Grants and External Contributions 342 342 0 1,040 1,560 0 0 0 2,600

Direct Revenue Contribution 50 917 0 3,086 3,740 1,250 1,250 1,250 10,576

Capital Receipts 1,679 1,787 0 800 600 0 0 0 1,400

Funded from reserves 3,185 2,585 0 504 200 800 800 800 3,104

Major Repairs Contribution 4,697 4,204 0 3,545 3,815 3,545 3,545 3,545 17,995

Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total - Housing Revenue Account 9,953 9,835 0 8,975 9,915 5,595 5,595 5,595 35,675

TOTAL SOURCES OF FINANCING 15,946 93,706 573 36,782 10,830 6,345 6,345 8,925 69,227

P
age 111



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

                   Annexe F2 

General Fund - 5 Year Capital Programme 

 

 

COMMUNITIES & PARTNERSHIPS 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

2022/23

£000

Community Project Grants 163 163 0 110 110 110 110 110 550

Tree Planting 7 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 170 170 0 110 110 110 110 110 550

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 170 170 0 110 110 110 110 110 550

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

2022/23

£000

Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,562 1,745 0 240 165 0 0 2,580 2,985

Household Bins 70 70 0 70 70 70 70 70 350

Kitchen Caddies 10 10 0 10 10 10 10 10 50

Garden Waste Bins 20 20 0 20 20 20 20 20 100

Trade Waste Bins 30 30 0 10 10 10 10 10 50

Car Parking Machine Replacement 92 92 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Electric Car Charges 15 15 0 15 15 15 15 15 75

White Street Car Park 25 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 1,824 2,007 0 365 290 125 125 2,705 3,610

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 1,824 2,007 0 365 290 125 125 2,705 3,610

P
age 112



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
Annexe F2 continued… 

 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

2022/23

£000

ICT

Minor Items IT 40 40 0 20 20 20 20 20 100

PCI Compliance 54 54 0 20 20 20 20 20 100

PSN CoCo 88 88 0 30 30 30 30 30 150

Revenue and Benefits 20 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Asset Management System 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cyber Security 72 72 0 20 20 20 20 20 100

Grounds Maintenance & Vehicle Systems 43 43 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Idox Additional Modules 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Licensing - Lalpac to Idox Uniform 16 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ArcGIS Upgrade 12 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scanner Replacement 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sharepoint 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

WiFi 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Northgate Housing Assets 20 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Mobile Refresh 40 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ICT - New Sites 400 400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cloud Telephone System 0 0 0 49 0 0 0 0 49

Appointment System 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Web-to-Print Solutions 18 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 968 990 0 139 90 90 90 90 499

Council Asset Works

Council Offices Improvements (General) 199 199 0 96 120 120 120 120 576

New Depot Site 1,000 3,034 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Day Centre Cyclical Improvements 0 0 0 25 25 25 25 25 125

Swan Meadow Car Park Resurface 240 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Museum Boiler 34 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

London Road - Fire Alarm Upgrade 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 1,523 3,557 0 121 145 145 145 145 701

Other

Postal Software 27 27 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total 27 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 2,518 4,574 0 260 235 235 235 235 1,200

P
age 113



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
Annexe F2 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INVESTMENTS 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

2022/23

£000

Investments 500 76,677 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

Sub Total 500 76,677 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 500 76,677 0 26,792 0 0 0 0 26,792

P
age 114



Capital Programme – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

                 Annexe F2 continued… 

Housing Revenue Account – 5 Year Capital Programme 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022 - 2027

2021/22 to 2026/27 Current Forecast Proposed Original Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total

Budget Spend P6 Slippage to 

2022/23

£000

Annual Programme of Works

Annual maintaining of the housing stock 3,997 3,520 0 3,445 3,445 3,445 3,445 3,445 17,225

Sub Total 3,997 3,520 0 3,445 3,445 3,445 3,445 3,445 17,225

Other

UPVC Fascia's and Guttering 100 84 0 100 100 100 100 100 500

Cash Incentive Scheme Grant 50 50 0 50 50 50 50 50 250

Sub Total 150 134 0 150 150 150 150 150 750

HRA Business Plan

New Builds

Unidentified Required Builds 0 41 0 2,000 1,500 2,000 2,000 2,000 9,500

The Moors 877 877 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Thaxted Road 3,460 3,460 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Great Chesterford 1,469 1,469 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Takeley 0 0 0 500 500 0 0 0 1,000

Gold Close 0 230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sheltered Redevelopments

Unidentified Required Builds 0 104 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Alexia House 0 0 0 1,400 2,100 0 0 0 3,500

Parkside 0 0 0 1,480 2,220 0 0 0 3,700

Sub Total 5,806 6,181 0 5,380 6,320 2,000 2,000 2,000 17,700

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 9,953 9,835 0 8,975 9,915 5,595 5,595 5,595 35,675

P
age 115



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

         Appendix G 

Housing Revenue Account – Budget 2022/23 

 
Summary 
 

1. This report sets out the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget and the reserves 
position for 2022/23. 
 

2. Housing and supported accommodation rents are recommended to be increased by 
4.9% (CPI+1%) as per central government policy and when a property is re-let the 
rent will be revised to the formula rent level. 

 
3. Other income and service charges for 2022/23 are recommended to be set on the 

following basis: 
 

 Garage rents are increased by RPI of 4.9% 

 Lifeline Service is increased by RPI of 4.9% 

 Housing Related Support charges are increased in line with actual costs 

 Intensive Housing Management charges are increased in line with actual costs 

 Heating, Service and Sewerage charges are increased in line with actual costs 
 

4. The Housing Board reviewed the Housing Revenue Budget for 2022/23 and the five 
year financial strategy on the 2 November 2021 and the Tenants Forum also 
reviewed the housing rent and service charge proposals on the 28 October 2021. 

 
Background 
 

5. The HRA budget for 2022/23 reflects the service arrangements and investments in 
relation to the Council’s housing services for the eleventh year under ‘Self Financing’.  

 
6. The new financial arrangements enable the service to stand alone financially and take 

‘local’ decisions for housing services. 
 

7. Decisions about the level of expenditure in the HRA continue to be made in the 
context of a 30 year Business Plan. The current version was updated and approved at 
Cabinet in January 2016 and is reviewed annually.   

 
8. The Business Plan sets the financial strategy for Housing and the budget proposals 

are reflected in this report. 
 

9. The Business Plan has been framed in the light of: 
 

 Estimated rental income is in line with the Government's guidance 

 Appropriate capital investment in maintaining the quality of the housing stock 
through planned maintenance and replacement works 

 The new build programme and service improvements 

 One for one replacement of Right to Buy sales 

 Servicing and repaying debt so that new borrowing is available for future 
maintenance works and/or investment in further new build schemes 

 Remodelling and modernising sheltered housing schemes 
 
10. Income and expenditure is budgeted on an incremental and inflationary basis to 

reflect the financial and operational needs of the housing service. 
 
 

Page 116



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
 

Debt Cap Removal 
 

11. In August 2018 Uttlesford were one of the ambitious councils who submitted a bid for 
funds to build more homes. It was the popularity of that bidding process amongst local 
authorities that led to the Government’s unexpected announcement in October 2018 
that the HRA borrowing cap had been removed. 
 

12. The removal of the cap is welcomed as it takes away one of the restrictions faced by 
local authorities looking to invest in their housing stock and build homes. However, 
the decision to increase HRA borrowing is not just dependent on whether it is 
permitted; it also needs to be affordable.  
 

13. There is currently a balanced HRA business plan and therefore costs arising from 
additional borrowing would need to be funded either through additional income or a 
reduction in costs.  
 

14. The Council is already committed to building homes for local people and since the 
introduction of self-financing the Council has been able to build, redevelop or directly 
purchase 163 homes despite the previous borrowing cap.  
 

National Social Rent Policy 
 

15. Since 2001, rents for properties let at ‘social rent’ have been set based on a formula 
set by government. This creates a ‘formula rent’ for each property, which is calculated 
based on the relative value of the property, relative local income levels, and the size 
of the property. An aim of this formula-based approach is to ensure that similar rents 
are charged for similar social rent properties.  
 

16. In 2011, the government introduced ‘affordable rent’ which permits rents to be set at 
up to 80% of market rent. The policy allows the Council to let new build properties at 
affordable rent where certain conditions apply.  
 

17. The majority of the Council’s new build properties are let at affordable rent and the 
additional income makes it possible to build more homes. 
 

18. In October 2017, government announced its intention to set a long-term rent deal for 
social housing landlords in England. This new policy permits annual rent increases on 
both social rent and affordable rent properties of up to consumer price index (CPI) 
plus one percentage point from 2020, for a period of at least five years. 
 

19. Rents are set in line with Government policy and to that end the Council’s social and 
affordable rents have been modelled at CPI+1% from 2021/22. The Council’s HRA 
Business Plan fundamentally requires this level of increase to take place to remain 
viable. 
 

20. Where rent is still not at the formula rent level the rent will be revised to the formula 
rent level when the property is re-let as per our current policy. 

 
Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/23 
 

21. The following table summarises the HRA budget for 2022/23, a more detailed 
breakdown is set out in Annex G1. The budget identifies a balanced budget made up 
of total income of £16.832m and total service expenditure of £13.480m, allowing a 
revenue contribution to fund the capital programme of £3.590m. To support the total 
proposed capital spend a drawdown on reserves of £0.238m is required. 
 

Page 117



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
 

22. The following table sets out the key budget movements from 2021/22 to 2022/23 and 
paragraphs 24 to 36 provides a breakdown of all the HRA income; 
 

 
 

23. The budget is based on estimates and there are a number of risks and assumptions 
which could affect the budget, these are set out in Annexe G2. 

 
Housing Rents 

24. It is recommended that there is a 4.9% increase in current rents.  The average rent in 
2021/22 was budgeted as £102.73 and the actual average rent as at September 2021 
was £102.59. In 2022/23 the average rent will increase to £106.91. 
 

25. The rent increases will generate an additional rental income of £678,000. 
 
Garage rents 

26. The Council manages a total of 450 garages, of these 305 are rented by private 
residents.  It is recommended to increase the garage rents by RPI of 4.9% (as at 
September 2021).  The current weekly rent is £10.99 and this will increase to £11.53 
(excluding VAT) per week for 2022/23. 
 

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23

Original Restated Original Increase / 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Dwelling Rents (14,875) (14,875) (15,553) (678)

Rents and Charges (other) (1,295) (1,295) (1,278) 17

Service Income (16,170) (16,170) (16,832) (661)

Housing Finance & Business Management 80 80 78 (2)

Housing Maintenance and Repairs Service 3,659 3,659 4,070 412

Housing Management and Homlessness 1,082 1,082 977 (105)

Service Expenditure 4,821 4,821 5,126 305

Recharge from General Fund 1,553 1,553 1,747 194

Depreciation and Impairment 4,281 4,281 3,957 (325)

Interest/Costs re HRA Loan 2,601 2,601 2,570 (31)

Other (net) 88 88 80 (8)

Non-Service Expenditure 8,524 8,524 8,354 (170)

Total Expenditure 13,344 13,344 13,480 135

Operating Surplus (2,826) (2,826) (3,352) (526)

MRP -  HRA Loan 2,000 2,000 0 (2,000)

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA 650 3,235 3,590 355

Transfer to/from (-) Reserves 176 (2,409) (238) 2,171

HRA (Surplus) / Deficit 0 0 0 0

Budget Movements £'000 £'000

2021/22 Net Operating Surplus (2,826)

Dwelling Rents Inflationary Increase (678)

Rents and Charges 17

Housing Repairs and Maintenance 373

General Needs and Sheltered Housing Services (104)

Depreciation Charge (325)

Loan Interest (31)

General Fund/Corporate Core Recharge 194

Other immaterial variances 28

(526)

2022/23 Net Operating Surplus (3,352)

Page 118



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
 

Housing Related Support (HRS) charges and Intensive Housing Management (IHM) 
charges  

 
25. In 2017 the Council reviewed all support and housing management charges in 

preparation for further cuts to HRS funding made by Essex County Council (ECC).  
 

26. The review resulted in the introduction of an IHM charge to recover a proportion of the 
reduction in funding from ECC.  The IHM charge is covered by Housing Benefit and 
its introduction therefore lessoned the impact of the cuts to HRS for those tenants on 
benefits who previously had not contributed to support costs.   
 

27. All HRS funding from ECC ceased from April 2017 and the cost of support and IHM is 
now recovered in full from all sheltered tenants. The rationale that ECC made for 
these cuts is that people who require this type of support can claim appropriate 
benefits to pay for it themselves. 
 

28. It is recommended to continue to calculate the charges for the council’s sheltered 
housing scheme management service, made up from IHM and HRS in line with actual 
costs. The charges to be set at: 

  

Intensive Housing Management (IHM) £16.86 per week 

Housing Related Support (HRS) £  6.26 per week 

Total Charge £23.12 per week 

 
Lifeline Service 

29. The Lifeline Service will no longer be delivered by the Council from the 1 April 2022 
and this service will be delivered by NHS Provide. As the service does not transfer 
until the new financial year the Council is required to set the Lifeline charges for 
2022/23.  

30. It is recommended charges for the Council’s Lifeline service are raised by RPI of 
4.9%.  The current weekly charge is £4.50, and this will increase to £4.72 (excluding 
VAT) per week for 2022/23. There is an additional cost of £1 for extra sensors. 

Heating, service and sewerage charges 
 

31. The Council manages leasehold and freehold properties where service and sewerage 
charges are payable, and these will continue to be calculated and charged in line with 
actual costs.   
 

32. General needs and sheltered housing service and sewerage charges are calculated 
on the same basis as Leasehold/freehold properties. 
 

33. Heating charges will be calculated and charged in line with actual costs. 
 
Garden Welfare 

 
34.  The Council provides a gardening scheme for tenants who are unable to maintain 

their gardens because they have a physical or mental health disability or a long term 
illness.  
 

35. For some tenants this may be a one-off clearance that then enables them to keep 
their garden tidy in the future, whilst others may need regular maintenance visits as 
well. Recommended fees for this service are set out below: 

 

Page 119



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

Garden Services Cost (exc. VAT) 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

One-off clearance 
 

£45.00 £50.00 

One-off clearance (Substantial clearance 
where the majority of the garden is  
 higher than 1 metre, this  
 includes bramble, grass and weeds) 
 

£75.00 £80.00 

Grass cutting:    
Throughout the growing season and includes 
up to two hedge cuts a year 
This charge will not be covered by housing 
benefit and is payable throughout the year 
 

£3.50 per week £3.75 per week 

 
Reserves 
 

36. The reserves position for 2022/23 is shown in the table below and this is based on the 
estimated position at the end of quarter 2 of 2021/22. 
 

 
 
  

Reserve 

Actual 

Balance

Transfer 

from HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 

Estimated 

Balance 

Transfer 

from HRA 

Transfer 

to HRA 
Balance 

£'000 1st April 

2021

31st 

March 

2022

31st 

March 

2023

RINGFENCED RESERVES

Working Balance 471 43 514 32 546

TOTAL RINGFENCED RESERVES 471 43 0 514 32 0 546

USABLE RESERVES

Revenue Reserves 180 0 180 180

Revenue Projects 60 0 60 60

240 0 0 240 0 0 240

Capital Reserves

Capital Projects 910 216 (249) 877 (270) 607

Potential Projects Reserve 110 110 110

HRA Slippage Reserve 2,650 370 (2,585) 435 (435) 0

3,670 586 (2,834) 1,422 0 (705) 717

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 3,910 586 (2,834) 1,662 0 (705) 957

TOTAL RESERVES 4,381 629 (2,834) 2,176 32 (705) 1,503

OTHER RESERVES

Capital Receipt Reserve 2,186 1,600 (1,674) 2,112 1,600 (1,227) 2,485

Major Repairs Reserve 215 4,281 (3,929) 567 3,957 (3,545) 979

TOTAL OTHER 2,401 5,881 (5,603) 2,679 5,557 (4,772) 3,464

2021/22 Q2 Forecast 2022/23

Page 120



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 
5 Year Budget forecast 
 

37. The 5 year financial forecast for the HRA revenue and reserves position are detailed 
in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, Appendix C, and the capital programme and 
associated financing are detailed in the Capital Programme, Appendix F. 
 

Impact 
 

38.  
 

Communication/Consultation Tenants Forum and Housing Board reviewed 
the rent, heating, service and sewerage 
charges 

Corporate Management Team have reviewed 
the report 

Community Safety None 

Equalities None 

Health and Safety None 

Human Rights/Legal Implications None 

Sustainability Affordable rent levels and appropriate housing 
supply are an important factor in the 
sustainability of local communities and in 
particular rural communities 

None Ward-specific impacts None 

Workforce/Workplace None 

 
Risk Analysis 
 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

Property lettings suspended 
again due to the pandemic 
 

2 – Further 
lockdowns may 
require more 
stringent 
measures 

3 Increase in 
numbers of 
people in 
housing need 

loss of rental 
income  

 

Source temporary 
accommodation in 
hotels until property 
lettings resume 

Changes in legislation may 
alter the assumptions 
contained in the proposed 
2022/23 Budget and HRA 
Business Plan 

2 - we are 
currently 
unaware of any 
changes 

2 – reduced 
income and or 
increased costs 

Prudent budget 
mgt. and 
assumptions built 
into the budget, 
supported by 
minimum 
operational balance 
and earmarked 
reserves to provide 
a short term 
contingency 

 

Page 121



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

Rent arrears increase 
 

2 – Long term 
effects of the 
pandemic 

2 – increased 
arrears and 
resources 
needed to 
support tenants 
to manage their 
payments 

Housing officers 
and Benefit Welfare 
Officer provide 
Tenant support for 
those in financial 
difficulty. 

Failure to deliver major 
housing and development 
projects 
 

2 – the Council 
has an ambitious 
development 
programme 

3 – schemes do 
not progress  

Robust project 
planning and 
resources aligned to 
deliver projects.  

Increase in interest rates 2 – not 
anticipated that 
rates will 
significantly 
increase in the 
next year 

3 – increase in 
loan repayment 

Prudent budget 
management. 
Monitor the situation 
with our Financial 
Consultants, 
Arlingclose and 
consider fixed rate 
alternatives 

RTB replacements – The 
HRA will not be able to build 
up enough receipts to fully 
finance 40% of the 
scheduled developments at 
the time of construction 

 

2 HRA unable to 
sustain additional 
borrowing 

 

2 RTB receipts 
will have to be 
paid back 

 

Continuous review 
of the Business 
Plan and borrowing 
options  

Lobby Government 
to change rules on 
using RTB receipts 

 

Page 122



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

 
           Annexe G1 

Housing Revenue Account – 2022/23 Budget 
 

 
 

£'000 2021/22 

Original 

Budget

2021/22 

Current 

Budget

2022/23 

Original 

Budget

Increase / 

(Decrease)

Housing Revenue Income

Dwelling Rents (14,875) (14,875) (15,553) (678)

Garage Rents (233) (233) (225) 8

Other Rents etc (1) (1) (1) 0

Charges for Services & Facilities (1,061) (1,061) (986) 74

Contributions towards Expenditure 0 0 (66) (66)

TOTAL INCOME (16,170) (16,170) (16,832) (661)

Housing Finance & Business Management

Rents, Rates & Other Property Charges 80 80 78 (2)

80 80 78 (2)

Housing Maintenance & Repairs Service

Common Service Flats 224 224 256 32

Estate Maintenance 2 2 2 (1)

Housing Sewerage 13 13 16 3

Newport Depot 0 0 5 5

Property Services 49 49 49 0

Housing Repairs (Norse Services) 3,370 3,370 3,743 373

3,659 3,659 4,070 412

Housing Management & Homelessness

Housing Services 536 536 516 (20)

Sheltered Housing Services 546 546 461 (84)

1,082 1,082 977 (105)

Total Service Expenditure 4,821 4,821 5,126 305

Other Costs

Bad Debt Provision 100 100 100 0

Depreciation - Dwellings (to MRR) 4,230 4,230 3,935 (296)

Depreciation - Non- Dwellings (to MRR) 51 51 22 (29)

Interest/Costs re HRA Loan 2,601 2,601 2,570 (31)

Investment Income (2) (2) (10) (8)

Pension Costs - Added Years 0 0 0 0

Pension Deficit - Triennual payment 0 0 0 0

Recharge from General Fund 1,167 1,167 1,387 220

HRA Share of Corporate Core 386 386 360 (25)

Right to Buy Admin Allowance (10) (10) (10) 0

Total Non-Service Expenditure 8,524 8,524 8,354 (170)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 13,344 13,344 13,480 135

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (2,826) (2,826) (3,352) (526)

MRP - Repayment of HRA Loan 2,000 2,000 0 (2,000)

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA

Capital Schemes Funded from Revenue 650 3,235 3,590 2,940

650 3,235 3,590 2,940

Transfers to/(from) Reserves

Capital Projects 216 216 (270) (486)

Change Management Reserve 0 0 0 0

Potential Developments 0 0 0 0

HRA Slippage Reserve 0 (2,585) 0 0

HRA Slippage Reserve 0 0 0 0

Sheltered Housing Reserve 0 0 0 0

Transformation Reserve 0 0 0 0

Working Balance (40) (40) 32 72

Movement in Reserves 176 (2,409) (238) (414)

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0 0 0 0

Page 123



Housing Revenue Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

            Annexe G2 
 
Risks and Assumptions 
 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

HRA Voids Budget is produced based on current year voids. Any changes 

will effect the rent income levels
L L L

HRA Right To Buy Schemes Lack of suitable schemes to satisfy the RTB 1-4-1 replacement 

requirement would result in the council having to repay capital 

receipts to the Government with interest. The receipts have 

been utilised to fund HRA loan repayments so additional 

borrowing may be required to repay government (mechanism 

for repayment of RTB receipts is currently under government 

consultation)

M H

HRA Rent Reduction The government have agreed that rents can be increase by CPI 

plus 1% from 2019/20. However if this decision is reversed it 

would effect the level of rental income in future years
L H

HRA Incremental Weather Incremental winter weather could effect the level of repairs to 

the housing stock
M M

HRA Delays to Development Schemes (Covid-19 or 

lack of materials)

Delays to the Schemes will effect the RTB 1-4-1 replacement 

requirement
M H

Page 124



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

            Appendix H 

General Fund and Council Tax – 2022/23 

 
Summary 

 
1. This report sets out detailed revenue estimates for the General Fund and the Council Tax 

requirement for 2022/23. This budget must be considered alongside the report made by the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151 Officer) under Section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, included as an item earlier in the agenda. The budget is consistent with 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) also presented earlier on the agenda. 

 
2. The budget is based on the provisional Financial Settlement announced in the 2021 Spending 

Review and direction from the Cabinet on their priorities and Council Tax increase. 
 
3. The proposed budget shows a Council Tax Requirement of £6,403,772 which balances to the 

level of Council Tax yield, assuming an increase of £5 in Council Tax for a Band D equivalent 
property. 

 
4. The estimates in this report are based on the recommended Capital Programme, Treasury 

Management Strategy, Commercial Strategy and Housing Revenue Account budget for 
2022/23 considered earlier in this agenda. 

 
Council Tax – 2022/23 
 
5. By law the budget (Council Tax Requirement) must balance to the expected Council Tax income 

receivable.  
 

6. The Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151 Officer), under delegated authority, has 
approved the gross Council Tax base of 40,477.10 to be used for setting the 2022/23 draft 
Council Tax, an increase of 0.86% on the 2021/22 figure of 40,121.39.  

 
7. The taxbase for the purposes of budget setting is calculated by deducting the Local Council Tax 

Support Discounts from the gross Council Tax base. The estimate of these discounts in Band 
D equivalent terms is 2,041.40 and this produces a taxbase for budget setting purposes of 
38,435.70. 

 
8. The 2021/22 UDC Band D equivalent Council Tax was £161.61. In accordance with the 

Cabinet’s guidance, an increase of £5 has been assumed for the purpose of preparing this 
report; this gives a Band D equivalent figure for 2022/23 of £166.61. Multiplied by the taxbase, 
this produces a Council Tax yield of £6,403,772. 

 
9. The Council is therefore required to balance its net budget to a Council Tax Requirement of 

£6,403,772; the increase in tax base and Band D equivalent for 2022/23 compared to 2021/22 
is illustrated in the table below. 

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 % Change

Taxbase (gross) 40,121.39 40,477.10 0.89%

LCTS Discounts (2,013.08) (2,041.40) 1.41%

Taxbase (net) 38,108.31 38,435.70 0.86%

Band D £161.61 £166.61 3.09%

Council Tax Yield £6,158,684 £6,403,772 3.95%

Page 125



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

  
10. The Council Tax Yield is higher for 2022/23 than the equivalent sum for 2021/22, an analysis of 

the income for the increase in taxbase and Band D equivalent is set out below: 
 

 
 
11. The £6,403,772 figure represents estimated Council Tax income, but for budget purposes it is 

treated as a UDC levy on the Collection Fund and is therefore a reliable figure. Inevitably the 
actual amount of Council Tax income collected will differ from the assumed amount due to in 
year changes in Local Council Tax Support, reliefs, empty properties and level of collection. 
This will give rise to either a surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund which will be taken into 
account as part of next year’s budget setting. 

 
12. Assuming an increase of £5 in Council Tax, the amount of Uttlesford Council Tax, by each 

Council Tax band, is shown below.  
 

 
 

Budget Consultation 2022/23 
 
13. A Budget consultation was undertaken between 30 September and 17 October 2021. The 

Council sought the views of residents, partners and those who work within the district as it 
began the process of setting the budget for the 2022-23 financial year. A total of 167 responses 
were received. 
 

14. The consultation concentrated on asking for residents’ views on the priorities for council 
spending and for the future resourcing of specific service areas. An open text box was provided 
for respondents to express their views if they felt a different priority should be set by the Council. 
Feedback was also sought from residents regarding whether the Council Tax precept for 
Uttlesford District Council represented ‘Value for money’. 

 
15. A summary of the responses is set out below and the full report can be found at Annexe H6 and 

a copy of the questionnaire with full data response to each question is attached as Annexe H7. 
 

i. Does the council offer value for money – 66% of respondents either ‘strongly agreed’ or 
‘tended to agree’ 

Council Tax increases 

2021/22 Council Tax Requirement £6,158,684

Additional income arising from Taxbase increases £54,547

Additional income arising from UDC £5 increase £190,541

2022/23 Council Tax Requirement £6,403,772

Band

Proportion 

of Band D

2021/22 UDC 

Council Tax

2022/23 UDC 

Council Tax

Increase 

£5

£ £ £/year

A 6/9ths 107.74 111.07 3.33

B 7/9ths 125.70 129.59 3.89

C 8/9ths 143.65 148.10 4.44

D 9/9ths 161.61 166.61 5.00

E 11/9ths 197.52 203.63 6.11

F 13/9ths 233.44 240.66 7.22

G 15/9ths 269.35 277.68 8.33

H 18/9ths 323.22 333.22 10.00

Page 126



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

ii. Are the Corporate Plan priorities the right ones – this ranged between 84% and 96% across 
the four priorities who agreed these were the right ones 

iii. Importance of Statutory Services – Waste and Recycling scored highest, with developing 
cleaner neighbourhoods second and the Local Plan and Planning third. Taxi, Liquor, and 
gambling licencing showed as the least important 

iv. Importance of Discretionary Services – Maintaining amenity areas scored highest, with 
Communicating with the Public second and Community Safety third. The least important 
was Ward Member Grants 

 
General Fund Budget 
 
16. A summary of the 2022/23 General Fund budget is shown in the table below. A more detailed 

summary is set out in Annexe H1, and each portfolio budget is set out in Annexe H2. 

 

 
 
17. After taking account of all the budget requirements and the Council Tax requirement there is a 

deficit of £214,162. To ensure that the Council meets its legal requirement to set a balanced 
budget it is proposed the deficit of £214,162 is met from the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Reserve. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23

£'000

Original 

Budget

Current 

Budget

Original 

Budget

Increase / 

(Decrease)

Direct Service Budgets

Net Service Expenditure 15,736 15,736 17,341 1,606

Corporate Items

Capital Financing and MRP 3,626 4,922 5,131 210

Recharge to HRA (1,552) (1,552) (1,747) (195)

Investment Income (6,928) (6,928) (11,774) (4,846)

Borrowing Cost 1,814 1,814 2,835 1,020

Other Corporate Items 422 422 425 3

Net Expenditure (2,618) (1,322) (5,130) (3,808)

Funding

New Homes Bonus Grant (2,823) (2,823) (1,343) 1,480

Business Rates Retention 2,721 2,721 (4,368) (7,089)

Rural Services Grant (293) (293) (293) (1)

Covid 19 Support Funding (890) (890) (1,552) (662)

Council Tax - Collection Fund 55 55 6 (49)

(1,230) (1,230) (7,550) (6,320)

Net Operating Expenditure 11,888 13,184 4,662 (8,522)

Net transfers to/(from) other earmarked reserves (5,729) (7,025) 1,742 8,767

Council Tax Requirement 6,159 6,159 6,404 245

Council Tax (precept levied on Collection Fund) (6,159) (6,159) (6,404) (245)

(Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 0 0

Page 127



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

18. The following table is a reconciliation of the movement from the 2021/22 budget to the 2022/23 
budget. 
 

 
 

19. A full analysis of all budget changes, efficiencies, growth and adjustments are detailed in Annex 
H3 and the definition of these changes are explained below: 
 

I. The budget movements to restated base are items of expenditure which were approved 
in previous years for a fixed term only and have been removed from the budget 

II. Inescapable growth relates to inflationary and incremental increases for salaries and 
other service expenditure inflation 

III. Growth is direct service investment 

IV. Efficiencies have been achieved by the natural evolution of services and the way we 
deliver those services; no efficiency targets have been included in the 2022/23 budget 
 

20. The Government wrote to the Council on the 7 February 2022 advising that they are exercising 
powers under the Town and Country Planning Act [1990 – Section 62A] to ‘designate’ the 
Council in regard to the consideration of major planning applications. The consequence of 
designation is that applications for major development can be made directly to the Planning 
Inspectorate, although applicants will have the option of continuing to apply to the Council in the 
usual way. The financial impact of this is estimated at £560,000, 50% of the normal annual 
planning income. Full details can be found in The Medium Term Financial Strategy (Appendix 
C). 
 

21. As part of the Designation Notice the Council must provide an improvement plan, which the 
Council already has from the 2021 review undertaken by EELGA. However, the lost income 
formed a key element in funding the changes that need to be made and Officers have 
commenced discussions with DLUHC around financial support whilst the Designation Notice is 
in place. In addition to the request to DLUHC the Council will put in place enhanced budgetary 
controls, such as vacancy management, to minimise the final level of Reserve drawdown that is 
required.  

 

£'000 £'000

Council Tax Requirement - 2021/22 6,159

Direct Service Budget Changes

Budget movements to restated base 20/21 (855)

Inescapable growth 1,925

Service growth 517

Efficiency savings (361)

Changes to Income 69

Other adjustments 310

1,606

Corporate Items

Capital financing costs decrease 197

Investment Asset net income (4,846)

Recharges to the HRA (195)

Net treasury costs/(income) 1,036

(3,808)

Funding Items

Change in New Homes Bonus 1,480

Net impact of Collection Fund (7,138)

Covid impact funding (662)

Other net adjustments (1)

Net change in draw on reserves 8,767

2,448

Total net changes to base budget 246

Council Tax Requirement - 2022/23 6,404

Page 128



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

22. As there has been no other councils subject to a Designation Notice since 2014, there is very 
little information on which to base the estimated income loss. It should be noted therefore that 
this figure is subject to change giving a variance either higher or lower than the estimated 
£560,000. A separate paragraph will be provided in each quarterly budget monitoring report 
setting out the position at that point in time and the estimated annual loss. 

 
23. Although not normally reported separately, there has been throughout 2021/22 considerable 

interest in the Uttlesford funding for the Local Highways Panel. For 2022/23 the sum allocated 
for this purpose is £200,000. 

 
24. £250,000 has been allocated to the Corporate Management budget. This will fund the 

compensation payments being made for the relocation of the Environmental Services Teams to 
Little Canfield for the next three years in accordance with Council policy. In addition, the Council 
last carried out a full review on its pay structure over 20 years ago. Since then, ad hoc pieces of 
work have been done, including an update to the current salary grades in 2017, but the option of 
a more fundamental review needs to be explored. 

 
25. The key service variances over £50,000 are detailed in the following table 

 
 
Note 1 – Planning Income 
Development Control income reduction of £560,000 is the estimated impact of the Planning Designation 
Notice as detailed in paragraph 20. 

Note 2 – Local Plan 
The local plan has a total allocated budget of £6.83m, this is for financial years 2020/21 – 2024/25. A five 
year budget plan is in place and the local plan is on target to complete within the allocated resources. 
The overspend in the current year is offset against prior year underspends (held in reserves) and spend 
profiling is updated annually. The total budget allocation is inclusive of the funds held in the Sustainable 
New Communities Reserve.  
 
  

Development Control (note 1) 176 New Staffing Structure  £152k of spend is funded from Member priority funding allocated to the planning review

120 Planning Appeals  Additional specialist Consultancy and legal fees

55 PPA net  Income reduction of £75k offset by reduced cost of £20k for consultants 

560 Estimated income reduction due to the current planning designation

(95) Additional income due to S106 fees and efficiencies in fee processing

20 Place Services SLA  To support the service on Heritage propories

23 Advertising  Additional notices of planning applications

Planning Policy (see note 2) 172 Consultancy  

75 Legal Fees  

Corporate Management (300) Member Priorities  Fund released as no new priorities identified

Offices (see note 3) 56 Little Canfield Site Manager

223 New premises rates  

248 Site Security  

(352) Little Canfield Commercial Income  

Lifeline (see note 4) 160 Income loss due to service being delivered by alternative provider

Information Technology 125 Software increases and Security  Costs to cover additional software to ensure security of systems

Car Park 115 Increased cost of payment processes for ticket machines

Waste Management 173 Agency Staff  Increased cost of HGV agency drivers and to cover absences

93 Trade Waste  Loss of income due to company closing down

(143) Green Waste  Green waste additional subscriptions

Economic Development (106) Net saving of previous strategy funds now replaced with the Economic recovery plan

Council Tax Discounts (72) Essex sharing agreement  reduction in the council tax share back from precpetors

Revenues 68 Temporary Staff  Additional temp staff to support the delivery of grants and taxbase

Grants (65) Grant allocations  One off grant allocations in 2021/22

Other 277 Net minor variances  

Total Net Direct Service Variances 1,606

Service £'000 Description of variance

Page 129



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Note 3 – Little Canfield Business Park  
The additional office costs include both the Little Canfield site and the new office building in Stansted. 
The total additional cost of Little Canfield is £507,250, this needs to be offset against the expected 
commercial income and gives a net cost of the site of £155,250.  
 
Note 4 – Lifeline 
The reduction of income for the Lifeline service, is offset against a charge from the Housing Revenue 
Account. The General Fund collected the income for this service from private residents subscribing to the 
service, but the associated costs are incurred by the Housing Revenue Account. The income is then 
recharged back to the Housing Revenue Account as part of the overall net Housing Revenue Recharge, 
which is shown in the General Fund Summary table under ‘Corporate Costs’ at the beginning of this 
paper. This recharge now excludes the cost of this service, and this is reflected in the higher net income 
received by the General Fund of £195,000. 

 
26. A subjective analysis of net service expenditure is detailed below. 

 

 

 Employee cost increases relates to inflation and incremental increases 

 Premises is due to the new Council sites (Little Canfield Business Park and Walpole 
Meadows, Stansted) as detailed in paragraph 23 note 3. 

 Transfer payments is the Housing Benefit expenditure, this is offset by the subsidy income 
shown under Specific Government Grants 

 Fees and charges reduction is due to the impact of the Planning Designation as detailed in 
paragraph 20 and 23 note 1. 

 
Corporate Costs 
 
27. The Corporate Costs includes the additional revenue charge for Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP), this is a charge to minimise the risk exposure of the Council against the debt, mainly 
incurred through the acquisition of the commercial portfolio, and supports the reduction in our 
capital financing requirement. 
 

28. To reduce the impact of the charge, all capital expenditure (excluding investment assets) is 
financed in the year the cost is incurred. This is discussed in more detail in the MTFS (Appendix 
C) presented earlier in the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 

£'000

Original 

Budget

Current 

Budget

Original 

Budget

Increase / 

(Decrease)

Employees 13,900 13,900 14,464 564

Premises 672 672 1,227 555

Transport 600 600 572 (28)

Supplies & Services 9,219 9,219 9,267 47

Third Party Payments 341 341 343 2

Transfer Payments 12,120 12,120 11,608 (512)

Expenditure 36,853 36,853 37,481 628

External Funding (1,556) (1,556) (1,738) (181)

Fees & Charges (6,066) (6,066) (5,747) 320

Specific Government Grants (12,849) (12,849) (12,295) 553

Other Income (646) (646) (359) 286

Income (21,117) (21,117) (20,140) 978

Net portfolio expenditure 15,736 15,736 17,341 1,606

Page 130



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Funding 
 
29. The Government announced a further one year settlement for 2022/23, which means that both 

the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Reforms are again postponed. This does mean that 
the New Homes Bonus is extended for a further year, a one year only amount with no future legacy 
payments. 
 

30. The additional year of the New Homes Bonus means that the Council received a one year grant 
payment of £517,000 plus the final year legacy payment of the ‘original’ scheme, giving a total 
award of £1,342,925. 
 

31. The Government pledged that no Local Authority would be worse off in this year’s settlement and 
provided all Lower Tier Authorities with a grant to bring them up to the same level of funding as 
2021/22; this grant assumes that councils will increase Council Tax by the maximum amount, 
which is the proposal contained within this report. 

 
32. As part of the one year settlement the Government continued the Lower Tier Services Grant 

payments and a total grant of £1,551,587 was received. 
 
Risks and Assumptions 
 
33. The key areas of risk both adverse and favourable are detailed in the Section 25 report - 

Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves - presented earlier in the agenda 
(Appendix A). A full analysis of all operational service risks and assumptions has been included 
in Annexe H4. 

 
Local Government Finance Settlement 
 
34. The Government announced the provisional settlement on 16 December 2021 for 2022/23 and 

the final settlement is expected to be announced in February 2022. It is unlikely there will be 
any changes to the settlement figures, but if there is these will be discussed with Members and 
all reports and financial tables will be updated to reflect this. 
 

35. There is continued uncertainty about the level of funding in future years and this was discussed 
in more detail in the MTFS, earlier in the agenda.  

 
General Fund Reserves 
 
36. The report made by the Director of Finance and Corporate Services (s151 Officer) under Section 

25 of the Local Government Act 2003, received as Appendix A earlier in tonight’s agenda, 
recommended that the Working Balance is maintained at £1.597m for 2022/23 and has been 
included in the Budget. 

37. The reserves estimated balance at the end of the 2021/22 financial year is £19.089m, the 
proposed net transfer of reserves for 2022/23 is £1.742m giving a balance at 31 March 2023 of 
£20.831m as set out below, this includes the 2022/23 deficit drawdown from the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy reserve of £0.214m. 

 

Page 131



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

 
  
38. The individual net use of reserves has been set out in more detail in the following table and this 

includes the 2022/23 surplus. 

 

 
 
Fees and Charges review 
 
39. Officers have reviewed fees & charges in line with the Council’s Pricing and Concessions policy 

and Cabinet decisions where relevant.  A schedule of proposed charges is included at Annex 
H6. 
 

£000 Balance at 

1 April 2021

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Estimated at 

31 March 2022

Transfer from 

General Fund

Transfer To 

General Fund

Reserve 

Transfers

Estimated at 

31 March 2023

Ringfenced Reserves

Business Rates 7,634 1,844 (4,837) 4,641 771 5,412

Capital Slippage 1,483 204 (723) 964 964

Licensing 35 13 48 (5) 43

Leisure/Private Finance Initiative 307 307 307

Working Balance 1,438 (53) 1,385 212 1,597

Total Ringfenced Reserves 10,897 2,061 (5,614) 7,344 984 (5) 0 8,323

Core Reserves 

Commercial Assets 1,060 1,060 2,200 740 4,000

Medium Term Financial Strategy 4,421 1,667 (776) 5,312 25 (387) (740) 4,210

Strategic Initiatives 1,863 (200) 1,663 1,663

7,344 1,667 (976) 8,035 2,225 (387) 0 9,873

Member Priorities

Economic Development 463 1,000 (340) 1,123 (330) 793

Planning 891 2 (100) 793 (15) 0 778

Sustainable Communities 1,781 (913) 868 (720) 149

Major Sports Facilities 150 150 (150) 150 150 (150) 150

Climate change 380 300 (340) 340 320 (330) 330

3,665 1,452 (1,843) 3,274 470 (1,545) 0 2,199

Grants

Homelessness 404 (93) 311 311

Health & Wellbeing 131 (7) 124 124

535 0 (100) 435 0 0 0 435

Total Usable Reserves 11,544 3,119 (2,919) 11,744 2,695 (1,932) 0 12,507

Total Reserves 22,441 13,480 (19,984) 19,089 3,679 (1,937) 0 20,831

2021/22 Q2 position 2022/23

Reserve Movements - 2022/23  Additions / (Drawdowns) 

£'000

Opening Balance 19,089

Ringfenced Reserves

Net of business rates balances and S31 grants to support reliefs fo businesses 771

Working Balance (statutory contigency balance) 212

Allocation of ringfenced PFI leisure funds

Core Reserves

Commercial Assets - to support loss of income and future refurbishments for relet 2,200

Local Highways panel and new burdens funding allocations to service delivery (169)

2022/23 Deficit (214)

Member Priority

Year 2 of allocated funds to support economic recovery (330)

Local Plan and Neighbourhood plans (735)

Elections - four year cycle of allocations 25

Other net minor movements (18)

Net of movements 1,742

Closing Balance 20,831

Page 132



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

40. Where charges are statutory and outside the jurisdiction of the Council these have not been 
included but are available to view on the Council website. 
 

41. It is requested that the Director of Finance and Corporate Services (S151 Officer) is given 
delegated authority to set and/or amend the fees and charges for the following area; 

 Trade Waste - where services are operating in competition with other commercial 
providers, the service manager in consultation with the Director, needs to have the ability 
to negotiate as required where it is in the Council’s best interests to do so. 

 
Impact 
 

Communication/Consultation Members, CMT and Budget Managers 

Community Safety No specific implications 

Equalities No specific implications 

Finance Detailed in the report 

Health and Safety No specific implications 

Human Rights No specific implications 

Legal implications The recommendations fulfil the legal 
requirement to set a balanced budget. 

Sustainability No specific implications 

Ward-specific impacts No specific implications 

Workforce/Workplace No specific implications 

 
Risk Analysis 
 
42. The formal risk analysis of the budget is set out in the report earlier on today’s agenda, Section 

25 Report “Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves” (Appendix A). 

 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating 
actions 

Actual events may differ 
from the assumptions and 
estimates used to produce 
the draft budget, which will 
lead to variances from the 
budget.  

3 (some risk that 
variances will 
occur requiring 
action to be 
taken) 

2 (potential impact 
which could 
adversely affect the 
Council’s financial 
position if not 
managed)  

Budget 
monitoring and 
corrective action 
taken as 
necessary. 

 

List of Annexes 

 Annexe H1 – General Fund Budget Summary 

 Annexe H2 – Portfolio Budgets 

 Annexe H3 – Schedule of Budget Adjustments 

 Annexe H4 – Risks and Assumptions 

 Annexe H5 – Fees and Charges 

 Annexe H6 – Budget Consultation Report 

 Annexe H7 – Budget Consultation absolute data 

  

Page 133



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

           Annexe H1 

General Fund Budget – 2022/23 

When presenting in whole thousands only it is possible that rounding means that the increase/decrease figure 
may differ by £1,000 when comparing 2021/22 current budget to 2022/23 original budget. This is not an error 
but a presentational challenge only, this applies to the tables in Annexe H1 and H2. 

 

£'000 2021/22 

Original 

Budget

2021/22 

Current 

Budget

2022/23 

Original 

Budget

Increase / 

(Decrease)

Portfolio Budgets

Communities & Partnerships 1,097 1,097 1,066 (31)

Housing & Economic Development 2,677 2,677 2,699 22

Environmental Services 4,265 4,265 5,812 1,547

Finance & Administration 7,697 7,697 7,765 68

Subtotal - Portfolio Budgets 15,736 15,736 17,341 1,606

Corporate Items

Capital Financing Costs 3,626 4,922 1,771 (3,151)

IFRS 16 charge 0 0 80 80

Investment Asset - MRP 0 0 3,281 3,281

Investment Asset income (6,928) (6,928) (11,774) (4,846)

Treasury Investment Income (23) (23) (7) 16

Borrowing costs 1,814 1,814 2,835 1,020

PFI interest cost 360 360 348 (13)

Pension Fund - Added years 85 85 85 0

HRA share of Corporate Core (385) (385) (360) 25

Recharge to HRA (1,167) (1,167) (1,387) (220)

Subtotal - Corporate Items (2,618) (1,322) (5,130) (3,808)

Funding

Council Tax - Collection Fund Balance 55 55 34 (21)

Council Tax - S31 Funding 0 0 (28) (28)

Business Rates - Collection Fund Balance 4,785 4,785 (593) (5,378)

Business Rates - UDC Share (net of tariff) (1,068) (1,068) (1,477) (409)

Business Rates - Levy Payment (safety net reimbursement) 393 393 724 330

Business Rates - Renewable Energy Scheme (107) (107) (140) (33)

Business Rates - Section 31 Funding (1,282) (1,282) (2,881) (1,599)

New Homes Bonus (2,823) (2,823) (1,343) 1,480

Rural Services Delivery Grant (293) (293) (293) (1)

Government Support funding (890) (890) (1,552) (662)

Subtotal - Funding (1,230) (1,230) (7,550) (6,320)

Subtotal - Net Operating Expenditure 11,888 13,184 4,662 (8,522)

Net Transfers to/(from) Reserves

Ringfenced Reserves (6,147) (7,443) 979 8,422

Core Reserves 351 351 1,838 1,486

Member Priority Reserve (35) (35) (1,075) (1,040)

Grants Reserve 102 102 0 (102)

Subtotal - Movement in Earmarked Reserves (5,729) (7,025) 1,742 8,767

Council Tax Requirement 6,159 6,159 6,404 245

Council Tax (Precept levied on Collection Fund) (6,159) (6,159) (6,404) (245)

(Surplus) / Deficit 0 0 0 0

Page 134



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

                  Annexe H2 

Communities and Partnerships 

 

Housing and Economic Development 

 

£000

2021/22

Original Budget

2021/22

Current Budget

2022/23

Original Budget

Budget 

changes

Community Information 51 51 21 (30)

Day Centres 95 95 95 0

Emergency Planning 34 34 34 (0)

Grants & Contributions 568 568 518 (50)

Leisure & Performance 47 47 48 1

Saffron Walden Museum 240 240 238 (2)

New Homes Bonus 78 78 78 0

Private Finance Init 11 11 34 22

Renovation Grants (27) (27) 0 27

Portfolio Total 1,097 1,097 1,066 (31)

£000

2021/22

Original Budget

2021/22

Current Budget

2022/23

Original Budget

Budget 

changes

Community Information 51 51 21 (30)

Day Centres 95 95 95 0

Emergency Planning 34 34 34 (0)

Grants & Contributions 568 568 518 (50)

Leisure & Performance 47 47 48 1

Saffron Walden Museum 240 240 238 (2)

New Homes Bonus 78 78 78 0

Private Finance Init 11 11 34 22

Renovation Grants (27) (27) 0 27

Portfolio Total 1,097 1,097 1,066 (31)

P
age 135



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

 

 

                Annexe H2 continued… 

Finance and Administration 

 

 

      

 

£000

2021/22

Original Budget

2021/22

Current Budget

2022/23

Original Budget

Budget 

changes

Asset management 94 94 95 2

Benefits Admin 353 353 343 (10)

Corporate Management 1,998 1,998 1,724 (274)

Central Services 463 463 432 (31)

Conducting Elections 4 4 0 (4)

Electroral Registration 38 38 35 (3)

Financial Services 1,176 1,176 1,210 33

Housing Benefits 104 104 149 45

Human Resources 374 374 383 9

Internal Audit 159 159 162 3

Information Technology 1,585 1,585 1,710 125

Land Charges (63) (63) (57) 5

Legal Services 374 374 325 (49)

Local Taxation (100) (100) (100) 0

Norse Partnership 384 384 409 25

Non Domestic Rates (146) (146) (146) 0

Offices 211 211 406 195

Revenues Admin 671 671 739 68

Council Tax Discounts 18 18 (54) (72)

Portfolio Total 7,697 7,697 7,765 68

P
age 136



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

 

                Annexe H2 continued… 

 

Environmental Services 
 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

               

£000

2021/22

Original Budget

2021/22

Current Budget

2022/23

Original Budget

Budget 

changes

Animal Warden 6 6 7 0

Grounds Maintenance 364 364 373 10

Car Park (573) (573) (458) 115

Development Control (270) (270) 591 861

Depots 56 56 65 9

Street Cleansing 422 422 425 3

Housing Strategy 60 60 60 (1)

Highways 8 8 7 (1)

Local Amenities (13) (13) (12) 1

Licensing (261) (261) (206) 55

Vehicle Management 491 491 478 (14)

Public Health 718 718 758 40

Planning Management 422 422 467 45

Planning Policy 1,660 1,660 1,931 271

Planning Specialists 210 210 219 9

Waste Management 315 315 428 113

Community Safety 398 398 383 (15)

Street Services 250 250 298 48

Portfolio Total 4,265 4,265 5,812 1,547

P
age 137



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annexe H3  

Budget movements – 2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

CURRENT BUDGET 2021/22 TO RESTATED BASE 2021/22

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Finance & Administration Corporate Transformation costs of UDC moving forwards (250)

Environmental Services Planning Policy End of 2 x ECC posts (146)

Finance & Administration Corporate Highways panel one year funding (100)

Communities & Partnerships Grants Member priorites one-off (65)

Finance & Administration Corporate Member priorities agreed release (60)

Environmental Services Planning Policy End of fixed term urban designer post (56)

Finance & Administration Offices End of fixed term Project Officer for new depot site (53)

Environmental Services Development Control One-off Stansted Appeal support costs (45)

Finance & Administration Revenues Administration End of fixed term new property officer post (31)

Finance & Administration Central support End of fixed term scanning project post (24)

Environmental Services Community Safety PCSO fixed term match funding (20)

Housing & Economic Development Economic Development Business Recovery budget profile agreed in 21/22 budget (10)

Housing & Economic Development Climate Change Climate change budget profile agreed in 21/22 budget (10)

Finance & Administration Legal Approved regrade of post 37

Other immaterial adjustments (22)

(855)

P
age 138



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annexe H3 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                 

INESCAPABLE ADJUSTMENTS > £10K

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Finance & Administration New Council Office sites Additional running costs and IT infrastructure for new depot/office sites including site 

manager

624 On-going

Various Staffing Inflationary and incremental increases in staffing costs 342 On-going

Finance & Administration Corporate Transformation costs of UDC moving forwards 250 5 year fixed term

Environmental Services Waste Management Impact of driver shortage on agency costs 173 One-off

Environmental Services Development Control Increase in applications and costs associated with decisions and inquiries 143 On-going

Environmental Services Car Parks Costs associated with updated car park machines and card payment costs not 

supported by the parking partnership

121 On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management / 

Grounds Maintenance

Increase in gate fees and disposal charges 74 On-going

Various Corporate Assets Utility and rates net increases 40 On-going

Finance & Administration Financial Services Banking contract increase in tariff 30 On-going

Finance & Administration Information Technology Inflationary increases in software 29 On-going

Communities & Partnerships Private Finance Initiative PFI contractual inflationary increases 27 On-going

Environmental Services Development Control ECC consultancy costs for Ecology and Archaeology 20 On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management Casual Green Waste posts continuing and Street Cleansing overtime 18 On-going

Finance & Administration Norse Partnership UNSL Joint venture cost increase for facilities and cleaning 12 On-going

Other immaterial adjustments 23

1,925

P
age 139



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annexe H3 continued… 

 

 

                   

 

 

 

 

 

SERVICE GROWTH > £10k as per approval

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Previously agreed growth for financial year

Finance & Administration Corporate Reinstating Highways Panel funding 100 One-off

Finance & Administration Revenues Administration 2 x additional posts for revenue administration 62 One-off

Environmental Services Waste Management Approved increase in establishment from prior year 40 On-going

Finance & Administration Legal Agency cover for continuation of Governance work 11 One-off

Other immaterial adjustments 6

219

Approved additional growth

Environmental Services Planning Policy 2 x transport and infrastructure planners to support delivery of Local Plan 146 2 Yr fixed term

Finance & Administration Information technology Additional software for preventative work on system vulnerabilities 50 On-going

Finance & Administration Financial Services Contract management costs 49 On-going

Environmental Services Development Control S106 system implementation to create process efficiency 34 One-off

Finance & Administration Revenues Administration 1 year fixed term administrator to improve collection of revenues 20 1 Yr fixed term

298

Growth to be offset against reserves 

Highways panel funding c/fwd amount from 2020/21 (100) One-off

Revenue administration funded from New Burdens Grant (82) One-off

Sustainable new communities reserve draw for planner posts (146) 2 Yr fixed term

(328)

189

P
age 140



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

 

 

                Annexe H3 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

CHANGES IN INCOME > £10k

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Increases

Finance & Administration Offices New rental income for Office units at Canfield Site (352) On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management Predicted increase in fee income from trade and green waste collections (141) On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management Increase in tonnage for recycle, green and kitchen waste credits (106) On-going

Environmental Services Development Control Additional income due to S106 fees and efficiencies in fee processing (95) On-going

Finance & Administration Benefits Administration Additional grant support from Government (40) One-off

Housing & Economic Development Building Surveying Increase in charges (30) On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management / 

Grounds Maintenance

New fee income from joint venture set up (22) On-going

Environmental Services Waste Management Predicted increase in bulky trade refuge (13) On-going

(799)

Decreases

Environmental Services Development Control Estimated income reduction due to the current planning designation 560 Fixed Term

Housing & Economic Development Lifeline Service now provided by health services not Council 170 On-going *

Environmental Services Waste Management Adjusted for permanenet business closures in previous year 93 On-going

Environmental Services Licensing Income decrease reflects the renewal cycle of licenses 55 On-going

Communities & Partnerships Renovation grants Reduction in reclaimed income due to impacts of pandemic on household income 27 On-going

Communities & Partnerships Grants Reflects decrease in car park income and charity share 14 On-going

919

Uncontrollable changes

Finance & Administration Housing Benefits Net change in Housing Benefit/rent rebate estimate claims and subsidy grant 59

Finance & Administration Council Tax Discounts Income is generated from additional taxbase (95)

Other net immaterial adjustments (15)

(50)

69

P
age 141



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H3 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

             

 

 

 

 

SERVICE EFFICIENCIES / SAVINGS > £10k

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Housing & Economic Development Economic Development Released final year ED strategy costs (110) On-going

Finance & Administration Corporate Deletion of Assistant Director post and asociated costs (99) On-going

Finance & Administration Financial Services Long-term borrowing of corporate debt and decreased interest rates (50) On-going

Housing & Economic Development Homelessness Deletion of vacant post (24) On-going

Housing & Economic Development Climate Change Discontinued SLA for energey efficiency support work (24) On-going

Finance & Administration Financial Services Procurement service outsourced (19) On-going

Housing & Economic Development Lifeline Service now provided by health services not Council (10) On-going

Other immaterial adjustments (25)

(361)

Other budget changes > £10k

Portfolio Service Description £'000

Environmental Services Development Control Net income budget removed for PPA income and costs claimed 55

Environmental Services Planning Policy Local Plan costs inlcuded in 5 year plan, but profiled spend moved to 

2022/23

147

Other net immaterial adjustments 8

210

P
age 142



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                  Annexe H4 

Risks and Assumptions – 2021/22 

 

 

 

                

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Asset Management Asset Management Tenant defaults on rent
L L H

Asset Management CIPFA Consultation CIPFA Prudential Code or Government 

commercial changes will enforce a financial Cap 

and some or all commercial assets will have to 

be sold

H L H

Asset Management Asset Management Unable to find tenant for Little Canfield 

commercial space
L L H

Benefits LCTS Admin Grant It is assumed that the LCTS Admin Grant will be 

paid at similar levels to 2021/22.  The notification 

of grant amounts are unlikely to be made 

available until early 2022.  There is therefore a 

risk that the amount budgeted may change.

M L M

Benefits Rent Rebates 

Expenditure

It is assumed that Rent Rebate Expenditure will 

remain stable.  There are no current plans to 

significantly increase the level of HRA stock. 

Natural migration of Universal Credit is 

anticipated to gradually reduce the numbers of 

active working age claims 

M L H

Benefits Rent Allowance 

Expenditure

As above with the exception of HRA stock 

assumption and an additional risk of cost of rents 

significantly increasing in the Uttlesford area.
M L H

Benefits Housing Benefit Income 

subsidy

It is assumed that income subsidy can continue 

to be claimed in line with the levels reflected in 

previous years. There is however a continued 

risk that an increase in new burdens and DWP 

incentives, which could impact on the 

percentage of  subsidy income recieved.

M L H

Benefits DWP Discretionary 

Funding

It is assumed the  governments Discretionary 

Housing Payment Funding will remain relatively 

stable.There is a risk however that the amount of 

grant avaialable will not meet local need.

L L M

P
age 143



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

               Annexe H4 continued… 

 

                

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Car Parks Overheads - bank 

charges

Bank charges have been based on all machines 

being cashless from 1st April 2022 and 56,000 

transactions per month. The use of cashless 

machines trial period has been extended. The 

costs could change depending on the outcome of 

the trial. As the economy is still in a period of 

recovery from the Covid 19 pandemic it is 

difficult to predict the level of transactions, this 

will also affect the level of bank charges 

incurred.

M M M

Car Parks Overheads - Fees                            The SLA agreement with NEPP is due to end 31st 

March 2022. The Management fee could change 

depending on any change to the service 

provided by NEPP. Discussions on the new SLA 

are in progress

L L

Car Parks All charges All income from parking charges has been 

estimated as accurately as possible. However as 

last year's income was so distorted by COVID and 

usage of some car parks has changed, income 

could vary either adversely or favourably. If the  

recovery of the high street does not return as 

predicted and/or any further Covid variants  

generate restrictions or reduce the users 

confidence this will reduce income 

M M M

Car Parks Fairycroft - Charges Fairycroft income from parking charges could in 

particular vary from budget. The budget figure 

has been based on the trend for this year 

(2021/22) and the usage is expected to continue 

to be reduced after COVID due to the change in 

users shopping habits. 

M L L

Customer Service Centre All CSC budget lines With the continuation of some COVID 

restrictions and new ways of working in the 

provision of customer services, it is not yet 

known what format the CSC will operate in and 

from which locations.  There is a risk that there 

could be variances to the budget set as we enter 

the financial year due to a required investment 

in remote technology and support and the 

provision of additional 'self-serve' technology.

H M M

P
age 144



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

               Annexe H4 continued… 

 

                 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Car Parks Overheads - bank 

charges

Bank charges have been based on all machines 

being cashless from 1st April 2022 and 56,000 

transactions per month. The use of cashless 

machines trial period has been extended. The 

costs could change depending on the outcome of 

the trial. As the economy is still in a period of 

recovery from the Covid 19 pandemic it is 

difficult to predict the level of transactions, this 

will also affect the level of bank charges 

incurred.

M M M

Car Parks Overheads - Fees                            The SLA agreement with NEPP is due to end 31st 

March 2021. The Management fee could change 

depending on any change to the service 

provided by NEPP. Discussions on the new SLA 

are in progress

L L

Car Parks All charges All income from parking charges has been 

estimated as accurately as possible. However as 

last year's income was so distorted by COVID and 

usage of some car parks has changed, income 

could vary either adversely or favourably. If the  

recovery of the high street does not return as 

predicted and/or any further Covid variants  

generate restrictions or reduce the users 

confidence this will reduce income 

M M M

Car Parks Fairycroft - Charges Fairycroft income from parking charges could in 

particular vary from budget. The budget figure 

has been based on the trend for this year 

(2021/22) and the usage is expected to continue 

to be reduced after COVID due to the change in 

users shopping habits. 

M L L

Customer Service Centre All CSC budget lines With the continuation of some COVID 

restrictions and new ways of working in the 

provision of customer services, it is not yet 

known what format the CSC will operate in and 

from which locations.  There is a risk that there 

could be variances to the budget set as we enter 

the financial year due to a required investment 

in remote technology and support and the 

provision of additional 'self-serve' technology.

H M M

P
age 145



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Development Control Planning fees ECC SLA Ecology and Archaeology - it is assumed 

that the increase during 2021/22 will mean that 

there is no additional increase for 2022/23. 

However, the increase was required because of 

the caseload and this might continue to rise and 

need to reflect an increase in spend.

L L

Development Control Planning fees It is assumed that the Local Plan process will 

remain on target. Delay in Local Plan - could 

cause more adhoc applications and appeals. 

More appeals may mean an increase in legal and 

consultee costs.

L M/H

Development Control Planning fees - Major 

applications

Due to the planning designation being applied to 

the Council,  major development applications 

can be made directly to the Planning 

Inspectorate, bypassing the Council and this 

could lead to significant losses in income. A 

budget estimate of a 50% loss has been applied 

to the 2022/23 budget, due to lack of information 

on how many will choose to go directly to the 

Planning Inspectorate, there is a risk that this 

estimate is either to low or to high.  

H H H

Development Control Monitoring fees It is assumed that the review of the monitoring 

charges will be successful which will bring 

forward developer contributions and 

methodologies to ensure that the appropriate 

monitoring fees are secured. Monitoring is going 

to be key moving forward

L M

Development Control Planning fees It is assumed that all posts are filled in a timely 

manner. Failing to recruit staff at appropriate 

levels and therefore needing to retain the use of 

agency staff.

M H

Development Control Monitoring fees It is assumed that there is an clear audit of how 

the monitoring monies have been spent, if not 

there is a risk a developer could demand their 

monies be refunded.

L M/H

P
age 146



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Development Control Stansted Costs There is an assumption that the Stansted Inquiry 

and Cost application will be dealt with by the 

end of Q4 2021/22. However, this may not be the 

case and there might be a need for additional 

costs.

L M/H

Economic Development Discretionary Rate Relief This is ED support to encourage businesses to 

move into the district and encourage existing 

ones to remain in the district. We do not know 

what the level of applications will be for this.

L L L

Economic Development Staffing for Delivery Plan The service requires a skilled ED officer on a FTC 

to support the delivery of the Green Economy 

initiatives. Without this the current team are 

unlikely to be able to deliver this and this 

priority is linked to the wider aims of Economic 

Plan and partnership working

M M M

Climate Change Climate Change Reserve There is a risk that projects within the Climate 

Change Action Plan are not progressed and as a 

result expenditure will be lower than 

anticipated.  

M M

External Grants Community Support 

Payments and Health 

and Wellbeing

Due to increasing funding pressure the grants 

may not stay at the same level or may be 

removed by external agencies.

L L L

Grants Grant applications Possibility that budgeted amounts are not 

realised through lack of applications for grants
L M L

Human Resources Training Budget Most of the spending on the training budget is as 

a result of CMT and SMT corporate priorities and 

in the last financial year the budget was 

underspent. There is a risk of both under or 

overspending this budget in 2021/22. There is a 

particular risk this year as the Council will need 

to train staff in the 'new way of working' 

following the Covid-19

M L M

Human Resources Consultants Budget There may be additional costs if external 

consultants are needed to help shape and 

implement the 'new way of working'

M L M

P
age 147



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

ICT Contract costs Including the normal possible fluctuations we 

may experience with license costs there are two 

large software contracts due to expire in the 

22/23 financial year.  Renewal or replacement 

costs will likely increase.

Idox - October 2022

Adept (Telephony) - Dec 2022.  A capital bid has 

gone in for a replacement phone system.

H L H

Insurance services Premiums Given the impact on trade materials the 

insurance premiums may rise again for the 

renewal process in October

M L

Legal Section 106 legal fees It is assumed that instructions on s106 will 

continue to come in at the current rate. If it is 

possible to raise legal fees for the new financial 

year this will lead to an increase in income from 

35K to 42K. The variance is unlikely to arise as it 

is predicted with further staff now in place and 

permanent recruitment progressing that more 

work will be progressed and this will balance out 

any failure to get approval for increase in fees.

L L

Licensing Licensing Possibility that an operator responsible for the 

majority of licensing application income will 

move their applications to another licensing 

authority

M L H

Licensing Licensing Possibility that an operator responsible for the 

majority of licensing application income will 

substantially increase their applications to UDC

M L M

New Homes Bonus Grants May be a possibility that budgeted amounts are 

not realised. 
M M L

P
age 148



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

NORSE NORSE contract costs The budget setting cycle for UNSL runs parallel 

with UDC's budgetary timetable so a variance 

may emerge after UDC's budget has been set

M M M

Offices Office Repairs There is a risk that the budget estimate could be 

under or over due to unpredicted repairs that 

arise during the year. 

M L M

Offices Little Canfield rental 

income

Unable to find tenants for Little Canfield 

commercial space
L L H

Offices Walpole (Stansted) 

rental income

Unable to find tenants for Walpole (Stansted) 

commercial space
L L H

Private Finance Initiative Contract costs If the PFI leisure contract does not provide value 

for money due to ineffective contract 

management then there may be a negative 

impact on the investment made by the council, 

the opposite effect could be achieved if capacity 

allows for full management of the contract

L M H

Procurement LA services If the SLA does not cover areas of procurement 

not originally identified additional staff or costs 

could be involved in covering the work

L L

Public Health ECC Better Care Fund 

allocation for Disabled 

Facilities Grants

There is a risk, although not anticipated that the 

BDF allocation will reduce in 22/23. In addition 

with the withdrawal of Council revenue funding, 

there is a risk of a substantial overspend in 22/23

L L M

Public Health Environmental 

Protection/ Enforcement 

- Works in default

The budget does not have provision for works in 

default to abate nuisance and harm
L L L

P
age 149



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

  

                   

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Public Health Contaminated Land The Council has a statutory duty to identify 

contaminated land. Such matters can be complex 

and involve specialist consultants to test and 

provide advice

L L L

Public Health Planning consultation 

advice

Incorrect advice could prevent the adoption of 

mitigation measures to protect residential 

amenity. There is a risk of potential claims 

against the Council should this occur

L L L

Public Health Border inspection 

Food inspection

Unpredictability of the numbers and types of 

consignments coming into Stansted or control 

any changes to work governed by legislative 

requirements i.e. what needs to be sampled and 

at what % and frequency and the implications 

 and uncertainty of Brexit

M L H

Revenues Court Costs Court costs are hard to estimate due to the 

closure of the courts in 2020/2021
L L L

Revenues Sharing agreement The ECC Sharing agreement, provides share back 

based on tax base increases over the baseline 

yearly increases.  The income projected for the 

coming year is at a reduced level however it is 

likely that there will be a share back once all the 

data is provided in QTR 4 2021/22

M M

Treasury services Fees If borrowing is needed on short term basis 

through Local authorities the broker fees may 

increase as a result of using brokers to arrange 

the deals

L L

Treasury services Consultants If the credit rating administration can not be 

absorbed into the team the work this will have 

to be outsourced resulting in extra costs

L M

P
age 150



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

            

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Waste Services GRY - Waste and 

recycling gate fees

Budget assumes an inflationary increase in 

charges.  However market rates for recyclable 

materials remain fairly volatile. Uncertainty 

around European Markets is mitigated to an 

extent by our contractor spreading risks however 

it could impact on costs / income. 

M M H

Waste Services GRY - Garden waste 

income

Budget assumes sales are higher than previous 

years due to an increased customer base, if 

subscriptons change and do reach or fall below 

predictions this will impact on the income 

received

L L L

Waste Services GRY - Trade waste 

Income

Income from Trade waste customers does not 

continue at predicted levels or are higher than 

anticipated

M M M

Waste Services GRY - Agency Fees Agency budgets have been increased by inflation 

however spend is dependant on sickness levels 

or our ability to appoint to vacancies. Suppliers 

have increased their charges for LGV drivers due 

to the national shortage. Spend is therefore 

difficult to predict with certainty. 

M H H

Waste Services All cost centres - Fuel 

supplies

Based on contractual indexation clauses an 

average increase of 3% has been assumed. 

However this is subject to diesel price volatility 

and the actual costs could go up or down.

M L M

Waste Services GRY - Container supply 

and delivery (new 

developments) 

Estimated units based on anticipated new 

developments - may go up or down M L L

P
age 151



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed that there will be limited 

responses from reps at Reg 18 stage which 

introduce the necessity for new evidence at an 

unknown cost

L/M M/H

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed that there will be limited 

responses from reps at Reg 19 stage which 

introduce the necessity for new evidence at an 

unknown cost

L/M M/H

Planning Policy Planning Policy There is the risk that a second Urban Designer is 

required to the appeals and local plan, without 

the post this could increase costs as we would 

need to outsource this element.

L H

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed that there will be limited funding 

from a joint submission with County by way of a 

grant. However, it is possible that the 

submission will be successful and a grant will be 

forthcoming.

L M/H

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed that the cost of advertising and 

consultation will be covered by the budget, 

however if there is a requirement to do more 

and go further then this cost could escalate.

L L

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed that there will be a requirement for 

only 1 x Reg 19 Consultation. However there is a 

risk that there needs to be a second 

consultation.

L H

Planning Policy Planning Policy It is assumed the representations received will 

be approximately what we have received 

previously. However, there is a risk that the 

amount could rise which might mean there is a 

delay in the process of the Local Plan whilst we 

take these into consideration

L M/H

P
age 152



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                Annexe H4 continued… 

 

Service Budget item Description of key assumptions and/or what Probability Favourable Adverse

variable outcomes may arise of variance Impact Impact

arising

(L, M, H) (L, M, H) (L, M, H)

Revenues Business Team It is assumed that the Business Team will be able 

to manage any further business support 

initiative put in place by Central Government the 

Business Grant process without any further 

resources. Further resources maybe necessary 

dependant on the ongoing management of the 

pandemic however this will be covered by new 

burdens funding

L L

Revenues IT Costs Additional IT products and licenses may need to 

be purchased to deliver Government Covid 

response. This will be met by the new burdens 

funding

L L

Revenues Consultants Additional consultancy maybe required to 

provided advice and guidance on new NNDR 

initiatives

L L

Economic Development A further lockdown or 

restrictions

The risk of further restrictions to local business, 

increased support will be required from the 

team plus the administrative tasks if gov't 

provide more grants to be delivered

L H

Waste Services GRY - Agency Fees Agency costs could increase if there is another 

lockdown and staff had to shield. 
L L M

Benefits DWP Test and Trace 

Funding

It is assumed that if the government continue 

the Test and Trace Payment Scheme into 

2022/23, the standard scheme will continue to be 

fully funded.  There is a risk however that if the 

discretionary scheme continues, the finite fund 

allocated to UDC will not be sufficient to meet 

demand. Demand levels are difficult to predict 

as numbers are impacted by covid infection rates 

and contact tracing in area.

M L L

Specific Covid-19 related on-going financial risks

P
age 153



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 (February 2022) 

 

           Annexe H5 

Fees and Charges – 2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

           

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Building Control other charges  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Copying charges  (s tatutory l imitations) Yes10p a  sheet + 25.00 per hour

officer time i f job exceeds  1 hour

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Street Naming and Numbering  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Charge per dwelling/unit

Add a  name to a  numbered property 35.00                 35.00                 No

Name change/renumber 75.00                 75.00                 No

New dwel l ing/unit 110.00               110.00               No

2-5 dwel l ings/units 75.00                 75.00                 No

6 - 25 dwel l ings/units 55.00                 55.00                 No

26 - 75 dwel l ings/units 45.00                 45.00                 No

76 plus  dwel l ings/units 35.00                 35.00                 No

New Street Name 200.00               200.00               No

Name of block or block of flats  of industria l  estate 175.00               175.00               No

Confi rmation of plot or postal  address  for uti l i ty company 35.00                 35.00                 No

(charged to uti l i ty companies  only)

Issuing a  new address  fol lowing demol i tion and reconstruction 35.00                 35.00                 No

Change to new addresses  due to the development changing after 55.00                 55.00                 No

the schedule has  been issued (appl ies  to a l l  amended plots )

Page 154



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

      

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

1,075.00                        

65.00                            97.00                          172.00                   

390.00                          

STANDARD CHARGES

SCHEDULE 1- NEW DWELLINGS 

 Dwelling houses and Flats

Code New Build Houses or Bungalows Not Exceeding 250m2 Plan Charge

£

Inspection Charge*

£

Building Notice*

£

Regularisation Charge*

£

582.00                        1,032.00               

HO2 2 Plots

415.00                          740.00                        1,210.00               

HO1 1 Plot

325.00                          485.00                        860.00                   

2,000.00                        

98.00                            202.00                        320.00                   

596.00                          

1,512.50                        

83.00                            148.00                        242.00                   

498.00                          888.00                        1,452.00               

1,212.00                     1,920.00               

HO4 4 Plots

545.00                          1,140.00                     1,790.00               

HO3 3 Plots

498.00                          1,010.00                     1,600.00               

2,237.50                        

109.00                          228.00                        358.00                   

654.00                          1,368.00                     2,148.00               

1,530.00                     2,388.00               HO5 5 Plots

610.00                          1,275.00                     1,990.00               

2,487.50                        

122.00                          255.00                        398.00                   

732.00                          

390.00                          582.00                        1,032.00               

FL2 2 Plots

415.00                          740.00                        1,210.00               

FL1 1 Plot

325.00                          485.00                        860.00                   

1,075.00                        

65.00                            97.00                          172.00                   

New Build Flats Not Exceeding 250m2 and Not More Than 

3 Storeys

2,000.00                        

98.00                            202.00                        320.00                   

588.00                          

1,512.50                        

83.00                            148.00                        242.00                   

498.00                          888.00                        1,452.00               

1,212.00                     1,920.00               

FL4 4 Plots

545.00                          1,140.00                     1,790.00               

FL3 3 Plots

490.00                          1,010.00                     1,600.00               

2,237.50                        

109.00                          228.00                        358.00                   

654.00                          1,368.00                     2,148.00               

1,530.00                     2,388.00               FL5 5 Plots

610.00                          1,275.00                     1,990.00               

2,487.50                        

122.00                          255.00                        398.00                   

732.00                          

COH

 Single dwelling house (Where total floor area does not 

exceed 150m2) 

300.00                          425.00                        700.00                   

875.00                            

60.00                            85.00                          140.00                   

840.00                   360.00                          510.00                        

Conversion to

Where Standard Charges are not applicable please contact Building Control on 01799 510539

Please note that the charges marked with an * have been reduced to reflect where controlled electrical installations are being carried 

out, tested and certified by a registered Part P electrician. If these reductions are claimed and a self certifying electrician is not 

subsequently employed, the applicant will be invoiced for supplementary charges equal to the discount (see DNE below)

 Notifiable Electrical work (in addition to the above, where applicable) 

DNE

 (Where a satisfactory certificate will  not be issued by a 

Part P registered electrician) 

340.00                           This charge relates to a first fix pre-plaster inspection of the 

wiring and final testing on completion. Re- visits/testing will  be 

subject to further charges. For regularisation applications a full  

appraisal and testing will  be carried out 

68.00                            

408.00                          

COF

 Single Flat (Where total floor area does not exceed 

150m2) 

300.00                          425.00                        700.00                   

875.00                            

60.00                            85.00                          140.00                   

360.00                          510.00                        840.00                   

Page 155



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

      

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

STANDARD CHARGES

SCHEDULE 2 WORK TO A SINGLE DWELLING

Limited to work not more than 3 storeys above ground level

660.00                   

Building Notice*

£

Regularisation Charge*

£

DX1

 Separate single storey extension with floor area not 

exceeding 40m2 

165.00                          340.00                        520.00                   

650.00                            

33.00                            68.00                          

Code Extension and New Build

Full Plans

Plan Charge

£

Inspection Charge*

£

825.00                            

38.00                            88.00                          132.00                   

228.00                          528.00                        792.00                   

104.00                   

198.00                          408.00                        624.00                   

DX4

 Separate extension with some part 2 or 3 storeys in 

height and a total floor area  exceeding 40m2 but not 

exceeding 100m2 

265.00                          500.00                        800.00                   

DX3

 Separate extension with some part 2 or 3 storeys in 

height and a total floor area not exceeding 40m2 

180.00                          400.00                        600.00                   

36.00                            80.00                          120.00                   

216.00                          

DX2

 Separate single storey extension with floor area  

exceeding 40m2 but not exceeding 100m2 

190.00                          440.00                        

1,000.00                        

53.00                            100.00                        160.00                   

318.00                          600.00                        960.00                   

480.00                        720.00                   750.00                            

DNH

 Detached non-habitable domestic building with total 

floor area not exceeding 50m2 

120.00                          265.00                        390.00                   

DG0

 A building or extension comprising solely of a garage, 

carport or store not exceeding 100m2 

120.00                          265.00                        390.00                   

24.00                            53.00                          78.00                     

144.00                          

487.50                            

24.00                            53.00                          78.00                     

144.00                          318.00                        468.00                   

318.00                        468.00                   487.50                            

DOC  Other work (e.g. single garage conversions) 

115.00                          275.00                        390.00                   

Conversions

DLC  First and second floor loft conversions 

180.00                          405.00                        645.00                   

806.25                            

36.00                            

487.50                            

23.00                            55.00                          78.00                     

138.00                          330.00                        468.00                   

81.00                          129.00                   

216.00                          486.00                        774.00                   

268.75                            

15.00                            28.00                          43.00                     

90.00                            168.00                        258.00                   

DRW

 Replacement windows, rooflights, roof windows or 

external glazed doors 

75.00                            140.00                        215.00                   

DTH  Renovation of a thermal element 

75.00                            140.00                        215.00                   

268.75                            

15.00                            28.00                          43.00                     

90.00                            

268.75                            

15.00                            28.00                          43.00                     

90.00                            168.00                        258.00                   

168.00                        258.00                   

DA2  Cost of work exceeding £5000 but not exceeding £25000 

150.00                          290.00                        440.00                   

DA1

 Cost of work not exceeding £5000 (inc Renewable Energy 

Systems) 

75.00                            140.00                        215.00                   

550.00                            

30.00                            58.00                          88.00                     

180.00                          348.00                        528.00                   

546.00                        858.00                   DA3

 Cost of work exceeding £25000 but not exceeding 

£100000 

200.00                          455.00                        715.00                   

893.75                            

40.00                            91.00                          143.00                   

240.00                          

 Notifiable Electrical work in addition to the above, where 

applicable. 

DNE

 (Where a satisfactory certificate will  not be issued by a 

Part P registered electrician) 

340.00                          
 This charge relates to a first fix pre-plaster inspection of the 

wiring and final testing on completion. Re- visits/testing will  be 

subject to further charges. For regularisation applications a full  

appraisal and testing will  be carried out 

68.00                            

408.00                          

1,300.00                        

60.00                            140.00                        208.00                   

360.00                          840.00                        1,248.00               DA4

 Cost of work exceeding £100000 but not exceeding 

£250000 

300.00                          700.00                        1,040.00               

Where Standard Charges are not applicable please contact Building Control on 01799 510539

Please note that the charges marked with an * have been reduced to reflect where controlled electrical installations are being carried 

out, tested and certified by a registered Part P electrician. If these reductions are claimed and a self certifying electrician is not 

subsequently employed, the applicant will be invoiced for supplementary charges equal to the discount (see DNE below)

Alterations (inc underpinning)

Page 156



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

                 Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

           

           

Fee 175.00                370.00            

VAT 35.00                  74.00              

Total 210.00                444.00            

Fee 205.00                470.00            

VAT 41.00                  94.00              

Total 246.00                564.00            

Fee 308.00                590.00            

VAT 61.60                  118.00            

Total 369.60                708.00            

Fee 340.00                765.00            

VAT 68.00                  153.00            

Total 408.00                918.00            

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Fee

VAT

Total

Extensions and New Build

NX1 Single storey with floor area not exceeding 40m2 681.25                            

SCHEDULE 3- ALL OTHER NON-DOMESTIC WORK

Limited to work not more than 3 Storeys above ground level 

Code

Plan Charge*

£

Inspection 

Charge*

£

Regularisation 

Charge* 

£

NX4

With some part 2 or 3 storey in height and a total floor 

area exceeding 40m2 but not exceeding 100m2 1,381.25                        

NX2

Single storey with floor area exceeding 40m2 but not 

exceeding 100m2 843.75                            

NX3

With some part 2 or 3 storey in height and a total floor 

area not exceeding 40m2 1,122.50                        

NO1 Cost of work not exceeding £5,000

85.00                                       190.00                    

343.75                         

17.00                                       38.00                      

102.00                                     228.00                    

NO2

Replacement windows, roof l ights, roof windows or 

external glazed doors (not exceeding 20 units)

85.00                                       190.00                    

343.75                         

17.00                                       38.00                      

102.00                                     228.00                    

NO3

Renewable energy systems (not covered by an 

appropriate Competent Persons scheme)

85.00                                       190.00                    

343.75                         

17.00                                       38.00                      

102.00                                     228.00                    

NO4 Installation of new shop front

85.00                                       190.00                    

343.75                         

17.00                                       38.00                      

102.00                                     228.00                    

NO5 Cost of work exceeding £5,000 but not exceeding £25,000

170.00                                     325.00                    

618.75                         

34.00                                       65.00                      

204.00                                     390.00                    

NO6

Replacement windows, roof l ights, roof windows or 

external glazed doors (exceeding 20 units)

170.00                                     325.00                    

618.75                         

34.00                                       65.00                      

204.00                                     390.00                    

NO7 Renovation of thermal elements

170.00                                     325.00                    

618.75                         

34.00                                       65.00                      

204.00                                     390.00                    

Cost of works exceeding £25,000 but not exceeding 

£100,000

220.00                                     530.00                    

937.50                         

44.00                                       106.00                    

264.00                                     636.00                    

NO8

Installation of Raised Storage Platform within an existing 

building

170.00                                     325.00                    

618.75                         

34.00                                       65.00                      

204.00                                     390.00                    

Where Standard Charges are not applicable please contact Building Control on 01799 510539

N11

Cost of works exceeding £100,000 but not exceeding 

£250,000

400.00                                     800.00                    

1,500.00                      

80.00                                       160.00                    

400.00                                     800.00                    

N10 Fit out of building up to 100m2

205.00                                     510.00                    

893.75                         

41.00                                       102.00                    

246.00                                     612.00                    

NO9

Page 157



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

          

 

           

           

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Car Parking  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Saffron Walden

Fairycroft 

30 Minutes 0.50                   0.50                   Yes

1 Hour 0.70                   0.70                   Yes

2 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

3 Hours 2.00                   2.00                   Yes

Common

30 Minutes 0.50                   0.50                   Yes

1 Hour 0.70                   0.70                   Yes

2 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

3 Hours 2.00                   2.00                   Yes

Rose & Crown

30 Minutes 0.50                   0.50                   Yes

1 Hour 0.70                   0.70                   Yes

2 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

Swan Meadow

1 Hour 0.70                   0.70                   Yes

2 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

4 Hours 2.00                   2.00                   Yes

6 Hours 2.50                   2.50                   Yes

9 Hours 3.50                   3.50                   Yes

Season Tickets  (1month) Private Individuals  only 30.00                 30.00                 Yes

Season Tickets  (6 months) 175.00               175.00               Yes

Season Tickets  (per annum) 300.00               300.00               Yes

Coaches

5 Hours 3.00                   3.00                   Yes

9 Hours 6.00                   6.00                   Yes

Page 158



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

       

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Car Parking  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Great Dunmow

White Street

30 Minutes 0.40                   0.40                   Yes

1 Hour 0.60                   0.60                   Yes

3 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

4 Hours 2.00                   2.00                   Yes

5 Hours 2.40                   2.40                   Yes

9 Hours 3.50                   3.50                   Yes

Season Ticket (1 month) 30.00                 30.00                 Yes

Season Ticket (6 months) 175.00               175.00               Yes

Season Ticket (per annum) 300.00               300.00               Yes

New Street/Chequers & Angel Lane

30 Minutes 0.40                   0.40                   Yes

1 Hour 0.60                   0.60                   Yes

3 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

Chequers

Season Ticket (6 months) - Renewals  only 175.00               175.00               Yes

Season Ticket (per annum) - Renewals  only 300.00               300.00               Yes

Stansted Mountfitchet

Lower Street

30 Minutes 0.40                   0.40                   Yes

1 Hour 0.60                   0.60                   Yes

2 Hour 1.00                   1.00                   Yes

3 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

4 Hours 2.00                   2.00                   Yes

6 Hours 2.40                   2.40                   Yes

9 Hours 4.70                   4.70                   Yes

Coaches 6.00                   6.00                   Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed loca l ly (1 month) 30.00                 30.00                 Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed loca l ly (6 months) 130.00               130.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed loca l ly (per annum) 250.00               250.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed elsewhere (6 months) 320.00               320.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed elsewhere (per annum) 620.00               620.00               Yes

Crafton Green

30 Minutes 0.40                   0.40                   Yes

1 Hour 0.60                   0.60                   Yes

3 Hours 1.20                   1.20                   Yes

9 Hours 3.00                   3.00                   Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed loca l ly (6 months)* 130.00               130.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed loca l ly (per annum)* 250.00               250.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed elsewhere (6 months)* 220.00               220.00               Yes

Season Ticket - Commuter employed elsewhere (per annum)* 420.00               420.00               Yes

*Due to capaci ty pressures  new season tickets  are not currently ava i lable for this  car park

Page 159



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

         

           

 

 

           

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Environmental Health  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Food and Water Safety

Food Safety course - level  2 certi ficate 80.00                   80.00                    No

Health Certi ficate for Export 94.00                   94.00                    No

Food disposal  i f required  Charged at cost  Charged at cost Yes

Voluntary Surrender Certi ficate 94.00                   94.00                    No

Water Samples  (Airport) 26.50                   26.50                    Yes

Private water supply sampl ing and analys is  under Regulation 10 

(smal l  suppl ies ) - per vis i t (plus  laboratory fee) 48.00                   49.00                    Yes
Group A parameter sampl ing and analys is  (large suppl ies ) - per vis i t 

(plus  laboratory fee) 48.00                   49.00                    Yes

Group B parameter sampl ing and analys is  (large suppl ies ) - per vis i t 

(plus  laboratory fee) 96.50                   99.00                    Yes

Investigation (per hour) 60.50                   62.00                    No

Risk Assessment (per hour) 60.50                   62.00                    No

Analys is  under reg 10 27.50                   28.00                    No

EIR information 118.00                 122.00                  No

Contaminated land 118.00                 122.00                  No

Officer charges  for works  in default - per hour 57.50                   59.00                    No

Chemica l  Water Samples  on request  Charged at cost   Charged at Cost  Yes

Imported Food Inspection Charges

POAO per CVED  (Products  of animal  origin) (per cons ignment) 188.50                 188.50                  No

POAO per additional  CVED on same AWB 52.50                   52.50                    No

POAO per CVED Out of Hours  additional  fee(Products  of animal  origin) 78.50                   78.50                    No

Organic product certi ficate office hours 73.00                   73.00                    No

Organic product certi ficate out of office hours 261.50                 261.50                  No

High Risk NAO per CED (Non animal  origin) 57.50                   57.50                    No

High Risk NAO sampl ing fee + laboratory charges 68.00                   68.00                    No

High Risk NAO per CED Out of Hours 68.00                   68.00                    No

High Risk NAO Out of Hours  sampl ing fee + laboratory charges 99.50                   99.50                    No

High Risk destruction charge + disposal  costs 63.00                   63.00                    No

IUU Catch Certi ficate EEA 26.50                   26.50                    No

IUU Catch Certi ficate non EEA 52.50                   52.50                    No

CED rejection fee 78.50                   78.50                    No

Cons ignment abandon fee 63.00                   63.00                    No

ID check - Weekdays 52.50                   52.50                    No

ID check - Weekends 89.00                   89.00                    No

Organics  check - Weekdays 41.50                   41.50                    No

Organics  check - Weekends 63.00                   63.00                    No

Melamine check 78.50                   78.50                    No

Fee for late cancel lation of Veterinary Cover Due to Non-Presentation -                       250.00                  No

of Shipments

Destruction Supervis ion 78.50                   78.50                    No

Page 160



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

      Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

           

 

           

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Environmental Health  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Animals

Stray dog - adminis trative costs (plus  kennel  and vet fees  i f appl icable) 53.50                   54.00                    No

Stray dog - s tatutory fee 26.50                   27.00                    No

Other charges

HMO (Homes of Multiple Occupancy) Licensing Fees

HMO l icence fee for up to 5 bedrooms * part 1 fee 533.50                 549.50                  No

HMO l icence fee for up to 5 bedrooms * part 2 fee 597.00                 615.00                  No

HMO l icence fee for 5 letting rooms or more-charge per additional  room 31.50                   32.50                    No

HMO l icence fee for up to 5 bedrooms - Renewal  charge 597.00                 615.00                  No

HMO l icence fee - Incomplete Appl ication 31.50                   32.50                    No

Reminder letter on fa i lure to apply for a  l i cence 31.50                   32.50                    No

Variation of l i cence i .e. change in address  or new appointed manager 9.50                     10.00                    No

Missed appointment 134.00                 138.00                  NoAny other correspondence such as  sending out a  fina l  reminder 

letter 31.50                   32.50                    No

       * The tota l  cost of l i cens ing an HMO in 2021/22 with Uttles ford Dis trict Counci l  i s  £130.50 and is  payable in 2 parts . 

         Part 1 fees  are to be paid at the time of appl ication to cover the costs  of process ing the appl ication and inspecting the

         property. Part 2 fees  are levied upon completion of the appl ication process  to cover the costs  of running and enforcing 

         the scheme. Appl icants  wi l l  need to ensure that Part 2 fees  have been paid to the Counci l  prior to the l icence being 

         i s sued.

         For 2020/21 a  discount of 5% wi l l  be appl ied for va l id appl ications  that are received without a  request from the Counci l .

         This  wi l l  a lso apply to va l id renewal  appl ications  received within the time speci fied by the Counci l .

         The l icens ing period is  for 5 years  from the date the appl ication was  made

         HMO Licens ing fee charges  wi l l  be subject to annual  review from the 1st Apri l  each year

Hous ing Immigration Inspection 175.50                 181.00                  No

Hous ing improvement notice - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Suspended improvement notice - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Prohibi tion order - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Suspended prohibi tion order - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Emergency prohibi tion order - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Emergency remedia l  action notice - fixed price 257.50                 265.00                  No

Mobi le homes  - Fi t and proper person test fee -                       276.50                  No

Dog Waste Bags  (per 50) 1.00                     1.00                      Yes

Page 161



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

           

           

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Land Charges  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

LLC1 Res identia l/Commercia l 22.00                 22.00                 No

LLC1 Res identia l/Commercia l  extra  parcels  of land 4.50                   4.50                   No

CON29 - Res identia l 89.00                 89.00                 Yes

CON29 - Res identia l  extra  parcels  of land 12.60                 12.60                 Yes

CON29 - Commercia l 112.00               112.00               Yes

CON29 - Commercia l  extra  parcels  of land 12.60                 12.60                 Yes

LLC1 & CON29 - Res identia l 111.00               111.00               Yes

LLC1 & CON29 - Commercia l 134.00               134.00               Yes

CON29O* 18.00                 18.00                 Yes

* The fol lowing CON29O questions  are free of charge: 6,7,10,11,12,13 & 14

The current schedule of land charges  can a lso be found at the Uttles ford Dis trict Counci l  webs ite:

https ://www.uttles ford.gov.uk/article/4913/Local -Land-Charges-and-Searches-fees

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Legal  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Sol ici tor and legal  executives  with over 8 years ' experience hourly rate 217.00               261.00               No

Sol ici tor and legal  executives  with over 4 years ' experience 217.00               217.00               No

hourly rate

Letter of postponement 50.00                 50.00                 No

Deed of postponement 90.00                 90.00                 Yes

Licence fees  for garden use 120.00               120.00               No

Lease for garden use 500.00               500.00               No

Sel l ing a  s trip of land 500.00               500.00               No

Grant a  right of way 600.00               600.00               No

Relaese of covenant 500.00               500.00               No

Page 162



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

           

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Lifeline (Council Tenants and Private Residents)  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Li fel ine units  - Level  1 - Weekly charge - including evening and weekend 

emergency response vis i ts 5.40                   -                     Yes*

Li fel ine units  - Level  2 - Extra  Sensors  (up to a  maximum of 4, customers  

requiring more than 4 extra  sensors  wi l l  be charged at the rate of 50p per 

extra  sensor) 6.60                   -                     Yes*

From 1st April 2022 this sevice will be provided by a third party

*a zero rating for VAT will apply if the customer can provide evidence that they have a disability

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Democratic Services  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Road closure order 36.00 36.00 Yes

Page 163



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

          

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Museum  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Museum Admission Charges

Admiss ion Charge adult (over 18) 2.50                   2.50                   Yes

Admiss ion Charge discount adult 1.25                   1.25                   Yes

Season Ticket adult 8.00                   8.00                   Yes

Season Ticket discount 4.00                   4.00                   Yes

Museum Learning Services

Taught sess ion for schools  per pupi l 3.00                   3.00                   Yes

Taught sess ion for schools  min group charge 48.00                 48.00                 Yes

Taught sess ion in schools  ha l f-day 120.00               120.00               Yes

Taught sess ion schools  whole day 210.00               210.00               Yes

On-l ine sess ion for one school  class 60.00                 60.00 Yes

School  and Reminiscence Loan Boxes  per ha l f term 18.00                 18.00                 Yes

School  Loan, Reminiscence and Reference Boxes  for max. of 1 week 12.00                 12.00                 Yes

Charge for craft activi ties  per chi ld 1.50                   1.50                   Yes

(charges  for other activi ties  and events  may vary)

Page 164



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

           

 

          

 

           

 

 

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Museum  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Reproduction Charges

Fee for providing images of collections for commercial publications

Printed image (books  etc.) on cover, East of England region 96.00                 96.00                 Yes

Printed image (books  etc.) ins ide, East of England region 45.00                 45.00                 Yes

Printed image (books  etc.) on cover, UK and international 126.00               126.00               Yes

Printed image (books  etc.) ins ide, UK and International 64.80                 64.80                 Yes

Webs ite image, corporate / commercia l  use 72.00                 72.00                 Yes

Televis ion, East of England region 60.00                 60.00                 Yes

Televis ion, UK 78.00                 78.00                 Yes

Televis ion, International 120.00               120.00               Yes

Supply of new image (in-house photography) 5.00                   5.00                   Yes

Hire of premises (corporate and private)

Museum - Hire for fi rs t hour 75.00                 75.00                 No

Museum - Hire per hour after fi rs t hour 50.00                 50.00                 No

Museum Evening Group Visits with talk or activity

Evening ta lk/ activi ty and viewing of ga l leries  78.00                          78.00                          Yes

Museum Shirehill Store Group Visits and Workshops

Weekday daytime min charge (1 hr sess ion + set-up/clear-up) 24.00                          24.00                          Yes

Weekday daytime charge per additional  hour 18.00                          18.00                          Yes

Evening vis i t  78.00                          78.00                          Yes

Saturday hal f-day 90.00                          90.00                          Yes

Saturday whole day 174.00                       174.00                       Yes

Museum Staff lectures and talks at other venues

Talks  for loca l  groups , in Uttles ford or 20-mi le radius  of Saffron Walden 72.00                          72.00                          Yes

Talks  for loca l  groups , outs ide Uttles ford or 20 mi le 84.00                          84.00                          Yes

radius  of Saffron Walden 

On-l ine ta lk for loca l  groups  (in or outs ide Uttles ford) 60.00                          60.00                          Yes

Page 165



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

           

 

 

         

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Housing  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Garage Rents

Private (per week) 13.19                 13.84                 Yes

Tenants  (per week) 10.99                 11.53                 No

Sheltered Housing Scheme

Intens ive Hous ing Management (IHM) (per week) 16.29                 16.86                 No

Hous ing Related Support (HRS) (per week) 6.05                   6.26                   No

Allotments

Al lotment per Rod (annual ly) 3.00                   3.00                   No

Garden Welfare Services for Tenants

Regular Grass  and Hedge Service (weekly charge) 4.20                   4.50                   Yes

Smal l  one off Clearance 48.00                 60.00                 Yes

Large one off Clearance 90.00                 96.00                 Yes

Guest Rooms - Sheltered Accommodation

Guest Room (per night) 18.00                 18.00                 Yes

Page 166



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

     Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

           

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Licensing  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Taxi Licensing

Drivers  (l i cence va l id for 3 years )

 - New Appl ication 218.00                   213.00                     No

 - Renewal 218.00                   213.00                     No

Drivers  (l i cence va l id for 2 years )

 - New Appl ication 202.00                   199.00                     No

 - Renewal 202.00                   199.00                     No

Drivers  (l i cence va l id for 1 years )

 - New Appl ication 186.00                   186.00                     No

 - Renewal 186.00                   186.00                     No

Operators  (l i cence va l id for 5 years )

 - New Appl ication 493.00                   508.00                     No

 - Renewal 493.00                   508.00                     No

Vehicles  (l i cence va l id for 1 year)

 - New Appl ication 145.00                   149.00                     No

 - Renewal 145.00                   149.00                     No

Vehicle Licence Transfer Fee 105.00                   108.00                     No

CRB checks  Charged at cost   Charged at cost  No

Caravan Site Licence Fees

New Appl ications

1-5 pi tches 417.00                   429.50                     No

6-10 pi tches 417.00                   429.50                     No

11-20 pi tches 500.50                   515.50                     No

21-50 pi tches 586.00                   603.50                     No

51-100 pi tches 769.50                   792.50                     No

>100 pi tches 834.50                   859.50                     No

Page 167



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

           

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Licensing  charge  charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Other Licences

Skin piercing premises  & 1 person 188.50                   194.00                     No

Skin piercing additional  person 10.50                     11.00                       No

Skin piercing additional  Treatment (at same time) 36.50                     37.50                       No

Additional  ear piercing operator added at a  later date 41.50                     42.50                       No

Additional  operator added at a  later date (other) 63.00                     65.00                       No

Additional  treatment added at a  later date 73.00                     75.00                       No

Table and Chairs  on the Highway 100.00                   100.00                     No

Scrap Metal

Grant of a  s i te or col lectors  l i cence 383.50                   395.00                     No

 - each additional  s i te after fi rs t s i te 201.00                   207.00                     No

Renewal  of a  s i te or col lectors  l i cence 336.50                   346.50                     No

 - each additional  s i te after fi rs t s i te 201.00                   207.00                     No

Variation of a  s i te or col lectors  l i cence 136.00                   140.00                     No

 - each additional  s i te being added to the l icence 336.50                   346.50                     No

Alcohol Licensing Act 2003

For the current schedule of s tatutory fees , please vis i t the Uttles ford Dis trict Counci l  webs ite:

https ://www.uttles ford.gov.uk/article/5519/Licens ing-Act-2003-personal -l icence

https ://www.uttles ford.gov.uk/article/5518/Licens ing-Act-2003-premises-l icence

Gambling Act 2005

For the current schedule of fees , please vis i t the Uttles ford Dis trict Counci l  webs ite:

https ://www.uttles ford.gov.uk/media/2834/Gambl ing-Act-2005-Fees/pdf/Gambl ing_Act_2005_Fees .pdf

Page 168



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Licensing charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Licences

Animal  boarding establ ishment (cattery, kennel , dog day care)*

- Part A fee 279.00               287.50               No

- Part B fee 181.50               187.00               No

- Re-inspection 133.00               137.00               No

- Variation 20.50                 21.00                 No

Riding Establ ishments  *

- Part A fee 344.00               354.50               No

- Part B fee 193.50               199.50               No

- Re-inspection 186.50               192.00               No

- Variation 20.50                 21.00                 No

Home boarding *

- Part A fee 190.50               196.00               No

- Part B fee 198.00               204.00               No

- Re-inspection 133.00               137.00               No

- Variation 20.50                 21.00                 No

Dog breeding establ ishment *

- Part A fee 257.50               265.00               No

- Part B fee 181.50               187.00               No

- Re-inspection 133.00               137.00               No

- Variation 20.50                 21.00                 No

Pet shop *

- Part A fee 279.00               287.50               No

- Part B fee 184.50               190.00               No

- Re-inspection 133.00               137.00               No

- Variation 20.50                 21.00                 No

Dangerous  wi ld animals  * (based on a  2 year l icence) POA POA No

Zoo l icence (5 years ) *  (based on a  5 year l icence) POA POA No

Keeping or Tra ining Animals  for Exhibi tion *  (based on a  5 

year l icence) POA POA No

The issuing of the license will occur following payment of Part B fees.         

For licenses where there is more than one activity, the fee will be based on the applicant’s main business activity as judged 

by the inspecting officer.

Additional charges will be applied for secondary activities as outlined below.

* Part A fees need to be paid on application. Part B fees are paid on issuing report & confirmation of the licence and rating. 

Page 169



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

           

 

 

           

 

           

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Licensing charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Additional Costs

Cattery, Kennel , Dog Day Care                   62.00                   64.00 No

Riding Establ ishments                 125.00                 129.00 No

Home Boarders                   62.00                   64.00 No

Breeders                   62.00                   64.00 No

Pet Shop                   62.00                   64.00 No

Keeping or Tra ining Animals  for Exhibi tion POA POA No

Vets  fees  to be recharged to the operator + Adminis tration costs  of £7.50 for Horse Riding Establ ishments  and 

new breeders  only 

Page 170



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

Planning Applications

For the current schedule of planning appl ication fees , please vis i t the Uttlesford District Counci l  webs ite:

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4864/Planning-Appl ication-Fees  

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Planning Pre-application advice charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Plannng Pre-application Advice

Householder - Written Advice only 100.00                                        100.00                          Yes
                   - Meeting 1 hr and wri tten advice 150.00                                        150.00                          Yes
                   - Fol low up advice 75.00                                          75.00                            Yes

Householder/Heri tage*/ Lis ted bui lding  Consent

                    - Written advice only 300.00                                        300.00                          Yes

                    - Meeting 1 hr and wri tten advice 450.00                                        450.00                          Yes
                    - Fol low up advice 225.00                                        225.00                          Yes
MINOR development

                   - Written Advice only 225.00                                        225.00                          Yes

                   - Meeting 1 hr and wri tten advice 390.00                                        390.00                          Yes
                   - Fol low up advice 175.00                                        175.00                          Yes
MINOR development and Heri tage* advice

                   - Written Advice only 450.00                                        450.00                          Yes
                   - Meeting 1 hr and wri tten advice 550.00                                        550.00                          Yes
                   - Fol low up advice 275.00                                        275.00                          Yes

High Hedge Compla ints 500.00 500.00 Yes

MAJOR or Complex Minor Pre-app where they do not want -                                              Bespoke fee Yes

to enter into a  PPA

*Heri tage advice includes  Local ly Lis ted Bui ldings/ Ancient Monuments/Works  or development in a  Conservation Area. 

Page 171



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Other Planning fees and charges charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Planning conditions  - variation / removal  discuss ion 200.00 200.00 Yes

Change of use to house in multiple occupation 150.00 150.00 Yes

Is  Planning Permiss ion required - requests  seeking confi rmation as  to 

whether planning permiss ion is  required for development - Householder? 100.00 100.00 Yes

Is  Planning Permiss ion required - requests  seeking confirmation as  to  

whether planning permiss ion is  required for development - Anything else? 175.00 175.00 Yes

Informal  confirmation of permitted use class  (formal  confirmation can only  

be obta ined by a  certi ficate of lawfulness ) - A Planning his tory wi l l  be 

carried out and a  response provided within 10 working days 150.00 150.00 Yes

Confirmation that Permitted Development Rights  have not  

been removed - Householder 55.00 55.00 Yes

Confi rmation that Permitted Development Rights  have 

not been removed - a l l  other development 150.00 150.00 Yes

Confi rmation of Des ignated Area in response to customer requests  we 

can provide confi rmation of des ignated areas  (sel f service i s  ava i lable) 75.00 75.00 Yes

however, we can provide a  l i s t of constra ints  on a  property within 3 

working days

Copy of his tory  25.00 25.00 Yes

Copy of his tory and more investigation 110.00 per 30 minutes 110.00 per 30 minutes Yes

Confi rmation of Conditions  and s106 Compl iance 110.00 per 30 minutes 110.00 per 30 minutes No

Confirmation of conditions  and s106 Compl iance -  s i te vis i t 276.00 plus  the 276.00 plus  the No

per 30 minutes per 30 minutes

Advice for variation or deletion of s106 Agreements  (per 1hr meeting) 240.00 240.00 Yes

Other (not l i s ted above) 110.00 per 30 minutes 110.00 per 30 minutes Yes

What consti tutes  a  materia l  s tart? Materia l  s tarts  can only be  

confi rmed by submitting a  Cert of Law however we a lso offer an 

informal  response from a  case officer on what consti tutes  a  

materia l  s tart. 75.00 75.00 Yes

Page 172



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

         

 

 

 

          

             
             
              

 

 

 

 

           

 

 

           

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Other Planning fees and charges charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Documents provided under Local Government 10p a sheet 10p a sheet Yes

Access to Information Act 1985 plus 25.00 per plus 25.00 per

Documents - TPO, BPN, LB hour if job hour if job

Planning & Building Regulation Decision Notices exceeds 1 exceeds 1

hour hour

Uttlesford Local Plan Adopted 2005 25.00 25.00 Yes

Emerging Local Plan n/a Bespoke Fee Yes

Confirmation regarding Agricultural Ties 42.00 42.00 Yes

To retain a % of fee paid if the application Is withdrawn - 

planning applications 15% 15% No

To retain a % of fee paid if the application is withdrawn;

Pre-Applications 15% 15% Yes

Parish and Town Councils - Neighbourhood Planning mapping The time charged will  The time charged will  No
 be at the appropriate  be at the appropriate 

officer hourly rate officer hourly rate

2% - 5% depending

S106/Legal Agreement Monitoring Fee - including monetary value  on complexity See new fee sheet Yes

S106/Legal Agreement Monitoring Fee - including non-monetary value Bespoke Fee See new fee sheet Yes

Listed Building Authorisation Check (Vendor/Purchaser) 1,000.00                                   1,000.00                     No

Solicitor's queries regarding compliance with Enforcement Notices -

per 30 minutes 110.00 110.00                         No

Solicitor's queries regarding compliance with Enforcement Notices -

additional charge if site visit required 276.00 276.00                         No

Page 173



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

           

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Other Planning Fees and Charges - S106 Monitoring Fee charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Monitoring Charge Schedule*

Scheme (residential Units)

<10 n/a 416.00 No

10 to 40 n/a 1,664.00 No

41-80 n/a 5,164.00 No

81-120 n/a 7,746.00 No

121-160 n/a 15,184.00 No

161-200 n/a 18,980.00 No

201-240 n/a 22,776.00 No

241-280 n/a 26,572.00 No

281-320 n/a 30,368.00 No

321-360 n/a 34,164.00 No

361-400 n/a 37,960.00 No

440-480 n/a 41,756.00 No

481-520 n/a 45,552.00 No

560-600 n/a 49,348.00 No

600-640 n/a 53,144.00 No

640-680 n/a 56,940.00 No

680-720 n/a 60,736.00 No

721-760 n/a 64,532.00 No

761-800 n/a 68,328.00 No

Strategic site (>800) and Mixed Schemes n/a Bespoke No

*Additional fee could be sought regarding any non-standard clauses requiring specific bespoke monitoring.

The Council will  seek a charge to fulfi l  its role to monitor all  the required clauses for Section 106 Obligations, 

this charge does not include, any charges sought by partner organisations such as Essex County Council 

Page 174



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

          Annex H5 continued… 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) Initiation What is 

Arrangement fee for 

setting up the PPA What is 

band categories Fee £ included?

and Project time 

frames included 

Category A* 5,000.00 + VAT Ini tia l  meeting to share the 50,000.00 + VAT Virtual  meetings  with UDC officers  x 6

Developments  over 1000 res identia l  units  or large commercia l  areas  proposal , discuss  PPA. Engagement with Parish/Town Counci l  x up to 2 

over 20,000sqm net commercia l  floor space (including change of use) Presentation to Members  x 1

Officers  attending Des ign Panel  x up to 2 

Category B* 5,000.00 + VAT Ini tia l  meeting to share the 40,000.00 +VAT Virtual  meetings  with UDC officers  x 6

501 - 1000 res identia l  units  or 10,000 to 19,999sqm net commercia l  proposal , discuss  PPA. Engagement with Parish/Town Counci l  x 1

floor space (including change of use) Presentation to Members  x 1

Officers  attending Des ign Panel  x 1

Category C* 5,000.00 + VAT Ini tia l  meeting to share the 30,000.00 + VAT Virtual  meetings  with UDC officers  x 6

251 to 500 res identia l  units  or between 5,000 to 9,999sqm net proposal , discuss  PPA. Engagement with Parish/Town Counci l  x 1

 commercia l  floor space (including change of use) Presentation to Members  x 1

Officers  attending Des ign Panel  x 1

Category D* 2,500.00 + VAT Ini tia l  meeting to share the 17,500.00 + VAT Virtual  meetings  with UDC officers  x 3

50 to 250 res identia l  units  or between 2,500 to 4,999sqm net proposal , discuss  PPA. Engagement with Parish/Town Counci l  x 1

commercia l  floor space (including change of use) Presentation to Members  x 1

Officers  attending Des ign Panel  x 1

Category E* 2,500.00 + VAT Ini tia l  meeting to share the 12,500.00 + VAT Virtual  meetings  with UDC officers  x 3

Up to 49 res identia l  units  or up to 2,499sqm net proposal , discuss  PPA. Engagement with Parish/Town Counci l  x 1

commercia l  floor space (including change of use) Presentation to Members  x 1

Officers  attending Des ign Panel  x 1

UDC's  reasonable lega l  costs  incurred in association with the preparation Individual ly ta i lored 

of the S106 Agreement that may commence at pre-appl ication s tage. to your development

*The counci l 's  reasonable costs  which may be incurred with the appointment of external  and s tatutory consultants  and s takeholders  to progress  the planning appl ication to be agreed by the 

interested parties  on a  case by case bas is . The cost of commiss ioning additional  consultants  wi l l  be covered by the interested parties  with the agreement of the counci l  on project scoping and 

draft reports .

Additional  Services  - Charges  on a  cost recovery only. If additional  work/meetings  i s  required there wi l l  be an additional  payment based on the relevant hourly rate of the officer/s  required to 

participate.

Page 175



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

           

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

          

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Saffron Walden Offices charge charge charge
£ £ include VAT?

Room charges - non wedding - minimum 2 hour charge applies

Room hire - Fl i tch (Chairman's  room) (per hour) 37.00 38.00 Yes

Room hire - Fl i tch (Chairman's  room) (per hour) Chari ty Rate 32.00 33.00 Yes

Room hire - Cutlers  (Committee room) (per hour) 67.00 68.00 Yes

Room hire - Cutlers  (Committee room) (per hour) Chari ty Rate 42.00 43.00 Yes

Room hire - Gibson (Counci l  Chamber) (per hour) 89.00 91.00 Yes

Room hire - Gibson (Counci l  Chamber) (per hour) Chari ty Rate 57.00 58.00 Yes

Refreshments  - per 10 people 18.00 18.00 Yes

Tenants  (Fl i tch Room) (per hour) 27.00 28.00 Yes

Tenants  (Cutlers  Room) (per hour) 32.00 33.00 Yes

Tenants  (Gibson Room) (per hour) 52.00 53.00 Yes

Room charges - wedding 

Fl i tch (Chairman's  Room) Mon-Thur 112.00 114.00 Yes

Fl i tch (Chairman's  Room) Friday 162.00 165.00 Yes

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Print Room charge charge charge
£ £ include VAT?

Printing services  for town & parish counci ls , 41.50 41.50 No*

voluntary organisations , clubs  & societies

Hourly charge

Materia ls  charged on top

* Addition of VAT varies  depending on what is

being printed.

Page 176



General Fund Account – Budget Proposals 2022/23 Updated 10 February 2022 

           

Annex H5 continued… 

 

 

2021/22 2022/23 Does the 

Refuse Collection & Recycling charge charge charge

£ £ include VAT?

Bulky Waste Collection Service

Minimum charge for 2 i tems 17.50 30.00 No

Each additional  i tem 8.75 5.00 No

Waste Electrica l  Equipment Col lection Services  (1 i tem) 17.50 30.00 No

Each additional  i tem 8.75 5.00 No

Garden Waste Bags 1.20 1.26 No

Garden Waste Collection Service 

240 l i tre wheeled bin n/a 46.00 No

240 l i tre wheeled bin (payment by DD) 40.00 n/a No

240 l i tre wheeled bin (Other Payment Options) 46.00 n/a No

Bin del ivery charge 22.50 23.63 No

Waste container supply and delivery (new developments) 

Ful l  set of containers , Green l idded bin, Grey l idded bin, Food Caddy 75.00 78.75 No

Town and Parish Council Garden Waste weekend collection

Charge per hour 70.00 73.50 No

Trade Waste Collection and Disposal Charges

Trade sacks  (85 l i tres ) 3.00 3.15 No

Bins  180 l i tres 6.14 6.45 No

Bins  240 l i tres 8.19 8.60 No

Bins  660 l i tres 13.54 14.22 No

Bins  1100 l i tres 20.88 21.92 No

Skip - 12 cubic yard (l ight materia ls ) 157.74 165.63 No

Skip - 12 cubic yard (heavy materia ls ) 247.19 259.55 No

Page 177



 
 

Annexe H6 

Uttlesford District Council Autumn 2021                                                                                                                       

Council Spending – have your say! 
Uttlesford District Council budget consultation for the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

During the period from 30 September to Sunday 17 October 2021, Uttlesford District 

Council sought the views of residents, partners and those who work within the district 

as it began the process of setting the spending budget for the 2022-23 financial year. 

167 responses were received. 

 Each year the Government tells councils the maximum by which they are allowed to 

raise Council Tax, which for 2021-22 was either 1.99% or £5.00 per year. 

Consequently, for the 2021-22 financial year, for the Councillors for Uttlesford District 

Council made the decision to approve a £5 per year increase for the district council 

portion of the Council Tax bill. For the 2022-23 financial year a public consultation 

was conducted to seek residents’ views on the headline budget priorities. 

Most of the questions posed in this budget consultation sought comparable feedback 

from those asked in previous years and the results will inform the setting of the 

council’s budget for the financial year April 2022 – March 2023. 

The consultation concentrated on asking for residents’ views on the priorities for 

council spending and the prerogatives for the future resourcing of specific service 

areas. An open text box was provided for respondents to express their views if they 

felt a different priority should be set by the council. Feedback was also sought from 

residents regarding whether the Council Tax precept for Uttlesford District Council 

represented ‘Value for money’. 

With the goal of obtaining feedback from those who live and work in the area, this 

year’s budget consultation sought the views of the council’s stakeholders (residents, 

workers, businesses, town and parish councils, Fire and Police). When setting the 

survey, it was hoped that those taking part in in this survey would represent a broad 

cross-section of those who live and work in Uttlesford. The final two sections of the 

online questionnaire asked participants to identify in which capacity they were 

responding as well as questions where respondents could provide some optional 

profiling information about themselves.  

Page 178



 
 

Priorities  

At a meeting of Full Council on 23 February 2021, a new Corporate Plan for 2021-25 

was adopted which included a vision for the council 'Making Uttlesford the best place 

to live, work and play'. The plan has four priorities: 

 Putting residents first 

 Active place-maker for our towns and villages 

 Progressive custodian of our rural environment 

 Champion for our district 

The first question for the consultation asked participants if the four priorities for the 

new Corporate Plan “are the right ones” for 2022-2023. 

Each of the four stated priorities were approved by over eight out of ten people who 

answered this question. “Putting residents first” had the highest level of agreement 

by over 96% of participants who had an opinion selecting this priority. 

The chart below illustrates the comparative percentage of responses from those who 

showed their opinion on this question by selecting a “Yes” or “No” response. 

 

 

 

  

84.11%

85.09%

84.17%

96.32%

15.89%

14.91%

15.83%

3.68%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Champion for our district

Progressive custodian of our rural environment

Active place-maker for our towns and villages

Putting residents first

Budget Survey for 2022-23
Aproval for Corporate Plan priorities

Yes No

Page 179



 
 

Value for money 

Respondents were reminded that Uttlesford District Council currently keeps £162 of 

the average £1,885 paid in Council Tax by an Uttlesford household based on Band D 

property Council Tax 2021/22. The rest goes to Essex County Council, Essex Police 

Fire and Crime Commissioner and Parish/Town Councils. Bearing this in mind, 

Question 3 of the survey asked respondents if they agreed that the district council 

provides value for money. The table below shows the cross section of responses. 

Strongly 

agree 

Tend to 

agree 

Neither 

agree nor 

disagree 

Tend to 

disagree 

Strongly 

disagree Don't know 

28 55 38 26 17 3 

16.80% 32.90% 22.80% 15.60% 10.20% 1.80% 

 

By discounting the responses of those who either “Don’t know” or “Neither agree nor 

disagree” the headline response to this question shows that nearly two thirds (66%) 

of those participating either “strongly agree” or “Tend to agree” that the district 

council provides value for money. 

“Statutory” and “Discretionary” services   

Survey participants were asked to assign a level of importance to a list of “Statutory” 

services provided by the council, ranging from “Very important” to “Not important at 

all” as well as the option to select “Don’t know”. Similarly, those taking part in this 

year’s survey were asked to assign levels of importance to a separate a list of 

“Discretionary” services.  

To enable the participants to make an informed selection, for each of the listed 

services, the questionnaire stated how much of the annual Council Tax the 

overarching service area (e.g. Revenues and Benefits) cost an average Band D 

household per year.  

However, to enable a comparison of services and to determine which of those listed 

which were viewed as the most important as potential spending priorities, the data 

was analysed using rated scores where more weight is given if a service area is 

selected as “Very important” and a reduced weight for those selected as “Not 

important at all”. Those with no opinion (“Don’t know”) were not included in the 

calculation. 

Using this method the two tables below show the three most selected services and 

the lowest scoring services.  

Page 180



 
 

Level of 

importance 

Statutory service area 

Highest level 

of importance 

Refuse and recycling collection (97%) 

Second 

highest level 

of importance 

Action to develop cleaner neighbourhoods (included in 

Environmental Health and Licensing) 91% 

Third highest 

level of 

importance 

Planning policy including new Local Plan and Determining 

planning and building control applications (included in Building 

Control) each scored 87% 

Lowest level 

of importance 

Taxi licensing, liquor and gambling premises licensing (included in 

Environmental Health and Licensing) 62% 

 

Level of 

importance 

Non Statutory service area 

Highest level 

of importance 

Maintaining amenity areas, such as grass cutting and general 

maintenance of various areas of council-owned land. 82% 

Second 

highest level 

of importance 

Communicating with the public (included in Partnerships and 

Communities) 79% 

Third highest 

level of 

importance 

Community safety activities to support the work of the Community 

Safety Partnership with the police and others. 77% 

Lowest level 

of importance 

Ward member grants (included in Partnerships and Communities) 

56% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 181



 
 

Literal responses 
 

Following Question 1, which asked survey participants to indicate their views 

regarding the four main priorities identified in the council’s Corporate Plan, 

consultees were invited to submit a literal comment if they believed that a different 

priority should be focused on by the district council. 54 literal responses were 

received.  

 

Concerns about overdevelopment, infrastructure (particularly roads) and protection 

of the rural areas of the district were the topics most frequently expressed. 

 

Page 182



 
 

 

Q2. If you think there is a different priority that the council should be focusing on, 
please explain: 

  

These are fine words but your existing policies make similar statements.  Experience shows 
that Officers do not uphold your Constitution or policies equally or fairly. 

Look after the less well off with more money and greater respect Overhaul the dreadful 
service levels provided by District Council staff 

No evidence to date of ‘outstanding levels of transparency and accountability’. So enter drop 
this objective or fund compliance officers to challenge the elected representatives. 

Protect the green belt. Don't build on green belt land, however laudable some progressive 
affordable homes scheme might be presented. It is wrong. 

Action on climate change is far too broad a phrase to have any discernible meaning. If it 
means making our lives more difficult by slavishly following the curent politically correct 
fashion by introducing anti-motorist punitive measures I would be against it on principle. If on 
the other hand it means promoting sensible measures such as better recycling, improving 
infrastructure  and preventing developers ruining the district  by building over high quality 
farmland I would be very much in favour of it. Uttlesforsd is the jewel in Essex's crown but is 
in danger of being wrecked by overdevelopment. I realise that this is largely due to reckless 
government policies but the District council must hold the line if it is really putting residents 
first i.e. the current residents as opposed to loads of newcomers with no allegiance to the 
area who will soon be arriving in droves. 

The custodian of rural environment has to include protecting our rural areas from large 
housing developments. These are unwanted  by the vast majority of residents. 

Where does consideration of infrastructure feature ? Roads and other. Health services and 
education. Etc. Appreciate that these may be the main responsibility of other organisations 
but UDC should have a view and strategy to partner to success. Is this is what is meant by 
the rather vague “ champion for our district “ ? In times of challenge joined up thinking is 
definitely required. 

Disabled housing needs ... 

Efficiency with council tax spending. Transparency and openness with the priorities. Avoiding 
waste of money. The council should not be abused by campaign groups getting their hands 
on the council finances to fight democratic national policy. Supporting business and housing, 
not opposing it. The most important thing for anyone is to be able to go to work and come 
home to a warm and safe home with food in the fridge. 

The council should have a better planning department for road repairs. It seems its all or 
nothing, more than three temporary traffic light systems set up choking the traffic of the town 
or no temporary lights anywhere. This could be better planned to stop the traffic jams that 
they cause.  No-one appears to check the quality of the road repairs or remarking. On the 
Little Walden Road there is a stretch of road where two lorries of busses cannot pass each 
other as the road appears too narrow. However, if you scrape the mud and debris out of the 
road you find the hidden curb stone and you find another white line down the side of the 
road. There is about 10 inches in the width of the road hidden under years of lack of road 
cleaning and maintenance. Poor management. 

 

Page 183



 
 

 

 

Who came up with 'Active place-maker'? Someone swallowed a thesaurus! You state 'Deliver 
local government with outstanding levels of transparency and accountability' yet you don't 
use plain English. Please consider consulting with http://www.plainenglish.co.uk/ before 
proceeding too far 

VFM from all suppliers and especially council departments  Scrap Town councils - wasre of 
money. What does UDC actually do? Sod all for businesses, just let developers do what the 
**** they want 

Emphasis on making sure developers actually carry out the improvements that are in their 
planning obligations. 

Preserving the unique villages in Uttlesford.  Don’t let it turn into another over populated area 
like Chelmsford 

Honesty, clarity and openness in decision making.  Not claiming to be open and honest and 
then hding the truth from council taxpayers and residents as you currently do! 

LET US DECIDE WHERE NEW HOUSING SHOULD TAKE PLACE AND NOT ON GREEN 
BELT 

Fix streets pothole, some of them are destroying residents cars. Stop new houses from being 
build, they’re ruining our rural community. 

Protecting the district and its infrastructure and character from the consequences of over 
development. Retaining as much green and recreational space as possible within the towns 
such as the playing fields of what was The Friends School in Saffron Walden. Once gone 
never regained. 

More proactive and visible policing. 

More affordable homes, studio apartments, one bedroom flats, but with discounts for NHS 
staff on the Help to Buy scheme. I get the impression you do not realise how poor people 
are. 

I believe more of the speeding checks could be done haven’t seen them out in Debden for a 
while. 

Greater protection of rural environments from traffic - not just pollution, but overuse, noise 
and nuisance too. 

Ensuring that thousands of houses are not built in our towns and villages where there is no 
infrastructure to cope. Also any homes built need to be truly affordable for local people - not 
large executive houses or bought by landlords to rent out. 

Sounds good but will you keep to it? 

Provide SAFE crossing places for our children.  We see children hovering beside busy roads 
near the common, at the end of Castle street, at the end of Little Walden Road.  A serious 
accident is surely only a matter of time.  Safe crossing - zebra and/or pelican crossings - 
need to be installed as a matter of urgency.  Please don’t wait until we have a tragedy. 

The rate of building of new homes cutting down trees, concreting over large areas of 
countryside and destroying the habitat of many animals and birds seems completely the 
opposite of what we should be doing. I understand that people need homes but at a time 
when some Europeans are leaving/have left following Brexit are we sure that the scale of the 
building countrywide is necessary or desirable. Should we not pause for a while and stop 
allowing developers planning permission on such a massive scale. 

Ensure infrastructure support for any new residential building developments around Saffron 
Walden to include schools, doctors and retail units with a view to keeping any more polluting 
traffic out of the town centre. There should also be better care of the pavements to clean up 
rubbish and remove weeds. 

'Active place-maker' and 'Champion' are vague words that need to rephrased into something 
more specific 

Page 184



 
 

 

Weekly recycling collections and energy efficient home grants 

Complete the rollout of fibre broadband in thaxted. We had months of disruption for gigaclear 
to only cable the main road leaving hundreds of properties without high speed Internet. 

Improve road infrastructure 

Improvement 

The priority must be total transparency from Council to residents ensuring local exemplary 
democracy. Such transparency may also assist in the electorate understanding of the 
political and commercial interests of Councillors in their decision making. 

yes collecting council tax from property that owe tax and not been collected mainly a 
warehouse that owes thousands 

Some of the groupings above include elements I could support, but also ones that I do not 
believe need specific/particular focus on.  Context is needed for Questions 4-9.  For example, 
why can't the FULL costs of food standards, private water supplies (presumably policing of 
both?), taxi licensing and building control/planning applications etc etc not be recouped from 
the direct beneficiaries (the property/land owners, taxi drivers, food outlets etc).  I see little 
reason for that to form part of the standard Council Tax payment (in the same way you 
manage council housing to be self-funding). 

A D C B 

it all reads very well . HOWEVER  could you please ..... Actually deliver on what they preach 
. make officials accountable to deliver .  Cease hiding behind Bureaucratic processes that 
slow you down to a snails pace . Where is the neighbourhood plan , scrapped . where are the 
electric car plug ins ?? very few .  why spend millions against local jobs ie stansted airport .  
as a few examples .   PLEASE WORK FOR YOUR SALARY . instead of finding excuses to 
do nothing .Amazed what is spent on Building and planning per household , professionals 
are milking it !! 

The priority headlines are fine but you need to ensure that there is ‘meat on the bones’… 

Traffic congestion. More Schools both primary and secondary. More dr surgery's 

No more mansions m 

I think that being custodian of our rural environment should be second on the list. We must 
stop this continual building in our villages. By doing this we will keep our village status and 
not become small towns. 

Most of the above is gobbledygook. How much is this survey costing ? 

Make climate emergency a top priority in every work stream 

Under Custodian of our rural environment, the good maintenance of the existing structure 
and facilities is currently very poor eg road sweeping, gulley emptying, litter collection, 
neglected road signs and more, poor pavement maintenance 

You should be reducing the council tax given the number of houses that you insist on 
allowing to be built 

not a different priority but it should be considered and included.   Pathways along main roads 
need to be cleared for pedestrian safety. They are a mess.   Safety for cyclists.  Cycle 
pathways for families to enjoy. Stop Lorries from squeezing through small roads and causing 
chaos.  Green waste should not be charged for. Bigger bins for recycling 

Put climate and ecological emergency at the heart of everything you do. Don’t just pay lip-
service. Ensure that ALL UDC staff and councillors are constantly reminded / trained and 
made aware that it is their responsibility. That includes the Planning department! 

Housing 
 

Page 185



 
 

 

 

 

 

Putting infrastructure into the areas where new affordable housing is being built or has been 
built. We need more Doctors surgeries, more schools and better water and sewerage 
management 

Protect our historic towns and villages from the blight of poor modern development 

Controlling the finances to recover the 2.5m lost on pointless fight with airport 

Safety should be mentioned more strongly, with a priority to addressing men's violence 
against women.  Otherwise these priorities are well balanced. 

You have mentioned  health service but not social services - the district council should take a 
much bigger role in social services, not just by giving grants to the voluntary sector.  I  agree 
with other aspects of championing the district but don't think you should prioritise health 
above social services - other bodies have statutory responsibilities for health services. 

The climate crisis which if not dealt with render useless other plans: people’s well being, 
economy, the future are all dependent on reversing  biodiversity loss and temperature rises. 

 

Page 186



Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 

Annexe 7 – Survey data, absolute results 
Shown below is the downloaded data from the collated responses to the Autumn 2021, 
Uttlesford District Council Budget consultation.  

Absolute and corresponding percentage data is displayed in the response fields on the 

survey. 

     Council Spending - have your say!    
Uttlesford District Council Budget Consultation - Autumn 2021 

 
 Each year the council has to prepare its budget and decide how much should be spent on the 
services it provides to the community. This questionnaire gives you the opportunity to have your say 

on what Uttlesford District Council’s spending priorities should be in the financial year from April 
2022 to March 2023. 

 
 Central government funding used to be the biggest single source of money for many councils, 

including Uttlesford. For the current financial year 2021/22 the council’s total funding requirement is 
budgeted at £14.4m. Government funding has reduced significantly over the years, a trend that is 
expected to continue. As a result, the council faced significant challenges in balancing its budget so 

decided to increase its revenue through a commercial investment programme – buying commercial 
property and then using the rent it receives to fund council services. In the current year, this 

portfolio will generate an additional income of about £6.9m to help us run the council. This compares 
with council tax of £6.1m. The rest of the funding is a mixture of business rates and movements to 
and from reserves.   

 
 This has been successful, but even so there are continued financial pressures and the council needs 

to ensure it remains efficient while continuing to provide the same high quality services. 
 
 The results of this consultation will help to inform the budget for April 2022 to March 2023. 

 
 All the information you provide will be kept entirely confidential. It will only be used by Uttlesford 

District Council and the main findings will be published on the council website. However your own 
views and opinions will not be passed on to anyone else. 
Further information about Data Protection rights can be found at www.uttlesford.gov.uk/privacy  

 
 The budget for 2022/23 will be agreed by Full Council in February 2022 following consideration by 

the Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet.  
 
 Please complete this questionnaire by ticking the appropriate box(es) for each question, 

using the "Next" button to proceed to each page. When you have answered the questions 
to your satisfaction*, click on the "Submit" button.  

 
 Please submit your completed survey by: 
 

  Sunday 17 October 2021 
 
 * You can start your survey, save the responses you have already entered and return to complete 
the questionnaire at a later time, provided it is before the closing date. 

 
 If you require this publication in an alternative format and/or language or have any queries regarding 

this questionnaire, please contact the Consultation Team at Uttlesford District Council on 01799 
510670 or email: consultation@uttlesford.gov.uk 
 

Page 187



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 
  

Priorities 
 

 Our budget is designed to deliver the core services we provide and meet our priorities as set out in 
the council’s Corporate Plan for 2021-25 which was adopted by Full Council at its meeting on 23 
February 2021. 

 
 With a vision for the council to make ‘Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play’, the Corporate 

Plan has four priorities: 
 
 •  Putting residents first 

•  Active place-maker for our towns and villages 
•  Progressive custodian of our rural environment 

•  Champion for our district 
 
  

Putting residents first 
 

 We will: 
Be a council that listens to and acts for residents 

Deliver local government with outstanding levels of transparency and accountability 
Be responsible with your money and mitigate the impact of government cuts 
 

  
Active place-maker for our towns and villages 

 
 We will: 
Masterplan our new communities for and with residents 

Support our towns and villages to plan their neighbourhoods 
Secure greater benefits for our community from new development 

Work with the airport on issues of concern to communities 
Nurture employment and retail areas to create jobs and retain businesses 
Enforce good business standards in our district 

Deliver more affordable homes and protect those in need in our district 
Promote healthy lifestyles in diverse and inclusive communities 

 
  
Progressive custodian of our rural environment 

 
 We will: 

 Take action on Climate Change 
 Conserve our natural resources 
 Protect and enhance our rural character and heritage 

 Take strong action on dealing with pollution 
 

  
Champion for our district 
 

 We will: 
 Improve Uttlesford’s connectivity 

 Support our students, schools and libraries 
 Work with partners to keep the district safe 
 Work to create a better local Health Service for residents 

 

Page 188



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 
Q1 

 
Do you think these priorities are the right ones for 2022/2023?  

  Yes No Don't 
know 

 

 Putting residents first   157 
(94.0%) 

  6 
(3.6%) 

  4 
(2.4%) 

 

 

 Active place-maker for our towns and villages   117 
(70.1%) 

  22 
(13.2%) 

  28 
(16.8%) 

 

 
 Progressive custodian of our rural environment   137 

(82.0%) 
  24 

(14.4%) 
  6 

(3.6%) 
 

 
 Champion for our district   127 

(76.0%) 

  24 

(14.4%) 

  16 

(9.6%) 

 

 
Q2 If you think there is a different priority that the council should be focusing on, please explain 

in the box below: 
   54 responses (See Literal Responses in the Budget Consultation report) 

 
 

 Value for money 
 
 Only a small part of the Council Tax you pay goes to this council. 

Uttlesford District Council currently keeps £162 of the average £1,885 paid in Council Tax by an 
Uttlesford household based on Band D property Council Tax 2021/22. The rest goes to Essex County 

Council, Essex Police Fire and Crime Commissioner and Parish/Town Councils. 
 
 This consultation is only about the Uttlesford part, and we have no say in tax levels of the other 

bodies.  The council is also responsible for collection of business rates, but similarly has no say in 
their level and retains only a small percentage of it. 

 
Q3 Bearing in mind Uttlesford householders only pay about £162 per year for services 

provided by the Council (based on average Band D Council Tax 2021/22), to what 

extent do you agree or disagree that Uttlesford District Council provides value for 
money? (please tick one box only) 

   28 (16.8%) Strongly agree 
   55 (32.9%) Tend to agree 
   38 (22.8%) Neither agree nor disagree 

   26 (15.6%) Tend to disagree 
   17 (10.2%) Strongly disagree 

   3 (1.8%) Don't know 
 
 

 Statutory Services 
 
 The council delivers a number of statutory services. These are services we have to provide 
by law. 

 
 We are allowed to, and already do, apply additional fees and charges for some of them. In order to 

meet the continued financial pressures, we could look to reduce the amount we spend which may 
reduce the level of service provided, or where allowed, increase or introduce new fees and charges. 
 

Below is a list of statutory services. We have shown the amount of the £162 received in Council Tax 
from an Uttlesford Council Tax payer spent on each service (based on average Band D Council Tax). 

 

Page 189



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

  
For each of these statutory services please tell us how important you think the service is. 

 
Q4 Environmental Health and Licensing costs about £22.60 per household per year and 

includes: 
  Very 

important 
Fairly 

important 
Not so 

important 
Not 

important 

at all 

Don't 
know 

 

 Action to develop cleaner 

neighbourhoods and to tackle 
environmental crime such as fly tipping. 

  113 

(67.7%) 

  48 

(28.7%) 

  3 

(1.8%) 

  3 

(1.8%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 

 Food safety   72 
(43.1%) 

  67 
(40.1%) 

  23 
(13.8%) 

  2 
(1.2%) 

  3 
(1.8%) 

 

 
 Housing standards   77 

(46.1%) 
  63 

(37.7%) 
  20 

(12.0%) 
  5 

(3.0%) 
  2 

(1.2%) 
 

 
 Private water supplies   56 

(33.5%) 

  38 

(22.8%) 

  49 

(29.3%) 

  16 

(9.6%) 

  8 

(4.8%) 

 

 

 Pollution control   85 
(50.9%) 

  60 
(35.9%) 

  16 
(9.6%) 

  5 
(3.0%) 

  1 
(0.6%) 

 

 

 Taxi licensing, liquor and gambling 
premises licensing 

  21 
(12.6%) 

  57 
(34.1%) 

  65 
(38.9%) 

  22 
(13.2%) 

  2 
(1.2%) 

 

 
 
 

Q5 Housing and Homelessness* costs about £9.47 per household per year and includes: 
  Very 

important 

Fairly 

important 

Not so 

important 

Not 

important 
at all 

Don't 

know 

 

 Housing advice   62 

(37.1%) 

  70 

(41.9%) 

  26 

(15.6%) 

  6 

(3.6%) 

  3 

(1.8%) 

 

 

 Temporary accommodation   92 
(55.1%) 

  46 
(27.5%) 

  20 
(12.0%) 

  6 
(3.6%) 

  3 
(1.8%) 

 

 

 *Please note: council house provision is entirely self-financing from council house rents. It is not 
included in this consultation and is the subject of separate annual consultation with tenants. 

 
 
Q6 Planning and Building Control costs about £81.82 per household per year and includes: 

  Very 
important 

Fairly 
important 

Not so 
important 

Not 
important 

at all 

Don't 
know 

 

 Planning policy including new Local Plan   101 
(60.5%) 

  48 
(28.7%) 

  11 
(6.6%) 

  5 
(3.0%) 

  2 
(1.2%) 

 

 
 Determining planning and building 

control applications 

  99 

(59.3%) 

  53 

(31.7%) 

  8 

(4.8%) 

  6 

(3.6%) 

  1 

(0.6%) 

 

 
 Local land searches (e.g. when 

buying/selling a home) 

  53 

(31.7%) 

  64 

(38.3%) 

  32 

(19.2%) 

  15 

(9.0%) 

  3 

(1.8%) 

 

 

Page 190



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 
  Very 

important 

Fairly 

important 

Not so 

important 

Not 

important 
at all 

Don't 

know 

 

Q7 Refuse and recycling collection costs 
about £44.35 per household per year  

  148 
(88.6%) 

  18 
(10.8%) 

  0 
(0.0%) 

  1 
(0.6%) 

  0 
(0.0%) 

 

 

 
Q8 Street cleansing costs about £15.17 

per household per year  

  95 

(56.9%) 

  57 

(34.1%) 

  11 

(6.6%) 

  4 

(2.4%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 
 

Q9 Revenues and Benefits costs about £41.67 per household per year and includes: 
  Very 

important 

Fairly 

important 

Not so 

important 

Not 

important 
at all 

Don't 

know 

 

 Administering Council Tax and Business 

Rates collection 

  66 

(39.5%) 

  63 

(37.7%) 

  30 

(18.0%) 

  7 

(4.2%) 

  1 

(0.6%) 

 

 

 Administering Council Tax and and 
Housing Benefits 

  54 
(32.3%) 

  68 
(40.7%) 

  33 
(19.8%) 

  9 
(5.4%) 

  3 
(1.8%) 

 

 
 

 Discretionary Services 
 

 These are services we choose to provide but do not have a legal responsibility to do so.  
 
 We charge additional fees and charges for some of them. To meet the continued financial pressures 

we could increase existing fees and charges and introduce new ones. Or we could reduce the level of 
service. 

 
 
 

 For each of these discretionary services please tell how important you think the service is.  
 

 
  Very 

important 
Fairly 

important 
Not so 

important 
Not 

important 

at all 

Don't 
know 

 

Q10 Maintaining amenity areas, such as 

grass cutting and general 
maintenance of various areas of 
council-owned land costs about £6.98 

per household per year (This does not 
include council housing or sheltered 

accommodation).  

  68 

(40.7%) 

  78 

(46.7%) 

  20 

(12.0%) 

  1 

(0.6%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 
 

Q11 Community safety activities to 
support the work of the Community 

Safety Partnership with the police 
and others costs about £11.02 per 
household per year.  

  63 
(37.7%) 

  59 
(35.3%) 

  38 
(22.8%) 

  7 
(4.2%) 

  0 
(0.0%) 

 

 
 

 

Page 191



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 
Q12 

 
Economic development costs about £33.51 per household per year and includes: 

  Very 
important 

Fairly 
important 

Not so 
important 

Not 
important 

at all 

Don't 
know 

 

 Support for local businesses    49 
(29.3%) 

  68 
(40.7%) 

  38 
(22.8%) 

  12 
(7.2%) 

  0 
(0.0%) 

 

 
 Supporting projects to facilitate economic 

growth such as rural broadband 

  56 

(33.5%) 

  62 

(37.1%) 

  36 

(21.6%) 

  13 

(7.8%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 
 Support for tourism   17 

(10.2%) 

  60 

(35.9%) 

  62 

(37.1%) 

  28 

(16.8%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 

 
 
Q13 Partnerships and communities costs about £23.70 per household per year and includes: 

  Very 
important 

Fairly 
important 

Not so 
important 

Not 
important 

at all 

Don't 
know 

 

 Communicating with the public     60 

(35.9%) 

  80 

(47.9%) 

  19 

(11.4%) 

  8 

(4.8%) 

  0 

(0.0%) 

 

 
 Running Saffron Walden Museum   20 

(12.0%) 

  50 

(29.9%) 

  60 

(35.9%) 

  30 

(18.0%) 

  7 

(4.2%) 

 

 

 Supporting community groups to deliver 
projects 

  19 
(11.4%) 

  69 
(41.3%) 

  55 
(32.9%) 

  20 
(12.0%) 

  4 
(2.4%) 

 

 

 Ward member grants   15 
(9.0%) 

  37 
(22.2%) 

  63 
(37.7%) 

  33 
(19.8%) 

  19 
(11.4%) 

 

 
 

 Survey respondents 
 

 It is hoped that those taking part in in this survey will represent a broad cross-section of those who 
live and work in Uttlesford. It would greatly assist us in collating responses in this questionnaire if 
you would select which of the following statements best describes you. 

 
Q14 I am responding to this survey as: (please select one option only): 

   157 
(94.0%) 

An Uttlesford district resident - Council Tax Payer 

   4 (2.4%) An Uttlesford district resident - Non Council Tax Payer 

   0 (0.0%) Local business representative  
   0 (0.0%) Local community organisation representative 

   0 (0.0%) Parish/Town Council or Meeting representative 
   0 (0.0%) Neighbouring Local Authority/Partner Organisation representative 
   0 (0.0%) Local Councillor 

   3 (1.8%) An Uttlesford District Council Member 
   0 (0.0%) An Uttlesford District Council employee 

   1 (0.6%) Visitor to the Uttlesford District 
   1 (0.6%) Person who works in the Uttlesford District 
   1 (0.6%) Other (please state below): 

 
   1 response: “Work in Saffron Walden” 

 

Page 192



 
Council Spending – have your say! 
Budget Consultation for the financial year April 2022- March 2023 

 
Q15 

 
If you are responding as a local business/community organisation or neighbouring Local 

Authority/Partner Organisation representative, please tell us which one: 
   0 responses 

 
Q16 If you are responding as a Parish/Town Council or Meeting representative, please tell us which 

one: 

   0 responses 
 

 
 Your details: 
 
 We want to make sure that all our services are delivered fairly. We are therefore asking the following 

questions about you, so that we can make sure our services consider everyone's needs.  
 
The information you provide will be kept confidential and processed by Uttlesford District Council in 

accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. We will not share this information with third parties. 
Further information about Data Protection rights can be found at www.uttlesford.gov.uk/privacy 

 
You do not have to answer these questions. 
 

 
Q17 Which age category do you belong to? 

   0 (0.0%) 16-19   30 (18.3%) 45-54 
   0 (0.0%) 20-24   40 (24.4%) 55-64 

   7 (4.3%) 25-34   44 (26.8%) 65-74 
   18 (11.0%) 35-44   25 (15.2%) 75+ 
 

 
Q18 What is your gender? 

   89 (54.3%) Male 
   70 (42.7%) Female 
   5 (3.0%) Prefer not to say 

 
 

Q19 What is your ethnicity? 
   159 

(97.5%) 
White 

   0 (0.0%) Black or Black British 
   1 (0.6%) Mixed heritage 

   1 (0.6%) Asian of Asian British 
   2 (1.2%) Other ethnic group: 

 

   2 responses: 
“Not relevant” 

“Human” 
 
Q20 Do you consider yourself to have a disability? 

   22 (13.7%) Yes   139 (86.3%) No 
 

Q21 Please enter your postcode: 
   151 responses – See Appendix 6 – profiling data 
 

 
 Thank you for taking part in our survey. 

 

Page 193



 
 

 
 
 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

Equality & Health Impact Assessment 

(EqHIA) 

Document control  
 

Title of activity: Rent and Service Charge Setting 2022-23 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Roz Millership, Assistant Director Housing Health and 
Communities  

 
Approved by: 
 

Judith Snares, Housing Strategy & Operations Manager 

 
Date completed: 
 

11/10/2021 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

11/10/2022 

 

 

Please note that EqHIAs are public documents and must be made available on the 
Council’s EqHIA webpage.  
When completed, a copy of this form should be saved with the activity a policy, strategy, 
procedure, project, new or change in service, initiative or other’s file for audit purposes and 
in case it is requested under the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
When the EqHIA is completed send a copy to the following email address -  
EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk 

Does the EqHIA contain any confidential or exempt information 
that would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 194

http://www.havering.gov.uk/Pages/Services/Equality-impact-assessments.aspx
mailto:EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk


2 

 

1. Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EqHIA and ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact your Divisional Equality Lead. Please refer to the Guidance in 
Appendix 1 on how to complete this form. When EqHIA is completed send a copy to the 
following email address EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk 

 
About your activity 

1 Title of activity Rent and Service Charge Setting 2022-2023 

2 Type of activity 
To establish the rent and service charge levels for 
2022-2023 

3 Scope of activity 

To identify the changes in dwelling rents, garage 
rents, housing related support (HRS) charges and 
service charges required for the new financial 
year 

 

4a 

Are you changing, 
introducing a new, or 
removing a service, policy, 
strategy or function? 

No 

If the answer to 
any of these 
questions is 
‘YES’,  
please continue 
to question 5. 

If the answer to 
all of the 
questions (4a, 
4b & 4c) is ‘NO’, 
please go to 
question 6.  

4b 

Does this activity have the 
potential to impact (either 
positively or negatively) upon 
people (9 protected 
characteristics)? 

Yes  

4c 

Does the activity have the 
potential to impact (either 
positively or negatively) upon 
any factors which determine 
people’s health and 
wellbeing? 

Yes 

5 If you answered YES: 
Please complete the EqHIA in Section 2 of this 
document. Please see Appendix 1 for Guidance. 

6 If you answered NO: 

Please provide a clear and robust explanation on 
why your activity does not require an EqHIA. This 
is essential in case the activity is challenged 
under the Equality Act 2010. 
 
Please keep this checklist for your audit trail. 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Roz Millership, Assistant Director Housing Health and 
Communities 

 
Date: 
 

11/10/2021 

Page 195

mailto:EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk


3 

 

2. The EqHIA – How will the strategy, policy, plan, 
procedure and/or service impact on people? 

 

Background/context: 

 
Rent and service charge setting is carried out annually. Rents are set in line with 
Government policy and to that end the council’s social and affordable rents have been 
modelled at CPI+1% from 2022/23 
All other Housing related support charges and service charges are increased in line with 
actual costs. 

*Expand box as required 
 

 

Who will be affected by the activity? 

 
An increase in rents and service charges will affect all tenants in council owned 
properties. Rents are kept within the housing allowances for the areas and will therefore 
be covered for those on benefits. 

An increase in services charges will also affect owners of ex Council owned properties, 
purchased through the RTB, which benefit from any continuing services provided by the 
Council, as stipulated in the lease or transfer deed 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

 

Protected Characteristic - Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
for people of all ages is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive 
or indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 
 

*Expand box as required 

Page 196



4 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 
 

Protected Characteristic - Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including 
physical mental, sensory and progressive conditions 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on people with disabilities is neutral as there is no identified direct, 
positive or indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 
 

 

 

 

Protected Characteristic - Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on all genders is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination.  

 
*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

Page 197



5 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 

 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 
 

Protected Characteristic - Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic 
groups and nationalities 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on ethnicity/race is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:  
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 
 

*Expand box as required  
 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or 
beliefs including those with no religion or belief 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Page 198



6 

 

Negative  

The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on religion/faith is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 
 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 

 
Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, 
lesbian, gay or bisexual 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on sexual orientation is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive 
or indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, 
undergoing or have received gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose 
gender identity is different from their gender at birth 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  

Page 199



7 

 

Positive  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
on people who are seeking, undergoing or have received gender 
reassignment surgery is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive 
or indirect discrimination 
 

*Expand box as required 

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 

*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or 
civil partnership 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
for marriage/civil partnership is neutral as there is no identified direct, 
positive or indirect discrimination 
 
*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

Page 200



8 

 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Protected Characteristic - Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who 
are pregnant and those who are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
for pregnancy, maternity and paternity is neutral as there is no 
identified direct, positive or indirect discrimination 
 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
For most people, who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds, social housing is the only available option. Increasing 
rents and service charges will enable the Council to continue to provide 
safe affordable housing for rent. 
 
The predicted impact of the rent and service charge setting for 2022-23 
for those who are from low income or financially excluded backgrounds 
is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or indirect 
discrimination 
 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

Page 201



9 

 

Rents are kept within the housing allowances for the areas and will 
therefore be covered for those on benefits 
 

Guidance and support will be given to those tenants who have 
problems managing their finances 

*Expand box as required 
 

Evidence:   
 
The tenant satisfaction survey sent to all tenants gives the opportunity to express if 
tenants feel that they get value for money. People are free to make their comments and 
concerns known by returning the survey 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 

Tenant Forum 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey 
Census 2021 data 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 
CORE data 

 
*Expand box as required 

 
 
Health & Wellbeing Impact: Consider both short and long-term impacts of the activity on 
a person’s physical and mental health, particularly for disadvantaged, vulnerable or at-risk 
groups. Can health and wellbeing be positively promoted through this activity? Please use 
the Health and Wellbeing Impact Tool in Appendix 2 to help you answer this question. 
Please tick () all 
the relevant 
boxes that apply: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing rents and service charges will enable the Council to 
continue to provide safe affordable housing for rent  
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Do you consider that a more in-depth HIA is required as a result of 
this brief assessment?  

                                                                               No                  

Positive √ 

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
There should be a positive health & wellbeing impact on people’s personal circumstances, 
access to services and social factors relating to housing.  
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Health & wellbeing impact tool 
 

*Expand box as required 

Page 202



10 

 

3. Outcome of the Assessment 
 

The EqHIA assessment is intended to be used as an improvement tool to make sure the activity 
maximises the positive impacts and eliminates or minimises the negative impacts. The possible 
outcomes of the assessment are listed below and what the next steps to take are: 
 
Please tick () what the overall outcome of your assessment was: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1. The EqHIA identified no 
significant concerns OR 
the identified negative 
concerns have already 
been addressed 

 

 Proceed with implementation of your 
activity 

 

 2.  The EqHIA identified 
some negative impact 
which still needs to be 
addressed  

 

 COMPLETE SECTION 4:  

Complete action plan and finalise the 
EqHIA   

 

 3. The EqHIA identified 
some major concerns and 
showed that it is 
impossible to diminish 
negative impacts from the 
activity to an acceptable 
or even lawful level  

 

 

Stop and remove the activity or revise 
the activity thoroughly. 

Complete an EqHIA on the revised 
proposal. 

Page 203



11 

 

 

4. Action Plan 
 
The real value of completing an EqHIA comes from the identifying the actions that can be taken to eliminate/minimise negative impacts 
and enhance/optimise positive impacts. In this section you should list the specific actions that set out how you will address any negative 
equality and health & wellbeing impacts you have identified in this assessment. Please ensure that your action plan is: more than just a list 
of proposals and good intentions; sets ambitious yet achievable outcomes and timescales; and is clear about resource implications. 
 

Protected 
characteristic / 

health & 
wellbeing 

impact 

Identified 
Negative or 

Positive impact 

Recommended 
actions to 
mitigate 
Negative 

impact* or 
further promote 
Positive impact 

Outcomes and 
monitoring** 

Timescale Lead officer 

      

   
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

     

Add further rows as necessary 
* You should include details of any future consultations and any actions to be undertaken to mitigate negative impacts 
** Monitoring: You should state how the impact (positive or negative) will be monitored; what outcome measures will be used; the known 
(or likely) data source for outcome measurements; how regularly it will be monitored; and who will be monitoring it (if this is different from 
the lead officer).

P
age 204



12 

 

5. Review 
 

In this section you should identify how frequently the EqHIA will be reviewed; the date for next 
review; and who will be reviewing it. 
 

 

Review:   
 
Annual review 
 
 
 
 
 
Scheduled date of review: 11/10/22  
 
Lead Officer conducting the review:  Assistant Director Housing Health and Communities 
 
 
 

*Expand box as required 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 205



13 

 

Appendix 1. Guidance on Undertaking an EqHIA 
This Guidance can be deleted prior to publication. 

What is it? 
The Equality & Health Impact Assessment (EqHIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service, whilst at the same time ensuring a person’s 
chance of leading a healthy life is the same wherever they live and whoever they are. We want to 
ensure that the activities of the Council are ‘fit for purpose’ and meet the needs of Uttlesford’s 
increasingly diverse communities and employees. This robust and systematic EqHIA process 
ensures that any potential detrimental effects or discrimination is identified, removed, or mitigated 
and positive impacts are enhanced. 

When to Assess:  
An EqHIA should be carried out when you are changing, removing or introducing a new service, 
policy, strategy or function; for simplicity, these are referred to as an “activity” throughout this 
document. It is best to conduct the assessment as early as possible in the decision-making 
process. 

Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 

Guidance: Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 

The Checklist in Section 1 asks the key questions, 
4a) Are you changing, introducing a new, or removing a service, policy, strategy or 
function? 
4b) Does this activity (policy/strategy/service/decision) have the potential to impact 
(either positively or negatively) upon people (9 protected characteristics)? 
4c) Does this activity (policy/strategy/service/decision) have the potential to impact 
(either positively or negatively) upon any factors which determine people’s health 
and wellbeing? 

 If the answer to ANY of the questions 4a, 4b or 4c of the Checklist is ‘YES’ then 

you must carry out an assessment. e.g. Proposed changes to Contact Centre 

Opening Hours 

‘YES’ = you need to carry out an EqHIA 

 If the answer to ALL of the questions, 4a or 4b of the Checklist is NO, then you do 

not need to carry out an EqHIA assessment. e.g. Quarterly Performance Report 

‘NO’ = you DO NOT need to carry out an EqHIA. Please provide a clear 

explanation as to why you consider an EqHIA is not required for your activity.  

Using the Checklist 
The assessment should take into account all the potential impacts of the proposed activity, be it a 
major financial decision, or a seemingly simple policy change. Considering and completing this 
EqHIA will ensure that all Council plans, strategies, policies, procedures, services or other activity 
comply with relevant statutory obligations and responsibilities. In particular it helps the Council to 
meet its legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty and its 
public health duties under the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 

  

Page 206

https://www.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-guidance


14 

 

Having Due Regard 
To have due regard means that in making decisions and in its other day-to-day activities, the 
Council must consciously consider the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

 Advance equality of opportunity between different groups  

 Foster good relations between different groups 

 Reduce inequalities in health outcomes 

Combining Equality and Health Impact Assessment: 
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) provide a systematic way of ensuring that legal obligations 
are met. They assess whether a proposed policy, procedure, service change or plan will affect 
people different on the basis of their ‘protected characteristics’ and if it will affect their human 
rights. Currently there are nine protected characteristics (previously known as ‘equality groups’ 
or ‘equality strands’): age, disability, sex/gender, ethnicity/race, religion/faith, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, and pregnancy/ maternity/paternity. 
 
An activity does not need to impact on all 9 protected characteristics – impacting on just one is 
sufficient justification to complete an EqHIA. 
 
This Equality and Health Impact Assessment (EqHIA) brings together a single tool which will result 
in a set of recommendations to eliminate discrimination and inequality; enhance potential positive 
impacts and mitigate where possible for negative impacts.  
In conducting this EqHIA you will need to assess the impact (positive, neutral or negative) of your 
activity on individuals and groups with protected characteristics (this includes staff delivering 
your activity), socio-economic status and health & wellbeing. Guidance on what to include in 
each section is given on the next pages. 

What to include in background/context 

Guidance: What to include in background/context 

In this section you will need to add the background/context of your activity, i.e. what is the activity 
intending to do, and why?  
 
Make sure you include the scope and intended outcomes of the activity being assessed; and 
highlight any proposed changes. Please include a brief rationale for your activity and any 
supporting evidence for the proposal. Some questions to consider: 

 What is the aim, objectives and intended outcomes? 

 How does this activity meet the needs of the local population? 

 Has this activity been implemented in another area? What were the outcomes? 

 Is this activity being implemented as per best practice guidelines? 

 Who were the key stakeholders in this activity?                     *Note that the boxes will expand as 

required 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 207



15 

 

 

Who will be affected by the activity? 

Guidance: Who will be affected by the activity? 

The people who will be affected may be  

Residents: pay particular attention to vulnerable groups in the population who may be 
affected by this activity 

Businesses/ manufacturing / developers / small, medium or large enterprises 

Employees: e.g. Council staff for an internal activity, other statutory or voluntary sector 
employees, local businesses and services  

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

What to include in assessing a Protected Characteristic e.g. AGE 

Guidance: What to include in assessing a Protected Characteristic e.g. AGE 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact: In this section you will need to consider and note what 
impact your activity will have on individuals and groups (including staff) with 
protected characteristics based on the data and information you have.  You 
should note whether this is a positive, neutral or negative impact. 
 
It is essential that you note all negative impacts. This will demonstrate 
that you have paid ‘due regard’ to the Public Sector Equality Duty 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-
duty)  if your activity is challenged under the Equality Act. 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence: In this section you will need to document the evidence that you have used to assess 
the impact of your activity. 
 
When assessing the impact, please consider and note how your activity contributes to the three 
aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) as stated in the section above. 
 
It is essential that you note the full impact of your activity, so you can demonstrate that you have 
fully considered the equality implications and have paid ‘due regard’ to the PSED should the 
Council be challenged. 

- If you have identified a positive impact, please note this. 

- If you think there is a neutral impact or the impact is not known, please provide a full 

reason why this is the case.  

- If you have identified a negative impact, please note what steps you will take to mitigate 

this impact.  If you are unable to take any mitigating steps, please provide a full reason 

why.  All negative impacts that have mitigating actions must be recorded in the Action 

Plan. 

- Please ensure that appropriate consultation with affected parties has been 

undertaken and evidenced 

Page 208

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty


16 

 

 

Sources used: In this section you should list all sources of the evidence you used to assess the 

impact of your activity.  This can include: 

- Service specific data, benchmarking with other organisations, national best practice 

- Population, demographic and socio-economic data. Suggested sources include: 

o Service user monitoring data that your service collects 

o www.essexinsight.org.uk  

o Office for National Statistics (ONS)  

If you do not have any relevant data, please provide the reason why. 
*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

What to include in assessing Health & Wellbeing Impact: 

Guidance: What to include in assessing Health & Wellbeing Impact: 

Please tick () all 
the relevant 
boxes that apply: 

Overall impact: In this section you will need to consider and note whether the 
proposal could have an overall impact on, or implications for, people’s health 
and wellbeing or any factors which determine people’s health.  
 
How will the activity help address inequalities in health? 
 
Include here a brief outline of what could be done to enhance the positive 
impacts and, where possible, mitigate for the negative impacts. 
 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required  
Do you consider that a more in-depth HIA is required as a result of this 
brief assessment? Please tick () the relevant box 
                                                                           Yes              No                  

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence: In this section you will need to outline in more detail how you came to your conclusions 
above: 

 What is the nature of the impact?  

 Is the impact positive or negative? It is possible for an activity to have both positive and 

negative impacts. Consider here whether people will be able to access the service being 

offered; improve or maintain healthy lifestyles; improve their opportunities for 

employment/income; whether and how it will affect the environment in which they live 

(housing, access to parks & green space); what the impact on the family, social support and 

community networks might be 

 What can be done to mitigate the negative impacts and/or enhance the positive impacts? 

 If you think there is a neutral impact, or the impact is not known, please provide a brief 

reason why this is the case.  

 What is the likelihood of the impact? Will the impact(s) be in weeks, months or years? In some 

cases the short-term risks to health may be worth the longer term benefits. 

 Will the proposal affect different groups of people in different ways? A proposal that is likely to 

benefit one section of the community may not benefit others and could lead to inequalities in 

health. 

Please use the Health & Wellbeing Impact Tool in Appendix 2 as a guide/checklist to 
assess the potential wider determinants of health impacts. 
 

Page 209

http://www.essexinsight.org.uk/
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadHome.do?m=0&s=1404997243690&enc=1&nsjs=true&nsck=false&nssvg=false&nswid=1020


17 

 

This tool will help guide your thinking as to what factors affect people’s health and wellbeing, such 
as social support, their housing conditions, access to transport, employment, education, crime 
and disorder and environmental factors. It is not an exhaustive list, merely a tool to guide your 
assessment; there may be other factors specific to your activity. 
 
Some questions you may wish to ask include: 

 Will the activity impact on people’s ability to socialise, potentially leading to social isolation? 

 Will the activity affect a person’s income and/or have an effect on their housing status? 

 Is the activity likely to cause the recipient of a service more or less stress? 

 Will any change in the service take into account different needs, such as those with 
learning difficulties? 

 Will the activity affect the health and wellbeing of persons not directly related to the 
service/activity, such as carers, family members, other residents living nearby? 

 If there is a short-term negative effect, what will be done to minimise the impact as much 
as possible? 

 Are the longer-term impacts positive or negative? What will be done to either promote the 
positive effects or minimise the negative effects?  

 Do the longer term positive outcomes outweigh the short term impacts? 
 
 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 
 

Sources used: In this section you should list all sources of the evidence you used to assess the 

impact of your activity.  This could include, e.g.: 

Information on the population affected 

- Routinely collected local statistics (e.g. quality of life, health status, unemployment, crime, 

air quality, educational attainment, transport etc.) 

- Local research/ Surveys of local conditions 

- Community profiles i.e. Uttlesford JSNA 

Wider Evidence 
- Published Research, including evidence about similar proposals implemented elsewhere 

(e.g. Case Studies). 

- Predictions from local or national models 

- Locally commissioned research by statutory/voluntary/private organisations 

Expert Opinion 
- Views of residents and professionals with local knowledge and insight 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

Outcome of the Assessment 

Guidance: Outcome of the Assessment 

On reflection, what is your overall assessment of the activity? 
 
The purpose of conducting this assessment is to offer an opportunity to think, reflect and improve 
the proposed activity. It will make sure that the Council can evidence that it has considered its due 
regard to equality and health & wellbeing to its best ability. 
 
It is not expected that all proposals will be immediately without negative impacts! However, where 
these arise, what actions can be taken to mitigate against potential negative effects, or further 
promote the positive impacts? 
 

Page 210



18 

 

Please tick one of the 3 boxes in this section to indicate whether you think: 
1. all equality and health impacts are adequately addressed in the activity – proceed with your 

activity pending all other relevant approval processes 

2. The assessment identified some negative impacts which could be addressed – please 

complete the Action Plan in Section 4. 

3. If the assessment reveals some significant concerns, this is the time to stop and re-think, 

making sure that we spend our Council resources wisely and fairly. There is no shame in 

stopping a proposal. 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

 

 

 

Action Plan 

Guidance: Action Plan 

For each protected characteristic/health & wellbeing impact where an impact on people or their 
lives has been identified, complete one row of the action plan. You can add as many further rows 
as required. 
 
State whether the impact is Positive or Negative 
 
Briefly outline the actions that can be taken to mitigate against the negative impact or further 
enhance a positive impact. These actions could be to make changes to the activity itself (service, 
proposal, strategy etc.) or to make contingencies/alterations in the setting/environment where the 
activity will take place. 
 
For example, might staff need additional training in communicating effectively with people with 
learning difficulties, if a new service is opened specifically targeting those people? Is access to the 
service fair and equitable? What will the impact on other service users be? How can we ensure 
equity of access to the service by all users? Will any signage need changing? Does the building 
where the service being delivered comply with disability regulations? 
 

 

Review 

Guidance: Review 

Changes happen all the time. A service/strategy/policy/activity that is appropriate at one time, may 
no longer be appropriate as the environment around us changes. This may be changes in our 
population, growth and makeup, legislative changes, environmental changes or socio-political 
changes. 
 
Although we can’t predict what’s going to happen in the future, a review is recommended to 
ensure that what we are delivering as a Council is still the best use of our limited resources. The 
timescale for review will be dependent on the scale of the activity. 
 
A major financial investment may require a review every 2-3 years for a large scale regeneration 
project over 10-15 years. 
 

Page 211



19 

 

A small policy change may require a review in 6 months to assess whether there are any 
unintended outcomes of such a change. 
 
Please indicate here how frequently it is expected to review your activity and a brief justification as 
to why this timescale is recommended. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Guidance: Key Contacts 
 

For further advice or information contact your Divisional Equality Lead Officer 

Division/Services Head of Division/Services Tel.No. 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

Page 212



20 

 

Appendix 2. Health & Wellbeing Impact Tool 
Will the activity/service/policy/procedure affect any of the following characteristics? Please tick/check the boxes below 
The following are a range of considerations that might help you to complete the assessment. 

Lifestyle             YES    NO   Personal circumstances    YES    NO   Access to services/facilities/amenities YES    NO   
  Diet 

  Exercise and physical activity 

  Smoking  

  Exposure to passive smoking 

  Alcohol intake 

  Dependency on prescription drugs 

  Illicit drug and substance use 

  Risky Sexual behaviour 

  Other health-related behaviours, such 
as tooth-brushing, bathing, and wound 
care 

  Structure and cohesion of family unit 

  Parenting 

  Childhood development 

  Life skills 

  Personal safety 

  Employment status 

  Working conditions 

  Level of income, including benefits 

  Level of disposable income 

  Housing tenure 

  Housing conditions 

  Educational attainment 

  Skills levels including literacy and numeracy 

  to Employment opportunities 

  to Workplaces 

  to Housing 

  to Shops (to supply basic needs) 

  to Community facilities 

  to Public transport 

  to Education 

  to Training and skills development 

  to Healthcare 

  to Social services 

  to Childcare 

  to Respite care 

  to Leisure and recreation services and facilities 

Social Factors   YES    NO   Economic Factors   YES    NO   Environmental Factors   YES    NO   
  Social contact 

  Social support 

  Neighbourliness 

  Participation in the community 

  Membership of community groups 

  Reputation of community/area 

  Participation in public affairs 

  Level of crime and disorder 

  Fear of crime and disorder 

  Level of antisocial behaviour 

  Fear of antisocial behaviour 

  Discrimination 

  Fear of discrimination 

  Public safety measures 

  Road safety measures 

  Creation of wealth 

  Distribution of wealth 

  Retention of wealth in local area/economy 

  Distribution of income 

  Business activity 

  Job creation 

  Availability of employment opportunities 

  Quality of employment opportunities 

  Availability of education opportunities 

  Quality of education opportunities 

  Availability of training and skills development opportunities 

  Quality of training and skills development opportunities 

  Technological development 

  Amount of traffic congestion 

  Air quality 

  Water quality 

  Soil quality/Level of contamination/Odour 

  Noise levels 

  Vibration 

  Hazards 

  Land use 

  Natural habitats 

  Biodiversity 

  Landscape, including green and open spaces 

  Townscape, including civic areas and public realm 

  Use/consumption of natural resources 

  Energy use: CO2/other greenhouse gas emissions 

  Solid waste management 

  Public transport infrastructure 

 

P
age 213



 
 

 
 
 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

Equality & Health Impact Assessment 

(EqHIA) 

Document control  
 

Title of activity: General Fund Budget and Council Tax 2022-23 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Angela Knight, Assistant Director of Resources  

 
Approved by: 
 

Adrian Webb, Director of Finance and Corporate Services 

 
Date completed: 
 

January 2022 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

January 2023 

 

 

Please note that EqHIAs are public documents and must be made available on the 
Council’s EqHIA webpage.  
When completed, a copy of this form should be saved with the activity a policy, strategy, 
procedure, project, new or change in service, initiative or other’s file for audit purposes and 
in case it is requested under the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
When the EqHIA is completed send a copy to the following email address -  
EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk 

Does the EqHIA contain any confidential or exempt information 
that would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 214

http://www.havering.gov.uk/Pages/Services/Equality-impact-assessments.aspx
mailto:EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk


2 

 

1. Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EqHIA and ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact your Divisional Equality Lead. Please refer to the Guidance in 
Appendix 1 on how to complete this form. When EqHIA is completed send a copy to the 
following email address EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk 

 
About your activity 

1 Title of activity General Fund Budget and Council Tax 2022/23 

2 Type of activity 

To set the income and expenditure for the 
financial year for the General Fund to enable the 
delivery of quality services to residents 
 
Set the council tax levy for 2022/23 

3 

Scope of activity Identify costs and income for 2022/23 to deliver 
services  
Set the council tax levy in line with member 
priorities and Government council tax limits 

 

4a 

Are you changing, 
introducing a new, or 
removing a service, policy, 
strategy or function? 

No 

If the answer to 
any of these 
questions is 
‘YES’,  
please continue 
to question 5. 

If the answer to 
all of the 
questions (4a, 
4b & 4c) is ‘NO’, 
please go to 
question 6.  

4b 

Does this activity have the 
potential to impact (either 
positively or negatively) upon 
people (9 protected 
characteristics)? 

Yes  

4c 

Does the activity have the 
potential to impact (either 
positively or negatively) upon 
any factors which determine 
people’s health and 
wellbeing? 

Yes 

5 If you answered YES: 
Please complete the EqHIA in Section 2 of this 
document. Please see Appendix 1 for Guidance. 

6 If you answered NO: 

Please provide a clear and robust explanation on 
why your activity does not require an EqHIA. This 
is essential in case the activity is challenged 
under the Equality Act 2010. 
 
Please keep this checklist for your audit trail. 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Angela Knight, Assistant Director of Resources 

 
Date: 

24 January 2022 

Page 215

mailto:EqHIA@Uttlesford.gov.uk


3 

 

 

2. The EqHIA – How will the strategy, policy, plan, 
procedure and/or service impact on people? 

 

Background/context: 

 
The budget is set annually, and this is based on the delivery of both statutory and 
discretionary services. The budget incorporates the Council’s priorities, and this is 
supported by the budget consultation to residents and the responses received. 
 
The council tax increase is set in accordance with the allowable increase set by 
Government as part of the annual financial settlement where Local Councils have the 
option to apply an increase of up to 2% or £5. 

*Expand box as required 
 

 

Who will be affected by the activity? 

This affects all residents in the districts. The budget sets the finances available for the 
delivery of all services to residents and businesses. 
 
The council tax is a charge levied on all residential properties, an increase in council tax 
affects all residents including those on Benefits and low incomes. 

*Expand box as required 

 

 

Protected Characteristic - Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents  
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 for 
people of all ages is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 

Page 216



4 

 

An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 

*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 

Protected Characteristic - Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including 
physical mental, sensory and progressive conditions 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 for 
people with disabilities is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive 
or indirect discrimination 
  
 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
 

*Expand box as required 

 

 

 

 

Page 217



5 

 

Protected Characteristic - Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 on all 
genders is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or indirect 
discrimination 

 
*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
 

*Expand box as required 

 

Protected Characteristic - Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic 
groups and nationalities 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 on 
ethnicity and race is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 

 

Page 218



6 

 

*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or 
beliefs including those with no religion or belief 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 on 
religion and faith is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, 
lesbian, gay or bisexual 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide Positive  

Page 219



7 

 

Neutral √ 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 on 
sexual orientation is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive or 
indirect discrimination 

*Expand box as required 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, 
undergoing or have received gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose 
gender identity is different from their gender at birth 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 on 
gender reassignment is neutral as there is no identified direct, positive 
or indirect discrimination 
 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

*Expand box as required 

Page 220



8 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 
Protected Characteristic - Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or 
civil partnership 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 for 
marriage and civil partnership is neutral as there is no identified direct, 
positive or indirect discrimination 
 
*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income. 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 

Protected Characteristic - Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who 
are pregnant and those who are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing council tax will enable the Council to continue to provide 
quality services to all its residents 
 
The predicted impact of the increase in council tax for 2022-23 for 
pregnancy, maternity and paternity is neutral as there is no identified 
direct, positive or indirect discrimination 
 

*Expand box as required 

Positive  

Neutral √ 

Negative  

Page 221



9 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
The budget consultation provides the opportunity for residents to express their views on 
the proposed services importance and whether they council provided value for money, 
this was available to all residents. 
 
An earlier consultation was carried out on the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
providing residents with the opportunity to express their views on the level of contribution 
for residents contribution who are on a low income.*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
Budget Consultation 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
For residents, who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds, the Council has a number of schemes in place to provide 
support. 
 
The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is available to all residents and 
is means tested with the maximum benefit of 87.5% discount on their 
annual council tax bill. The scheme includes protection for pensioners 
and the vulnerable and their carers, with those on the lowest incomes 
receiving 100% discount. 
 
The Council has the most generous Council Tax Support Scheme in 
Essex. 
 
The Council also maintains an Extreme Hardship Fund which is 
available to all residents who find themselves in financial hardship. In 
addition to this there is a dedicated Officer in post to provide support 
and advice on managing their finances and any arrears. The Officer is 
also in contact with other support agencies who they can signpost to 
residents for additional help and support. 
 
The predicted impact of the council tax increase for 2022-23 for those 
who are from low income or financially excluded backgrounds is 
positive, there is no identified direct, positive or indirect discrimination. 
 
All Council services are available to all residents and some of our fee 
charging services offer discounted rates for people on a low income. 
 

*Expand box as required 

Positive √ 

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 222



10 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme sets out all the available support 
 
*Expand box as required 

 

Sources used:  
 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

*Expand box as required 

 
 
Health & Wellbeing Impact: Consider both short and long-term impacts of the activity on 
a person’s physical and mental health, particularly for disadvantaged, vulnerable or at-risk 
groups. Can health and wellbeing be positively promoted through this activity? Please use 
the Health and Wellbeing Impact Tool in Appendix 2 to help you answer this question. 
Please tick () all 
the relevant 
boxes that apply: 

Overall impact:  
 
Increasing Council tax enable the Council to continue to provide a 
range of quality services this includes a Health and Wellbeing Service 
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Do you consider that a more in-depth HIA is required as a result of 
this brief assessment?  

                                                                               No                  

Positive √ 

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
There should be a positive health & wellbeing impact on people’s personal circumstances, 
access to services and social factors relating to budget and increase in Council Tax.  
 

*Expand box as required 
 

Sources used:  
 
 

*Expand box as required 

Page 223



11 

 

3. Outcome of the Assessment 
 

The EqHIA assessment is intended to be used as an improvement tool to make sure the activity 
maximises the positive impacts and eliminates or minimises the negative impacts. The possible 
outcomes of the assessment are listed below and what the next steps to take are: 
 
Please tick () what the overall outcome of your assessment was: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1. The EqHIA identified no 
significant concerns OR 
the identified negative 
concerns have already 
been addressed 

 

 Proceed with implementation of your 
activity 

 

 2.  The EqHIA identified 
some negative impact 
which still needs to be 
addressed  

 

 COMPLETE SECTION 4:  

Complete action plan and finalise the 
EqHIA   

 

 3. The EqHIA identified 
some major concerns and 
showed that it is 
impossible to diminish 
negative impacts from the 
activity to an acceptable 
or even lawful level  

 

 

Stop and remove the activity or revise 
the activity thoroughly. 

Complete an EqHIA on the revised 
proposal. 

Page 224



12 

 

 

4. Action Plan 
 
The real value of completing an EqHIA comes from the identifying the actions that can be taken to eliminate/minimise negative impacts 
and enhance/optimise positive impacts. In this section you should list the specific actions that set out how you will address any negative 
equality and health & wellbeing impacts you have identified in this assessment. Please ensure that your action plan is: more than just a list 
of proposals and good intentions; sets ambitious yet achievable outcomes and timescales; and is clear about resource implications. 
 

Protected 
characteristic / 

health & 
wellbeing 

impact 

Identified 
Negative or 

Positive impact 

Recommended 
actions to 
mitigate 
Negative 

impact* or 
further promote 
Positive impact 

Outcomes and 
monitoring** 

Timescale Lead officer 

      

   
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

     

Add further rows as necessary 
* You should include details of any future consultations and any actions to be undertaken to mitigate negative impacts 
** Monitoring: You should state how the impact (positive or negative) will be monitored; what outcome measures will be used; the known 
(or likely) data source for outcome measurements; how regularly it will be monitored; and who will be monitoring it (if this is different from 
the lead officer).

P
age 225



13 

 

5. Review 
 

In this section you should identify how frequently the EqHIA will be reviewed; the date for next 
review; and who will be reviewing it. 
 

 

Review:   
 
Annual review 
 
 
 
 
 
Scheduled date of review: January 2023 
 
Lead Officer conducting the review:  Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources 
 
 
 

*Expand box as required 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 226



14 

 

Appendix 1. Guidance on Undertaking an EqHIA 
This Guidance can be deleted prior to publication. 

What is it? 
The Equality & Health Impact Assessment (EqHIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service, whilst at the same time ensuring a person’s 
chance of leading a healthy life is the same wherever they live and whoever they are. We want to 
ensure that the activities of the Council are ‘fit for purpose’ and meet the needs of Uttlesford’s 
increasingly diverse communities and employees. This robust and systematic EqHIA process 
ensures that any potential detrimental effects or discrimination is identified, removed, or mitigated 
and positive impacts are enhanced. 

When to Assess:  
An EqHIA should be carried out when you are changing, removing or introducing a new service, 
policy, strategy or function; for simplicity, these are referred to as an “activity” throughout this 
document. It is best to conduct the assessment as early as possible in the decision-making 
process. 

Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 

Guidance: Equality & Health Impact Assessment Checklist 

The Checklist in Section 1 asks the key questions, 
4a) Are you changing, introducing a new, or removing a service, policy, strategy or 
function? 
4b) Does this activity (policy/strategy/service/decision) have the potential to impact 
(either positively or negatively) upon people (9 protected characteristics)? 
4c) Does this activity (policy/strategy/service/decision) have the potential to impact 
(either positively or negatively) upon any factors which determine people’s health 
and wellbeing? 

 If the answer to ANY of the questions 4a, 4b or 4c of the Checklist is ‘YES’ then 

you must carry out an assessment. e.g. Proposed changes to Contact Centre 

Opening Hours 

‘YES’ = you need to carry out an EqHIA 

 If the answer to ALL of the questions, 4a or 4b of the Checklist is NO, then you do 

not need to carry out an EqHIA assessment. e.g. Quarterly Performance Report 

‘NO’ = you DO NOT need to carry out an EqHIA. Please provide a clear 

explanation as to why you consider an EqHIA is not required for your activity.  

Using the Checklist 
The assessment should take into account all the potential impacts of the proposed activity, be it a 
major financial decision, or a seemingly simple policy change. Considering and completing this 
EqHIA will ensure that all Council plans, strategies, policies, procedures, services or other activity 
comply with relevant statutory obligations and responsibilities. In particular it helps the Council to 
meet its legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty and its 
public health duties under the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 

  

Page 227

https://www.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-guidance


15 

 

Having Due Regard 
To have due regard means that in making decisions and in its other day-to-day activities, the 
Council must consciously consider the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

 Advance equality of opportunity between different groups  

 Foster good relations between different groups 

 Reduce inequalities in health outcomes 

Combining Equality and Health Impact Assessment: 
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) provide a systematic way of ensuring that legal obligations 
are met. They assess whether a proposed policy, procedure, service change or plan will affect 
people different on the basis of their ‘protected characteristics’ and if it will affect their human 
rights. Currently there are nine protected characteristics (previously known as ‘equality groups’ 
or ‘equality strands’): age, disability, sex/gender, ethnicity/race, religion/faith, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, and pregnancy/ maternity/paternity. 
 
An activity does not need to impact on all 9 protected characteristics – impacting on just one is 
sufficient justification to complete an EqHIA. 
 
This Equality and Health Impact Assessment (EqHIA) brings together a single tool which will result 
in a set of recommendations to eliminate discrimination and inequality; enhance potential positive 
impacts and mitigate where possible for negative impacts.  
In conducting this EqHIA you will need to assess the impact (positive, neutral or negative) of your 
activity on individuals and groups with protected characteristics (this includes staff delivering 
your activity), socio-economic status and health & wellbeing. Guidance on what to include in 
each section is given on the next pages. 

What to include in background/context 

Guidance: What to include in background/context 

In this section you will need to add the background/context of your activity, i.e. what is the activity 
intending to do, and why?  
 
Make sure you include the scope and intended outcomes of the activity being assessed; and 
highlight any proposed changes. Please include a brief rationale for your activity and any 
supporting evidence for the proposal. Some questions to consider: 

 What is the aim, objectives and intended outcomes? 

 How does this activity meet the needs of the local population? 

 Has this activity been implemented in another area? What were the outcomes? 

 Is this activity being implemented as per best practice guidelines? 

 Who were the key stakeholders in this activity?                     *Note that the boxes will expand as 

required 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 228



16 

 

 

Who will be affected by the activity? 

Guidance: Who will be affected by the activity? 

The people who will be affected may be  

Residents: pay particular attention to vulnerable groups in the population who may be 
affected by this activity 

Businesses/ manufacturing / developers / small, medium or large enterprises 

Employees: e.g. Council staff for an internal activity, other statutory or voluntary sector 
employees, local businesses and services  

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

What to include in assessing a Protected Characteristic e.g. AGE 

Guidance: What to include in assessing a Protected Characteristic e.g. AGE 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact: In this section you will need to consider and note what 
impact your activity will have on individuals and groups (including staff) with 
protected characteristics based on the data and information you have.  You 
should note whether this is a positive, neutral or negative impact. 
 
It is essential that you note all negative impacts. This will demonstrate 
that you have paid ‘due regard’ to the Public Sector Equality Duty 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-
duty)  if your activity is challenged under the Equality Act. 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence: In this section you will need to document the evidence that you have used to assess 
the impact of your activity. 
 
When assessing the impact, please consider and note how your activity contributes to the three 
aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) as stated in the section above. 
 
It is essential that you note the full impact of your activity, so you can demonstrate that you have 
fully considered the equality implications and have paid ‘due regard’ to the PSED should the 
Council be challenged. 

- If you have identified a positive impact, please note this. 

- If you think there is a neutral impact or the impact is not known, please provide a full 

reason why this is the case.  

- If you have identified a negative impact, please note what steps you will take to mitigate 

this impact.  If you are unable to take any mitigating steps, please provide a full reason 

why.  All negative impacts that have mitigating actions must be recorded in the Action 

Plan. 

- Please ensure that appropriate consultation with affected parties has been 

undertaken and evidenced 

Page 229

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty


17 

 

 

Sources used: In this section you should list all sources of the evidence you used to assess the 

impact of your activity.  This can include: 

- Service specific data, benchmarking with other organisations, national best practice 

- Population, demographic and socio-economic data. Suggested sources include: 

o Service user monitoring data that your service collects 

o www.essexinsight.org.uk  

o Office for National Statistics (ONS)  

If you do not have any relevant data, please provide the reason why. 
*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

What to include in assessing Health & Wellbeing Impact: 

Guidance: What to include in assessing Health & Wellbeing Impact: 

Please tick () all 
the relevant 
boxes that apply: 

Overall impact: In this section you will need to consider and note whether the 
proposal could have an overall impact on, or implications for, people’s health 
and wellbeing or any factors which determine people’s health.  
 
How will the activity help address inequalities in health? 
 
Include here a brief outline of what could be done to enhance the positive 
impacts and, where possible, mitigate for the negative impacts. 
 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required  
Do you consider that a more in-depth HIA is required as a result of this 
brief assessment? Please tick () the relevant box 
                                                                           Yes              No                  

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence: In this section you will need to outline in more detail how you came to your conclusions 
above: 

 What is the nature of the impact?  

 Is the impact positive or negative? It is possible for an activity to have both positive and 

negative impacts. Consider here whether people will be able to access the service being 

offered; improve or maintain healthy lifestyles; improve their opportunities for 

employment/income; whether and how it will affect the environment in which they live 

(housing, access to parks & green space); what the impact on the family, social support and 

community networks might be 

 What can be done to mitigate the negative impacts and/or enhance the positive impacts? 

 If you think there is a neutral impact, or the impact is not known, please provide a brief 

reason why this is the case.  

 What is the likelihood of the impact? Will the impact(s) be in weeks, months or years? In some 

cases the short-term risks to health may be worth the longer term benefits. 

 Will the proposal affect different groups of people in different ways? A proposal that is likely to 

benefit one section of the community may not benefit others and could lead to inequalities in 

health. 

Please use the Health & Wellbeing Impact Tool in Appendix 2 as a guide/checklist to 
assess the potential wider determinants of health impacts. 
 

Page 230

http://www.essexinsight.org.uk/
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadHome.do?m=0&s=1404997243690&enc=1&nsjs=true&nsck=false&nssvg=false&nswid=1020


18 

 

This tool will help guide your thinking as to what factors affect people’s health and wellbeing, such 
as social support, their housing conditions, access to transport, employment, education, crime 
and disorder and environmental factors. It is not an exhaustive list, merely a tool to guide your 
assessment; there may be other factors specific to your activity. 
 
Some questions you may wish to ask include: 

 Will the activity impact on people’s ability to socialise, potentially leading to social isolation? 

 Will the activity affect a person’s income and/or have an effect on their housing status? 

 Is the activity likely to cause the recipient of a service more or less stress? 

 Will any change in the service take into account different needs, such as those with 
learning difficulties? 

 Will the activity affect the health and wellbeing of persons not directly related to the 
service/activity, such as carers, family members, other residents living nearby? 

 If there is a short-term negative effect, what will be done to minimise the impact as much 
as possible? 

 Are the longer-term impacts positive or negative? What will be done to either promote the 
positive effects or minimise the negative effects?  

 Do the longer term positive outcomes outweigh the short term impacts? 
 
 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 
 

Sources used: In this section you should list all sources of the evidence you used to assess the 

impact of your activity.  This could include, e.g.: 

Information on the population affected 

- Routinely collected local statistics (e.g. quality of life, health status, unemployment, crime, 

air quality, educational attainment, transport etc.) 

- Local research/ Surveys of local conditions 

- Community profiles i.e. Uttlesford JSNA 

Wider Evidence 
- Published Research, including evidence about similar proposals implemented elsewhere 

(e.g. Case Studies). 

- Predictions from local or national models 

- Locally commissioned research by statutory/voluntary/private organisations 

Expert Opinion 
- Views of residents and professionals with local knowledge and insight 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

Outcome of the Assessment 

Guidance: Outcome of the Assessment 

On reflection, what is your overall assessment of the activity? 
 
The purpose of conducting this assessment is to offer an opportunity to think, reflect and improve 
the proposed activity. It will make sure that the Council can evidence that it has considered its due 
regard to equality and health & wellbeing to its best ability. 
 
It is not expected that all proposals will be immediately without negative impacts! However, where 
these arise, what actions can be taken to mitigate against potential negative effects, or further 
promote the positive impacts? 
 

Page 231



19 

 

Please tick one of the 3 boxes in this section to indicate whether you think: 
1. all equality and health impacts are adequately addressed in the activity – proceed with your 

activity pending all other relevant approval processes 

2. The assessment identified some negative impacts which could be addressed – please 

complete the Action Plan in Section 4. 

3. If the assessment reveals some significant concerns, this is the time to stop and re-think, 

making sure that we spend our Council resources wisely and fairly. There is no shame in 

stopping a proposal. 

*Note that the boxes will expand as required 

 

 

 

Action Plan 

Guidance: Action Plan 

For each protected characteristic/health & wellbeing impact where an impact on people or their 
lives has been identified, complete one row of the action plan. You can add as many further rows 
as required. 
 
State whether the impact is Positive or Negative 
 
Briefly outline the actions that can be taken to mitigate against the negative impact or further 
enhance a positive impact. These actions could be to make changes to the activity itself (service, 
proposal, strategy etc.) or to make contingencies/alterations in the setting/environment where the 
activity will take place. 
 
For example, might staff need additional training in communicating effectively with people with 
learning difficulties, if a new service is opened specifically targeting those people? Is access to the 
service fair and equitable? What will the impact on other service users be? How can we ensure 
equity of access to the service by all users? Will any signage need changing? Does the building 
where the service being delivered comply with disability regulations? 
 

 

Review 

Guidance: Review 

Changes happen all the time. A service/strategy/policy/activity that is appropriate at one time, may 
no longer be appropriate as the environment around us changes. This may be changes in our 
population, growth and makeup, legislative changes, environmental changes or socio-political 
changes. 
 
Although we can’t predict what’s going to happen in the future, a review is recommended to 
ensure that what we are delivering as a Council is still the best use of our limited resources. The 
timescale for review will be dependent on the scale of the activity. 
 
A major financial investment may require a review every 2-3 years for a large scale regeneration 
project over 10-15 years. 
 

Page 232



20 

 

A small policy change may require a review in 6 months to assess whether there are any 
unintended outcomes of such a change. 
 
Please indicate here how frequently it is expected to review your activity and a brief justification as 
to why this timescale is recommended. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Guidance: Key Contacts 
 

For further advice or information contact your Divisional Equality Lead Officer 

Division/Services Head of Division/Services Tel.No. 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

Page 233



21 

 

Appendix 2. Health & Wellbeing Impact Tool 
Will the activity/service/policy/procedure affect any of the following characteristics? Please tick/check the boxes below 
The following are a range of considerations that might help you to complete the assessment. 

Lifestyle             YES    NO   Personal circumstances    YES    NO   Access to services/facilities/amenities YES    NO   
  Diet 

  Exercise and physical activity 

  Smoking  

  Exposure to passive smoking 

  Alcohol intake 

  Dependency on prescription drugs 

  Illicit drug and substance use 

  Risky Sexual behaviour 

  Other health-related behaviours, such 
as tooth-brushing, bathing, and wound 
care 

  Structure and cohesion of family unit 

  Parenting 

  Childhood development 

  Life skills 

  Personal safety 

  Employment status 

  Working conditions 

  Level of income, including benefits 

  Level of disposable income 

  Housing tenure 

  Housing conditions 

  Educational attainment 

  Skills levels including literacy and numeracy 

  to Employment opportunities 

  to Workplaces 

  to Housing 

  to Shops (to supply basic needs) 

  to Community facilities 

  to Public transport 

  to Education 

  to Training and skills development 

  to Healthcare 

  to Social services 

  to Childcare 

  to Respite care 

  to Leisure and recreation services and facilities 

Social Factors   YES    NO   Economic Factors   YES    NO   Environmental Factors   YES    NO   
  Social contact 

  Social support 

  Neighbourliness 

  Participation in the community 

  Membership of community groups 

  Reputation of community/area 

  Participation in public affairs 

  Level of crime and disorder 

  Fear of crime and disorder 

  Level of antisocial behaviour 

  Fear of antisocial behaviour 

  Discrimination 

  Fear of discrimination 

  Public safety measures 

  Road safety measures 

  Creation of wealth 

  Distribution of wealth 

  Retention of wealth in local area/economy 

  Distribution of income 

  Business activity 

  Job creation 

  Availability of employment opportunities 

  Quality of employment opportunities 

  Availability of education opportunities 

  Quality of education opportunities 

  Availability of training and skills development opportunities 

  Quality of training and skills development opportunities 

  Technological development 

  Amount of traffic congestion 

  Air quality 

  Water quality 

  Soil quality/Level of contamination/Odour 

  Noise levels 

  Vibration 

  Hazards 

  Land use 

  Natural habitats 

  Biodiversity 

  Landscape, including green and open spaces 

  Townscape, including civic areas and public realm 

  Use/consumption of natural resources 

  Energy use: CO2/other greenhouse gas emissions 

  Solid waste management 

  Public transport infrastructure 

 

P
age 234



Budget amendment for the Council meeting on 22nd February 2022 

 

Motion to amend the budget to include a one-off rebate to those residents in 

Uttlesford who are in receipt of Local Council Tax Support but still have to 

pay some Council Tax. 

Proposed by Cllr Ayub Khan Liberal Democrats. Member for Stansted South & Birchanger. 

Seconded by Cllr Vere Isham Green Party.  Member for Takeley 

The amendment: 

The cost-of-living crisis has been growing in scale and impact over the last six months, with inflation 

reaching historic levels and yet to peak. Those on the lowest incomes are most exposed. 

Whilst the crisis is already affecting households across Uttlesford, it is set to deepen further with 
rising inflation as well as a planned National Insurance hike in April.  The increase in energy prices 
will push more of our households into fuel poverty.  The Citizens Advice service in Uttlesford has 
seen a 35% rise in people accessing fuel debt advice in 2021 

The Government has announced some assistance with a £150 payment to households in properties 
rated A to D.  In addition, they have made provision for a £200 bill credit loan for households which 
will be automatically added to bills in October and then repaid by those households in equal 
instalments over four years from April 2023.  

Data provided by the Section 151 Officer indicates that as of 31st January 2022, there are currently 
3,334 claimants in Uttlesford who qualify for the Local Council Tax Support Scheme.  All claimants 
are subjected to means testing to determine the percentage they must pay.  However, low-income 
pensioners and vulnerable people are protected, and receive 100% discount. Working age people, 
which equated to 948 of the claimants only receive partial support as per the Council’s Local Council 
Tax Support Policy and are required to pay a minimum of 12.5% of the Council Tax bill.  

We propose to help these people by providing a one-off cash rebate of £100 per household. The 
qualifying date to be eligible for the rebate was 31 January 2022. The rebate would be allocated to 
the household’s Council Tax account. The total cost would be £94,800 to be funded from the MTFS 
Reserve.  

Even after providing a £100 rebate, each of the 948 households will still have a Council Tax liability. 
Nobody will end up in the situation whereby the Local Council Tax Support they receive plus the 
£100 will be more than their Council Tax bill.  

Supporting this amendment, Members will send a very strong message to low-income families in our 
district that we are helping them through targeted action at this time of high inflation, low benefit 
levels and soaring energy costs. 

Supported by: 

Cllr Melvin Caton, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Alan Dean, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Janice Loughlin, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Geoffrey Sell, Liberal Democrats 

Cllr Barbara Light, Green Party 

Cllr Paul Fairhurst, Green Party 

Page 235



Committee: Council Date: 

22 February 2022 
Title: Pay Policy Statement 

Report 
Author 

Richard Auty, Assistant Director – Corporate 
Services 

rauty@uttlesford.gov.uk  

 

 

 
Summary 
 

1. There is a requirement under the Localism Act 2011 for councils to publish an 
annual Pay Policy Statement which sets out the pay and remuneration of its 
employees for the forthcoming year.  

2. The policy also includes data on the gender pay gap. Publication of this data is 
required by the Equalities Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Authorities). 

Recommendations 
 

3. Council is recommended to: 

I. Approve the Pay Policy Statement 

II. Grant delegated authority to the Assistant Director – Corporate 
Services to update the Pay Policy Statement and associated 
documents with pay multiple and average salary figures as at 31 
March 2022 and with revised salary information once the 
2021/22 & 2022/23 national pay awards are agreed. 

III. Decide whether it wishes to debate the Pay Policy Statement at 
this meeting or defer debate until all figures are updated as per 
paragraphs 11 and 12 below. 

Financial Implications 
 

4. There are no implications for the Council’s budget beyond those approved as 
part of the 2022/23 budget setting process 

 
Background Papers 

 
5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 

report and are available for inspection from the author of the report. 
 

None 
 

Impact  
 

6.   

Page 236

Agenda Item 9

mailto:rauty@uttlesford.gov.uk


 

Communication/Consultation None 

Community Safety None 

Equalities None 

Health and Safety None 

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications 

None 

Sustainability None 

Ward-specific impacts None 

Workforce/Workplace The policy sets out the council’s 
remuneration scheme for staff 

 
Situation 
 

7. The Localism Act 2011 put in place a requirement for Councils to approve a 
Pay Policy Statement before the start of each financial year. The Pay Policy 
Statement will be used for the forthcoming year to determine recruitment, 
retention and reward for existing and new staff. 

8. All relevant legislation, government directives and guidance notes have been 
used to compile this Pay Policy Statement. 

9. In accordance with the Council’s wish to demonstrate transparency, and to 
comply with the requirements of the Localism Act, the Pay Policy Statement 
and associated documents will be published on the Council’s website. 

10. Delegated authority is sought to update figures in three sections of the Pay 
Policy Statement during the 2022/23 year without the need to bring the policy 
back to Full Council for further approval: 

Pay Multiple, Average Salaries and Cost of Living Increases 
 

11. Under the Localism Act the Council is required to publish pay multiple data. 
This is the ratio between the highest paid taxable earnings and the median 
earnings figure of the Council’s workforce and is in section 6 of the Pay Policy 
Statement. The Act specifies the Pay Multiple should be calculated using 
figures as at 31 March. There is also a requirement to publish average salary 
data as at 31 March as in section 10 of the statement. Given the need to 
approve the Pay Policy Statement before 1 April and the logic in presenting 
the Pay Policy Statement alongside the budget for the forthcoming year at the 
February Full Council meeting, it is not possible to include the current year’s 
data. Instead, the statement includes last year’s data which at the time of 
submitting the report is the most recent available. 

Page 237



 

12. At the time of publishing the Pay Policy Statement, there has been no 
agreement regarding the 2021/2022 and 2022/23 annual cost of living 
increases, which are negotiated on behalf of councils between the Local 
Government Association and Trade Unions. Once agreement is reached, the 
Council’s published pay scales, which are linked from the Pay Policy 
Statement, will be updated. 

13. Full Council is therefore requested to approve The Pay Policy Statement as 
attached and delegate responsibility to the Assistant Director – Corporate 
Services to update the published Pay Policy Statement with this year’s Pay 
Multiple and average salary figures as at 31 March 2022. The pay scale 
information on the Council’s website will also be updated when possible. 

14. Members are invited to indicate if they would like to set aside time in a future 
Council meeting once the figures have been updated to discuss the revised 
Pay Policy Statement. 

Risk Analysis 
 

15.  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

Council does not 
approve the Pay 
Policy by 31 
March deadline 

1 – the Pay 
Policy 
Statement is 
presented in 
advance of the 
deadline. It 
summarises 
established 
schemes and 
practices and 
contains data 
that is 
mandated by 
Government 

3 – the council 
would be in 
breach of the 
Localism Act 
and Equalities 
Act 

The Pay Policy 
Statement is 
presented well ahead 
of the deadline for 
publication 

 
1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 

 

Page 238



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pay Policy Statement 

2022/23 

 

 

 

Published  

April 2022 
 

 

  

Page 239



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             2 

 

 

Contents 
 

Section Description 
 

Page 

1 Background 
 

3 

2 Introduction 
 

3 

3 Terms & Conditions of Employment 
 

4 

4 Remuneration arrangements of Chief Officers 
 

4 

5 Remuneration of employees who are not Chief Officers 
 

5 

6 Pay Multiple  
 

5 

7 Increments in Pay 
 

6 

8 Annual Cost of Living Award 
 

6 

9 Living Wage 
 

6 

10 Average Salaries 
 

7 

11 Salary Ranges 
 

7 

12 Pay Protection 
 

7 

13 Job Evaluation 
 

8 

14 Additional Payments 
 

8 

15 Career Progression Scheme 
 

11 

16 Pensions 
 

11 

17 Severance Payments 
 

11 

18 Gender Pay Gap 
 

12 

19 More Information and Help 
 

13 

 

  

Page 240



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             3 

 

1. Background 

Localism Act 2011 – Openness and accountability in local pay 

1.1. Section 38(1) of the Localism Act requires local authorities to produce an 

annual pay policy statement. 

 

1.2. The provisions in the Act do not seek to change the right of each local 

authority to have autonomy on pay decisions, however, it emphasises the 

need to deliver value for money for local taxpayers. 

 

1.3. This statement has been approved by Full Council on 22 February 2022 and 

any proposed changes during the year will be brought back to Full Council for 

decision at the earliest opportunity, except where Full Council has already 

granted delegated authority. 

 

1.4. This statement applies to all Council employees (except Apprenticeships and 

other national trainee schemes which are subject to the relevant national pay 

schemes). 

Local Government Transparency Code 2015 

1.5. The Council follows the transparency requirements on remuneration as set 

out in the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 (“the Code”), 

published by the Department for Communities and Local Government in 

February 2015, and the Local Transparency Guidance issued on 30 

November 2015 by the Local Government Association. 

 

1.6. Part of the Code includes publishing information relating to senior salaries 

within a local authority. A full list of all posts that are paid £50,000 or more 

per year that fall within the scope of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015 is published on the Council’s website here. 

 

2. Introduction 

 

2.1. The Council recognises that to attract, retain and motivate quality employees, 

fair and equitable pay and reward processes need to be adopted and 

managed.  These processes should be based on the current and future 

requirements of the organisation.  They should also recognise that changes 

in both employee expectations and motivational needs, along with influential 

external factors such as labour market conditions, need to be continually 

considered and managed through these policies. 

 

2.2. Robust pay and reward processes provide clarification and understanding of 

what contributions and responsibilities are required of employees at all levels 

Page 241

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5263/Senior-Staff-Pay


Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             4 

 

and how their input is recognised and rewarded.  It also supports the 

identification of the required values, behaviours and performance levels of 

the organisation in order for it to meet its key corporate and operational 

goals. 

 

2.3. All of the policies referred to in this document have been formulated in 

accordance with local and national pay and reward standards and guidance.  

 

2.4. Employees will only be paid in accordance with the conditions outlined in this 

document. 

 

3. Terms and Conditions of Employment 

 

3.1. For all roles, the terms and conditions of employment are in accordance with 

the following collective agreements/policies:  

 

 the National Joint Council for Local Government Services, set out in 

the Scheme of Conditions of Service (commonly known as the Green 

Book), as adopted by or on behalf of the Council  

 

 the East of England Regional Council for Local Government 

Employees Regional Agreements, as adopted by or on behalf of the 

Council 

 

 local collective agreements reached with trade unions recognised by 

the Council and 

 the policies of the Council.  

 
In addition, the Council may from time to time adopt procedures which affects 

the terms and conditions of service. Local Agreements or those adopted by 

the Council will prevail over those agreed nationally or regionally. 

4. Remuneration arrangements of Chief Officers 

 

4.1. For the purpose of this policy only, the term ‘Chief Officer’ is defined as: 

 Any member of the Corporate Management Team (CMT) 

 Any senior role on the pay grades 12 to 15 

 

4.2. Roles that are evaluated on Grades 12 to 15 have an independent salary 

grade scheme applied to them which is determined locally. 

 

4.3. The salary grades for Chief Officers from April 2022 are outlined in the table 

below:  

Page 242



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             5 

 

 

Role Grade Minimum 
Annual Salary 

Maximum Annual 
Salary 

Chief Executive 15 £116,608 £122,006 

Directors 14 £92,854 £96,094 

Assistant Directors 13 £71,260 £74,500 

Senior Managers 12 £53,985 £57,225 

NOTE: At the time of publishing this statement the NJC annual cost of living 

increase for 2021/22 & 2022/23 had not yet been agreed.  

 

4.4. Appointments of the Chief Executive and the Statutory Officers are approved 

by Full Council. 

 

5. Remuneration arrangements of employees who are not Chief Officers 

 

5.1. The Council adopts the recognised National Joint Council (NJC) salary 

grades (grades 3 to 11) for all other employees as detailed in the ‘Green 

Book’ (see here).  These are developed through negotiations with Local 

Government employers and trade unions and are updated and applied in line 

with national circumstances.  Each salary grade has incremental rises called 

Spinal Column Points (SCP). 

 

6. Pay Multiple 

 

6.1. The ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid taxable earnings and 

the median earnings figure of the whole of the Council’s workforce. The 

Council’s highest paid employee is the Chief Executive and the current pay 

multiple is shown in the table below. 

 

6.2. Earnings for the purpose of calculating the ‘pay multiple’ are defined covering 

all elements of remuneration that can be valued (e.g. all taxable earnings for 

2021/22 including base salary, variable pay, bonuses, allowances and the 

cash value of any benefits in kind). The calculation of earnings excludes the 

cash value of pension provision. 

 

6.3. The Council defines its lowest paid employees as those staff members 

whose role is evaluated at Grade 3 on the NJC salary grades. The reason for 

this definition is that this is the lowest grade in the Council. This excludes 

trainees and apprentices. The authority offers opportunities for 

apprenticeships and other national schemes such as school work experience 

placements. Apprenticeships have their own national pay scheme and are 

therefore outside of this policy. 

 

 

Page 243

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/for-jobs/article/6140/Pay-Policy


Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             6 

 

 

Description 2021/2022 (FTE) 

Highest Paid £123,012 

Median £28,817 

Lowest £20,092 

Highest to median ratio 4.3:1 

Highest to lowest ratio 6.1:1 
*the salary for the highest paid employee (Chief Executive) includes an allowance paid for Returning 

Officer duties as outlined in paragraph 14. In 2021/22 there was one by election, which is why the 

above figure is more than the maximum annual salary in 4.3 above. As outlined in the covering report, 

the figures in red are last year’s figures. This year’s figures cannot be calculated until the March 2022 

payroll has been run and we will therefore update this statement with the new figures in time for 

publishing in April. 

 

7. Increments in Pay 

 

7.1. For all roles, increments in pay normally occur on an annual basis, subject to 

satisfactory performance demonstrated through the council’s UPerform 

appraisal scheme.  The increment reflects a move to the next level SCP 

within a grade.  Once a role has reached the highest SCP within a grade 

there will be no further incremental pay awards. 

 

7.2. It is expected that new recruits will commence their employment on the 

minimum point of the grade, except in exceptional circumstances. 

 

8. Annual cost of living award 

 

8.1. For all roles, an annual ‘cost of living’ salary increase is applied in 

accordance with the National Joint Council (NJC). At the time of publishing 

this statement the NJC annual cost of living increase for 2021/22 & 2022/23 

had not yet been agreed 

 

9. Living Wage 

 

9.1. The Living Wage is an hourly rate set independently, updated annually and is 

calculated according to the basic cost of living using the “Minimum Income 

Standard” for the UK. 

 

9.2. In January 2015, The Living Wage Foundation accredited the Council as a 

Living Wage Employer.  

 

9.3. The Living Wage commitment will see that everyone working at the Council, 

regardless of whether they are permanent employees or third-party 

contractors and suppliers; receive a minimum hourly wage of at least the 

Living Wage. The minimum hourly rate that we pay our employees is £10.41 

Page 244



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             7 

 

which is significantly higher than the National Living Wage of £9.50 per hour 

and the Real Living Wage of £9.90 per hour. 

 

 

 

10. Average Salaries 

 

10.1. Based on staffing levels at the time of issuing this policy the approximate 

mean average salary for non-Chief Officer employees is £29,583 and the 

median salary is £27,741. 

 

10.2. The minimum salary of our employees is £20,092 FTE, Grade 3.  

 

10.3. Based on staffing levels at the time of issuing this policy the mean average 

salary for Chief Officers is £73,204 and the median is £74,500. 
As outlined in the covering report, the figures in red are last year’s figures. This year’s figures cannot 

be calculated until the March 2022 payroll has been run and we will therefore update this statement 

with the new figures in time for publishing in April 

 

10.4. At the time of publishing this statement the NJC annual cost of living increase 

for 2021/22 and 2022/23 had not yet been agreed.  

 

11. Salary Ranges 

 

11.1. It is the council’s policy that the salary range for the role of Chief Executive 

will normally be no greater than seven times the average salary of a Grade 3 

‘Green Book’ employee.  

 

11.2. It is the council’s policy that the salary range for the role of Director will 

normally be no greater than five times the average salary of a Grade 3 

‘Green Book’ employee. 

 

11.3. It is the council’s policy that the salary range for the role of Assistant Director 

will normally be no greater than four times the average salary of a Grade 3 

‘Green Book’ employee. 

 

11.4. All annual salaries are paid pro rata to part time working officers based on the 

number of hours they are contracted to work. 

 

12. Pay Protection 

 

12.1. The Council operates a pay protection policy which provides a mechanism to 

assist employees to adjust to a reduction in pay arising from organisational 

change, job evaluation or redeployment.  Pay protection will apply to 

Page 245



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             8 

 

permanent employees from the effective date of the change of grade for a 

period of two years as follows: 

 

 Where the alternative suitable employment within the Council is at a 

lower grade, pay protection will be up to a maximum of one grade only 

from the highest SCP of that lower graded post regardless of the 

employee’s grade in their previous role for the first year following 

redeployment 

 

 Pay protection for the second year will reduce to 50% of the amount 

paid in the first year. 

 

13. Job Evaluation 

 

13.1. The salary grades and therefore the remuneration levels of employees are 

determined by the use of a job evaluation scheme. Job evaluation is a 

systematic process used to determine the relative worth of jobs within the 

organisation. It creates a rank order from the smallest to the largest job and 

ensures that consistent decisions in grades and rates of pay are made. 

 

13.2. A job will be evaluated when a new role is created or a current post has 

significantly changed. 

 

13.3. The Council uses two job evaluation schemes dependent on the expected 

outcome of the role being evaluated as follows: 

 

Expected Grade outcome Job Evaluation Scheme 

Grade 3 to Grade 11 The Council’s agreed Scheme 

Grade 12 and above The Hay Scheme 

 

14. Additional Payments 

 

14.1. Fees for Election Duties 

 

14.1.1. The Council has a duty to appoint a Returning Officer for all elections that it 

runs. For District and Parish elections, the Returning Officer fee is met by the 

District Council.  This fee, and the fees of all other people employed by the 

Returning Officer, is paid in accordance with the Council’s agreed scale of 

fees and expenses for elections. For national elections/referendums the fees 

are paid in accordance with the appropriate Statutory Fees and Charges 

order. 

 

14.2. Acting-up Payments 

Page 246



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             9 

 

 

14.2.1. Acting up payments are awarded where employees temporarily undertake 

duties at a higher grade. Payment is usually made where an employee is 

covering over 20% of the duties of the higher-grade post.  The amount 

payable is calculated by assessing the percentage of the higher-level post 

covered and the difference between the employee’s current salary and the 

minimum of the grade of the post covered. 

 

14.3. Secondments 

 

14.3.1. The authority provides the opportunity for employees to undertake roles on a 

secondment basis.  In most cases the secondee will be paid at the same 

level as their substantive post however, where the secondment post is of a 

higher pay band than their current role, a higher salary may be applied for the 

secondment period.  This salary will be agreed by all relevant managers and 

HR representatives. 

 

14.4. Essential User Car Allowance and Mileage Rates 

 

14.4.1. The authority pays an Essential User Car Allowance to roles that meet the 

specified criteria.  Where officers require the use of a vehicle to complete 

their day-to-day responsibilities, business mileage can be claimed. Essential 

user car allowance is only available to those qualifying people on salary 

grades up to and including Grade 11. 

 

14.4.2. Any such allowances and mileage payments are calculated and applied in 

accordance with the HM Revenue and Customs rates. 

 

14.5. Excess Travel Allowance 

 

14.5.1. Additional travelling expenses can be claimed by employees when their work 

base is changed by circumstances beyond their control or they are 

transferred to a new work base.  The Officer is paid an allowance equal to the 

difference between the cost of travelling from their home to their new work 

place and from their home to their original workplace.  The allowance is paid 

for a maximum period of three years from the date of transfer and is agreed 

within the scope of the ‘Green Book’ conditions. 

 

14.6. Meeting Allowances 

 

14.6.1. Officers graded at ‘Green Book’ Grade 7 to Grade 12 can claim an allowance 

for attendance at evening and out of hours meetings relating to council 

business.   

Page 247



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             10 

 

 

14.7. Overtime, Standby and Recall, and Emergency Response Payments 

 

14.7.1. Officers on SCP 27 and below may be entitled to overtime payments if they 

work beyond their normal contracted hours and have the agreement of their 

line manager. They will be paid at time and a half, Monday to Saturday, and 

double time on Sundays at their hourly rate of pay, capped at SCP 27. Chief 

Officers have the discretion to authorise overtime payments above SCP 27 

should they consider it appropriate. 

 

14.7.2. Standby and Recall to Work payments apply if officers, in respect of their 

contracted duties, are required to be on a call out rota or list, or respond to 

calls outside of normal working hours.  Eligibility for standby and recall to 

work payments will be confirmed in the terms and conditions of the officer’s 

contract of employment and details are set out here. 

 

14.7.3. Officers who respond to a civil emergency either in the district or through 

mutual aid arrangements with other local authorities, are eligible for payment 

in line with the Council’s overtime arrangements. 

 

14.8. Market Supplements 

 

14.8.1. The authority does not normally apply market supplement payments to any 

role.  If however, the employment market dictates the need to apply a 

supplement to a particular role; this will be applied in accordance with a new 

policy.  

 

14.9. Long Service Awards 

 

14.9.1. The authority acknowledges the importance of employees who are committed 

to their work and wishes to reward the loyalty of those who have Long 

Service with the Council.  Long Service Awards are given upon the 

successful completion of 20, 30 and 40 continuous service at the Council or 

one of its predecessor authorities as follows: 

 

Completed Years’ Service Reward 

20 £250 of vouchers 

30 £500 of vouchers 

40 £750 of vouchers 

 

14.10. Childcare Vouchers 

 

14.11. The Government launched a new scheme designed to assist employees with 

their childcare costs in 2018. The Council will continue to offer the Childcare 

Page 248

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/for-jobs/article/6140/Pay-Policy


Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             11 

 

Voucher scheme to existing users who entered the scheme on or before 4 

October 2018 for as long as there is a demand and taxation advantage to 

offering it. 

 

 

14.12. Vine Extras 

 

14.13. From April 2016 the authority has subscribed to Vine Extras. This is a reward 

gateway to a large number of retailers where employees can make savings 

on purchases. The cost to the authority is £4.20 per employee. As at 31 

December 2021 there were 226 registered users who had placed 3679 

orders with a total value of £288,940. 

 

15. Career Progression Schemes 

 

15.1. In some areas of the authority officers are offered progression in their roles 

through a career progression scheme.  Within such schemes, progression is 

usually awarded after successful completion of particular qualifications or 

work experience.  Details of the scheme and how it will be applied to an 

individual will be documented in their contract of employment. 

 

16. Pension 

 

16.1. The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is open to all new and 

existing employees of the authority. This is a qualifying pension scheme, 

which means it meets or exceeds the government’s standards. Details of the 

scheme can be found here. 

 

16.2. Details of the Council’s policy and decisions in respect of discretionary 

elements of the Scheme are published on the council’s website here. 

 

17. Severance Payments 

 

17.1. On cessation of employment from the authority, officers including Chief 

Officers will only receive compensation: 

(a) in circumstances that are relevant e.g. redundancy 
(b) in the application of any employer discretions provided by the LGPS 

and/or 
(c) that complies with the specific term(s) of a Settlement Agreement. 

 

17.2. The authority adopts an early retirement policy (see here). 

 

Page 249

https://www.essexpensionfund.co.uk/
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/for-jobs/article/6140/Pay-Policy
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/for-jobs/article/6140/Pay-Policy


Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             12 

 

17.3. In exceptional circumstances to avoid or settle a claim or potential dispute, 

the authority may agree payment of a settlement sum through the issue of a 

Settlement Agreement.  All cases will be overseen by the Legal Department 

in conjunction with the relevant line manager to ensure all legal, financial and 

contractual responsibilities have been met and all settlement agreements 

must be signed off by a Director or the Chief Executive. If a settlement sum is 

in excess of £100,000, and/or paid to the Chief Executive, it must be agreed 

by Full Council. 

 

18. Gender Pay Gap 

 

18.1. The Equalities Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 

2017 came into force on 31 March 2017. The Regulations require employers 

to report on the gender pay gap within their organisation. 

 

18.2. The gender pay gap is a measurement of the difference between men and 

women’s average salaries. It is not about men and women being paid 

differently for the same job, which has been prohibited by equal pay 

legislation since 1975. 

 

18.3. The UK’s gender pay gap has fallen over time. In 2007 it was 25%, while the 

Office for National Statistics (ONS) published in October 2021 put the figure 

at 15.4% a slight increase from 14.9% in 2020, but is still down from 17.4% in 

2019. 

 

18.4. The 2017 Regulations apply to defined public sector bodies (including 

councils) with at least 250 employees and require the publication of the 

following four measures of information based on a snapshot of pay 

information taken on 31 March: 

 

18.5. The Council’s Gender Pay Gap Information as at 31 March 2021 (snapshot 

date) is as follows:  

 

18.6. The Council had a total of 324 employees, 150 (46%) were males and 174 

(54%) were females. 

 

1. The difference between the average (mean and median) hourly rate of 

pay for male and female employees 

 

 

 Mean Hourly 
Rate 

Median Hourly Rate 

Male £16.41 £13.74 

Female £16.58 £14.85 

Page 250



Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 Draft V2 
                                                                                             13 

 

Difference in hourly rate of pay  -1% -8.1% 

 

 

2. The difference between the average (mean and median) bonuses paid to 

male and female employees over the period of 12 months ending with the 

snapshot date of 31 March 

No bonuses were paid 

3. The proportion of male employees, and of female employees who were 

paid bonuses during the period of 12 months ending with the snapshot 

date 

 

No bonuses were paid 

 

4. The proportion of male and female employees in each quartile (from 
highest paid to lowest paid) of the pay distribution (81 employees in each 
quartile) 
 

 No. of male 
employees 

No. of 
female 

employees 

Percentage 
of male 

employees 

Percentage 
of female 

employees 

Quartile 1  44 37 54 46 

Quartile 2 28 53 35 65 

Quartile 3 26 55 32 68 

Quartile 4 52 29 64 36 

 

 

Commentary 

  

18.7. The figures demonstrate there are no significant gender pay gap issues at 

Uttlesford District Council and that women are paid higher on average. 

 

18.8. The council continues to be an equal opportunities employer and offers a 

range of flexible working options for women and men alike.  

 

19. More information and help 

 

19.1. All associated documents listed in this policy are available on the council’s 

website here. If you have any queries about this Statement please email: 

humanresources@uttlesford.gov.uk, or call on 01799 510424. 

Page 251

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/for-jobs/article/6140/Pay-Policy
mailto:humanresources@uttlesford.gov.uk


Committee: Council Date: Tuesday 22 
February 2022 

 
Title: Business Rates Reliefs and Supporting Grants 

Report 
Author: 

Angela Knight – Assistant Director of Resources 

aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk 

Sue Ellis – Revenues Manager 

sellis@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 
Summary 
 

1. In response to the public health emergency, Corona Virus (Covid-19) the Government 
is providing additional financial support to businesses. 

a) Extension of Retail Relief Scheme for 2022-2023 only 

b) Extension to the Transitional & Supporting Small Businesses scheme 
2022/2023 only 

c) Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund 2021/2022 backdated award  

d) Business Support Grants Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant one off 
grants of up to £6,000 

2. The Retail, Hospitality and Leisure business rate relief has been continued for the 
2022/2023 financial year at a rate of 50%.  This will be up to a cash cap limit of 
£110,000. The relief applies to occupied retail, leisure, hospitality, and certain other 
high street businesses, the scheme is not limited by rateable value. Businesses have 
the option to opt out of this relief but once they have opted out, they do not have the 
option to opt back into the scheme. 

3. Extension of Transitional & Supporting Small Businesses scheme. Properties that will 
benefit will be those with a rateable value up to and including £100,000. These 
schemes were due to end on the 31st of March 2022 and as a result a small number of 
rate payers would have seen a jump to their full rates bill from 1st April 2022. 

4. Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund 2021/2022 only, the fund will be available to support 
those businesses affected by the pandemic, but that were ineligible for existing 
support linked to business rates. The Council has been given a funding of 
£2,413,406 to allocate to businesses. 

5. Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant, the scheme provides a one-off grant to 
support hospitality, leisure, and accommodation businesses in recognition that the 
rise of the Omicron variant means that some businesses are likely to struggle over 
the coming weeks.  The grant is payable to businesses occupying rate paying 
premises and the level of the award is based on rateable value. 
 

Recommendations 
 

6. It is requested that the Council approves the updated Business Rates Relief Policy 
as set out in this report and Appendix A, using its discretionary powers under S47 of 
the Local Government Act 1988 (as amended) to include;  

a) Extension of Retail Relief Scheme for 2022-2023 only 

b) Extension to the Transitional & Supporting Small Businesses scheme 
2022/2023 only 

Page 252

Agenda Item 10



7. It is further requested that Council notes this report for the additional Covid 19 grants 
and funding, set out in this report and Appendices B and C determined by an urgent 
Officer Decision 

c) the Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant 

d) Covid 19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF) 

Financial Implications 

8. Government will reimburse Local Authorities that use their discretionary relief powers 
under S47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended) for the 
additional rate relief. 

9. All grant payments will be fully reimbursed using a grant under S31 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 2003. 

10. New burdens funding will also be provided to support the cost of the administration of 
the new reliefs and grants. 

Background Papers 
 

11. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this report 
and are available for inspection from the author of the report. 

 
2022/23 Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Relief Scheme: local authority guidance - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 
Extension to Transitional Relief and Supporting Small Businesses Scheme 

 
Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund 

 
Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant: guidance for Local Authorities 
(publishing.service.gov.uk) 

 
 
Impact  

Communication/Consultation N/A 

Community Safety N/A 

Equalities N/A 

Health and Safety N/A 

Human Rights/Legal Implications N/A 

Sustainability N/A 

Ward-specific impacts N/A 

Workforce/Workplace N/A 

 
 
 
 
Situation 

Page 253

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=565
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=565
http://0.0.7.230/23%20Retail,%20Hospitality%20and%20Leisure%20Relief%20Scheme:%20local%20authority%20guidance%20-%20GOV.UK%20(www.gov.uk)
http://0.0.7.230/23%20Retail,%20Hospitality%20and%20Leisure%20Relief%20Scheme:%20local%20authority%20guidance%20-%20GOV.UK%20(www.gov.uk)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/business-rates-guidance-extension-of-transitional-relief-and-supporting-small-business-relief-for-small-and-medium-properties
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-additional-relief-fund-carf-local-authority-guidance?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_source=80e66d5f-a35d-43e9-b44f-0a16470dd4e5&utm_content=immediately
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1044354/omicron-hospitality-and-leisure-grant-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1044354/omicron-hospitality-and-leisure-grant-guidance.pdf


 
12. In response to the Corona Virus emergency and subsequent trading restrictions on 

businesses, the government have provided additional support for businesses whilst 
they were unable to operate. 

13. This support consists of the extension to the retail, hospitality and leisure relief and 
the transitional and supporting small businesses scheme for 2022/23. In addition a 
Covid 19 Retail Relief (CARF) scheme to provide retrospective support for 2021/22. 

14. The Government also provided a grant to be awarded for 2021/22 to provide one off 
support during the period when the Omicron variant impacted businesses. 

15. Both the Omicron Grant and the CARF were required to be awarded in the financial 
year 2021/22, these were announced in December 2021 with guidance issued in 
January with a requirement to implement both schemes as soon as possible and with 
scheme closing dates of 18 March for the Omicron Grant and end of the financial 
year for the CARF. 

16. Due to the above timelines it was not possible to present these via the normal 
Council approval process and they required an urgent Officer decision. 

Retail Hospitality and Leisure Relief 

17. In the October 2018 budget the Government announced the introduction of a 
Business Rates Retail Discount for 2019/20 and 2020/21. In response to the Corona 
Virus pandemic this discount was increased to 100% relief and expanded to include 
other sectors, including leisure and hospitality sectors. For the 2022/2023 year this 
relief will continue at 50% with a rateable value cap of £110,000. 

18. The award is subject to subsidy under the COVID-19 Business grant subsidy 
allowances. 

19. The eligibility criteria are available in the new Business Rates Relief Policy is 
attached as Appendix A, please note it is possible that these reliefs could be 
extended as more businesses are affected by the current restrictions. 

20. The current premises/sectors that are eligible are detailed in the guidance notes 
attached in paragraph 9, (Background Papers). In summary this relief covers 
occupied businesses that are wholly or mainly being used: 

 As shops, restaurants, cafes, drinking establishments, cinemas and live music 
venues 

 For assemble and leisure 

 As hotels, guest and boarding premises and self-catering accommodation 

21. Excluded businesses include. 

 Financial services (e.g., banks, building societies, cash points, bureaux de 
change, short-term loan providers, betting shops) 

 Medical services (e.g., vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors) 

 Professional services (e.g., solicitors, accountants, insurance agents/ 
financial advisers, employment agencies, estate agents, letting agents) 

 Post office sorting offices 

 Hereditaments that are not reasonably accessible to visiting members of the 
public 

22.  In line with the legal restrictions in section 47(8A) of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988, billing authorities may not grant the discount to themselves certain 

Page 254



precepting authorities (e.g., a parish or county council) or a functional body, within 
the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act 1999. 

23. Hereditaments that are currently excluded from this relief are professional and 
financial services, medical services, post office sorting establishments and Car 
Parks. 

24. The scheme will be administered locally using the council’s discretionary powers and 
all reliefs given will be fully reimbursed under S47 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988 (as amended) via the section 31 grant. 

Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) 

25. Each Local Authority is required to build its own scheme, however this scheme 
should be targeted towards those businesses that were ineligible for any other Covid 
support package. The Council’s policy is set out in Appendix B. 

26. The £1.5 billion will be allocated to local authorities based upon the estimated 
rateable value in each local authority rating list which falls within the scope of the 
fund, weighted for the Gross Value Added (GVA) impacts of COVID-19 per sector. 
The Council intend to use this rationale with which to distribute the funding of 
£2,413,406 allocated to Uttlesford. 

27. In developing their schemes local authorities must. 

a. not award relief to ratepayers who for the same period of the relief either are 
or would have been eligible for the Extended Retail Discount (covering Retail, 
Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the Airport and Ground 
Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS), 

b. not award relief to a hereditament for a period when it is unoccupied (other 
than hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due to the 
government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as occupied for 
the purposes of this relief), and 

c. direct their support towards ratepayers who have been adversely affected by 
the pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to that impact 

28.  Businesses must not exceed the subsidy limits and grant payments will be taxable. 
 
Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant 

29. The Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant will provide a grant of up to £6,000 for all 
eligible hereditaments as follows. Uttlesford will receive funding of £972,072.00 to 
administer this scheme. The Council’s policy is set out in Appendix C. 

Property RV Amount of grant funding 

15,000 and under £2,667 

15,001 to 50,999 £4,000 

51,000 and over £6,000 

30. To be eligible for the grant businesses must. 

 businesses must have been trading as of 30 December 2021 

 businesses must be rated for business rates 

Page 255



 businesses must not be in liquidation, dissolved, struck off or subject to a 
striking-off notice or under notice 

 business premises must be occupied as of 30 December 2021, void 
premises are not eligible for the grants 

 grants will be paid to the rate payer as of 30 December 2021 

 businesses must not have exceeded the maximum subsidy limits 

 And fall under one of the following categories. 

Hospitality definition - defined as a business whose main function is to 
provide a venue for the in person (dine in) consumption and sale of food and 
drink, to the general public 

Leisure definition - a business that provides opportunities, experiences, and 
facilities, in particular for culture, recreation, entertainment, celebratory events, 
days and nights out, betting and gaming 

Accommodation definition - a business whose main lodging provision is 
used for holiday, travel, and other purposes 

31. Examples of excluded businesses would include Food Kiosks and takeaways, where 
the business takes 50% or more of its income from takeaway sales; All retail 
businesses, coach tour operators and tour operators; Private dwellings, education 
accommodation, residential homes, care homes, residential family centres, beach 
huts. 

32. Businesses are limited to one grant per hereditament although if a business has 
more than one premises it would be entitled to one of the grants for each of its 
premises. 

33. The eligibility criteria are set out in detail in the guidance notes in paragraph 9 
(Backround Papers) and within each of the attached policies at Appendices A, B and 
C. 

Risk Analysis 
 

34.  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

That the local 
scheme is not 
administered based 
on the guidance 
and eligibility 
criteria 

2 – data is 
collected and 
checked. Need 
to be aware of 
the urgency of 
the situation 
and detailed 
checks not 
done due to 
current 
emergency 
measures 

2 – incorrect 
allocations of 
grants and 
reliefs, loss of 
income from 
government 
reimbursement 

Staff are collecting and 
checking details against 
data bases and will have 
the support of new 
software provided by 
HMRC to check for 
fraudulent claims 

1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 

Page 256



3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 

Page 257



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF and DISCOUNTS POLICY 

1st April 2022 

Policy objectives 
 

1. To support the local economy by providing incentives for occupation of empty premises, encourage business start-up and business expansion within Uttlesford. 

2. To support rural communities by providing assistance to businesses operating in rural locations. 

3. To contribute to maximising the Council’s financial position under the business rates retention scheme by encouraging longer term rateable value growth. 

4. To support town centre high streets evolve during a period of significant changes in customer behaviour. 
 

Administration 
 

5. The policy will be administered by the Council’s Revenues service, who will determine the relief application process. 

6. The Revenues service will determine applications for relief, using the criteria set out in this policy. Applications for the Business Development category of relief will be 

assessed by the Council’s Economic Development Officer who will notify the Revenues service of decisions made. The Council will have discretion to backdate awards of 

relief to the beginning of the current billing period. 

7. Eligibility for relief will typically be based upon objective criteria such as the rateable value, location and nature of an organisation’s business. A business’s profitability 

will not ordinarily be a relevant factor for determining eligibility. The intention is for a streamlined process that is simple to administer for both applicants and the 

Council. The Council shall have the right to request any additional information it considers necessary to determine an application. 

8. The over-riding consideration in the determination of any application is that the granting of relief must be judged to be in the wider interests of the Uttlesford 

community and its council tax payers. 

9. Appeals against unsuccessful applications for relief will be determined by the Section 151 Officer, whose decision shall be final. There shall be no further right of appeal. 

10. The granting of discretionary relief will typically be on a rolling one-year basis so that the Council has the agility to adjust the policy to reflect changing needs and 

circumstances. 

11. The policy will be subject to annual review and approval by the Cabinet. 
 

Subsidy Limitations 
 

12. All granting of discretionary rate relief is subject to limitations under applicable State Aid legislation and associated De Minimis Regulations. 

13. The Regulations currently allow a business to receive up to 200,000 Euros of state aid over a rolling three year period. 

14. In practice, this means that smaller, independent businesses are more likely to be eligible for a relief/discount and larger, national businesses (e.g. chain stores) less  

likely. 

15. The Government has currently applied to the EU to allow both the extended retail discount and the Nursery discount to full outside these regulations. 

P
age 258



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Retail, 
Hospitality and 
Leisure Relief 

For Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality Businesses that 
were in occupation for the 
2022/2023 financial year. (No 
RV limit)  

Not applicable To further support Businesses during the COVID-19 Pandemic, 
at the budget on 27th October the Government announced a 
new business rate relief scheme for retail, hospitality and 
leisure properties for the 2022/2023 financial year 

 Occupied retail, leisure, and hospitality properties 
for 2022/2023 (subject to certain exceptions see 
Government guidance) 

 Properties which have closed temporarily due to 
Government’s advice on COVID19 will be treated 
as occupied for the purposes of this relief 

 No RV limits 

 Discount for the period 1st April 2022 – 31st March 2023 = 
50%  

 This relief will be subject to a cash cap limit of 
£110,000.  This cap applies to the Business and 
its subsidiaries not to individual properties or 
premises 

 No RV Limit 

 The discount will only be applied after all other 
mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs funded 
by section 31 have been applied.  

 Locally funded reliefs such as hardship relief must be   
applied after the Retail Discount 

LA’s will be fully reimbursed for Local share under section 31 
grant 

Businesses may choose to opt out of this discount, by providing 
notification to the Council of their request to refuse support, per 
eligible hereditament, but will be unable to opt back in at a later 
date. 

This scheme will end on the 31st March 2023. 

P
age 259



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Extension of 
Supporting Small 
Businesses Relief 
& Transitional 
relief scheme 
2022/2023 only 

The scheme will restrict 
increases in bills to 15% for 
businesses with small 
properties (up to and including 
£20,000 rateable value) and 
25% for medium properties (up 
to and including £100,000 
rateable value) 

Not applicable The government will fund discretionary relief to ensure eligible 
properties receive the same level of protection they would have 
received had the statutory transitional relief scheme and SSB 

scheme extended into 2022/23. 

Properties that will benefit are those with a rateable value up to 
and including £100,000 who would have received transitional 
relief and/or SSB in 2022/23. 

In line with the existing thresholds in the transitional relief 
schemes, the £100,000 rateable value threshold should be based 
on the rateable value shown for 1 April 2017 or the substituted 
day in the cases of splits and mergers. 

As this is a S47 relief the calculation will change so that the 
discount will only be applied after all other mandatory reliefs and 
other discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 have been 
applied.  

LA’s will be fully reimbursed under s31 grant 

The extension of transitional relief and Supporting Small Business 
(SSB) relief scheme is likely to amount to subsidy 

Eligibility will not be lost with a change of occupier but will be 
lost if the property becomes vacant or is occupied by a charity 
or Community Amateur sports Club. 

This scheme will end on the 31st March 2023 

P
age 260



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Covid Additional 
relief fund (CARF) 

For Businesses affected by the 
Coronavirus Pandemic but 
were ineligible for any other 
Covid-19 support package 

Not Applicable Uttlesford has been allocated £2,413,406 to support local 
Uttlesford Businesses.  

This is discretionary scheme is for the 2021/2022 year only.  The 
level of the relief will be at the discretion of Uttlesford District 
Council. 

Main Criteria stipulated by the Government in developing their 
schemes is. 

a. not award relief to ratepayers who for the same 
period of the relief either are or would have been 
eligible for the Extended Retail Discount (covering 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery 
Discount or the Airport and Ground Operations 
Support Scheme (AGOSS), 

b. not award relief to a hereditament for a period 
when it is unoccupied (other than hereditaments 
which have become closed temporarily due to the 
government’s advice on COVID-19, which should 
be treated as occupied for the purposes of this 
relief), and 

c. direct their support towards ratepayers who have 
been adversely affected by the pandemic and 
have been unable to adequately adapt to that 
impact 

This relief is taxable, and businesses must not exceed the subsidy 
limits. 

LA’s will be fully reimbursed for Local share under section 31 
grant 

 

Local Newspaper 
Relief 

Local Newspapers occupying 
office space 

Not applicable One discount per newspaper title 

• Discount of £1500 
• New from 1st April 2020 
• S31 grant 

P
age 261



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Rural Rate Relief Within a rural settlement with 
a population below 3,000, a 
sole general store, post office, 
food shop, public house or 
petrol station 

Within a rural settlement with a population 
below 3,000, the following will receive 50% 
mandatory rate relief: 

 A sole general store, post office or 
food shop with a RV of less £8,500 

 A sole public house or petrol station 
with a RV of less than £12,500 

Within a rural settlement with a population below 3,000: 

• A sole general store, post office, food shop, public house 
or petrol station with an RV exceeding the stated 
thresholds, but with an RV of up to £16,500, may be 
considered for up to 100% discretionary rate relief. 

From 2017/18: A sole general store, post office, food shop, 
public house or petrol station with an RV of between 
£16,501 and £27,500 may be considered for 100% 
discretionary rate relief up to the value of the £16,500 RV 
level. 

For example, a qualifying business with an RV of 
£18,500 would receive 100% relief up to £16,500 RV and have 
to pay rates on the remaining £2,000 RV. 

Discretionary local rural rate relief will be applied after any 
other applicable reliefs have been deducted. 

Charitable relief Registered charities 

Registered Community 
Amateur Sports Clubs 

Community Interest 
Companies 

Charities and Registered Community Amateur 
Sports Clubs are entitled to 80% relief where 
the property is occupied by the Charity or Club 
and is wholly or mainly used for charitable 
purposes or as a Registered Community 
Amateur Sports Club. 

Charities and Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs may 
be considered for up to 20% discretionary rate relief. 

From 2014/15: Community Interest Companies that have 
charitable aims (and use profits for charitable purposes) may be 
considered for up to 100% discretionary rate relief. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 262



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Business Development 
Relief 

New non-retail SME businesses 
starting up, operating from 
new premises or premises 
that have been unoccupied 
for 12 months* 

Expanding non-retail SME 
businesses who enlarge their 
existing premises, or occupy 
an additional premises that is 
new or has been unoccupied 
for 12 months* 

*including the conversion of 
former agricultural buildings 

Not applicable 
 

From 2014/15: Qualifying businesses can be considered for 
discretionary rate relief of 50% for the first year and 25% for the 
second year. In the case of enlarged premises, the relief would 
be on the difference between the rates payable on the original 
premises and the rates payable on the extended premises. 

This is subject to demonstrating that: 

 A minimum three-year lease / occupancy 
commitment     exists* 

 The business will endeavor to ensure that at least 50% of 
the business’s employees are Uttlesford residents 

 The business will endeavor to ensure that at least 25% of 
the business’s supplies and services expenditure is with 
Uttlesford businesses. 

*In the event of the business vacating the premises within the 
first three years, the Council reserves the right to clawback the 
rate relief granted. 

Small Business Rate 
Relief 

Businesses with a rateable 
value of up to £14,999 will 
receive 100% small business 
rate relief 

For properties from 15,000 – 
50,999 will have their business 
rates calculated with the small 
business rate multiplier 

From 1st April 2017 Businesses with an 
Rateable Value up to £12,000 will receive 
100% relief. 

RV £12,000 to £14,999 – 100% relief 
decreases on a sliding scale by 1% for every 
£ 30 of RV between £12,000 and £ 14,999. 

RV £15,000 to £ 51,999 – no relief is allowed 
but the bill is calculated using the small 
business multiplier 

None 

Flooding Rate Relief Businesses whose premises are 
flooded due to bad weather 

Not applicable 100% rate relief for three months from the date of the first 
flooding. (Approved by Full Council 27 February 2014) 

P
age 263



Retail Relief/Discount Policy 2022/23 Appendix A 
 

CATEGORY OF RELIEF ELIGIBLE ORGANISATIONS MANDATORY RELIEF DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Unoccupied property 
rating 

Any business Business rates are not payable in the first 
three months that a property is empty. This is 
extended to six months in the case of certain 
industrial properties 

Certain definitions and exemptions apply – 
please see the website 

None 

Hardship Relief Businesses who are suffering 
financial hardship because of a 
one-off event demonstrably 
beyond their control. 

Not applicable Discretionary rate relief of up to 100% for a limited period 
depending on circumstances. Consideration would also be 
giving to deferring payment due dates 

 

P
age 264



COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) 
 

Background  
 
On 25 March 2021, the Government announced a new COVID-19 Additional 
Relief Fund (CARF). The fund is available to support those businesses affected 
by the pandemic but that are ineligible for existing support linked to business 
rates.  

The relief is available to reduce chargeable amounts in respect of the 2021/22 
financial year and as they are only temporary measures, local authorities will 
be expected to use their discretionary powers (under section 47 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988) to grant these reliefs.  

Uttlesford has been allocated £2,413,406 via a section 31 grant.  
 

Eligibility Criteria set by Department of Levelling up Housing and 
the Communities  
 
Billing authorities will be responsible for designing the discretionary relief 
schemes that are to operate in their areas. However, in developing and 
implementing their schemes local authorities must, if they are funding the 
relief from the section 31 grant:  

 Not award relief to ratepayers who for the same period of the relief 
either are or would have been eligible for the Expanded Retail Discount 
(covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the 
Airport and Ground Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS);  

 Not award relief to a hereditament for a period when it is unoccupied 
(other than hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due 
to the government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as 
occupied for the purposes of this relief) and; 

 Direct their support towards ratepayers who have been adversely 
affected by the pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to 
that impact;  

In line with the legal restrictions in section 47 (8A) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, billing authorities may not grant the discount to themselves, 
certain 3 precepting authorities (e.g., a parish or county council) or a functional 
body within the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act 1999.  
 
 

Page 265



Annexe 1 – Proposed COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) 
Scheme  
 
Introduction  
 
Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended) allows the 
Council to use its discretionary powers to grant COVID-19 Additional Relief 
Fund (CARF).  

In line with the legal restrictions in section 47(8A) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, billing authorities may not grant the discount to themselves, 
certain precepting authorities (e.g., a parish or county council) or a functional 
body, within the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act 1999.  

The fund will be available to support those businesses affected by the 
pandemic but that are ineligible for existing support linked to business rates.  

Central government will reimburse Uttlesford, via a section 31 grant, up to the 
maximum level of allocation. Uttlesford’s maximum allocation level for CARF is 
£2,413,406 m and the combined CARF awards will therefore not exceed this 
amount.  

The relief is available to reduce the amounts in respect of the 2021/22 financial 
year only.  
 

Eligibility Criteria  
 
Each application will be determined on its own merits having regard to the 
government guidance which has clear stipulations linked to the section 31 
grant conditionality.  

Uttlesford based business will be able to apply for CARF rates relief in respect 
of the 2021/22 financial year on a per hereditament basis subject to the 
following criteria:  

 They have a continuing national non-domestic rating liability and a 
charge to pay in the 2021/22 financial year after mandatory reliefs and 
other discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been 
applied;  

 They have not been awarded, or would have been eligible for, the 
Expanded Retail Discount (covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the 
Nursery Discount or the Airport and Ground Operations Support Scheme 
(AGOSS) for the same period, i.e., in the 2021/22 financial year;  

Page 266



 The hereditament is occupied in the 2021/22 financial year (other than 
hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due to the 
government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as occupied 
for the purposes of this relief) – for the purposes of this scheme, 
intermittent occupations of 6 weeks or more are excluded from CARF;  

 The ratepayer can evidentially demonstrate that they have been 
adversely affected by the pandemic and have been unable to adequately 
adapt to that impact;  

 They have not exceeded the subsidy control limits;  

 The liable business is currently active and not in administration, 
liquidation, subject to strike off order or entered into a IVA or CVA 
during the 1st April 2021 – 31 March 2022. 

 Any property where the business rate liability can be claimed back from 
another party. 

 They have applied within the application windows as set by Uttlesford 
District Council and have submitted supporting documentary evidence 
with their application form as required.  

The amount of relief awarded will be recalculated in the event of a change of 
circumstances, or if the property become ineligible. This could include, for 
example, a backdated change to the rateable value or the hereditament. This 
change of circumstances could arise during the year in question or during a 
later year.  
 

Method of Application and Supporting Evidence  

 

 An online application form, one per hereditament, will be required to be 
completed, which will include a self-assessment declaration in respect of 
the subsidy control limits. The first application window will open on 15th 
February 2022 due to the other activity surrounding the application for, 
and decision making in respect of the Omicron related business grants. 
This relief is in respect of the annual bills mainly issued in March 2021, 
the recovery cycle for which has almost concluded, and it is therefore 
anticipated that this application window start date will not have any 
adverse impact on those eligible for the relief. In addition, the Council 
will be able to hold recovery of 2021/22 arrears to those businesses who 
have been impacted and are waiting on their CARF application outcome 

 

Page 267



 The ratepayer will need to clearly state, and demonstrate, how the 
business has been adversely affected by the pandemic and why they 
have been unable to adequately adapt to that impact. Supporting 
documentary evidence should be submitted with the application form 
showing the impact Covid has had on the businesses; this may include 
but is not limited to certified accounts, order/bookings and overheads 
not being covered by income. Applications failing to supply supporting 
evidence will not be considered 

 The ratepayer will also need to provide a copy of their two most recent 
audited accounts, and bank statements.  

 The Council may require further supporting information which must be 
provided within one calendar month from the date of request.  

 This application window will close on 31st March 2022.  

 Applications will be accepted up to the 30th September 2022  
 

 
 
Amount of relief  
 
The basis of the allocation of the relief per hereditament will be delegated to 
the Assistant Director of Finance and the Revenues Manager.  

The amount of the relief will be based on the RV of the property a business is 
occupying and the Business Sector. The Council will use the Governments 
weighting figures on Covid impact for that Sector to establish the level of the 
award. 

Although each case will be considered on its own merits, the number of 
applications received during the application window, the business type and the 
maximum funding allocation will all form part of the final CARF decision. 

It is expected that most relief awards will be up to a maximum of 20% 

In order for the Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund to benefit the maximum 
number of businesses. It proposed to have 3 levels of award, proportionate to 
the relative impact on income due to the Covid-19 and the Governments 
impact weightings in the guidance. 

The grant levels and eligibility criteria for the financial year 2021/2022 are 
presented below:  

 

Page 268



Category Maximum Relief Award 
(Percentage) 

Income losses proven and properties 
with an RV of exactly £15,000 or less 
 

35% 

Income losses proven and properties 
with an RV of £15,001 - £51,000  
 

25% 

Income losses proven and properties 
with an RV of exactly £51,000 or 
more 

7.5% 

 
 
If the fund is oversubscribed with the applications received, Uttlesford District 
Council reserves the right to amend the relief levels on a pro-rata basis, based 
on the applications received and approved, as a way of dealing with this 
situation, should it arise.  

All awards of this relief will be by a credit against the business rates bill. No 
cash payments will be made.  

If awarding the CARF results in an overall credit for the 2021/22 financial year, 
the credit will automatically be applied to any outstanding liability starting with 
the current financial year, this could include arrears or the amount due for the 
2022/23 financial year. 

The relief will be pro-rata’d for those Businesses not in occupation for the 
whole of the financial year 2021/2022, and for those periods the property was 
unoccupied which are non-qualifying periods. 
 

Notification of decision  
 
Successful applicants will be issued with an updated Business Rates 
Adjustment Notice showing the award has been applied to their Business Rates 
account. Instalments on notices already issued must be maintained until and 
updated notice is issued, to prevent recovery action being taken against the 
account.  

Those applicants who do not qualify for the relief, will receive written notice by 
e-mail as to the reasons they have not qualified.  
 

 

Page 269



 
 
Right of Appeal  
 
In all cases where an organisation disagrees with the Council’s decision, an 
appeal may be made in writing to the Director of Corporate Services within 
one calendar month from the date of the decision.  
 

Fraud  
 
The government and Uttlesford District Council will not tolerate any business 
falsifying their records or providing false evidence to gain this discount, 
including claiming support above the subsidy control limits. A ratepayer who 
falsely applies for any relief, or provides false  
information or makes false representation in order to gain relief may be guilty 
of fraud  
under the Fraud Act 2006/07. 
 

Sharing Information 
 
By applying for a COVID-19 additional relief, all applicants give authority to 
share data for efficient system administration, this may include sharing data 
with other Local Authorities & credit agency checks. 

The Councils will be required to share data with Government Departments for 
monitoring and other reasons. By applying for a COVID-19 additional relief all 
applicants give authority for this.  
 

Page 270



Annexe 2 – Subsidy Control, Trade and Co-operation Agreement, 
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance and the COVID-19 
Additional Relief Fund Allowance and Further Allowance Trade and 
Co-Operation Agreement  
 
The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) is likely to amount to a subsidy. 
Any relief provided by local authorities under this scheme will need to comply 
with the UK’s domestic and international subsidy control obligations (See the 
BEIS guidance for public authorities which explains the subsidies chapter of the 
UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA), World Trade Organisation 
rules on subsidies, and other international subsidy control commitments).  
 
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance  
 
To the extent that a local authority is seeking to provide relief that falls within 
the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance, Article 364 of the TCA 
allows an economic actor (e.g., a holding company and its subsidiaries) to 
receive up to 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (£343,000 as at 9 December 
2021) in a three-year period (consisting of the 2022/23 year and the two 
previous financial years). Expanded Retail Discount granted in either 2020/21 
or 2021/22 does not count towards the £343,000 allowance but BEIS business 
grants (throughout the 3 years) and any other subsidies claimed under the 
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance limit should be counted.  
 
The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance  
 
Where the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance has been reached, 
additional relief may be awarded in compliance with the principles set out in 
Article 366 of the TCA and in compliance with Article 364.3 of the TCA. For the 
purposes of this scheme, the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance, 
permits an economic actor to receive additional relief of up to a further 
£1,900,000 for COVID-19 related losses.  

This may be combined with the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance 
Allowance to permit an economic actor to receive up to £2,243,000 from the 
CARF Scheme (or less if they have already used some of their Small Amounts of 
Financial Assistance limit or claimed other COVID-19 related subsidies). It 
should be noted that Extended Retail Discount granted in either 2020/21 or 
2021/22 does not count towards these allowances, but BEIS business grants 
(throughout the 3 years) and any other subsidies claimed under the Small 

Page 271



Amounts of Financial Assistance limit (such as the Retail Relief in 2019/20), or 
under the EU State aid de minimis limit, in the last three years, should be 
counted.  
 
COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance  
 
If an economic actor has reached the £2,243,000 limit set out above, then it 

may still be able to receive up to a further £10 million as a COVID-19 Additional 

Relief Fund Further Allowance under the CARF Scheme, if it satisfies the 

following conditions: 

the relief relates to uncovered fixed costs (i.e. costs not covered by profits or 
insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19 (commencing 1 March 2020). An 
economic actor may benefit from relief up to 70% of their uncovered costs 
(although this 70% limit does not apply to small businesses with fewer than 50 
employees and less than £9 million turnover where the limit is instead 90%), 
and 
 
the enterprise has shown a decline in turnover during the eligible period of at 
least 30% compared to the same period in 2019. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 272



  Appendix C 
 

Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant Policy 2022 

(Business Rates premises only). 
 
On 21 December 2021, Government announced the introduction of grant support for 

hospitality and leisure businesses in England. The scheme provides support to 

hospitality, leisure, and accommodation businesses, in recognition that the rise of the     

Omicron variant means that some businesses are likely to struggle over the coming 

weeks. This support will take the form of a one-off grant funding scheme. Funding will   be 

made available in Financial Year 2021-2022 and must be used in Financial Year 21/22 

only. The scheme is called the Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant (OHLG). The 

scheme will close for applications on 18 March 2022, and all payments disbursed to 

recipients by 31 March 2022. 

 
The Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant scheme is for businesses on the Valuation 

Office Agency (VOA) ratings list on 30 December 2021 only. The Omicron Hospitality and 

Leisure Grant will support hospitality, leisure, and accommodation business premises 

with one-off grants of up to £6,000. The following thresholds apply for these businesses: 

 

 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a 

rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on 30 December 2021 will receive a 

payment of £2,667. 

 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a 

rateable value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on 30 December 2021 will 

receive a payment of £4,000. 

 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a 

rateable value of exactly £51,000 or over on 30 December 2021 will receive a 

payment of £6,000. 

 
Any changes to the rating list (rateable value or to the hereditament) after 30 December 

2021 will be ignored for the purposes of eligibility. Businesses will be entitled to receive a 

grant for each eligible hereditament. So, some businesses may receive more than one 

grant where they have more than one eligible hereditament. 

 
Businesses must complete an application form to supply information needed to enable 

the council to pay the grant, available on the council’s website. As part of their 

application process for the scheme, all businesses will be required to self-certify that 

they meet all eligibility criteria in this policy. 

 
All payments will be made via BACS (as soon as practicable) and the business must        

provide bank details for payment, including a recent bank statement (which must show 

the bank account number, sort code and the business name which must match the 

business rates account). Please note further checks may be needed to verify the 

business, therefore contact details must be provided. Failure to provide the information 

required will delay the payment of the grant and may result in the application being 

declined. 

 
The primary principle of the Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant Scheme is to support 

businesses that offer in-person services, where the main service and activity takes place 

in a fixed rate-paying premises, in the hospitality, leisure and accommodation sectors. 

 

Hospitality 

 
For the purposes of this scheme, a hospitality business can be defined as a business whose 
main function is to provide a venue for the consumption and sale of food and drink. The 
following criteria will be applied in order to identify qualifying businesses under this threshold. 

Page 273



  Appendix C 
 

 Businesses offering in-person food and drink services to the general public. 

 Businesses that provide food and/or drink to be consumed on the premises, including 
outdoors.  

For these purposes, the definition of a hospitality business should exclude: food kiosks and 
businesses whose main service (generating 50% or more of income) is a takeaway (not 
applicable to those that have adapted to offer takeaways  

 

The businesses which fall into the scope of for hospitality in line with Government 

guidance: 

 

 Food courts 

 Public houses/pub restaurants 

 Restaurants 

 Roadside restaurants 

 Wine bars 

 Cafes 
 

Leisure 
 
For the purposes of this scheme, a leisure business can be defined as a business that provides 
opportunities, experiences and facilities, in particular for culture, recreation, entertainment, 
celebratory events and days and nights out.  

The following criteria will be applied in order to identify qualifying businesses under this 
threshold 

 Businesses that may provide in-person intangible experiences in addition to goods.  

 Businesses that may rely on seasonal labour.  

 Businesses that may assume particular public safety responsibilities.  

 Businesses that may operate with irregular hours through day, night and weekends.  
 

For these purposes, the definition of a leisure business should exclude: all retail businesses, 
coach tour operators, tour operators, and gyms and sports businesses where physical exercise 
or training is conducted on an individual basis or group basis. 
 
 The businesses which fall into the scope of for hospitality in line with Government 

guidance: 

 

 Casinos and gambling clubs  

 Cinemas 

 Museums and art galleries 

 Stately homes & historic houses 

 Theatres 

 Zoos & safari parks 

 Amusement parks 

 Wedding venues 

 Events venues 

 Night clubs & discotheques 
 

 Arenas 

 Concert halls 

 Tourist attractions 

 Theme parks 

 Amusement arcades 

 Soft play centres or areas 

 Clubs & institutions 

 Village halls & scout huts 

 Cadet huts, etc. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 274



  Appendix C 
 

Accommodation 

 
For the purposes of this scheme, an accommodation business can be defined as a business 
whose main lodging provision is used for holiday, travel or other purposes.  

The following criteria will be applied in order to identify qualifying businesses under this 
threshold 

 Businesses that provide accommodation for ‘away from home’ stays for work or leisure 
purposes. 

 Businesses that provide accommodation for short-term leisure and holiday purposes.  

For these purposes, the definition of an accommodation business should exclude: private 
dwellings, education accommodation, residential homes, care homes, residential family centres 
and beach huts.  
 
The businesses which fall into the scope of for hospitality in line with Government 

guidance: 

 

 Caravan parks 

 Caravan sites and pitches 

 Chalet parks 

 Coaching inns 

 Country house hotels 

 Guest houses 

 Hostels 

 Hotels 

 Lodge 
 

 Holiday apartments, 

 Cottages or bungalows 

 Campsites 

 Boarding houses 

 Canal boats or other vessels 

 B&Bs 

 Catered holiday homes 

 Holiday homes 

This list is indicative of the types of eligible businesses but is not exhaustive. 

Businesses will only be eligible where their main service falls within hospitality, 

leisure or accommodation. If a business operates services that could be considered 
hospitality or leisure, and also fall into another category, the main service can be 
determined by assessing which category constitutes 50% or more of their overall    income. 
The main service principle will determine whether a business receives funding. 
Businesses will need to declare which is their main service. 

 
For the purposes of this grant scheme, a business is considered to be trading if it is 

engaged in business activity. This should be interpreted as carrying on a trade or 

profession or buying and selling goods or services in order to generate turnover. 

 

Fully constituted businesses in liquidation, dissolved, struck off or subject to a 

striking-off notice are not eligible under these conditions. To help further, some 

trading indicators are included below that can help assess what can be defined as 

trading for the purposes of the grant schemes. Indicators that a business is trading 

are. 

 

 The business continues to trade, including online, via delivery services etc. 

 The business is not in liquidation, dissolved, struck off or subject to a striking off 

notice or under notice 

 The business is engaged in business activity, managing accounts, preparing for 

reopening, planning, and implementing COVID-safe measures 

 

 

Page 275



  Appendix C 
 

 

In all cases the following businesses will not be eligible. 

 

 Businesses that are not within the ratings system will not be eligible to receive funding 
under this scheme.  

 Businesses not occupying the business rates premises on the 30th December 2021 

 Businesses responsible for premises which are unoccupied. 

 Businesses that have already received grant payments that equal the maximum 
permitted subsidy allowances will not be eligible to receive funding.  

 Businesses that are in administration, insolvent or where a striking-off notice has been 
made, are not eligible for funding under this scheme.  
 

Tax 

Grant income received by a business is taxable. The Omicron Hospitality and Leisure 

Grant will need to be included as income in the tax return of the business. Only 

businesses that make an overall profit once grant income is included will be subject to 

tax. Payments made to businesses before 5 April 2022 will fall into the 2021/22 tax 

year. Unincorporated businesses will be taxed when they receive the grant income. The 

information provided on the grant form will be shared with HMRC. 

 
Subsidy 

As part of the application process for this scheme, all businesses will be required to 

self-certify that they meet the Subsidy criteria set out below. 

COVID-19 business grant subsidy allowance 

The EU State aid rules no longer apply to subsidies granted in the UK following the end of the 
transition period, which ended on 31 December 2020. This does not impact the limited 
circumstances in which State aid rules still apply under the Withdrawal Agreement, specifically 
Article 10 of the Northern Ireland Protocol. The United Kingdom remains bound by its 
international commitments, including subsidy obligations set out in the Trade and Cooperation 
Agreement (TCA) with the EU. 

The following scheme rules are to be applied to COVID-19 business grants on the basis of the 
EU-UK Trade and Co-operation Agreement (TCA). 
The below scheme rules should be applied to applicants at the level of economic actor, which 
is defined as an entity or a group of entities constituting a single economic entity regardless of 
its legal status, that is engaged in an economic activity by offering goods or services on a 
market. 

There are three subsidy allowances for this scheme set out below: Small Amounts of Financial 
Assistance Allowance, the COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance, and the COVID-19 Business 
Grant Special Allowance. 

Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance 
 
Grants may be paid in accordance with Article 3.2(4) of the TCA, which enables an applicant to 
receive up to a maximum level of subsidy without engaging Chapter 3 of the TCA. This 
allowance is 325,000 Special Drawing Rights, to a single economic actor over any period of 
three fiscal years, which is the equivalent of £335,000 as at 2 March 2021. An applicant may 
elect not to receive grants under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance and 
instead receive grants only using the below allowances available under this scheme. 
 
 

Page 276



  Appendix C 
 

COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance 

Where the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance has been reached, grants may be 
paid in compliance with the Principles set out in Article 3.4 of the TCA and in compliance with 
Article 3.2(3) of the TCA under the COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance (subsidies granted on 
a temporary basis to respond to a national or global economic emergency). For the purposes of 
these scheme rules, this allowance is £1,900,000 per single economic actor. This allowance 
includes any grants previously received under the COVID-19 business grant schemes and any 
State aid previously received under Section 3.1 of the European Commission’s Temporary 
Framework across any other UK scheme. This may be combined with the Small Amounts of 
Financial Assistance Allowance to equal £2,235,000 (subject to the exact amount applicable 
under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance using the Special Drawing Right 
calculator). 
 
COVID-19 Business Grant Special Allowance 

Where an applicant has reached its limit under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance 
Allowance and COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance, it may be able to access a further 
allowance of funding under these scheme rules of up to £10,000,000 per single economic 
actor, provided the following conditions are met: 

a) The Special Allowance covers only the applicant’s uncovered fixed costs incurred 
during the period between 1 March 2020 and the date of application, including such 
costs incurred in any part of that period (‘eligible period’); 

b) Applicants must demonstrate a decline in turnover during the eligible period of at least 
30% compared to the same period in 2019. The calculation of losses will be based on 
audited accounts or official statutory accounts filed at Companies House, or approved 
accounts submitted to HMRC which includes information on the applicant’s profit and 
loss. 

c) ‘Uncovered fixed costs’ means fixed costs not otherwise covered by profit, insurance or 
other subsidies; 

d) The grant payment must not exceed 70% of the applicant’s uncovered fixed costs, 
except for micro and small enterprises (for the purposes of this scheme defined as less 
than 50 employees and less than £9,000,000 of annual turnover and/or annual balance 
sheet), where the grant payment must not exceed 90% of the uncovered fixed costs. 

e) Grant payments under this allowance must not exceed £10,000,000 per single 
economic actor. This allowance includes any grants previously received in accordance 
with Section 3.12 of the European Commission’s Temporary Framework; all figures 
used must be gross, that is, before any deduction of tax or other charge. 

f) Grants provided under this allowance shall not be cumulated with other subsidies for 
the same costs. 

An applicant must be able to provide the necessary documentation to demonstrate it is 
eligible for funding under this COVID-19 Business Grant Special Allowance. 

Grants provided in excess of the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance may not 
be granted to applicants that were defined as an ‘undertaking in difficulty’ (as defined in 
Annex C below) on 31 December 2019. In derogation to the above, grants can be granted to 
micro or small enterprises (as defined above) that were already in difficulty on 31 December 
2019 provided that they are not subject to collective insolvency proceedings. 

Grants in scope of Article 10 of the Northern Ireland Protocol remain subject to EU State aid 
rules, following the end of the Transition Period which ended on 31 December 2020. Article 
10 provides that EU State aid rules will continue to apply to the UK in respect of measures 
which affect trade in goods and electricity between Northern Ireland and the European Union. 

For the avoidance of doubt, grants under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance 

Page 277



  Appendix C 
 

Allowance, the COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance and the COVID-19 Business Grant 
Special Allowance may be combined for a potential total allowance of £12,235,000 (subject to 
the exact amount applicable under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance 
using the Special Drawing Right calculator). 

Fraud 

The council and Government will not accept deliberate manipulation or fraud. If any 
person(s) and/or business is found to have falsified their records, given false or 
misleading information, or omitted information to gain grant money they may face 
prosecution and any grant monies paid will be recovered. Any grants paid in error will 
also be subject to recovery 

 
As part of their application process for the scheme, all businesses will be required to 
self-certify that they meet all eligibility criteria in this policy. They will also be required to 
complete a declaration to confirm information provided is true and correct and 
understand that action will be taken where the information is found to be incorrect. 
 
The information provided on the application will be subject to further checks required 
before payment can be made. These checks will be but not limited to the Government 
Grants Management Function and Counter Fraud Teams digital assurance tool, 
Spotlight, and the verification of bank details with credit referencing agencies. 

 
The information you provide will be shared with the Government Grants Management 
team (BEIS) and may be exchanged with other government bodies and fraud prevention 
agencies for the prevention or detection of crime. For more information on how the data is 
used please see the Government BEIS department privacy notice  

Appeals 

There are no further appeal rights for the grant, the Council's decision is final. 

Page 278



 
 

COMMITTEE TIMETABLE 2022/23 
 

 

Committee May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
 

Council 

 

17 
Annual 

 19   11  6  21   21  23 
Annual 

Cabinet 

 

 9 7  1 20  1 12 9 16   

Scrutiny 

(for call in) 

 23 21  15  3 15 26 23 30   

Scrutiny 

 

26 16   22  17  31  2   

Governance, 
Audit & 
Performance 

 28   29  30   2 28   

Planning   8 6 3, 
31 

28 26 23 14 11 8 8 5  

Licensing & 
Environmental 
Health 

  12   18   24     

Standards   13    31     6   

 
 
Please note the following: 
1) Scrutiny (for call-in) refers to Scrutiny Committee meetings which might happen, depending on whether the Committee decides to examine 

a decision made by Cabinet. 
 

P
age 279

A
genda Item

 11



Key

Cabinet

Mo 1
Summer 

Hols
1

Bank 

Holiday
Mo GAP

Tu 2
Summer 

Hols
1 2 Tu L&EH

We 1 Half Term 3 Planning 2 1 1 3 We Pre-election

Th 2
Spring 

Bank 
4 1 Cabinet 3

Scrutiny C-

I
1 Cabinet 2 GAP 2 Scrutiny 4

Local 

Election
Th Planning

Fr 3
Platinum 

Jubilee
1 5

Summer 

Hols
2 4 2 3 3 5 Fr Scrutiny

Sa 4 2 6 3 1 5 3 4 4 1 6 Sa Scrutiny C-I

Su 1 5 3 7 4 2
Conservati

ve  
6 4 1

New 

Year's Day
5 5 2 7 Su Standards

Mo 2
Early May 

Bank 
6 4 8

Summer 

Hols
5 3

Conservati

ve  
7 5 2

Substitute 

day
6 6 Standards 3 Easter Hol 8 Mo

Tu 3 7 5 9
Summer 

Hols
6 4

Conservati

ve  
8 6 Council 3

Christmas 

Hol
7 7 4 Easter Hol 9 Tu

We 4 8 Planning 6 Planning 10
Summer 

Hols
7 5

Conservati

ve  
9 7 4

Christmas 

Hol
8 Planning 8 Planning 5 Planning 10 We

Th 5 9 Cabinet 7 Cabinet 11
Summer 

Hols
8 6 10 8 5 9 Cabinet 9 6 Easter Hol 11 Th

Fr 6 10 8 12
Summer 

Hols
9 7 11 9 6 10 10 7

Good 

Friday
12 Fr

Sa 7 11 9 13 10 8 12 10 7 11 11
LD 

Conferenc
8 13 Sa

Su 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 12
LD 

Conferenc
9 14 Su

Mo 9 13 Standards 11 15
Summer 

Hols
12 10 14 12 9 13 Half Term 13

LD 

Conferenc
10

Easter 

Monday
15 Mo

Tu 10 14 12 L&EH 16
Summer 

Hols
13 11 Council 15 13 10 14 Half Term 14 11 Easter Hol 16 Tu

We 11 15 13 17
Summer 

Hols
14 12 16 14 Planning 11 Planning 15 Half Term 15 12 Easter Hol 17 We

Th 12 16 Scrutiny 14 18
Summer 

Hols
15

Scrutiny C-

I
13 17 Scrutiny 15

Scrutiny C-

I
12 Cabinet 16 Half Term 16 Cabinet 13 Easter Hol 18 Th

Fr 13 17 15 19
Summer 

Hols
16 14 18 16 13 17 Half Term 17 14 Easter Hol 19 Fr

Sa 14 18 16 20 17 15 19 17 14 18 18 15 20 Sa

Su 15 19 17 21 18 16 20 18 15 19 19 16 21 Su

Mo 16 20 18 22
Summer 

Hols
19 17 21 19 16 20 20 17 22 Mo

Tu 17
Annual 

Council
21 19 Council 23

Summer 

Hols
20 18 L&EH 22 20 17 21 Council 21 Council 18 23

Annual 

Council
Tu

We 18 22 20 24
Summer 

Hols
21 19 23 Planning 21

Christmas 

Hol
18 22 22 19 24 We

Th 19 23
Scrutiny C-

I
21

Scrutiny C-

I
25

Summer 

Hols
22 Scrutiny 20 Cabinet 24 22

Christmas 

Hol
19 23

Scrutiny C-

I
23

Pre-

election 
20 25 Th

Fr 20 24 22
Summer 

Hols
26

Summer 

Hols
23 21 25 23

Christmas 

Hol
20 24 24 21 26 Fr

Sa 21 25 23 27 24 22 26 24 21 25 25 22 27 Sa

Su 22 26 24 28 25 23 27 25
Christmas 

Day
22 26 26 23 24 Su

Mo 23 27 25
Summer 

Hols
29

August 

Bank 
26 24 Half Term 28 26

Boxing 

Day
23 27 27 24 29 Mo

Tu 24 28
GAP/LGA 

conf
26

Summer 

Hols
30

Summer 

Hols
27 25 Half Term 29 27

Substitute 

day
24 L&EH 28 28 GAP 25 30 Tu

We 25 29 LGA conf 27
Summer 

Hols
31 Planning 28 Planning 26 Planning 30 GAP 28

Christmas 

Hol
25 29 26 We

Th 26 Scrutiny 30 LGA conf 28
Summer 

Hols
29 GAP 27 Half Term 29

Christmas 

Hol
26

Scrutiny C-

I
30

Scrutiny C-

I
27 Th

Fr 27 29
Summer 

Hols
30 28 Half Term 30

Christmas 

Hol
27 31 28 Fr

Sa 28 30 29 31 28 29 Sa

Su 29 31 30 29 30 Su

Mo 30 Half Term 31 Standards 30 Mo

Tu 31 Half Term 31 Scrutiny Tu

May
2023

May Jun AprDecJul Aug Sep MarOct Nov Jan Feb

P
age 280

https://www.calendarpedia.co.uk/


Committee: Council Date: Tuesday, 22 
February 2022 

Title: Permanent arrangements of the Appointments 
Committee 

Report 
Author: 

Peter Holt – Chief Executive 

pholt@uttlesford.gov.uk 

01779 510702 

 
Summary 
 

1. The Appointments Committee was established at the Council meeting on 18 
May 2021 to advise the Council on the process for appointing a new Chief 
Executive (Head of Paid Service) and new Assistant Director of Governance & 
Legal (Monitoring Officer) and recommend these appointments to Full Council. 
These appointments have since been made. 

2. In order to make future new Chief Officer appointments pursuant to Section 2, 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules, of the Constitution, it is 
proposed that the Appointments Committee be established on a permanent 
basis and its remit be extended.  

 
Recommendations 
 

3. That the Appointments Committee be established on a permanent basis and 
its remit extended to: 

i. All new Chief Officer appointments, whether or not statutory, 
save for those not reserved exclusively for candidates drawn 
from the Council’s existing staff (see Art 2 Part 4 of the Council’s 
Constitution) as part of but not limited to the case of adjustments 
to the overall departmental structure of the Council pursuant to 
Art 12.4.2 of Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution. 

 
ii. That membership of the said Committee be composed of 3 

Residents for Uttlesford, 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 Conservative, 1 
Green and 1 Independent member, including at least one 
member of the Executive, on the nomination of Group Leaders.   

 
Financial Implications 
 

4. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

Background Papers 

5. Councils Constitution (refer to Appendix A): 

 Section 2, Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (page 98) 

Page 281

Agenda Item 12



 Art 2 Part 4 (page 97) 

 Art 12.4.2 of Part 2 (page 34) 

 Art 9 Part 2 (page 27) 

 Art 4.1 Part 4 (page 98) 

Situation 
 

6. The Appointments Committee was established at the Council meeting on 18 
May 2021 to advise the Council on the process for appointing a new Chief 
Executive (Head of Paid Service) and new Assistant Director of Governance & 
Legal (Monitoring Officer) and recommend these appointments to Full Council. 
These appointments have since been made. 

7. In order to make future new Chief Officer appointments pursuant to Section 2, 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules, of the Constitution, it is 
proposed that the Appointments Committee be established on a permanent 
basis and its remit be extended to: 

a) All new Chief Officer appointments, whether or not statutory, save for those 
not reserved exclusively for candidates drawn from the Council’s existing 
staff (see Art 2 Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution) as part of but not 
limited to the case of adjustments to the overall departmental structure of 
the Council pursuant to Art 12.4.2 of Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

8. The Appointments Committee established on 18 May 2021 and tasked with 
recommending appointments for the Head of Paid Service and Monitoring 
Officer roles was composed of seven members and the scheme considered by 
Council proposed 4 Resident for Uttlesford members, 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 
Conservative and 1 Independent or Green member. In order for all political 
Groups to be represented on the Committee, a scheme of 3 Resident for 
Uttlesford members, 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 Conservative, 1 Independent and 1 
Green member has been proposed.  Individual appointments are to be made 
on the nomination of Group Leaders.  

 
9. The establishment of a permanent Committee will ensure that the Council has 

the correct governance arrangements in place when an appointment to a new 
Chief Officer position is required. Meetings of the Committee will only be called 
as and when needed.  

10. For Statutory Officer appointments the Appointments Committee will make 
recommendations to Full Council for their confirmation of such appointments. 

 
 
 
Risk Analysis 
 

      

Page 282



Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions 

That proper 
processes are 
not followed in 
the appointment 
of new Chief 
Officer positions 

1 2  HR & Procurement & 
governance 
arrangements are in 
place to ensure 
compliance with relevant 
employment & financial 
legislation & 
Constitutional 
requirements 

 Appointments 
Committee (or delegated 
representatives) to 
agree, and be integral to 
the process with advice 
and  support from HR 
Manager and HofPS&CE 

 

1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 283



Extracts of the Council’s Constitution referred to in this report         Appendix A 
 
Section 2, Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (page 98) 
 
4. Appointment of chief officers and deputy chief officers 
This process is subject to mandatory standing orders regulations. 
4.1 A committee or sub-committee of the Council will appoint chief officers. That 
committee or sub-committee must include at least one member of the executive. 
 
4.2 An offer of employment as a chief officer shall only be made where no well-
founded objection from any member of the executive has been received. 
 
4.3 Appointment of deputy chief officers is the responsibility of the Head of Paid 
Service or his/her nominee. 
 
Art 2 Part 4 (page 97) 
 
2. Recruitment of Head of Paid Service and chief officers 
Where the Council proposes to appoint a chief officer and it is not proposed that the 
appointment be made exclusively from among their existing officers, the Council will: 
 
2.1 draw up a statement specifying: 
 
i) the duties of the officer concerned; and 
ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be appointed; 
 
2.2 make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to 
bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it; and 
 
2.3 make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (2.1) to 
be sent to any person on request. 
 
Art 12.4.2 of Part 2 (page 34) 
 
12.4.2 The Head of Paid Service will determine and publish a description of the 
overall departmental structure of the Council showing the management structure and 
deployment of officers. 
 
 
Art 4.1 Part 4 (page 98) 

4.1 A committee or sub-committee of the Council will appoint chief officers. That 
committee or sub-committee must include at least one member of the executive. 

Page 284



1 

 

Motion to Council proposing the development of an Evaluation 

Framework for the Uttlesford Sustainable Local Plan & 

Supplementary Planning Document 

 

Motion proposed by: Cllr Vere Isham 

 

MOTION:  

This Council affirms that the principles of social justice (access, diversity, 

equity, participation, and rights); of economic justice (fairness and 

equality of opportunities); and of environmental justice (fair access to 

safe and healthy environments) for all residents lie at its core and that 

these values will guide the development of its Local Plan.  

Therefore, this Council commits to creating a district in which all 

residents are fairly and equitably treated, providing opportunities which 

enable them to live healthy and fulfilling lives, and which is sustainable, 

resilient, ecologically diverse, and beautiful.  

Council agrees to develop an objective evaluation framework which will 

benchmark the Local Plan for its sustainability and ensure Council’s core 

values are adhered to. This benchmark testing will be overseen by an 

independent body, with Members’ involvement and developed drawing 

on local and national expertise and on good practice elsewhere in the 

country.  

Council also proposes the preparation of a Supplementary Design 

Document [SPD] to be developed concurrently with the Local Plan and 

implemented on its adoption. This will ensure that the Council’s highest 

environmental standards are adopted and implemented in Uttlesford 

now and in the future. 

Furthermore, Council aspires to implement the 11 Healthy Homes and 

Places Principles, (set out on page 7), promoted by the Town and 

Country Planning Association, creating the highest quality places for 

residents and a fitting legacy for future generations. 

Page 285

Agenda Item 14



2 

 

Council agrees that the following 20 tests form a starting point and 

baseline for the development of the evaluation framework and the SPD. 

These tests have been drawn from local and national experts; from 

research including climate change reports by the ECC Climate Change 

Commission; the Royal Town Planning Institute and Town and Country 

Planning Association and the Centre for Alternative Technology, as well 

as from policies implemented in other councils such as Cornwall, 

Crawley, South Somerset and North Kesteven. 

The tests will make a detailed assessment of how the Local Plan and 

SPD will meet Council’s core values; local and national climate change 

strategies; targets and action plans; and a detailed sustainability 

appraisal made on how: 

A) The Local Plan and SPD provide healthy and beautiful places for 

residents to live in as well as good employment, educational and 

leisure opportunities.  

B) The Local Plan and SPD address local natural and built 

environments; new green infrastructure including sustainable 

transport; renewable energy generation; waste management; land 

use and the local economy. 

C) The Local Plan and SPD meet Council’s commitment to making 

climate change mitigation a priority and becoming a ‘zero carbon’ 

district by 2030. 

All developments, all settlements and engineering works will be required 

to meet these tests; full carbon costs must be calculated when 

constructing all infrastructure and buildings, and low carbon technologies 

and local materials used. 

The Built Environment  

1. Real local housing needs: 

To prevent excessive and unnecessary building and the loss of viable 

green or agricultural land, the assessment of real local housing needs 

must be based on accurate forecasts. 

At least 40% affordable homes must be built with 5% disabled access 

bungalows. These houses must be built to passiv or similar standards, 

Page 286



3 

 

be part of settlements and not detrimentally distinguishable from other 

houses. 

 

2. Character and density: 

The character and density of any housing settlement must guarantee the 

highest quality of life and wellbeing and be appropriate to the rural 

nature of the district and to the constraints of the medieval towns and 

villages. There must be a robust mechanism to guarantee that the towns 

will not reach a saturation point after which the quality of life, the 

provision of services and infrastructure will decline.  

3. Design: 

The design of houses and other buildings must conform both to the rural 

environment and to existing buildings in the district. Cars should 

preferably be parked in designated parking areas of any settlement, 

thereby giving preference and priority to green walkable streets for 

pedestrians and cyclists and enhancing air quality. New infrastructure 

must allow for the delivery of goods and parcels from defined parking 

areas by electric floats or vehicles powered by energy efficient 

technology.  

4. Energy efficiency: 

New buildings must be energy efficient, properly insulated and have 

renewable power systems such as solar panels, as well as heat source 

pumps. All new developments must meet passiv or equivalent standards 

of insulation. The Council will actively encourage all existing public, 

commercial and residential buildings to be retrofitted by the end of the 

plan period including insulation and solar panels to achieve energy 

neutrality.   

5. Building materials: 

All building materials must be low carbon, environmentally friendly and 

produced as locally as possible. Modular buildings should be 

encouraged and produced locally offsite for onsite assembly. Carbon 

emissions must be fully calculated when building to achieve ‘zero 

Page 287



4 

 

carbon’ by 2030. Permeable surfaces should be used wherever 

possible. 

 

 

 

6. Renewable green energy: 

All energy for new settlements must be from renewable sources and 

could be produced partially onsite by/for individual houses as well as by 

privately or community owned companies for one or more settlement.  

Solar panels must be fitted on all available roofs, multi-storey car park 

structures and industrial premises and commercial sites; heat source 

pumps established on community-owned land. As new technologies 

become available and viable, the plan should be updated to include the 

newer options. 

7. Amenity green space:  

Sufficient allowance must be made for amenity green space and a 

minimum of 5sqm of green space per bedroom must be provided for 

each new settlement. This is in addition to SUDS or other functional 

spaces and includes amenity, sports and play access. Sufficient 

allotments and community gardens must be allowed for to meet the 

needs of residents.  

8. Shops and facilities:  

Shops, services and facilities must be available within a 15-minute walk 

or safe cycle within all larger settlements. Interconnectivity between 

villages and towns to access facilities must aim to be no more than a 15-

minute electric car ride away.  

9. Recycling and waste: 

 All new settlements must allow for comprehensive recycling areas to 

encourage healthy and full recycling. District waste must be managed 

with zero carbon emissions, landfill reduced to a minimum and more 

energy produced from waste as new technologies emerge. 

Page 288



5 

 

10.  Fuelling stations: 

Each existing and new settlement must have some publicly accessible 

electric vehicle (EV) fuelling points and the EV equivalent of the current 

coverage of petrol stations in the district should be maintained or 

expanded.  

  

Page 289



6 

 

11.  Topsoil: 

Quality topsoil from all developments must be preserved wherever 

possible and reused in developments to secure biodiversity and soil 

quality. No peat should be used. 

12.  Tree planting: 

At least one quality native tree appropriate for the area must be planted 

within settlements for each new bedroom built in the district, with a 

minimum of three trees per new dwelling. All trees planted must have 

maintenance contracts to ensure their best chance of survival. 

13.  Preservation of the rural landscape:  

The preservation of the rural landscape must be maintained and where 

possible key upland vistas must remain unaltered. For each bedroom in 

a development 1.5 running metres of new indigenous hedges must be 

planted or replanted if they have been removed for construction 

purposes. 

14.  Rural character: 

The district’s rural character must be differentiated from the urban by 

ensuring that each dwelling has sufficient amenity space. Thus, a 

minimum quota of garden and green space should exceed that currently 

defined by the Essex design guide which references urban areas. 

15.  Water: 

No developments are to be permitted in areas where water has been 

over-extracted or there is a known shortage. Water use in all houses 

must feature water capture through grey water, rainwater and other 

methods including green roofs. Dried streams and water courses must 

be restored through bank planting and dams.  

 
The Natural Environment 

16.  Biodiversity: 

Biodiversity must be protected, valued, and enhanced: agreed UN 

targets require 30% of the land to be formally protected. As part of the 

Page 290



7 

 

local plan and the climate strategy, Uttlesford must seek to increase its 

wildlife habitats throughout the plan period, creating wildlife corridors, 

animal crossings under or over all new roads, and wildlife areas in 

woods, meadows, and hedgerows. The local plan must ensure there is 

no loss of biodiversity and identify suitable areas for protection and for 

the creation of new wildlife zones in settlements and in the countryside.  

Local nature reserves must be established, and new water courses and 

ponds dug. Natural green spaces must be located within and outside 

settlements and include wild natural zones, existing and new woodland, 

and country parks. Countryside farm parks with public access should be 

established where traditional mixed farming techniques and sustainable 

ecology can flourish.  

17. Agriculture: 

Most of the land in Uttlesford is devoted to agriculture. The council must 

work with farmers and partner with the NFU, agricultural colleges and 

groups such as the Soil Association to support the transition to 

sustainable farming practices such as agaricology and permaculture and 

better water management which will enhance food security.  

 

Green Infrastructure and the Local Economy 

18. Sustainable transport: 

Sustainable transport modes such as railways must be close to 

settlement sites. Transport modes must include rural electric bus 

services connecting villages and towns with services running at least 

hourly. Active travel is required to reduce private car usage: cycle and 

walking networks must connect villages and towns safely and include 

quiet lanes throughout the district. The Local Plan must provide for 

connecting all the district cycle paths by the end of the plan period.  

19. District energy: 

The production of district wide renewable energy must be part of the 

strategy for Uttlesford to become a zero-carbon district. This must 

include strategic positioning of different forms of renewable energy such 

Page 291



8 

 

as solar farms, wind farms and biomass and other renewable 

technologies, and enable the creation of community energy and heat 

networks. 

20.  Green economy and investment: 

The Local Plan must provide opportunities for the post fossil fuel world, 

creating research and manufacturing facilities for new green 

technologies, and actively seek inward investment enabling a green 

economy to flourish with new jobs and a skilled workforce. 

 

TCPA 11 PRINCIPLES 

All new homes: 

1. Must be safe in relation to the risk of fire. 

2. Must have, as a minimum, the liveable space required to meet the 

needs of people over their whole lifetimes, including adequate internal 

and external storage space. 

3. Must provide access to natural light in all main living areas and 

bedrooms. 

4. Must be designed to be inclusive, accessible, and adaptable to suit 

the needs of all, including the designed surroundings. 

5. Should be built within places that prioritise and provide access to 

sustainable transport and walkable services, including green 

infrastructure and play space. 

6. Must secure radical reductions in carbon emissions in line with the 

provisions of the Climate Change Act 2008. 

7. Must demonstrate how they will be resilient to a changing climate over 

their full lifetime. 

8. Must be built to design out crime and be secure. 

9. Must be free from unacceptable and intrusive noise and light pollution. 

Page 292



9 

 

10. Must not contribute to unsafe or illegal levels of indoor or ambient air 

pollution and must be built to minimise, and where possible eliminate the 

harmful impacts of air pollution on human health and the environment. 

11. Must be designed to provide year-round thermal comfort for 

inhabitants.    

Page 293



1 

 

Motion to Council: “Robin Hood” tax on oil and gas firms 

 

Motion proposed by: Cllr Caton 

Seconded by: Cllr Light 

 

MOTION: “Robin Hood” tax on oil and gas firms 

Council notes: 

1. The excessive profits being made by oil and gas companies, 

including the boss of BP describing the company as a “cash 

machine” after soaring oil and gas prices boosted its profits to £2.4 

billion in the third quarter of 2021 alone. 

2. Since 2015 the Conservatives have scrapped zero carbon 

standards for new homes, and failed to insulate the millions of 

energy inefficient homes. 

Council therefore supports calls for a “Robin Hood” tax – a one-off levy 

on the super-profits of oil and gas firms to raise money to support 

millions of families facing soaring energy costs which includes: 

1. A proposed one-off levy to raise an estimated £5 billion from 

companies that are making record profits from soaring energy 

prices. This would be used to support vulnerable families facing a 

50% increase to their energy bills. 

  

2. This “one-off” tax could fund a substantial package of emergency 

support to help over 17 million people with their heating bills.  

  

3. This package of support would include doubling and extending the 

Warm Home Discount, doubling the Winter Fuel Allowance 

  

4. A new ten-year home insulation scheme: This would be spent on 

reducing people’s energy bills in the long-term through an 

Page 294

Agenda Item 15



2 

 

emergency home insulation programme to upgrade poorly 

insulated UK homes - including through fully funded grants for 

those in fuel poverty and on low incomes. This would cost an 

estimated £500 million in the next year. 

Council recognises any such one off tax should be followed by a 

widespread review to ensure energy companies pay their fair share. 

Council calls on the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State for 

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy, calling for a one off tax on 

excessive profits made by oil and gas companies in order to help 

vulnerable people with heating bills and upgrade poorly insulated 

homes. 

  

Page 295



1 

 

Motion to Council: Youth Council support 

 

Motion proposed by: Cllr Light 

Seconded by: Cllr Lemon 

 

MOTION: Youth Council support 

This Council affirms its commitment to the Youth Council which is 

recognised in our Constitution.  

The Youth Council was established specifically to represent the views of 

young people in the affairs of the District Council, and it is essential that 

their voices are heard, especially on those issues which will have long 

term effects on their futures. 

We therefore request Council to ensure that the Youth Council is 

adequately resourced and supported, enabling it to revive and grow in 

strength and efficacy.  

 

Additional signatories: 

Councillor Isham 

Councillor Caton  

Page 296

Agenda Item 16



1 

 

Motion to Council: Committee System Working Group 

 

Motion proposed by: Cllr Light 

Seconded by: Cllr Loughlin 

 

MOTION: Committee System Working Group 

This Council commits to operating with the highest standards 

of democracy, accountability and transparency. 

To ensure that this commitment is met, Council agrees to set up a 

working group to oversee the change from the current undemocratic 

Cabinet system to an open and democratic Committee system. 

This change will ensure that all residents will be fairly and equally 

represented and have a clear and strong voice in decisions that affect 

them, their lives and their futures. 

 

Additional signatories: 

Councillor Khan 

Councillor Fairhurst 

Councillor Isham 

Councillor Caton 

  

Page 297

Agenda Item 17


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Reports from the Leader and Members of the Executive
	Portfolio Holder for the Environment and Green Issues; Equalities report

	7 Corporate Plan 2022-26
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan

	8 Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget Proposals 2022/23
	Appendix A - Section 25 Report - Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves
	Budget Amendment - Cllr Khan, Feb 22
	Appendix B - Commercial Strategy 2022 - 2027
	Appendix C - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022 - 2027
	Appendix D - Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23
	Appendix E - Capital Strategy 2022/23
	Appendix F - Capital Programme 2022 - 2027
	Appendix G - Housing Revenue Account 2022/23
	Appendix H - General Fund and Council Tax 2022/23
	Annexe H6 - Budget Consultation Summary Report
	Annexe H7 - Budget Consultation Survey Results
	Equalities Health Impact Assessment - Housing Rent Setting 2022/23
	Equalities Health Impact Assessment - General Fund and Council Tax 2022/23
	Budget Amendment - proposed by Cllr Khan Feb 22

	9 Pay Policy Statement
	Pay Policy Statement 2022-23

	10 Business Rates Reliefs and Grants
	Appendix A - Business Rates Reliefs Policy 2022/23
	Appendix B -  Covid 19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF)
	Appendix C - Omicron Grant Policy

	11 Calendar of meetings - 2022-23
	Draft Committee Timetable 2022-23 Final before Council

	12 Appointments Committee - Chief Officer Appointments
	14 Member Motion: Development of an Evaluation Framework for the Uttlesford Sustainable Local Plan & Supplementary Planning Document
	15 Member Motion: Robin Hood Tax
	16 Member Motion: Youth Council support
	17 Member Motion: Committee System Working Group

